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The information in this preliminary prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities nor may offers to buy these securities be accepted
until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission becomes effective. This preliminary prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities
and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Subject To Completion, Dated December 2, 2011
Preliminary Prospectus
CHANTICLEER HOLDINGS, INC.

5,000,000 Units
Each Unit consisting of one share of common stock
and one warrant to purchase one share of common stock

This is a firm commitment public offering of Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. Each unit consists of one share of common stock and one warrant. We expect that the units will be offered
at a price of $3.00 per unit. Each warrant entitles its holder to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $3.25. The warrants are exercisable at any time after they
become separately quotable and until their expiration on the fifth anniversary of the date of this prospectus. The warrants will be redeemable at our option for $ per warrant
upon 30 days' prior written notice beginning [ ] after the date of this prospectus, provided that our common stock has closed at a price of at least $5.00 per share for at
least twenty (20) consecutive trading days. Initially the common stock and the warrant will only be quoted as part of a unit for a minimum of 30 days unless the representative of
the underwriters determines that an earlier date is acceptable. No later than the 45t day following the date of this prospectus, the common stock and the warrants will be quoted
separately, and the units will no longer be quoted.

We will notify our security holders regarding the separation of our units through the issuance of a press release and publication of a report on Form 8-K in advance of the date our
units separate and the common stock and the warrants begin to be quoted separately.

Prior to this offering, our common stock was quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “CCLR.OB,” and there has been no public market for our units or the warrants.
We anticipate that the units, common stock and the warrants will be quoted on the NYSE Amex. As of [ ], an application to have our securities quoted on the NYSE
Amex has been filed, and it is a condition to the underwriters’ obligation to consummate this offering that such application be approved.

Investing in these units involves a high degree of risk. You should purchase these securities only if you can afford a complete loss of your investment. We have not yet been
profitable and have a history of losses. See "Risk Factors' on pages [ | for factors you should consider before buying our securities.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or
accuracy of this prospectus or the information contained herein. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Per Unit Total
Public offering price $ 3.00 $ 15,000,000
Underwriting discounts and commissions (1) 024 $ 1,200,000
Proceeds to us, before expenses $ 276 $ 13,800,000
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€8] For a description of the compensation to be received by the underwriters in addition to the underwriting discount, see the "Underwriting," section of this prospectus.

The underwriters have the option to purchase up to an additional 750,000 units at the initial public offering price, less the underwriting discount, for up to 45 days from the date of
this prospectus, to cover over-allotments, if any.

We have also agreed to pay Dawson James Securities, Inc., the representative of the underwriters of this offering, a non-accountable expense allowance equal to 2% of the total
public offering price for the units offered by this prospectus and to issue to Dawson James Securities, Inc. a warrant to purchase 400,000 units identical to the units offered by this
prospectus, having an exercise price of $3.45 per unit. The representative's warrants will be exercisable at any time beginning one year after the effective date of the registration
statement, of which this prospectus is part, and will expire on the fifth anniversary of the effective date.

The underwriters expect to deliver the units to the purchasers on or about

Dawson James Securities, Inc.
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No dealer, salesperson or other person has been authorized to give any information other than that contained in this prospectus or to make any representations in connection with
the offer contained in this prospectus and, if give or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by us.

Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any sale made hereunder shall under any circumstances create an implication that there has been no change in our affairs since the date
hereof. This prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy securities other than those specifically offered hereby or of any securities offered
hereby in any jurisdiction where, or to any person to whom, it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. The information contained in this prospectus speaks only as of the date
of this prospectus unless the information specifically indicates that another date applies.

This prospectus has been prepared based on information provided by us and by other sources that we believe are reliable. This prospectus summarizes certain documents and other
information in a manner we believe to be accurate, but we refer you to the actual documents, if any, for a more complete understanding of what we discuss in this prospect s. In
making a decision to invest in the common stock, you must rely on your own examination of us and the terms of the offering and securities offered in this prospectus, including the
merits and risks involved.

You should not consider any information in this prospectus to be legal, business, tax or other advice. You should consult your own attorney, business a visor and tax advisor for
legal, business and tax advice regarding an investment in our common stock.




PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in the prospectus. It does not contain all of the information you consider before purchasing our units. Therefore, you
should read the prospectus in its entirety, including the risk factors and the other financial statements and related footnotes appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus. Unless the
context indicates otherwise, references to “we,” “us,” “our,” “Chanticleer” or the “company” generally refer to Chanticleer Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its
subsidiaries.

Our Business

Overview

We have changed our focus recently from managing investments to owning and operating Hooters franchises internationally. Hooters restaurants are casual beach-themed
establishments with sports on television, jukebox music, and the “nearly world famous” Hooters Girls. The menu consists of spicy chicken wings, seafood, sandwiches and
salads. Each locations menu can vary with the tastes of the locality it is in. Hooters began in 1983 with its first restaurant in Clearwater, Florida. From the original restaurant and
licensee Mr. Robert Brooks, Hooters has become a global brand, with locations in 44 states domestically and over 450 Hooters restaurants worldwide. Besides restaurants, Hooters

has also branched out to other areas, including licensing its name to a golf tour and the sale of packaged food in supermarkets.

The following chart shows our operational structure after the consummation of this offering and the use of proceeds. [
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We expect to either own 100% of the Hooters franchise or partner with a local franchisee in the countries we target. We based this decision on what we believe to be the
successful launch of our South African Hooters venture and believe we have aligned partners and operators in various international markets. We continue to operate our

management and consulting services segment, however we are focused on expanding our Hooters operations, and expect to use substantially all the net proceeds from this offering,
in the following countries: South Africa, Brazil, Hungary, Australia and Europe.




How Chanticleer Obtains Hooters Franchises and Territories

Chanticleer identifies a target international territory and our CEO, Mike Pruitt, who is also on the Board of Hooters of America, Inc. (“HOA”), uses his contacts at HOA and also
his own personal relationships to gather information on a possible partner/operator in specifically identified territories. Concurrently we gather public information regarding the
demographics and economics for that territory and analyze whether we believe the territory can support a successful Hooters restaurant or restaurants.

After we conclude that a territory meets our criteria for a successful Hooters franchise, we apply, along with our partner if there is one, for a franchise with HOA. The application
includes our findings on the economics and demographics of the area as well as personal financial information of all the partners. HOA performs its own background checks, as
well as third party market research and competitor data. After the application is accepted, a detailed business proposal is submitted by the franchisee, including a detailed analysis
and history of the territory/country, a description of the first few proposed locations (including population, income levels and economic factors in the region). HOA performs its
own due diligence on the application. If approved, the franchisee signs a franchise agreement for the territory, generally for a 20 year period and pays HOA an initial franchise fee
of $75,000 for the first location and a $15,000 deposit on the other locations applied for. HOA is heavily involved in the site survey for each location. After the opening of a
restaurant, the franchisee pays a monthly continuing royalty fee to HOA based on gross revenue. The franchise agreement also requires that a certain percentage of gross revenue
must be spent on marketing/advertising.

We were granted the Hooters franchise rights for the Republic of South Africa in June 2009. Specifically related to our South African franchise, our ongoing obligations to HOA
are as follows:

4% of gross revenue is paid to HOA monthly as a continuing royalty fee for the first 18 months a restaurant is open. After this initial period, the rate is calculated based
on the last 12 months revenue on a sliding scale. Currently our Durban location is our only location that has been open more than 18 months and the rate for the next 12
months has been set at 4%.

4% of gross revenue is to be spent on advertising and marketing.

Open seven locations by 12/31/14.

If any of these obligations are not met, HOA has the right to terminate our franchise agreement.
HOA'’s obligations to us related to our South African franchise are as follows:
Advise us on locating and opening a completed restaurant, including supplier lists, acceptable site criteria, and architectural plan (at HOA’s option).
Provide us with management training and pre-opening training for non-management employees.
Advise us on operation, advertising and promotion.
Provide us with the requirements for a standardized system for accounting, cost control, and inventory control.

If any of these obligations are not met we have the right to terminate our franchise agreement.

This franchise agreement has a 20 year term beginning June 2009 for our initial restaurant and 20 years after the opening of each subsequent location. We may renew after the 20-
year period with written notice 6 to 18 months prior to termination date, the signing of the then current form of franchise agreement , and a $25,000 fee per restaurant.




Hooters Assistance and Training to Franchisee Prior To and After Opening

After acceptance as a franchisee, Hooters requires employees/staff of franchisees to attend a 5 day seminar called “Hooters University” at Hooters corporate headquarters in
Atlanta, Georgia. Attendees are educated in all aspects of operating a Hooters restaurant, including Hooters’ mission statement, menu, human resources, accounting, and employee
recruitment and training. Subsequently each of key management staff are required to work in a Hooters Corporate restaurant for 4 additional weeks. Prior to the initial restaurant of
a franchisee opening, Hooters assists with a site survey of the restaurant and sends staff for several weeks to the restaurant to further assist and train employees.

After opening, Hooters assists with marketing, food distribution, and worldwide purchasing contracts.
South Africa

We currently have three Hooters locations in South Africa in Cape Town, Durban and Johannesburg, which are owned by three companies which we control. In order to obtain
investor funds to pay for the initial costs involved in commencing operations for each of the South Africa locations, we agreed to allocate a portion of the profits from each
restaurant such that the investors receive 80% of the net profits after taxation until they have received a return of their investment and a pre-tax annual compounded return on that
investment of 20% (the “SA Return”). Once the investors have received the SA Return, the investors are thereafter entitled to receive 20% of the SA Profits.

We formed a management company to operate the current South African Hooters locations. We own 80% of the management company , with two members of local
management owning the remaining 20%. The management company currently charges a management fee of 5% of net revenues. We have also received Hooters corporate site
approval for our first 100% owned Hooters location in Emperors Palace Casino in Johannesburg. We expect this location to open in January 2012.

Other Countries
We are currently targeting the following countries for the opening of additional restaurants:

Brazil - we are in the latter stages of acquiring development rights for Hooters in five states of Brazil, which would include Rio de Janeiro, although we do not presently
have any agreement in writing. We expect to partner with the current local franchisee who owns the Hooters franchise rights in the state of Sao Paolo and we anticipate we
would own 60% of the entity holding the development rights, with our local partner owning the remaining 40%.

Hungary - we have applied to HOA for franchise rights in Hungary, where we anticipate we would own 80% of the entity holding the franchise rights, with our local
partner owning the remaining 20%. We anticipate that we will contract with our local partner, who we believe is an experienced franchise restaurateur, to manage the day-
to-day operations of the locations, although we do not presently have any agreement in writing.

Australia - we are in the process of partnering with the current Hooters franchisee in a joint venture, although we do not presently have any agreement in writing. The first
Hooters restaurant under this joint venture (which would be the third Hooters restaurant currently open) is expected to open in January 2012 in Campbelltown, a suburb of
Sydney. We are in discussions to purchase from the same franchisee a partial interest in the first two existing Hooters locations in the Sydney area.

Europe — we are in discussions with a current franchisee to purchase 100% of an existing Hooters location, however, we do not presently have any agreement in writing.
Acquisition of Hooters Restaurants

Our trend toward focusing on Hooters arose when the Company and our partners completed the acquisition of HOA and Texas Wings, Inc. ("TW") in 2011. Our then wholly
owned subsidiary, Chanticleer Investors, LLC (“Investors LLC”) and its three partners, H.I.G. Capital, KarpReilly, LLC and Kelly Hall, president of Texas Wings Inc., the largest
Hooters franchisee in the United States, combined to form HOA Holdings, LLC ("HOA LLC") which created an operating company with 161 company-owned locations across
sixteen states, or nearly half of all domestic Hooters restaurants and over one-third of the locations worldwide. The Company now owns approximately 14% of Investors LLC,
which represents approximately 3% ownership interest in HOA LLC. We presently have not received any revenue from our interest in HOA LLC, and will receive revenue, if any
based on distributions from the entity.




The Company received a payment of $400,000 at closing for its services in facilitating the acquisition of HOA and TW. In addition, for a minimum of four years, the Company
will receive annual payments of $100,000 due in January each year while Mr. Pruitt serves on its board.

Management and consulting services

The Company provides management and consulting services for small companies which are generally seeking to become publicly traded. The Company also provides
management and investment services for Investors LLC and Investors II, which are affiliates of the Company.

Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 11220 Elm Lane, Suite 203, Charlotte, NC 28277. Our web site is www.chanticleerholdings.com. Information included or referred
to on, or accessible through our website is not incorporated in this prospectus and is not a part of this prospectus.

The Offering

Securities Offered 5,000,000 units. Each unit consists of one share of common stock and one redeemable warrant to
purchase one share of stock.

Initially, the common stock and the warrants will be quoted only as a unit for a minimum of 30 days
unless the representative of the underwriters determines that an earlier date is acceptable. No later than
the 45t day following the date of this prospectus. the common stock and the warrant will each be
quoted separately, and the units will no longer be quoted. We will notify our security holders regarding
the separation of our units through the issuance of a press release and publication of a report on
Form 8-K in advance of the date our units separate and the common stock and the warrants begin to be
quoted separately.

Warrants The warrant included in the units will be exercisable at any time after they become quoted separately
and until either they are redeemed or they expire in accordance with their terms on the fifth
anniversary of the date of this prospectus. The exercise price of a warrant is $3.25. Beginning [six]
months after the date of this prospectus, the warrants will be redeemable at our option for $ per
warrant upon 30 days' prior written notice, at any time after our common stock has closed at a price of
at least $5.00 per share for at least twenty (20) consecutive trading days. The warrants may only be
redeemed if we have a current and effective registration statement available covering the exercise of
the warrants.




Securities Outstanding After This Offering
Units

Common Stock

Warrants

Use of Proceeds

Risk Factors

OTC Bulletin Symbol for our Common Stock:

5,000,000
7,498,724 shares
5,400,000()

The proceeds from the offering, less fees and expenses incurred by us in connection with the offering,
are intended to be used for owning and operating international Hooters franchises and for general
corporate purposes, including working capital.

Investing in the units involves significant risks, including, but not limited to, the following: our
limited operating history and history of losses; risks inherent in expansion of our operations; our lack
of restaurant management experience; continued satisfactory relationship with HOA; and the limited
public market for our securities. You should carefully consider the information set forth in the "Risk
Factors" section of this prospectus prior to investing in the units.
(1) The number of shares of our common stock to be outstanding after this offering excludes an
aggregate of 4,814,018 additional shares of common stock and warrants issuable under various
outstanding warrant agreements with expiration dates between October 1, 2016 and August 9,
2021, and exercise prices ranging from $2.75 to $3.50.
Unless we specifically state otherwise, the share information is as of , 2011 and reflects or
assumes no exercise of outstanding options or warrants to purchase shares of our common stock, and
no exercise of the over-allotment option.

Proposed NYSE Amex Listing Symbol for Our Units, Common Stock and Warrants

We are applying for listing of our units, common stock and warrants on the NYSE Amex under the symbols: s R , respectively. No assurance can be given

that our application will be approved.




Summary Historical Financial Information

The following table summarizes our financial data. We have derived the following summary of our statements of operations data and balance sheet data for the nine (9) months
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 from our unaudited consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. We have derived the following summary of our
statements of operations data and balance sheet data for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 from our audited financial statements appearing elsewhere in this
prospectus. The following summary of our financial data set forth below should be read together with our financial statements and the related notes to those statements, as well as
the section titled “Management’s discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. Our pro forma balance sheet
at September 30, 2011, reflects the anticipated proceeds to be received for the sale of 5,000,000 units in this offering by us at a public offering price of $3.00 per unit, after
deducting the underwriting discount, the representative’s non-accountable expense allowance and the estimated offering expenses payable by us .

Nine Months Ended Year Ended
September 30, December 31,
2011 2010 2010 2009

Statement of Operations Data: As reported Adjustment Proforma As reported As reported As reported

Revenues $ 468,417 $ 80,504 $ 136,301 $ 602,978

Expenses 964,454 574,901 1,147,866 1,416,674

Net loss $ (496,037) $ (494,397) $ (1,011,565) $ (813,696)
Balance Sheet Data:

Current Assets $ 464,868 $ 13,300,000 $ 13,764,868 $ 60,883 $ 158,718  $ 60,180

Working Capital (deficit) (1,085,800) 13,300,000 12,214,200 (646,232) (486,916) (675,471)

Total assets 2,165,614 13,300,000 15,465,614 1,565,923 1,414,559 1,453,669

Total stockholders’ equity 376,920 13,300,000 13,676,920 422,308 82,425 718,018

The following table presents our statement of operations data assuming we owned 100% of the three Hooters South African stores from January 1, 2010 through September 30,
2011:




January 1, 2011 through September 30, 2011:

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Total Operating Expenses
EBITDA
Interest expense
Amortization and depreciation
Income taxes

Net income

January 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011:

Revenues
Cost of Goods Sold

Gross Profit
Operating expenses
EBITDA

Interest expense
Amortization and depreciation
Income taxes

Net income

(1) Durban location opened in December 2009 and reported revenues and expenses in 2010.

(2) Johannesburg location opened in June 2010.
(3) CapeTown location opened in June 2011.

Durban (1) Johannesburg (2) CapeTown (3) Total
$ 1,027,726  § 1,936,481 $ 400,058 $ 3,364,265
373,587 710,937 157,668 1,242,192
654,139 1,225,544 242,390 2,122,073
519,485 1,019,216 183,461 1,722,162
134,654 206,328 58,929 399,911
3,877 7,802 2,658 14,337
48,931 137,076 24,937 210,944
22,919 17,207 8,774 48,900
75,727 162,085 36,369 274,181
58,927 44,243 22,560 125,730
Durban (1) Johannesburg (2) CapeTown (3) Total
$ 2,980,651 § 3,926,219 $ 400,058 $ 7,306,928
990,026 1,319,970 157,668 2,467,664
1,990,625 2,606,249 242,390 4,839,264
1,450,766 1,871,220 183,461 3,505,447
539,859 735,029 58,929 1,333,817
8,902 13,926 2,658 25,486
117,043 235,998 24,937 377,978
114,586 135,831 8,774 259,191
$ 299,328 § 349,274 $ 22,560 $ 671,162




SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such forward-looking statements include those that express plans, anticipation, intent, contingency, goals,
targets or future development and/or otherwise are not statements of historical fact. These forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and projections about
future events and they are subject to risks and uncertainties known and unknown that could cause actual results and developments to differ materially from those expressed or
implied in such statements.

"o "o

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology, such as "expects," "anticipates," "intends," "estimates," "plans," "believes," "seeks," "may," "should",
"could" or the negative of such terms or other similar expressions. Accordingly, these statements involve estimates, assumptions and uncertainties that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those expressed in them. Any forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to the factors discussed throughout this prospectus.

"o non "o "o

You should read this prospectus completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different from what we expect. You should assume that the
information appearing in this prospectus s accurate as of the date on the front cover of this prospectus only. Because the risk factors referred to above could cause actual results or
outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf, you should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking
statements. Further, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to
reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is
not possible for us to predict which factors will arise. In addition, we cannot assess the impact of each factor on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of
factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. We qualify all of the information presented in this prospectus, and
particularly our forward-looking statements, by these cautionary statements.




RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider the specific risks described below and other
information included in this prospectus. The risks described below are not the only risks involved in an investment in our securities. The risks and uncertainties not presently
known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may impair our business operations. If any of the risks described below actually occur, our business, results of operations,
and financial condition could suffer materially. In that event, the trading price and market value of our securities could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment in
our securities.

Risks Related to Our Company and Our Business
We have not been profitable to date and expect our operating losses to continue for the foreseeable future; we may never be profitable.

We have incurred annual operating losses and generated negative cash flows since our inception and have financed our operations principally through equity investments and
borrowings. At this time, our ability to generate sufficient revenues to fund operations is uncertain. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, we had revenue of $602,978 and
incurred a net loss of $813,696. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, we had revenue of $136,301 and incurred a net loss of $1,011,565. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2011, we had revenue of $468,417 and incurred a net loss of $496,037. Our total accumulated deficit through September 30, 2011, was $5,425,455.

As a result of our brief operating history, revenue is difficult to predict with certainty. Current and projected expense levels are based largely on estimates of future revenue. We
expect expenses to increase in the future as we expand our activities. We cannot assure you that we will be profitable in the future. Accordingly, the extent of our future losses and
the time required to achieve profitability, if ever, is uncertain. Failure to achieve profitability could materially and adversely affect the value of our Company and our ability to
effect additional financings. The success of the business depends on our ability to increase revenues to offset expenses. If our revenues fall short of projections, our business,
financial condition and operating results will be materially adversely affected.

Our financial statements have been prepared assuming a going concern.

Our independent registered public accounting firm has expressed substantial doubt that our ability to continue as a going concern. Our financial statements as of December 31,
2010, were prepared under the assumption that we will continue as a going concern for the next twelve (12) months. Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued
a report that include an explanatory paragraph referring to our losses from operations and expressing substantial doubt in our ability to continue as a going concern without
additional capital becoming available. Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to obtain additional financing, obtaining further operating
efficiencies, reducing expenditures and ultimately, create profitable operations. Such financings may not be available or may not be available on reasonable terms. Our financial
statements do not include adjustments that result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Our business strategy includes operating a new line of business that is distinct and separate from our primary existing operations, which could be subject to additional
business and operating risks.

Consistent with our announced growth strategy, we are expanding the operation of our development of Hooters Restaurants, which are operations in a new and distinct line of
business from our existing operations. Development of a new business segment is a complex, may be costly and a time consuming process and may involve assets and operations
in which we have limited operating experience. Failure to timely and successfully develop this new line of business in conjunction with our existing operations may have a
material adverse affect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. The difficulties of integrating new business activities with existing operations include, among
other things: operating distinct business segments that require different operating strategies and different managerial expertise; necessity of coordinating organization systems and
facilities in different locations; and integrating personnel with diverse backgrounds and organizational cultures.




There are risks inherent in expansion of operations, including our ability to acquire additional territories, generate profits from new restaurants, find suitable sites and
develop and construct locations in a timely and cost-effective way.

We cannot project with certainty, nor do we make any representations regarding, the number of territories we will be able to acquire or the number of new restaurants we and our
partners will open in accordance with our present plans and within the timeline or the budgets that we currently project. Our failure to effectively develop locations in new
territories would adversely affect our ability to execute our business plan by, among other things, reducing our revenues and profits and preventing us from realizing our strategy.
Furthermore, we cannot assure you that our new restaurants will generate revenues or profit margins consistent with those currently operated by us.

The number of openings and the performance of new locations will depend on various factors, including:

. the availability of suitable sites for new locations;

. our ability to negotiate acceptable lease or purchase terms for new locations, obtain adequate financing, on favorable terms, required to construct, build-out and
operate new locations and meet construction schedules, and hire and train and retain qualified restaurant managers and personnel;

. managing construction and development costs of new restaurants at affordable levels;
. the establishment of brand awareness in new markets; and
. the ability of our Company to manage this anticipated expansion.

While the impact varies with the location and the qualifications of our partners, tight credit markets are generally making financing for construction and operation of restaurants
more difficult to obtain on favorable terms.

Competition for suitable restaurant sites in target markets is intense. Not all of these factors are within our control or the control of our partners, and there can be no assurance that
we will be able to accelerate our growth or that we will be able to manage the anticipated expansion of our operations effectively.

We may be subject to general risk factors affecting the restaurant industry, including current economic climate, costs of labor and food prices

If we grow as anticipated, our Company may be affected by risks inherent in the restaurant industry, including:

. adverse changes in national, regional or local economic or market conditions;

. increased costs of labor;

. increased costs of food products;

. availability of, and ability to obtain, adequate supplies of ingredients that meet our quality standards;
. increased energy costs;

. management problems;

. increases in the number and density of competitors;




. changing consumer tastes, habits and spending priorities;

. changing demographics;
. changes in government regulation; and
. local, regional or national health and safety matters.

Our Company may be the subject of litigation based on discrimination, personal injury or other claims. We can be adversely affected by publicity resulting from food quality,
illness, injury or other health concerns or operating issues resulting from one restaurant or a limited number of restaurants in our system. None of these factors can be predicted
with any degree of certainty, and any one or more of these factors could have a material adverse effect on our Company.

There is intensive competition in our industry, and we will be competing with national, regional chains and independent restaurant operators.

The restaurant industry is intensely competitive. Moreover, the retail food industry in general is highly competitive and includes highly sophisticated national and regional chains.
Our sector is highly competitive with respect to, among other things, taste, price, food quality and presentation, service, location and the ambiance and condition of each restaurant.
While we strive to differentiate ourselves through the items we offer on our menu and the environment in which they are offered, we will, nonetheless, be required to compete with
national and regional chains and with independent operators for market share, access to desirable locations and recruitment of personnel. No assurances can be given that we will
have the financial resources, distribution ability, depth of key personnel or marketing expertise to compete successfully in these markets.

Our rights to operate and franchise Hooters-branded restaurants are dependent on the Hooters’ franchise agreements.

Our rights to operate and franchise Hooters-branded restaurants and therefore our ability to conduct our business derive principally from the rights granted or to be granted to us by
Hooters in our franchise agreements. As a result, our ability to continue operating in our current capacity is dependent on the continuation and renewal of our contractual
relationship with Hooters.

In the event Hooters does not grant us franchises to acquire additional locations, we would be unable to operate Hooters-branded restaurants, identifying our business with Hooters
and using any Hooters’ intellectual property. As the Hooters’ brand and our relationship with Hooters are among our competitive strengths, the failure to grant or the expiration or
termination of the franchise agreements would materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Our business depends on our relationship with Hooters and changes in this relationship may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our rights to operate Hooters-branded restaurants and therefore our ability to conduct our business derive principally from the rights granted to us by Hooters in the franchise
agreements. As a result, our revenues are dependent on the continued existence of our contractual relationship with Hooters.

Pursuant to the franchise agreements, Hooters has the ability to exercise substantial influence over the conduct of our business. We must comply with Hooters’ high quality
standards, we cannot transfer the equity interests of our subsidiaries, we own without Hooters” consent, and Hooters has the right to control many of the locations’ daily
operations.




Notwithstanding the foregoing, Hooters has no obligation to fund our operations. In addition, Hooters does not guarantee any of our financial obligations, including trade payables
or outstanding indebtedness, and has no obligation to do so.

If the terms of the franchise agreements excessively restrict our ability to operate our business or if we are unable to satisfy our obligations under the franchise agreements, our
business, results of operations and financial condition would be materially and adversely affected.

We do not have full operational control over the businesses of our franchise partners.

We are and will be dependent on our partners to maintain Hooters’ quality, service and cleanliness standards, and their failure to do so could materially affect the Hooters’ brand
and harm our future growth. Although we intend to exercise significant control over partners through agreements, our partners will have some flexibility in the operations,
including the ability to set prices for our products in their restaurants, hire employees and select certain service providers. In addition, it is possible that some partners may not
operate their restaurants in accordance with our quality, service and cleanliness, health or product standards. Although we will take corrective measures if partners fail to maintain
Hooters’ high quality, service and cleanliness standards, we may not be able to identify and rectify problems with sufficient speed and, as a result, our image and operating results
may be negatively affected.

A failure by Hooters to protect its intellectual property rights, including its brand image, could harm our results of operations.

The profitability of our business depends in part on consumers’ perception of the strength of the Hooters brand. Under the terms of our franchise agreements , we are required to
assist Hooters with protecting its intellectual property rights in our jurisdictions. Nevertheless, any failure by Hooters to protect its proprietary rights in the world could harm its
brand image, which could affect our competitive position and our results of operations.

Our business has been adversely affected by declines in discretionary spending and may be affected by changes in consumer preferences.

Our success depends, in part, upon the popularity of our food products. Shifts in consumer preferences away from our restaurants or cuisine could harm our business. Also, our
success depends to a significant extent on discretionary consumer spending, which is influenced by general economic conditions and the availability of discretionary income.
Accordingly, we may experience declines in sales during economic downturns or during periods of uncertainty. A continuing decline in the amount of discretionary spending could
have a material adverse effect on our sales, results of operations, business and financial condition.

Increases in costs, including food, labor and energy prices, will adversely affect our results of operations

Our profitability is dependent on our ability to anticipate and react to changes in our operating costs, including food, labor, occupancy (including utilities and energy), insurance
and supplies costs. Various factors beyond our control, including climatic changes and government regulations, may affect food costs. Specifically, our dependence on frequent,
timely deliveries of fresh meat and produce subject us to the risks of possible shortages or interruptions in supply caused by adverse weather or other conditions which could
adversely affect the availability and cost of any such items. In the past, we have been able to recover some of our higher operating costs through increased menu prices. There have
been, and there may be in the future, delays in implementing such menu price increases, and competitive pressures may limit our ability to recover such cost increases in their
entirety. The recent volatility in certain commodity markets, such as those for energy, grains and dairy products, which have experienced significant increases in prices, may have
an adverse effect on us in the fiscal 2011 and beyond and may cause franchisees in our industry to delay construction of new restaurants and/or cause potential new franchisees to
reconsider entering into franchise agreements. The extent of the impact may depend on our ability to increase our menu prices and the timing thereof.

12




The growth of our Company is dependent on the skills and expertise of management and key personnel.

During the upcoming stages of our Company’s anticipated growth, we will be entirely dependent upon the management skills and expertise of our management and key
personnel, including Michael Pruitt, our current Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Pruitt also sits on HOA’s board of directors. We would be materially adversely
affected in the event that the services of Mr. Pruitt ceased to be available to us.

Our food service business and the restaurant industry are subject to extensive government regulation.

We are subject to extensive and varied country, federal, state and local government regulation, including regulations relating to public health and safety and zoning codes. We
operate each of our locations in accordance with standards and procedures designed to comply with applicable codes and regulations. However, if we could not obtain or retain
food or other licenses, it would adversely affect our operations. Although we have not experienced, and do not anticipate, any significant difficulties, delays or failures in obtaining
required licenses, permits or approvals, any such problem could delay or prevent the opening of, or adversely impact the viability of, a particular restaurant or group of restaurant.

We may be subject to significant foreign currency exchange controls in certain countries in which we operate.

Certain foreign economies have experienced shortages in foreign currency reserves and their respective governments have adopted restrictions on the ability to transfer funds out of
the country and convert local currencies into U.S. dollars. This may increase our costs and limit our ability to convert local currency into U.S. dollars and transfer funds out of
certain countries. Any shortages or restrictions may impede our ability to convert these currencies into U.S. dollars and to transfer funds, including for the payment of dividends or
interest or principal on our outstanding debt. In the event that any of our subsidiaries are unable to transfer funds to us due to currency restrictions, we are responsible for any
resulting shortfall.

Our foreign operations subject us to risks that could negatively affect our business.

We expect all of our restaurants will be operated in foreign countries and territories outside of the U.S., and we intend to continue expansion of our international operations. As a
result, our business is increasingly exposed to risks inherent in foreign operations. These risks, which can vary substantially by market, include political instability, corruption,
social and ethnic unrest, changes in economic conditions (including wage and commodity inflation, consumer spending and unemployment levels), the regulatory environment, tax
rates and laws and consumer preferences as well as changes in the laws and policies that govern foreign investment in countries where our restaurants are operated.

In addition, our results of operations and the value of our foreign assets are affected by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, which may adversely affect reported
earnings. More specifically, an increase in the value of the United States Dollar relative to other currencies, such as the Australian Dollar, the Brazilian Real, the British Pound, the
Euro, and the South African Rand could have an adverse effect on our reported earnings. There can be no assurance as to the future effect of any such changes on our results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows.

We may not attain our target development goals and aggressive development could cannibalize existing sales.

Our growth strategy depends in large part on our ability to increase our net restaurant count in markets outside the United States. The successful development of new units will
depend in large part on our ability and the ability of our franchisees/partners to open new restaurants and to operate these restaurants on a profitable basis. We cannot guarantee
that we, or our franchisees/partners, will be able to achieve our expansion goals or that new restaurants will be operated profitably. Further, there is no assurance that any new
restaurant will produce operating results similar to those of our existing restaurants. Other risks which could impact our ability to increase our net restaurant count include
prevailing economic conditions and our, or our franchisees’/partners’, ability to obtain suitable restaurant locations, obtain required permits and approvals in a timely manner and
hire and train qualified personnel.




Our franchisees/partners also frequently depend upon financing from banks and other financial institutions in order to construct and open new restaurants. If it becomes more
difficult or expensive for our franchisees/partners to obtain financing to develop new restaurants, our planned growth could slow and our future revenue and cash flows could be
adversely impacted.

In addition, the new restaurants could impact the sales of our existing restaurants nearby. It is not our intention to open new restaurants that materially cannibalize the sales of our
existing restaurants. However, as with most growing retail and restaurant operations, there can be no assurance that sales cannibalization will not occur or become more significant
in the future as we increase our presence in existing markets over time.

Current conditions in the global financial markets and the distressed economy may materially adversely affect our business, results of operations and ability to raise capital.
Our business and results of operations may be materially affected by conditions in the financial markets and the economy generally. The stress being experienced by global
financial markets that began in late 2007 continued and substantially increased during 2008 and into 2009. The volatility and disruption in the financial markets have reached
unprecedented levels. The availability and cost of credit has been materially affected. These factors, combined with volatile oil prices, depressed home prices and increasing
foreclosures, falling equity market values, declining business and consumer confidence and the risks of increased inflation and unemployment, have precipitated an economic
slowdown and severe recession. These events and the continuing market upheavals may have an adverse effect on us, our suppliers and our customers. The demand for our
products could be adversely affected in an economic downturn and our revenues may decline under such circumstances.

Furthermore, the fixed-income markets are experiencing a period of both extreme volatility and limited market liquidity, which has affected a broad range of asset classes and
sectors. Equity markets have also been experiencing heightened volatility. We may find it difficult, or we may not be able, to access the credit or equity markets, or we may
experience higher funding costs as a result of the current adverse market conditions. Continued instability in these markets may limit our ability to access the capital we require to
fund and grow our business.

We depend on our key personnel and if they would leave us, our business could be adversely affected.

We are dependent on key management personnel, particularly the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Michael D. Pruitt. The loss of services of Mr. Pruitt or other executive
officers would dramatically affect our business prospects. Certain of our employees are particularly valuable to us because:

they have specialized knowledge about our company and operations;
they have specialized skills that are important to our operations; or
they would be particularly difficult to replace.
We do not have employment agreements with any of our officers.
Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our stock price has experienced price fluctuations.

There can be no assurance that the market price for our common stock will remain at its current level and a decrease in the market price could result in substantial losses for
investors. The market price of our common stock may be significantly affected by one or more of the following factors:

announcements or press releases relating to the biopharmaceutical sector or to our own business or prospects;
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regulatory, legislative, or other developments affecting us or the healthcare industry generally;
sales by holders of restricted securities pursuant to effective registration statements or exemptions from registration; and
market conditions specific to biopharmaceutical companies, the healthcare industry and the stock market generally.

There may be a limited public market for our securities; we presently fail to qualify for listing on any national securities exchanges.

Our common stock currently does not meet all of the requirements for initial listing on a registered stock exchange. Trading in our common stock continues to be conducted on the
electronic bulletin board in the over-the-counter market. As a result, an investor may find it difficult to dispose of or to obtain accurate quotations as to the market value of our
common stock, and our common stock may be less attractive for margin loans, for investment by financial institutions, as consideration in future capital raising transactions or
other purposes. In connection with this offering, we have applied for listing of our units, common stock and warrants on NYSE Amex under the symbols > “ ” and
“ . respectively. No assurance can be given that our application will be approved, and it is a condition to the underwriters’ obligation to consummate this offering that such
application be approved.

Our common stock has historically been a “penny stock” under SEC rules. It may be more difficult to resell shares of common stock classified as “penny stock”.

Our common stock has historically been a “penny stock” under applicable SEC rules (generally defined as non-exchange traded stock with a per share price below $5.00). These
rules impose additional sales practice requirements on broker-dealers that recommend the purchase or sale of penny stocks to persons other than those who qualify as “established
customers” or “accredited investors.” For example, broker-dealers must determine the appropriateness for non-qualifying persons of investments in penny stocks. Broker-dealers
must also provide, prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from the rules, a standardized risk disclosure document that provides information about penny
stocks and the risks in the penny stock market. The broker-dealer also must provide the customer with current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, disclose the
compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson in the transaction, furnish monthly account statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer’s
account, provide a special written determination that the penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser, and receive the purchaser’s written agreement to the transaction.

These requirements may have the effect of reducing the level of trading activity, if any, in the secondary market for a security that becomes subject to the penny stock rules. The
additional burdens imposed upon broker-dealers by such requirements may discourage broker-dealers from effecting transactions in our securities, which could severely limit the
market price and liquidity of our securities. These requirements may restrict the ability of broker-dealers to sell our common stock and may affect your ability to resell our
common stock.

Our common stock could be further diluted as the result of the issuance of additional shares of common stock, convertible securities, warrants or options.

In the past, we have issued common stock, convertible securities (such as convertible preferred stock and notes) and warrants in order to raise money. We have also issued
common stock as compensation for services and incentive compensation for our employees and directors. We have shares of common stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise
of certain of these securities and may increase the shares reserved for these purposes in the future. Our issuance of additional common stock, convertible securities, options and
warrants could affect the rights of our stockholders, could reduce the market price of our common stock or could result in adjustments to exercise prices of outstanding warrants
(resulting in these securities becoming exercisable for, as the case may be, a greater number of shares of our common stock), or could obligate us to issue additional shares of
common stock to certain of our stockholders.
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Shares eligible for future sale may adversely affect the market.

From time to time, certain of our stockholders may be eligible to sell all or some of their shares of common stock by means of ordinary brokerage transactions in the open market
pursuant to Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act, subject to certain limitations. In general, pursuant to amended Rule 144, non-affiliate stockholders may sell freely after
six months subject only to the current public information requirement. Affiliates may sell after six months subject to the Rule 144 volume, manner of sale (for equity securities),
current public information and notice requirements. Of the approximately 2.5 million shares of our common stock outstanding as of November 29, 2011, approximately 2.0
million shares are freely tradable without restriction as of that date. Any substantial sales of our common stock pursuant to Rule 144 may have a material adverse effect on the
market price of our common stock.

While the public warrants are outstanding, it may be more difficult to raise additional equity capital.

During the term that the public warrants are outstanding, the holders of the public warrants will be given the opportunity to profit from a rise in the market price of our common
stock. We may find it more difficult to raise additional equity capital while these public warrants are outstanding. At any time during which these public warrants are likely to be
exercised, we may be able to obtain additional equity capital on more favorable terms from other sources.

The redemption of the public warrants issued in this offering may require potential investors to sell or exercise the public warrants at a time that may be disadvantageous for
them.

At any time beginning six months after the date of this prospectus, provided that our common stock has closed at a price of at least $5.00 per share for at least twenty (20)
consecutive trading days, we may redeem the outstanding public warrants, in whole or in part, upon not less than 30 days' notice, at a price of §__ per warrant. The terms of our
warrants prohibit us from redeeming them unless we have a current and effective registration statement available covering the exercise of the warrants. If we exercise our right to
redeem the public warrants, they will be exercisable until the close of business on the date fixed for redemption in such notice. If any warrant called for redemption is not exercised
by such time, it will cease to be exercisable, and the holder thereof will be entitled only to the redemption price of §  per warrant. Notice of redemption of the public warrants
could force holders to exercise the warrants and pay the exercise price therefor at a time when it may be disadvantageous for them to do so or to sell the warrants at the current
market price when they might otherwise wish to hold the warrants or accept the redemption price, which is likely to be substantially less than the market value of the warrants at
the time of redemption.

We do not expect to pay cash dividends in the for ble future and therefore investors should not anticipate cash dividends on their investment.

Our board of directors does not intend to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future, but instead intends to retain any and all earnings to finance the growth of the business. To
date, we have not paid any cash dividends and there can be no assurance that cash dividends will ever be paid on our common stock.
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We may issue additional shares of our common stock, which could depress the market price of our common stock and dilute your ownership.

Market sales of large amounts of our common stock, or the potential for those sales even if they do not actually occur, may have the effect of depressing the market price of our
common stock. In addition, if our future financing needs require us to issue additional shares of common stock or securities convertible into common stock, the supply of common
stock available for resale could be increased which could stimulate trading activity and cause the market price of our common stock to drop, even if our business is doing well.
Furthermore, the issuance of any additional shares of our common stock, including those pursuant to the Offered Warrants subject to this offering, or securities convertible into our
common stock could be substantially dilutive to holders of our common stock if they do not invest in future offerings.

Our stock price may be volatile.
The trading price of our common stock is expected to be subject to significant fluctuations in response to various factors including, but not limited to, the following:

quarterly variations in operating results and achievement of key business metrics;

changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts, if any;

any differences between reported results and securities analysts’ published or unpublished expectations;
announcements of new contracts or service offerings by us or our competitors;

market reaction to any acquisitions, joint ventures or strategic investments announced by us or our competitors;
shares being sold pursuant to Rule 144 or upon exercise of warrants;

our ability to obtain working capital financing; and

general economic or stock market conditions unrelated to our operating performance.

The securities market in recent years has from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are unrelated to the operating performance of particular
companies. These market fluctuations as well as general economic conditions may also materially and adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Director and officer liability is limited.

As permitted by Delaware law, our by-laws limit the liability of our directors for monetary damages for breach of a director’s fiduciary duty except for liability in certain instances.
As a result of our by-law provisions and Delaware law, shareholders may have limited rights to recover against directors for breach of fiduciary duty. In addition, our by-laws and
indemnification agreements entered into by our company with each of the officers and directors provide that we shall indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent
permitted by law.




USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds to us from the sale of the units that we are offering, assuming gross proceeds of $15.0 million, will be approximately $13.3 million, after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses, or approximately $15.3 million if the underwriter’s over-allotment is exercised in full.

We expect to use any proceeds received from this offering as follows:

$11.2 million for investment in Hooters international franchises — presently we have agreements in place for Campbletown (Australia) and Emperors Palace
(South Africa). We anticipate acquiring development rights in part of Brazil, Hungary, and Europe shortly. Approximately $5.0 million is for purchasing
interests in existing international Hooters locations, including ones we presently operate, $5.6 million for buildout and startup costs on eight locations and $0.6

million is for Hooters franchise rights;
$1.5 million to payoff existing debt — estimated balance of our bank line of credit, which currently has an annual interest rate of 4.5% (0.5 % over Wall Street

Journal Prime rate, or floor of 4.5%, whichever is higher) and matures on August 20, 2012;
$0.6 million for general corporate working capital.

The projected expenditures shown above are only estimates or approximations. We expect the proceeds from this offering together with revenues generated from our business,

will be sufficient to cover our anticipated capital requirements for at least the next 24 months. Until we are able to apply the net proceeds of this offering to the uses described
above, we intend to invest the proceeds in short term investment grade securities. Any proceeds received from the exercise of warrants will be used for working capital.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth at September 30, 2011 (i) our actual capitalization and (ii) our capitalization on a pro forma basis, reflecting proceeds from the sale of 5,000,000
units in this offering by us at a public offering price of $3.00 per unit, after deducting the underwriting discount, the representative's non-accountable expense allowance, and the
estimated offering expenses payable by us.

You should read this capitalization table together with the section of this prospectus entitled "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Plan of
Operations" and with our financial statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Pro Forma
Actual As Adjusted

Common stock, 2,498,724 shares at September 30, 2011;
7,498,724 shares on a pro forma basis $ 301 $ 801
Additional paid-in capital 6,436,348 19,735,848
Other stockholders' equity (634,274) (634,274)
Accumulated deficit (5,425,455) (5,425,455)

Stockholders' equity $ 376,920 $ 13,676,920

The information in the table above excludes shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of the warrants, the underwriters' over allotment option, the representative's
warrants or any shares issuable upon the exercise of any warrants which were outstanding on the date of this prospectus.

MARKET FOR COMMON STOCK AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS
Our common stock has traded on the OTCBB under the symbol “CCLR” since June 27, 2005.

The high and low sales prices on the OTCBB for the common stock were as follows:

High Low

First Quarter, 2011 $ 338 % 2.12
Second Quarter, 2011 $ 320 $ 2.09
Third Quarter, 2011 $ 3.00 $ 2.15
Fourth Quarter, 2011 $ $

Year ended December 31, 2010

First Quarter $ 425 § 2.50
Second Quarter $ 425 $ 2.60
Third Quarter $ 425 $ 3.50
Fourth Quarter $ 425 $ 3.01
Year ended December 31, 2009

First Quarter $ 575 % 1.01
Second Quarter $ 555 % 3.00
Third Quarter $ 540 $ 2.25
Fourth Quarter $ 550 $ 2.05
Year ended December 31, 2008

First Quarter $ 800 $ 5.40
Second Quarter $ 7.00 $ 5.10
Third Quarter $ 7.00 $ 5.75
Fourth Quarter $ 7.00 $ 5.50

As of September 29, 2011 , there were approximately 180 holders of record of our common stock according to the records of our transfer agent.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Management’s Analysis of Business
The Company currently operates in two principal segments, management services and ownership of restaurant franchises in South Africa. Management services have included
management of Investors LLC and Investors II; and will include management services provided to CDF after its registration statement becomes effective. In addition, the
Company also provides management services to certain other companies with services generally paid for with common stock.

Management and consulting services ("'Management'')

The Company provides management and consulting services for small companies which are generally seeking to become publicly traded. The Company also provides
management and investment services for Investors LLC and Investors II.

Operation of Hooters restaurants ('""Restaurants')

Hooters South Africa - On April 23, 2009, the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Chanticleer Holdings Limited, a Bailiwick of Jersey company (“CHL”), through its
50% ownership of Chanticleer & Shaw (Pty.) Ltd., a South African private company (“C&S Ltd.”), entered into a franchise agreement with HOA to open and operate Hooters
restaurants in the Republic of South Africa. The current plan calls for four restaurants in the first phase with three additional locations to be added later. The first restaurant
opened in December 2009 in Durban and commenced operations effective January 1, 2010. A location in Johannesburg opened in June 2010 and the third location opened in
Cape Town during June of 2011. A fourth location at Emperor's Palace Casino in Johannesburg is expected to open in January 2012.

During September 2011, CHL acquired the remaining 50% ownership of C&S Ltd. and now owns all of the outstanding securities of that entity.

Hooters Australia - We are partnering with the current Hooters franchisee in a joint venture[, although we do not presently have any agreement in writing]. The first Hooters
restaurant anticipated to be opened under this joint venture (which will be the third Hooters restaurant to be opened in Australia) is expected to open in January 2012 in

Campbelltown, a suburb of Sydney and we anticipate that we will own a 49% interest[, although we do not presently have any agreement in writing].

Financial information regarding the Company's segments is as follows for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.
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Nine months ended September 30, 2011

Revenues
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization

Profit (loss)
Investments and other

Non-controlling interest

Revenues
Interest expense **
Depreciation and amortization

Profit (loss)
Investments and other

Non-controlling interest

Management
$ 468,417
$ 63,876
$ 7,573
$  (365,191)

Nine months ended September 30, 2010

Management
$ 80,504
$ 104,396
$ 8,281
$  (681,141)

** includes $49,994 fro the beneficial conversion feature of converetible notes payable.

Comparison of three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Total

468,417
63,876

7,573

(374,447)

(122,966)

(497,413)
1,376

(496,037)

Total

80,504
104,396

8,281

(638,291)

143,464

Restaurants
$ - 3
$ - 3
$ - 3
$ (9,256) $
$
Restaurants
$ - 8
$ - 8
$ - 8
$ 42,850 $
$

(494,827)
430

(494,397)

Revenues amounted to ($5,726) in the three months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $9,250 in the year earlier period and is summarized as follows.

HOA LLC acquisition
Investors 11
Investors LLC
Total cash
HOA LLC consulting accrual
Investors II accrual
Amortization of deferred revenue
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2011 2010
$ - 8 -
. 6,625
- 6,625
25,000 =
(30,726) -
. 2,625
$ (5.726) $ 9,250




The Company received cash of $6,625 during the three months ended September 30, 2010 and none in the three months ended September 30, 2011. The Company has a
consulting agreement with HOA LLC and is scheduled to receive $100,000 in January of each year for director and other services provided by Mr. Pruitt, three months of which
was accrued during the quarter ended September 30, 2011. The Investors II accrual is for management services rendered to Investors II which is calculated based on fund
performance and is paid after the end of each year. The market decline during the third quarter resulted in a year-to-date loss in the Investors II fund and the previous year-to-date
management fee accrual was reversed. The amortization of deferred revenue is the consulting and management fees received by the Company in the form of stock that is earned

over an extended period, generally one year.

General and administrative expenses consisted of the following for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Professional services and fees $ 85,431 § 30,350
Payroll 118,970 87,107
Travel and entertainment 21,482 5,337
Other 54,563 40,383
$ 280,446 § 163,177

Professional services and fees increased primarily due to retaining a PR firm. Payroll increased $31,863 in 2011 as compared to 2010, primarily due to hiring two additional
people in 2011, one of which was temporary and has now left the Company. Travel cost increases are primarily the result of increased travel associated with management services

for HOA LLC and the pursuit of Hooters opportunities during the quarter.

Other income (expense) consists of the following for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

2011 2010
Realized gain from sale of investments $ - 8 (1,658)
Equity in earnings (losses) of investments (20,820) 21,597
Other than temporary decline in available-for-sale securities (147,973) -
Interest and other income - 11,500
Interest expense (41,190) (27,421)
$ (209,983) $ 4,018

Equity in earnings (losses) of investments in 2011 and 2010 represents the Company's share of net earnings (losses) from its investment in restaurants in South Africa. During
the third quarter of 2011, the Company acquired the other 10% GP interest and took over operations of the restaurants. A loss resulted during the quarter as a result of adjustments

that were made when a number of obligations were discovered upon completion of an internal review.

The Company recorded an other than temporary decline in available-for-sale securities during the quarter ended September 30, 2011 in the amount of $147,973.

Interest and other income in 2010 included interest income from the Company's investment in Investors. This investment was converted to an investment in common stock in

January 2011.

Interest expense was higher during the 2011 quarter than the 2010 period, due to the amortization of the warrant value of $12,588 during the 2011 quarter. The warrants were

issued as a part of the fee paid to a shareholder for collateralizing the Company's $2,000,000 line of credit.

22




Comparison of nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Revenues amounted to $468,417 in the nine months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $80,504 in the year earlier period and is summarized as follows.

2011 2010

HOA LLC acquisition $ 400,000 $ =
Investors 11 - 11,171
Investors LLC - 19,875
Total cash 400,000 31,046
HOA LLC consulting accrual 66,667 -
Investors II accrual - -
Efftec International shares for management fee - 22,500
Amortization of deferred revenue 1,750 26,958
$ 468,417 $ 80,504

The Company received cash of $400,000 and $24,421 during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The $400,000 received in 2011 was for
services provided in completion of the purchase of HOA and TW by HOA LLC. The Company has a consulting agreement with HOA LLC and is scheduled to receive $100,000 in
January of each year for director and other services provided by Mr. Pruitt, eight months of which was accrued at September 30, 2011. Investors II had negative fund performance
on a year-to-date basis as noted in the discussion of the three months ended September 30, 2011 and the year-to-date accrual for management services rendered to Investors II was
reversed. The amortization of deferred revenue is the consulting and management fees received by the Company in the form of stock that is earned over an extended period,
generally one year.

General and administrative expenses consisted of the following for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Professional services and fees $ 214,645 $ 124,018
Payroll 356,701 388,074
Travel and entertainment 52,052 27,167
Other 146,333 117,990
$ 769,731 $ 657,249

Professional services and fees increased $90,627 (73%) in 2011 from the 2010 amount, primarily due to retaining a PR firm and due to the additional legal services
encountered with raising funds and acquisitions. Payroll costs decreased $31,373 (8%) primarily due to staff reductions after the first quarter of 2010 for personnel employed
primarily to assist the Company in raising funds. Travel and entertainment costs increased primarily due to additional travel requirements for HOA LLC and due to travel
associated with the pursuit of Hooters opportunities.

Other income (expense) consists of the following for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.
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2011 2010

Realized gain from sale of investments $ 19,991  $ 149,350
Other than temporary decline in available-for-sale securities (147,973) (40,386)
Equity in earnings (losses) of investments (9,256) 42,850
Interest and other income 5,016 34,500
Interest expense (63,876) (104,396)
$ (196,098) $ 81,918

The Company realized a gain of $19,991 from sales of DineOut shares during the 2011 period and realized a gain of $149,350 primarily from sales of DineOut shares during
the 2010 period.

The Company recorded a loss from an other than temporary decline in its available-for-sale securities of $147,973 and $40,386 in the nine months ended September 30, 2011
and 2010. In 2011, the loss included $124,573 from HiTech Stages, $22,500 from EffTec International and $900 from Remodel Auction. The loss in 2010 included $39,100 for
Remodel Auction and $1,286 for Syzygy.

Equity in earnings (losses) of investments in 2011 and 2010 represents the Company's share of net earnings (losses) from its investment in restaurants in South Africa. During
the third quarter of 2011, the Company acquired the other 10% GP interest and took over operations of the restaurants.

A loss resulted during the quarter as a result of adjustments that were made when a number of obligations were discovered upon completion of an internal review.

Interest expense was higher during the 2010 period primarily due to the amortization of the beneficial conversion feature on new convertible notes of $49,994. The convertible
notes were all exchanged for our common stock on March 30, 2011. The Company executed a line-of-credit with its bank in August 2011 and substantially increased debt to
expand its investments in Hooters restaurants. During the three months ended September 30, 2011, the Company recorded $12,588 in amortization of the value of warrants in
interest expense. The warrants were issued as a part of the fee paid to a shareholder for collateralizing the Company's $2,000,000 line of credit.

Comparison of year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Revenue

Revenue amounted to $136,301 in 2010 and $602,978 in 2009. Cash revenues were $84,218 in 2010 and $74,250 in 2009. Non-cash revenues from management fees include
$52,083 in 2010 and included $504,167 in 2009 which was recognized from the receipt of securities for our services. In addition, 2009 included revenues from a related party of
$24,000 which was included in bad debt expense in 2010. The majority of our cash revenues are management fees from Investors LLC and Investors II.

The fair value of the equity instruments received was determined based upon the stock prices as of the date we reached an agreement with the third party. The terms of the
securities are not subject to adjustment after the measurement date. See Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements for details.

General and Administrative Expense (“G&A”)

G&A amounted to $946,189 in 2010 and $816,198 in 2009. The more significant components of G&A are summarized as follows:
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2010 2009

Professional fees $ 106,594 $ 106,379
Payroll 490,690 385,320
Travel and entertainment 42,950 57,120
Accounting and auditing 67,914 59,675
Director fees 42,500 -
Bad debt expense 24,907 -
Other G&A 170,634 207,704

$ 946,189 $ 816,198

G&A costs are expected to continue at approximately the same level as 2010, $235,000 per quarter, with the costs associated with the activities of the management services to be
provided to CDF increasing. Revenue is expected to exceed this increase in expense.

Payroll costs increased in 2010 due to the addition of two employees to assist the Company in raising funds. Both of these employees have now left the Company.

Effective December 31, 2010, the Company issued 20,000 shares of its common stock to its outside directors for current and prior director fees. The stock was valued at $42,500
based on the closing price of the common stock on that date.

The Company recognized a bad debt in the amount of $24,907 in 2010 for prior management services of $24,000 and expense advances of $907 owed by Green St. Energy, Inc., a
company for which the Company previously provided management services.

Deferred acquisition costs

FASB ASC 805-10-25-23 replaced prior guidance and became effective January 1, 2009. Acquisition-related costs are defined as costs the acquirer incurs to effect a business
combination and further provides that the acquirer shall account for acquisition-related costs as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services
received. Pursuant to the Company's planned acquisition of HI, the Company incurred $279,050 in acquisition-related costs which were capitalized in 2008 pursuant to accounting
guidance in effect at that time.

FASB ASC 805-10-25-23 applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
after December 15, 2008. Accordingly, on January 1, 2009 the Company charged its previously capitalized acquisition costs to expense on that date.

Asset Impairment

In 2010, the Company recorded an impairment of $250,000 for our equity interest in BreezePlay as a result of it not being able to raise sufficient capital to complete its business
plan and substantially ceasing operation. In 2009, the Company recorded an impairment of our equity investment in Confluence Partners of $50,000 due to the uncertain SPAC
market.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) consisted of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009:
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2010 2009

Other income (expense):

Equity in earnings of investments $ 58,337 $ 23,000
Realized gains from sale of investments 106,035 58,697
Interest expense (140,016) (33,914)
Interest income 46,000 23,000
Miscellaneous income - 50
Other than temporary decline in available-for-sale securities (40,386) (342,259)
$ 29,970 § (271,426)

Equity in Earnings of Investments

Equity in earnings of investments includes our share of earnings from investments in which we own at least 20% and are being accounted for using the equity method. This
included income from the Hoot SA partnerships in 2010 of $58,337 and from Investors of $23,000 in 2009.

Realized Gains from Sale of Investments
Realized gains are recorded when investments are sold and include transactions in 2010 from a gain on sales of DineOut of $157,807, a loss on sales of Vought Defense Systems of

$58,355 and a gain on sales of Healthsport of $6,583 and in 2009 from marketable equity securities for $8,697 and a $50,000 gain from the exchange of our oil and gas property
investment for marketable equity securities.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to the addition of convertible notes payable in the amount of $686,500 in 2010.
Interest Income

Interest income includes our earnings from Investors for all of 2010 and in 2009, after we sold 1/2 of our 23% investment in May 2009.

Other than Temporary Decline in Available-for-Sale Securities

The Company determined that its investment in available-for-sale securities had an other than temporary decline in value and recorded a realized loss in the amount of $40,386 and
$342,259 in 2010 and 2009, respectively. Valuations were determined based on the quoted market price for the stock on December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company had current assets of $464,868 and $158,718; current liabilities of $1,550,668 and $645,634; and a working
capital deficit of $1,085,800 and $486,916, respectively. The Company had a loss of $496,037 during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and had an unrealized loss from
available-for-sale securities of $224,240 resulting in a comprehensive loss of $720,277.

The Company's general and administrative expenses were $769,732 during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $657,249 in the same period of

2010. The Company expects its general and administrative cost to be approximately $250,000 for the fourth quarter of 2011.
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As of September 30, 2011, the Company had raised the following amounts from limited partners and made its own LP contributions for its share of cost of the Durban and
Johannesburg restaurants which opened in 2010 and the Cape Town restaurant which opened in June of 2011. The Johannesburg and Cape Town restaurants are expected to
require some additional funding to settle outstanding liabilities, but all are expected to operate with positive cash flow in the future.

Durban Johannesburg Cape Town Total
Other limited partners $ 351,500 $ 412,500 $ 433250 $ 1,197,250
Chanticleer LP interest 9,299 68,596 183,861 261,756
$ 360,799 $ 481,096 $ 617,111 $ 1,459,006

The Company expects to meet its obligations in the next twelve months with some or all of the following:

- during the quarter ended September 30, 2011, the Company executed a line of credit with its bank in the amount of $2,000,000 and at September 30, 2011 had borrowed
$920,000. This line of credit was used for the buy-out of the other GP in South Africa and is planned to be used for investments in other countries, as discussed elsewhere
herein. The Company plans to sell its common stock in the future with the intended use of the funds to repay existing loans and complete restaurant expansion plans;

- the Company currently is receiving its share of earnings from the Durban and Johannesburg, South Africa restaurants which commenced operations in 2010 and will begin
receiving its share of earnings from the Cape Town, South Africa location which opened in June of 2011; and

- the Company is funding the initial formation of Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. ("CDF"), including the registration of its common stock. The Company expects to get most
of its capital outlay back after the registration statement becomes effective and CDF begins raising funds.

If the above events do not occur or if the Company does not raise sufficient capital, substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern exists. These
consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There are several new accounting pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) which are not yet effective. Each of these pronouncements, as
applicable, has been or will be adopted by the Company. Management does not believe any of these accounting pronouncements has had or will have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position or operating results.

Critical Accounting Policies

The SEC has suggested companies provide additional disclosure and commentary on their most critical accounting policies, which they defined as the ones that are most important
to the portrayal of a company’s financial condition and operating results, and require management to make its most difficult and subjective judgments, often as a result of the need
to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain. Based on this definition our most critical accounting policy is the valuation of our investments. The methods, estimates
and judgments we use in applying this accounting policy has a significant impact on the results we report in our financial statements.

We determine fair value to be the amount for which an investment could be exchanged in an orderly disposition over a reasonable period of time between willing parties other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. Our evaluation process is intended to provide a consistent basis for determining the fair value of our available-for-sale investments. In summary, for
individual securities classified as available-for-sale securities, an enterprise shall determine whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis is other than
temporary. If the decline in fair value is judged to be other than temporary, the individual security shall be written down to fair value as a new cost basis and the amount of the
write-down shall be included in earnings (accounted for as a realized loss). The new cost basis shall not be changed for subsequent recoveries in fair value. Subsequent increases
in the fair value of available-for-sale securities shall be included in other comprehensive income and subsequent decreases in fair value, if not an other-than-temporary impairment,
also shall be included in other comprehensive income.
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The first step in the analysis is to determine if the security is impaired. All of our available-for-sale securities were listed and we use the closing market price to determine the
amount of impairment if any. The second step, if there is an impairment, is to determine if the impairment is other than temporary. To determine if a decline in the value of an
equity security is other than temporary and that a write-down of the carrying value is required, we considered the following:

The length of the time and the extent to which the market value has been less than the cost;

The financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, including any specific events which may influence the operations of the issuer such as changes in
technology that may impair the earnings potential of the investment or the discontinuance of a segment of the business that may affect the future earnings potential; or
The intent and ability of the holder to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value.

Unless evidence exists to support a realizable value equal to or greater than the carrying value of the investment in equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a write-down to
fair value accounted for as a realized loss should be recorded. Such loss should be recognized in the determination of net income of the period in which it occurs and the written
down value of the investment in the issuer becomes the new cost basis of the investment.

Investments in which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence and that, in general, are at least 20 percent owned are stated at cost plus equity in undistributed
net earnings (loss), less distributions received. The Company also has equity investments in which it owns less than 20% which are stated at cost. An impairment loss would be
recorded whenever a decline in the value of an equity investment or investment carried at cost is below its carrying amount and is determined to be other than temporary. In
judging “other than temporary,” the Company considers the length of time and extent to which the fair value of the investment has been less than the carrying amount of the
investment, the near-term and long-term operating and financial prospects of the investee, and the Company’s long-term intent of retaining the investment in the investee.

Commitments and Contingencies
Lease

Effective August 1, 2009, the Company entered into an office lease agreement for its office with a term of one year and monthly lease payments of $2,100. During the quarter
ended September 30, 2011, the lease term expired and the Company is continuing to occupy the space on a month-to-month basis.

Hooters South Africa

On April 23, 2009, the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, CHL, through its 50% ownership of C&S Ltd., entered into a franchise agreement with HOA to open and operate
Hooters restaurants in the Republic of South Africa. The current plan calls for four restaurants in the first phase with three additional locations to be added later. The first
restaurant opened in December 2009 in Durban and commenced operations effective January 1, 2010. A location in Johannesburg opened in June 2010 and the third location
opened in Cape Town during June of 2011. A fourth location at Emperor's Palace Casino in Johannesburg is expected to open in January 2012. Our total expected cost is
$850,000.
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During September 2011, the Company acquired the remaining 50% ownership of C&S Ltd. and now owns all of the outstanding securities of that entity.

Hooters Australia

We are partnering with the current Hooters franchisee in a joint venture, although we do not presently have any agreement in writing. The first Hooters restaurant under this joint
venture (which would be the third Hooters restaurant to be opened in Australia) is expected to open in January 2012 in Campbelltown, a suburb of Sydney and we anticipate that

we will own a 49% interest.

At September 30, 2011, we have advanced $250,000 of our expected total cost of $650,000 for our share of the Campbelltown location cost. We have verbally agreed to
participate in a second location in Australia under the same terms with an anticipated total cost for our share of $650,000.

Contractual Obligations
The table below sets forth our known contractual obligations as of September 30, 2011:

Payments due by period

Less than 1 More than
Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Long-Term Debt Obligations (1) $ 269,148 $ 20,871 $ 248277 $ - 3 <
Purchase Obligations (2) 3,800,000 1,250,000 2,550,000 - -
Total $ 4,069,148 $ 1,270,871  $ 2,798,277 $ - 3 =

(1) Represents the outstanding principal amounts and interest on all our long-term debt.
(2) Represents commitments for Hooters international restaurants in Australia and South Africa.
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BUSINESS
Overview

We have changed our focus recently from managing investments to owning and operating Hooters franchises internationally. Hooters restaurants are casual beach-themed
establishments with sports on television, jukebox music, and the “nearly world famous” Hooters Girls. The menu consists of spicy chicken wings, seafood, sandwiches and
salads. Each locations menu can vary with the tastes of the locality it is in. Hooters began in 1983 with its first restaurant in Clearwater, Florida. From the original restaurant and
licensee Mr. Robert Brooks, Hooters has become a global brand in 44 states domestically and over 450 Hooters restaurants worldwide. Besides restaurants, Hooters has also
branched out to other areas, including licensing its name to a golf tour and food being sold in supermarkets.

We expect to either own 100% of the Hooters franchise or partner with a local franchisee in the countries we target. We based this decision on the successful launch of our South
African Hooters venture and believe we have aligned partners and operators in various international markets. Currently we are focused on:

How Chanticleer obtains Hooters locations and territories

Chanticleer identifies a target international territory and our CEO, Mike Pruitt, who is also on the Board of HOA, uses his contacts at HOA and also his own personal relationships
to gather information on a possible partner/operator in specifically identified territories. Concurrently we gather public information regarding the demographics and economics for
that territory and analyze whether we believe the territory can support a successful Hooters location or locations.

After we conclude that a territory meets our criteria for a successful Hooters franchise, we apply, along with our partner if there is one, for a franchise with HOA. The application
includes our findings on the economics and demographics of the area as well as personal financial information of all the partners. HOA performs its own background checks, as
well as third party market research and competitor data. After the application is accepted, a detailed business proposal is submitted by the franchisee, including a detailed analysis
and history of the territory/country, a description of the first few proposed locations (including population, income levels and economic factors in the region). HOA performs its
own due diligence on the application. If approved, the franchisee signs a franchise agreement for the territory, generally for a 20 year period and pays HOA an initial franchise fee
of $75,000 for the first location and a $15,000 deposit on the other locations applied for. HOA is heavily involved in the site survey for each location. After the opening of a
restaurant, the franchisee pays a monthly continuing royalty fee to HOA based on gross revenue. The franchise agreement also requires that a certain percentage of gross revenue
must be spent on marketing/advertising.

Hooters granted us non-exclusive franchise rights for the Republic of South Africa in June 2009. Specifically related to our South African franchise, our ongoing obligations to
HOA are as follows:

4% of gross revenue is paid to HOA monthly as a continuing royalty fee for the first 18 months a restaurant is open. After this initial period, the rate is calculated based
on the last 12 months revenue on a sliding scale. Currently our Durban location is our only location that has been open more than 18 months and the rate for the next 12
months has been set at 4%.

4% of gross revenue is to be spent on advertising and marketing.

Open seven locations by December 31, 2014.

If any of these obligations are not met, HOA has the right to terminate our franchise agreement.

HOA’s obligations to us related to our South African franchise are as follows:
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Advise us on locating and opening a completed restaurant, including supplier lists, acceptable site criteria, and architectural plan (at HOA’s option).
Provide us with management training and pre-opening training for non-management employees.

Advise us on operation, advertising and promotion.

Provide us with the requirements for a standardized system for accounting, cost control, and inventory control.

If any of these obligations are not met we have the right to terminate our franchise agreement.

This franchise agreement has a 20 year term beginning June 2009 for our initial restaurant and 20 years after the opening of each subsequent location. We may renew after the 20-
year period with written notice 6 to 18 months prior to termination date, the signing of the then current form of franchise agreement , and a $25,000 fee per restaurant.

Hooters assistance and training to franchisee prior to and after opening

After acceptance as a franchisee, Hooters requires employees/staff of franchisees to attend a 5 day seminar called “Hooters University” at Hooters corporate headquarters in
Atlanta, Georgia. Attendees are educated in all aspects of operating a Hooters restaurant, including Hooters mission statement, menu, human resources, accounting, and employee
recruitment and training. Subsequently each of key management staff are required to work in a Hooters Corporate restaurant for 4 additional weeks. Prior to the initial restaurant of
a franchisee opening, Hooters assists with a site survey of the restaurant and sends staff for several weeks to the restaurant to further assist and train employees.

After opening, Hooters assists with marketing, food distribution, and worldwide purchasing contracts.
South Africa

The Company currently operates three Hooters locations in Cape Town, Durban and Johannesburg. We employ approximately 180 employees at these locations, as well as five
employees at our management company. We have received Hooters corporate site approval for our first 100% owned Hooters location in Emperors Palace Casino in
Johannesburg. We expect this location to open in early 2012.

The Company formed CHL to own the Company's 50% interest in C&S Ltd. During September 2011, the Company purchased the remaining 50% interest in C&S Ltd. C&S
Ltd. is the franchisee under the HOA franchise agreement for South Africa. Each restaurant is owned by a South African private company which we control. For the first

location in Durban, South Africa, we currently own 90% of the private company’s outstanding securities and the remaining 10% is owned by family members of our former

partner in C&S Ltd. For the second location in Johannesburg, South Africa, we currently own 95% of the private company’s outstanding securities and the remaining 5% is
owned by family members of our former partner in C&S Ltd. For the third location in CapeTown, South Africa, we currently own 100% of the private company’s outstanding

securities. In order to obtain investor funds to pay for the initial costs involved in commencing operations for each of the South Africa locations, we agreed to allocate a portion
of the profits from each restaurant such that the investors receive 80% of the net profits after taxation (the “SA Profits”) until they have received a return of their investment and a
pre-tax annual compounded return on that investment of 20% (the “SA Return™). Once the investors have received the SA Return, the investor’s are thereafter entitled to receive

20% of the SA Profits.

The Company, concurrently with purchasing the remaining 50% interest in C&S Ltd., has formed a management company to operate the current South African Hooters

locations. The management company currently charges a management fee of 5% of net revenues. We own 80% of the management company, with key management owning the
remaining 20%.
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Other countries

Brazil - we are in the latter stages of acquiring development rights for Hooters in five states of Brazil, which would include Rio de Janeiro, although we do not
presently have any agreement in writing. We expect to partner with the current local franchisee who owns the Hooters franchise rights in the state of Sao Paolo and
we anticipate we would own 60% of the entity holding the development rights, with our local partner owning the remaining 40%.

Hungary - we have applied to HOA for franchise rights in Hungary, where we anticipate we would own 80% of the entity holding the franchise rights, with our local
partner owning the remaining 20%. We anticipate that we will contract with our local partner, who we believe is an experienced franchise restaurateur, to manage the
day-to-day operations of the locations, although we do not presently have any agreement in writing.

Australia - we are in the process of partnering with the current Hooters franchisee in a joint venture, although we do not presently have any agreement in writing. The
first Hooters restaurant under this joint venture (which would be the third Hooters restaurant currently open) is expected to open in January 2012 in Campbelltown, a
suburb of Sydney. We are in discussions to purchase from the same franchisee a partial interest in the first two existing Hooters locations in the Sydney area.

Europe — we are in discussions with a current franchisee to purchase 100% of an existing Hooters location, however, we do not presently have any agreement in
writing.

ACQUISITION OF HOOTERS RESTAURANTS

Our trend toward focusing on Hooters arose when the Company and our partners completed the acquisition of Hooters of America, Inc. ("HOA") and Texas Wings, Inc.
("TW"). On January 24, 2011, Investors LLC and its three partners, H.I.G. Capital, KarpReilly, LLC and Kelly Hall, president of Texas Wings Inc., the largest Hooters franchisee
in the United States, combined to form HOA Holdings, LLC ("HOA LLC"). Together HOA LLC has created an operating company with 161 company-owned locations across
sixteen states, or nearly half of all domestic Hooters restaurants and over one-third of the locations worldwide. We now own approximately 14% of Investors LLC, which
represents approximately 3% of HOA LLC. We presently have not received any revenue from our interest in HOA LLC, and will receive revenue, if any, based on distributions
from the entity.

The Company received a payment of $400,000 at closing for its services in facilitating the acquisition. In addition, for a minimum of four years, the Company will receive annual
payments of $100,000 due in January each year while Mr. Pruitt serves on its board.

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS — SEGMENTS

The Company is organized into two active business segments as of the end September 30, 2011, the Management segment has been operating since our inception and the
Restaurant Operations segment was added during 2009 and had its initial operations in 2010. The insurance and specialized services segment is inactive at December 31, 2010 and
was shut down during the third quarter of 2011.

Management and consulting services

The Company provides management and consulting services for small companies which are generally seeking to become publicly traded. The Company also provides
management and investment services for Investors LLC and Investors II. The Company will also provide management services to CDF.

Insurance and specialized financial services

We have formed AFS to provide unique financial services to the restaurant, real estate development, investment advisor/asset management and philanthropic organizations. AFS
was shut down during the third quarter of 2011.

INVESTMENTS MANAGED
Chanticleer Investors LL.C
On April 18, 2006, the Company formed Investors LLC and sold units for $5,000,000. Investors LLC’s principal asset was a convertible note in the amount of $5,000,000 with

HOA, collateralized by and convertible into 2% of HOA common stock. The original note included interest at 6% and was due May 24, 2009. The note was extended until
November 24, 2010 and included an increase in the interest rate to 8%.
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The Company owned $1,150,000 (23%) of Investors LLC until May 29, 2009 when it sold 1/2 of its share for $575,000. Under the original arrangement, the Company received
2% of the 6% interest as a management fee ($25,000 quarterly) and 4% interest on its investment ($11,500 quarterly). Under the extended note and revised operating agreement,
the Company receives a management fee of $6,625 quarterly and interest income of $11,500 quarterly. The Company sold an additional $75,000 of its investment in December
2010, leaving it with a balance of $500,000 at December 31, 2010.

On January 24, 2011, Investors LLC and its three partners combined to form HOA Holdings, LLC ("HOA LLC") and completed the acquisition of Hooters of America, Inc.
("HOA") and Texas Wings, Inc. ("TW"). Together HOA LLC has created an operating company with 161 company-owned locations across sixteen states, or nearly half of all
domestic Hooters restaurants and over one-third of the locations worldwide.

Investors, LLC had a note receivable in the amount of $5,000,000 from HOA that was repaid at closing. Investors LLC then invested $3,550,000 in HOA LLC (approximately
3.1%) ($500,000 of which is the Company's share). One of the investors in Investors LLC that owned a $1,750,000 share is a direct investor in HOA LLC and will now carry its
ownership in HOA LLC directly. The Company now owns approximately 14% of Investors LLC.

The Company received a payment of $400,000 at closing for its services in facilitating the acquisition. In addition, for a minimum of four years, the Company will receive annual
payments of $100,000 due in January each year while Mr. Pruitt serves on its board.

Chanticleer Investors II, LL.C

On July 31, 2006, the Company formed Investors II. Investors II began raising funds in January 2007 for the purpose of investing in publicly traded value securities and has now
completed its fourth year of operations with $1,603,869 under management at December 31, 2010.

Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. ("CDEF")

On November 10, 2010 the Company formed Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. ("CDF") under the general corporation laws of the State of Maryland. CDF filed a registration
statement under Form N-2 to register as a non-diversified, closed-end investment company in January 2011. The Company, through Advisors, will have a role in management of
CDF when its registration statement becomes effective.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had 5 and 6 full-time employees, respectively. Our employees are not represented by a labor union. We have experienced no work stoppage
and believe that our employee relationships are good.

PROPERTIES

Effective August 1, 2009, the Company entered into a new office lease agreement for a period of one year at a monthly rental of $2,100, for its office located at 11220 Elm Lane,
Suite 203, Charlotte, NC 28277. Currently we are operating under a month-to-month lease with the same terms.

Our office facilities are suitable and adequate for our business as it is presently conducted.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently subject to any legal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is any legal proceeding threatened against us. However, from time to time, we may be a party to
certain legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

The restaurant industry is subject to numerous federal, state and local governmental regulations, including those relating to the preparation and sale of food and alcoholic
beverages, sanitation, public health, fire codes, zoning, and building requirements. Each restaurant requires appropriate licenses from regulatory authorities allowing it to sell
liquor, beer and wine, and each restaurant requires food service licenses from local health authorities. Our licenses to sell alcoholic beverages must be renewed annually and may
be suspended or revoked at any time for cause, including violation by us or our employees of any law or regulation pertaining to alcoholic beverage control, such as those
regulating the minimum age of employees or patrons who may serve or be served alcoholic beverages, the serving of alcoholic beverages to visibly intoxicated patrons,
advertising, wholesale purchasing and inventory control. In order to reduce this risk, restaurant employees are trained in standardized operating procedures designed to assure
compliance with all applicable codes and regulations. In connection with our expansion into international markets, we are taking on additional responsibilities under the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act and similar local regulations. We will implement policies, procedures and training to ensure compliance with these regulations.

We and our partners are also subject to laws governing our relationship with employees. Our failure or the failure of our partners to comply with international, federal, state and
local employment laws and regulations may subject us to losses and harm our brands. The laws and regulations govern such matters as wage and hour requirements; workers’
compensation insurance; unemployment and other taxes; working and safety conditions, and citizenship and immigration status. Significant additional government-imposed
regulations and similar laws related to minimum wages, overtime, rest breaks, paid leaves of absence, mandated health benefits, may also impact the performance of company
and franchised operations. In addition, employee claims based on, among other things, discrimination, harassment, wrongful termination, wage and hour requirements, and
payments to employees who receive gratuities may divert financial and management resources and adversely affect operations. The losses that may be incurred as a result of any
violation of such governmental regulations by the us or our partners are difficult to quantify.

We are also subject to licensing and regulation by international, state and local departments relating to the service of alcoholic beverages, health, sanitation, and fire and safety
standards. Compliance with these laws and regulations may lead to increased costs and operational complexity and may increase our exposure to governmental investigations or
litigation. In addition, we are subject to various state and federal laws relating to the offer and sale of franchises and the franchisor-franchisee relationship. [HOW DOES THIS
APPLY?] In general, these laws and regulations impose specific disclosure and registration requirements prior to the sale and marketing of franchises and regulate certain aspects
of the relationship between franchisor and franchisee. [HOW DOES THIS APPLY?]

COMPETITION

The restaurant industry is intensely competitive. We compete on the basis of the taste, quality and price of food offered, guest service, ambience, location, and overall dining
experience. We believe that our attractive price-value relationship, the atmosphere of our restaurant, our focus on our guest and the quality and distinctive flavor of our food enable
us to differentiate ourselves from our competitors. We believe we compete primarily with local and regional sports bars and national casual dining and quick casual establishments,
and to a lesser extent with quick service restaurants such as wing-based take-out concepts. Many of our direct and indirect competitors are well-established national, regional or
local chains and some have substantially greater financial and marketing resources than we do. We also compete with other restaurant and retail establishments for site locations
and restaurant team members.
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MANAGEMENT
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The following section sets forth the names, ages and current positions with the Company held by the Directors and Executive Officer as of the date of this prospectus; together with
the year such positions were assumed. There is no immediate family relationship between or among any of the Directors or the Executive Officer, and the Company is not aware

of any arrangement or understanding between any Director or the Executive Officer and any other person pursuant to which he was elected to his current position.

Each Director and Executive Officer will serve until he or she resigns or is removed or otherwise disqualified to serve or until his or her successor is elected. The Company
currently has five Directors.

NAME AGE POSITION

Michael D. Pruitt 50 President, CEO and Director since June 2005
Michael Carroll 62 Independent Director since June 2005

Brian Corbman 35 Independent Director since August 2005
Paul I. Moskowitz 54 Independent Director since April 2007

Keith Johnson 53 Independent Director since November 2009

Michael D. Pruitt

Michael Pruitt founded Avenel Financial Group, a boutique financial services firm concentrating on emerging technology company investments, in 1999. In 2001, he formed
Avenel Ventures, a technology investment and private venture capital firm. In the late 1980s, Mr. Pruitt owned Southern Cartridge, Inc., which he eventually sold to
MicroMagnetic, Inc., where he continued working as Executive Vice President and a Board member until Southern Cartridge was sold to Carolina Ribbon in 1992. From 1992 to
1996, Mr. Pruitt worked at Ty Pruitt Trucking, which was sold in 1996 to Priority Freight Systems. Between 1997 and 2000, Mr. Pruitt assisted several public and private
companies in raising capital, recruiting management and preparing companies to go public or be sold, as a consultant. He was the CEO from 2002-2005, President and Chairman
of the Board of Onetravel Holdings, Inc. (formerly RCG Companies), a publicly traded holding company formerly listed on the AMEX. Mr. Pruitt received a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Coastal Carolina University in Conway, South Carolina, where he sits on the Board of Visitors of the Wall School of Business. MTr. Pruitt is currently a director of
North American Energy Resources, Inc. and CEO and director of Efftec International, Inc.

Michael Carroll

Michael Carroll currently owns and operates a sales and training consulting firm based in Richmond, Virginia. Mr. Carroll has also served as a director for OneTravel Holdings,
Inc., formerly RCG Companies Incorporated, from January of 2004 until February 2005. He previously spent 22 years in the distribution business, 19 of which were in computer
products distribution. In 1978, Mr. Carroll founded MicroMagnetic, Inc., a computer supply distribution company that he sold to Corporate Express in 1997. From 1997 to 1999,
he was a division president at Corporate Express, a publicly traded business-to-business office products and service provider. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Management from The College of William & Mary in Williamsburg, Virginia, and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Virginia Commonwealth University. Mr.
Carroll is a member of our Audit and Compensation committees.
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Brian Corbman

Brian Corbman is the managing director of Ardent Advisors, a consulting company he co-founded in 2003, that specializes in business strategy and corporate advisory services for
emerging growth companies.  Previously, he was an institutional salesman at Fulcrum Global Partners from May 2002 to January 2003 and Banc of America Securities from
October 2000 to March 2002. Prior to that, from June 1999 to October 2000, he gained valuable corporate experience working for GSI Commerce, a publicly traded company,
where he was the sole corporate development analyst. A Magna Cum Laude graduate of George Washington University in Washington, DC, he holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Corbman has also attained the NASD general securities principal Series 24, Series 7 and Series 63 licenses. Mr. Corbman is a member of our
Compensation and Nominating Committees.

Paul I. Moskowitz

Paul Moskowitz is a Phi Beta Kappa of Vassar College and Cardozo Law School. Mr. Moskowitz was a co-founder and partner of a Jacobs and Moskowitz, a New York law firm
specializing in corporate and real estate law. He became affiliated with The World Travel Specialist Group/The Lawyers’ Travel Service (“WTSG/LTS”) in 1988 and served as

corporate counsel, representing the travel agency network in legal, real estate, and other business activities. In 1989, he joined WTSG full time as President and Chief Operating
Officer until March 2003, with his primary responsibilities including day-to-day operations which encompassed WTSG’s airline relationships and sales and marketing. Mr.
Moskowitz led the growth of WTSG to one of the top 20 U.S. travel management firms with more than 90 offices throughout the U.S. Mr. Moskowitz is currently engaged as a
consultant for another travel organization. Mr. Moskowitz is a member of our Compensation and Nominating Committees.

Keith Johnson

Mr. Johnson currently serves as President of Efficiency Technologies, Inc., the wholly owned operating subsidiary of Efftec International, Inc. Prior to that he has been the
President and Chief Executive Officer of YRT? (Your Residential Technology Team) in Charlotte, North Carolina, since 2004. Mr. Johnson served as Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer of The Telemetry Company in Dallas, Texas (1997-2004), Senior Vice President - Finance and Administration of Brinks Home Security in Dallas,

Texas (1995-1997), and Chief Financial Officer of BAX Global in London, England (1992-1995). Mr. Johnson has a BS in accounting from Fairfield University in Fairfield,
Connecticut. Mr. Johnson is the head of our Audit Committee.

We believe that each of our directors’ experience in business and financial matters qualifies them to serve as one of our directors.

Code of Ethics

The board of directors has adopted a code of ethics applicable to all directors, officers and employees, including our principal executive officer. A copy of the code of ethics is
available at our website at www.chanticleerholdings.com..

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors deliberates executive compensation matters to the extent they are not delegated to the Chief Executive Officer.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table shows the compensation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer for the two years ended December 31, 2010. The Company has no other executive officers.
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Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Total

Michael D. Pruitt (CEO since 2010 $ 154,000 § - 3 154,000
June 2005) (1) 2009 $ 171,000 $ - 3 171,000

(1) The 2009 compensation includes $11,000 in consulting fees during the time Mr. Pruitt had temporarily discontinued his salary.

Required columns for stock awards, option awards, non-entity incentive plan compensation, change in pension value and nonqualified deferred compensation earnings and all other
compensation are omitted from the table above as the amounts are all zero.

Options/SAR Grants Table

There were no grants of options or SARs during the year for the named individual.

Aggregated option/SAR exercises and fiscal year-end option/SAR value table.

There were no option/SAR exercises or any options/SARs outstanding at fiscal year-end for the named individual.
Long-term incentive plan ("LTIP") awards table

There were no LTIP awards during the year for the named individual.

Compensation of directors

Our directors each earned $4,250 for 2010. The fees were approved by the Board and paid in 2011.

The Company intends to pay its Executives and Directors salaries, wages or fees commensurate with experience and industry standards in relationship to the success of the
Company.

Employment contracts and termination of employment and changes in control arrangements

The Company does not have any current employment agreements with its officer or directors. The Company intends to pay its executives and directors salaries, wages, or fees
commensurate with experience and industry standards in relationship to the success of the company.

The Company does not have any change in control arrangements.

Report on repricing of options/SARs

The Company has no options or SARs outstanding during 2010 or 2009, accordingly, none were repriced.
Director Independence

We undertook a review of the independence of our directors and, using the definitions and independence standards for directors provided in the rules of NYSE Amex, we
determined that Michael Carroll, Brian Corbman, Paul Moskowitz and Keith Johnson are "independent directors" as defined under the rules of NYSE Amex.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Due from related parties

The Company has earned income from and made advances to related parties. The amounts owed to the Company at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 is as
follows:

2011 2010
Chanticleer Investors, LLC $ - $ 6,035
Chanticleer Investors II, LLC - 46,547
Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. 74,281 30,937
Hoot SAII LLC 825 -
Other - 750
$ 75,106 $ 84,269

Due to related parties

The Company has received non-interest bearing loans and advances from related parties. The amounts owed by the Company as of September 30, 2011 and December 31,
2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Avenel Financial Group, a company owned by Mr. Pruitt 13,849 46,349
Chanticleer Investors, LLC 4,045 -
Hoot SAL, LLC 15,409 -
Hoot SA III, LLC - 70,000
Chanticleer Foundation 10,750 -
$ 44,053 $ 116,349

$25,000 of the amount due Avenel Financial Group, a company owned by Mr. Pruitt, the Company’s chief executive officer, was exchanged for a convertible note payable
effective January 1, 2011 and converted to common stock on March 30, 2011.

Investments by related parties
Avenel Financial Group invested as a limited partner in the South African Hooters locations. Avenel Financial Group invested $14,000, $12,500, and $25,000 in the
Durban, Johannesburg, and Capetown locations, respectively, and is entitled to receive _ %, %, and __ %, respectively, of the SA Profits of each of the locations. As of
, 2011, Avenel Financial Group has received an aggregate of $ in SA Profits.

Management income from affiliates

The Company had management income from its affiliates in the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, as follows:
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2011 2010

Chanticleer Investors, LLC $ - 3 19,875
Chanticleer Investors II, LLC - 11,171
North American Energy Resources, Inc. 1,750 6,125
Efftec International, Inc. - 22,500

$ 1,750 $ 59,671

Chanticleer Investors II LLC

The Company manages Investors II and earns management income based on a share of any increase in investment value on an annual basis. At June 30, 2011, the Company
had recorded revenue in the amount of $30,726 for management fees based on investment results for the six months ended June 30, 2011. During the quarter ended September 30,
2011, the market experienced a significant decline and the losses in the fund exceeded the profits accrued at June 30, 2011. Accordingly, the Company reversed the $30,726 in
previously accrued revenue at September 30, 2011, resulting in negative revenue during the three months ended September 30, 2011 and no revenue for the nine months ended
September 30, 211. The 2010 amount was the amount earned in 2009 but not recorded until received in 2010.
Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. ("CDF")

On November 10, 2010 the Company formed CDF under the general corporation laws of the State of Maryland. CDF filed a registration statement under Form N-2 to register
as a non-diversified, closed-end investment company in January 2011. The Company, through Advisors, will have a role in management of CDF when its registration statement
becomes effective.

North American Energy Resources, Inc. ("NAEY")

The Company's CEO became CEO and a director of NAEY during 2010 and the Company received 150,000 common shares for management services. The shares were
valued at $10,500, based on the trading price of NAEY at the time. The Company's CEO resigned as CEO of NAEY in December 2010 and remains a director.

Chanticleer Foundation, Inc.

Chanticleer Foundation, Inc. is a non-profit organization formed for charitable purposes. Mr. Pruitt is President of this company.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
To the Company's knowledge, the following table sets forth information with respect to beneficial ownership of outstanding common stock as of September 30, 2011, by:
each person known by the Company to beneficially own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of the Company's Common Stock;
the Company's executive officer;
each of the Company's directors; and
all of the Company's directors and its executive officer as a group.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and includes voting or investment power with
respect to the securities as well as securities which the individual or group has the right to acquire within 60 days of the original filing of this Information Statement. Unless
otherwise indicated, the address for those listed below is c¢/o Chanticleer Holdings, Inc., 11220 Elm Lane, Suite 203, Charlotte, NC 28277. Except as indicated by footnote, and
subject to applicable community property laws, the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as
beneficially owned by them. The number of shares of the Common Stock outstanding used in calculating the percentage for each listed person includes the shares of Common
Stock underlying options or other convertible securities held by such persons that are exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2011, but excludes shares of Common Stock
underlying options or other convertible securities held by any other person. The number of shares of Common Stock issued as of September 30, 2011, was 3,011,954. Except as
noted otherwise, the amounts reflected below are based upon information provided to the Company and filings with the SEC.

Number of Shares of Percentage of Class
Name Common Stock Owned Pre-offering Post-offering
Sandor Capital Master Fund LP (1) 298,200 9.9% 3.7%
Robert B. Prag (2) 298,200 9.9% 3.7%
Michael D. Pruitt (3) 404,610 13.4% 5.1%
Michael Carroll 11,000 * *
Brian Corbman 11,100 * *
Paul 1. Moskowitz 6,200 * .
Keith Johnson 2,000 * .
Officers and Directors As a Group (5 Persons) 434,910 14.4% 5.4%
1) John S. Lemak has investment and voting control over the securities held by Sandor Capital Master Fund LP. Sandor maintains principal offices at 2828 Routh

Street, Suite 500, Dallas, TX 75201. The amounts set forth in the table include 174,772 shares of common stock owned by Sandor, 24,700 shares of common
stock owned by John S. Lemak, and 98,728 shares of common stock underlying Class A Warrants owned by Sandor. The amounts set forth in the table exclude
additional shares underlying Class A Warrants and Class B Warrants owned by Sandor and John S. Lemak, which warrants limit exercise to that number of shares
that, when aggregated with the holder’s existing ownership of the Company’s common stock, would result in such holder, together with related persons or entities,
owning more than 9.9% of the Company’s issued and outstanding common stock. This information is based solely on information in Schedule 13G.
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2) Mr. Prag’s address is 2455 El Amigo Road, Del Mar, CA 92014. The amounts set forth in the table include 152,000 shares of common stock owned by Mr. Prag,
28,000 shares of common stock owned by Del Mar Consulting Group, Inc. Retirement Plan Trust (with respect to which Mr. Prag serves as Trustee), and 115,000
shares of common stock underlying Class A Warrants owned by Mr. Prag. The amounts set forth in the table exclude additional shares underlying Class A
Warrants and Class B Warrants owned by Mr. Prag and Del Mar Consulting Group, Inc. Retirement Plan Trust, which warrants limit exercise to that number of
shares that, when aggregated with the holder’s existing ownership of the Company’s common stock, would result in such holder, together with related persons or
entities, owning more than 9.9% of the Company’s issued and outstanding common stock. This information is based solely on information in Schedule 13G.

3) Includes 62,680 shares of common stock held by Avenel Financial Group, Inc., a corporation controlled by Michael D. Pruitt. The amounts set forth in the table
exclude additional shares underlying Class A Warrants and Class B Warrants owned by Mr. Pruitt, which warrants limit exercise to that number of shares that,
when aggregated with the holder’s existing ownership of the Company’s common stock, would result in such holder, together with related persons or entities,
owning more than 9.9% of the Company’s issued and outstanding common stock.

* less than 1%
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UNDERWRITING

Dawson James Securities, Inc. is acting as the representative of the underwriters. We and the underwriters named below have entered into an underwriting agreement with respect
to the units being offered. In connection with this offering and subject to certain terms and conditions, each of the underwriters named below has severally agreed to purchase, and
we have agreed to sell, the number of units set forth opposite the name of each underwriter.

Underwriter Number of Units
Dawson James Securities, Inc.

Total 5,000,000

The underwriting agreement provides that the underwriters are obligated to purchase all of the units offered by this prospectus, other than those covered by the over-allotment
option, if any units are purchased. The underwriters are offering the units when, as and if issued to and accepted by them, subject to a number of conditions. These conditions
include, among other things, the requirements that no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the registration statement be in effect, that no proceedings for this purpose have
been initiated or threatened by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and that our securities have been approved for quotation on the NYSE Amex.

The representative of the underwriters has advised us that the underwriters propose to offer our units to the public at the offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus
and to selected dealers at that price less a concession of not more than $ per unit. The underwriters and selected dealers may reallow a concession to other dealers, including
the underwriters, of not more than $ per unit. After completion of the public offering of the units, the offering price, the concessions to selected dealers and the reallowance
to their dealers may be changed by the underwriters.

The underwriters have informed us that they do not expect to confirm sales of our units offered by this prospectus on a discretionary basis.

We have been advised by the representative of the underwriters that the underwriters intend to make a market in our securities but that they are not obligated to do so and may
discontinue making a market at any time without notice.

In connection with the offering, the underwriters or certain of the securities dealers may distribute prospectuses electronically.

Over-allotment Option

Pursuant to the underwriting agreement, we have granted the underwriters an option, exercisable for 45 days from the date of this prospectus, to purchase up to an additional
750,000 units on the same terms as the other units being purchased by the underwriters from us. The underwriters may exercise the option solely to cover over-allotments, if any, in

the sale of the units that the underwriters have agreed to purchase. If the over-allotment option is exercised in full, the total public offering price, underwriting discount and
proceeds to us before offering expenses will be $ .8 and § , respectively.

Stabilization
The rules of the SEC generally prohibit the underwriters from trading in our securities on the open market during this offering. However, the underwriters are allowed to engage in

some open market transactions and other activities during this offering that may cause the market price of our securities to be above or below that which would otherwise prevail
in the open market. These activities may include stabilization, short sales and over-allotments, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids.
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Stabilizing transactions consist of bids or purchases made by the representative for the purpose of preventing or slowing a decline in the market price of our
securities while this offering is in progress.

Short sales and over-allotments occur when the representative, on behalf of the underwriting syndicate, sells more of our units than it purchases from us in this
offering. To cover the resulting short position, the representative may exercise the over-allotment option described above or may engage in syndicate covering
transactions. There is no contractual limit on the size of any syndicate covering transaction. The underwriters will make available a prospectus in connection
with any such short sales. Purchasers of shares sold short by the underwriters are entitled to the same remedies under the federal securities laws as any other
purchaser of shares covered by the registration statement.

Syndicate covering transactions are bids for or purchases of our securities on the open market by the representative on behalf of the underwriters in order to
reduce a short position incurred by the representative.

Penalty bids permit the representative to reclaim a selling concession from a syndicate member when the units originally sold by the syndicate member are
purchased in a syndicate covering transaction to cover syndicate short positions.

If the underwriters commence these activities, they may discontinue them at any time without notice. The underwriters may carry out these transactions on the
Over the Counter Market or otherwise.

Indemnification

The underwriting agreement provides for indemnification between us and the underwriters against specified liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, and for
contribution by us and the underwriters to payments that may be required to be made with respect to those liabilities. We have been advised that, in the opinion of the SEC,
indemnification for liabilities under the Securities Act is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

Underwriters' Compensation

We have agreed to sell the units to the underwriters at the initial offering price of $ per unit, which represents the initial public offering price of the units shown on the
cover page of this prospectus less the 8% underwriting discount. The underwriting agreement also provides that Dawson James Securities, as representative, will be paid a non-
accountable expense allowance equal to 2% of the gross proceeds from the sale of the units offered by this prospectus, excluding any units purchased on exercise of the over-
allotment option. We are not required to pay, or reimburse the underwriters for, the legal fees incurred by the underwriters in connection with this offering.

On completion of this offering, we will issue to the representative of the underwriters warrants to purchase up to 400,000 units, which will be identical to the units sold in this
offering. The exercise price will be $ per unit, which is equal to 115% of the offering price of the units. The representative's warrants will be exercisable at any time
beginning one year after the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is part, and will expire on the fifth anniversary of the effective date. In compliance
with the lock-up restrictions set forth in FINRA Rule 5110(g)(1), neither the representative's warrants nor the underlying securities may be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged or
hypothecated, or be the subject of any hedging, short sale, derivative, put, or call transaction that would result in the effective economic disposition of the securities by any person
for a period of one year immediately following the date of effectiveness or commencement of sales of the offering, except to any member participating in the offering and the
officers or partners thereof, and only if all securities so transferred remain subject to the one-year lock-up restriction for the remainder of the lock-up period.
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The holder of these representative's warrants will have, in that capacity, no voting, dividend or other stockholder rights. Any profit realized on the sale of the units issuable upon
exercise of these warrants may be deemed to be additional underwriting compensation. The securities underlying these warrants are being registered pursuant to the registration
statement of which this prospectus is a part. During the term of these warrants, the holder thereof is given the opportunity to profit from a rise in the market price of our common
stock. We may find it more difficult to raise additional equity capital while these warrants are outstanding. At any time at which these warrants are likely to be exercised, we may
be able to obtain additional equity capital on more favorable terms.

The following table summarizes the underwriting discount we will pay to the underwriters and the non-accountable expense allowance we will pay to the representative of the
underwriters. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option.

Total Without Total With
Over-Allotment Over-Allotment
Per Unit Option Option
Total underwriting discount to be paid by us $ $ $
Non-accountable expense allowance $ $ $
Determination of Offering Price
The common stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “CCLR.OB.” On , 2011, the closing market price of our common stock on the OTC

Bulletin Board was $

The public offering price of the units offered by this prospectus has been determined by negotiation between us and the underwriters. Among the factors considered in determining
the public offering price of the units were:

our history and our prospects;

the industry in which we operate;

the status and development prospects for our products and services;

the previous experience of our executive officers; and

the general condition of the securities markets at the time of this offering.

The offering price stated on the cover page of this prospectus should not be considered an indication of the actual value of the units. That price is subject to change as a result of
market conditions and other factors, and we cannot assure you that the units can be resold at or above the public offering price.
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
Units
By means of this prospectus we are offering Units at a price of $3.00 per unit. Each Unit consists of one share of our common stock and one warrant.

Initially the common stock and the warrant will only be quoted as part of a unit for a minimum of 30 days unless the representative of the underwriters determines that an earlier
date is acceptable. No later than the 45t day following the date of this prospectus, the common stock and the warrants will be quoted separately, and the units will no longer be
quoted. We will notify our security holders regarding the separation of our units through the issuance of a press release and publication of a report on Form 8-K in advance of the
date our units separate and the common stock and the warrants begin to be quoted separately.

Common Stock

We are authorized to issue 200,000,000 shares of common stock. Holders of common stock are each entitled to cast one vote for each share held of record on all matters presented
to shareholders. Cumulative voting is not allowed; hence, the holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock can elect all directors.

Holders of common stock are entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by our Board out of funds legally available and, in the event of liquidation, to share pro rata in
any distribution of our assets after payment of liabilities. Our directors are not obligated to declare a dividend. It is not anticipated that dividends will be paid in the foreseeable
future.

Holders of common stock do not have preemptive rights to subscribe to any additional shares we may issue in the future. There are no conversion, redemption, sinking fund or
similar provisions regarding the common stock. All outstanding shares of common stock are fully paid and nonassessable.

Warrants

The warrants will be exercisable at any time after they become quoted separately until they either are redeemed or they expire in accordance with their terms on the fifth
anniversary of the date of this prospectus. The exercise price of a warrant is $3.45. Beginning six months after the date of this prospectus, the warrants will be redeemable at our
option for §_ per warrant upon 30 days' prior written notice, at any time after our common stock has closed at a price which is at least $5.00 per share for at least twenty (20)
consecutive trading days. The warrants may only be redeemed if we have a current and effective registration statement available covering the exercise of the warrants.

We will send a written notice of redemption to holders of the warrants at their last known address appearing on the registration records maintained by the warrant agent. No other
form of notice or publication is required. If we call the warrants for redemption, the holders of the warrants will then have to decide whether to sell the warrants, exercise them
before the close of business on the business day preceding the specified redemption date or hold them for redemption.

We will make adjustment to the terms of the warrants if certain events occur. If we distribute to our stockholders additional shares of common stock through a dividend or
distribution, or if we effect a stock split of our common stock we will adjust the total number of shares of common stock purchasable on exercise of warrants that the holder of a
warrant thereafter exercised will be entitled to receive the number of shares of common stock the holder would have owned or received after such event if the warrant holder had
exercised the warrant before the event causing the adjustment. The aggregate exercise price of the warrant will remain the same in that circumstance but the effective purchase
price per share of common stock purchasable and exercise of the warrant will be proportionately reduced because a greater number of shares of common stock will then be
purchasable upon exercise of the adjusted warrant. If, however, we have affected dividend, distribution or stock split that increases our outstanding common stock, we will
proportionately increase the number of warrants outstanding rather than increase the number of shares of common stock underlying each warrant. Each warrant will then continue
to be exercised both the same number of shares as before the event requiring the increase in the number of outstanding warrants, but the exercise price of each warrant will be
correspondingly reduced.
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In the event of a capital reorganization or reclassification of our common stock, the warrants will be adjusted so that thereafter each warrant holder will be entitled to receive upon
exercise the same number and kind of securities that such holder would have received if the warrant has been exercised before the reorganization or reclassification of our common
stock.

If we merge or consolidate with another corporation, or if we sell our assets as an entirety or substantially as an entirety to another corporation, we will make provisions so that the
warrant holders will be entitled to receive upon exercise of the warrant the kind and number of securities, cash or other property that would have been received as a result of the
transaction by a person who was a stockholder immediately before the transaction and who owned the same number of shares of common stock for which the warrant was
exercisable immediately before the transaction. No adjustment to the warrants will be made, however, if a merger or consolidation does not result in a reclassification or change in
our outstanding stock.

Other Warrants

During the third quarter of 2011, we issued warrants having a subscription price of $0.04 which entitled our shareholders to acquire one Class A Warrant which would entitle the
holder to acquire one share of our common stock for $2.75 and one Class B Warrant which would entitle the holder to acquire one share of our common stock for $3.50. The
warrants have a five year life. At September 30, 2011, the Company had issued 2,194,509 Class A and Class B warrants.

On August 10, 2011, we issued two warrants to the shareholder who collateralized the Company's $2,000,000 line of credit. The Class A Warrant is for 200,000 shares exercisable
at $2.75 per share for 10 years and the Class B Warrant is for 225,000 shares exercisable at $3.50 per share for 10 years.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Certain Provisions of Delaware Law and Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws

We are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, an anti-takeover law. Subject to certain exceptions, the statute prohibits a publicly held
Delaware corporation from engaging in a "business combination" with an "interested stockholder" for a period of three years after 'the date of the transaction in which the person
became an interested stockholder unless:

prior to such date, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the stockholder
becoming an interested stockholder;

upon consummation of the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of
the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the number of shares outstanding
those shares owned (1) by persons who are directors and also officers and (2) by employee stock plans in which employee participants do not have the right to
determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or

on or after such date, the business combination is approved by the board of directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders, and not by
written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least 662/3% of the outstanding voting stock which is not owned by the interested stockholder.
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For purposes of Section 203, a "business combination" includes a merger, asset sale or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder, and an
"interested stockholder" is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within three years prior to the date of determination whether the person is an "Interested
Stockholder" did own, 15% or more of the corporation's voting stock.

In addition, our authorized but unissued shares of common stock and preferred stock are available for our board to issue without stockholder approval. We may use these
additional shares for a variety of corporate purposes, including future public or private offerings to raise additional capital, corporate acquisitions and employee benefit plans The
existence of our authorized but unissued shares of common stock and preferred stock could render more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of our company by
means of a proxy contest, tender offer, merger or other transaction. Our authorized but unissued shares may be used to delay, defer or prevent a tender offer or takeover attempt
that a stockholder might consider in its best interest, including those attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares held by our stockholders. The
board of directors is also authorized to adopt, amend or repeal our bylaws which could delay, defer or prevent a change in control.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The Transfer Agent and Registrar for our common stock and warrant agent is Routh Stock Transfer, Inc., 6860 North Dallas Parkway, Suite 200, Plano, Texas 75024, phone 972-
381-2782.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the securities offered b this prospectus will be passed upon for us by Roetzel & Andress, 350 East Las Olas Blvd., Ste. 1150, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301.
Certain legal matters in connection with the offering will be passed upon for the underwriters by Greenberg Traurig, P.A., Boca Raton, Florida.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements and schedule of Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. at and for each of the years ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 have been
included herein in reliance upon the reports of Creason & Associates, PLLC, 7170 S. Braden Ave., Suite 100, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74136, independent registered public accounting
firm, and upon the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and other reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Anyone may inspect a copy of the registration statement or any other reports we
file, without charge at the public reference facility maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, DC 20549. Copies of
all or any part of the registration statement may be obtained from that facility upon payment of the prescribed fees. The public may obtain information on the operation of the
public reference room by calling the Securities and Exchange Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Securities and Exchange Commission maintains a website at
http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding registrants that file electronically with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

You can find additional information concerning us on our website http://www.chanticleerholdings.com. Information contained on, or linked from, our website is not and should
not be considered a part of this prospectus.
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CREASON & ASSOCIATES, P.L.L.C.
7170 S. Braden Ave., Suite 100
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74136

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Chanticleer Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the
related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Chanticleer Holdings, Inc.
and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. has incurred substantial net losses and negative cash flows from operations for the past
several years, along with negative working capital. In addition, the Company has future plans that may require substantial financial obligations. There can be no assurance that
the Company will be able to generate sufficient cash revenues to fund its current operations and fulfill its future commitments. These conditions raise substantial doubt about
Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 1. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments that may result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

/s/Creason & Associates, P.L.L.C.

Tulsa, Oklahoma
April 1, 2011
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Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2010 and 2009

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Due from related parties

Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net
Available-for-sale investments at fair value
Investments accounted for under the equity method
Investments accounted for under the cost method
Deposits and other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related parties
Deferred revenue
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
Convertible notes payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)

Stockholders' equity:

Common stock: $0.0001 par value; authorized 200,000,000 shares; issued 2,571,918 shares and 2,492,752 shares; and outstanding

2,048,688 and 1,969,822 shares at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively
Additional paid in capital
Non-controlling interest
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Accumulated deficit

Less treasury stock, 523,230 shares and 522,930 shares atDecember 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2010 2009
$ 46,007 $ 2,374
4258 -

84,269 32,806

24,184 25,000

158,718 60,180

25,563 32,125

352,500 83,286

87,200 82,500

766,598 1,191,598

23,980 3,980

$ 1414559 § 1,453,669
$ 250,000 $ 412,500
211,432 190,482

66,103 2,246

116,349 109,590

1,750 20,833

645,634 735,651

686,500 -
1,332,134 735,651

257 250

5,456,067 5,255,624

24,175 -
68,027 (84,000)
(4,929.418) (3,917,853)
(536,683) (536,003)

82,425 718,018

$ 1414559 $ 1,453,669




Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Revenue:
Management fee income
Non-affiliates
Affiliates
Total revenue
Expenses:
General and administrative expense
Deferred acquisition costs
Asset impariment
Total expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expense)
Equity in earnings of investments
Realized gains from sales of investments
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Interest expense
Other than temporary decline in available-for-sale securities
Total other income (expense)
Net loss before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net loss before non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest
Net loss
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities (none applies to non-controlling interest)
Other comprehensive loss

Net earnings (loss) per share, basic and diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2010 2009

20,833 504,167
115,468 98,811
136,301 602,978
946,189 816,198

- 279,050

250,000 50,000
1,196,189 1,145,248
(1,059,388) (542,270)
58,337 23,000
106,035 58,697
46,000 23,000

- 50
(140,016) (33.914)
(40,386) (342,259)
29,970 (271,426)
(1,029,918) (813,696)
(1,029,918) (813,696)
18,353 -
(1,011,565) (813,696)
152,027 (84,000)
(859,538) (897,696)
(0.51) (0.42)
1,990,462 1,928,200




Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Balance, December 31, 2008
Common stock issued for:

Cash proceeds

Acquisition of DineOut, SA
Available-for-sale securities:

Current year decline

Other than temporary decline
Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2009

Common stock issued for:
Consultants
Amounts due related party
Accounts payable
Director fees

Beneficial conversion feature ofconvertible notes payable

Available-for-sale securities
Purchase treasury stock
Non-controlling interest
Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2010

Accumulated
Other
Additional Comprehensive Non-
Common Stock Paid-in Income Controlling Accumulated Treasury
Shares Par Capital (Loss) Interest Deficit Stock Total
1,892,752 189 4,643,104 - - (3,104,157) - 1,539,136
77,070 8 76,570 - - - - 76,578
522,930 53 535,950 - - - (536,003) -
- - - (426,259) - - - (426,259)
- - - 342,259 - - - 342,259
- - - - - (813,696) - (813,696)
2,492,752 250 5,255,624 (84,000) - (3.917,853) (536,003) 718,018
15,572 1 24,999 - - - - 25,000
33,594 3 58,787 - - - - 58,790
10,000 1 17,499 - - - - 17,500
20,000 2 42,498 - - - - 42,500
- - 56,660 - - - - 56,660
- - - 152,027 - - - 152,027
N - - - - - (680) (680)
- - - - 42,528 - - 42,528
- - - - (18,353) (1,011,565) - (1,029.918)
2,571,918 $ 257 $ 5,456,067 $ 68,027 24,175 $ (4,929418)  § (536,683) § 82,425

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used inoperating activities:
Other than temporary decline in value of available-for-sale securities
Bad debt expense - related party
Non-controlling interest
Consulting and other services rendered in exchange for investment securities
Depreciation
Equity in earnings of investments
Asset impairment
Common stock issued for services
(Gain) loss on sale of investments
Beneficial converstion feature of convertible notes payable
Expense previously deferred acquisition costs
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from affiliate
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Advance from related parties for working capital
Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments
Investment distribution
Purchase of investments
Purchase of property and equipment
Treasury stock acquired
Deposit made for investment

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from sale of common stock

Loan proceeds

Loan repayment

Loans to related parties

Loan from related party

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2010 2009

$ (1,011,565) $ (813,696)
40,386 342,259
24,907 -
(18,353) -
(33,000) (150,000)
11,079 11,481
(58,337) (23,000)
250,000 50,000
49,375 -
(106,035) (58,697)
56,660 -

- 279,050
(46,547) (24,907)
(4,258) (750)
- (20,745)

89,807 26,404
(19,083) (354,167)
14,650 100,291
(760,314) (636,477)
281,765 685,197
16,137 64,371
(26,334) (94,000)
4,517 (7,446)
(680) -
(20,000) -
246,371 648,122
- 76,578
541,000 400,000
(4,500) (500,000)
(48,924) -
70,000 -
557,576 (23,422)
43,633 (11,777
2,374 14,151

$ 46,007 $ 2,374




Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest and income taxes:
Interest
Income taxes

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock issued for amounts due related party
Common stock issued for accounts payable
Accrued interest paid with increase in note payable
Reclassification of trading security as available-for-sale security
Reclassification of investment accounted for under the cost method as available-for-sale security
Investments acquired as compensation for management agreements
Exchange of oil and gas property investment for equity securities classified as trading securities
Deposit transferred to investment accounted for using the equity method

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2010 2009
31,999 19,668
58,790 -
17,500 -

- 12,500
- 126,000
100,000 275,000
- 525,000
- 126,000
- 20,000




Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NATURE OF BUSINESS
ORGANIZATION
Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) was organized October 21, 1999, under its original name, Tulvine Systems, Inc., under the laws of the State of
Delaware. The Company previously had limited operations and was considered a development stage company until July 2005. On April 25, 2005, the Company
formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. On May 2, 2005, Tulvine Systems, Inc. merged with and changed its name to Chanticleer Holdings, Inc.
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Chanticleer Advisors, LLC,
(“Advisors”), Avenel Ventures, LLC ("Ventures"), Avenel Financial Services, LLC ("AFS"), Chanticleer Holdings Limited ("CHL") and DineOut SA Ltd.

("DineOut") (the Company sold approximately 7% of DineOut during 2010) collectively referred to as “the Company,” “we,” “us,” or “the Companies”. All significant
inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Effective March 23, 2011, the Company's common stock was forward split, 2 shares for each share issued, pursuant to written consent by a majority of the
Company's shareholders. All share references have been adjusted as if the split occurred prior to all periods presented.

Information regarding the Company's subsidiaries is as follows:

Advisors was formed as a Nevada Limited Liability Company on January 18, 2007 to manage related companies, Chanticleer Investors, LLC ("Investors
LLC"), Chanticleer Investors II, LLC ("Investors II") and other investments owned by the Company;

Ventures was formed as a Nevada Limited Liability Company on December 24, 2008 to provide business management and consulting services to its
clients;

AFS was formed as a Nevada Limited Liability Company on February 19, 2009 to provide unique financial services to the restaurant, real estate
development, investment advisor/asset management and philanthropic organizations. AFS's business operation has not been activated and is expected to
initially include captive insurance, CHIRA and trust services;

CHL was formed as a Limited Liability Company in Jersey on March 24, 2009 to own the Company's 50% interest in Hooters SA, GP, the general partner
of the Hooters restaurant franchises in South Africa;

DineOut was formed as a Private Limited Liability Company in England and Wales on October 29, 2009 to raise capital in Europe.
GOING CONCERN
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had current assets of $158,718 and $60,180; current liabilities of $645,634 and $735,651; and a working capital

deficit of $486,916 and $675,471, respectively. The Company incurred a loss of $1,011,565 during the year ended December 31, 2010 and had an unrealized gain
from available-for-sale securities of $152,027 resulting in a comprehensive loss of $859,538.
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The Company's general and administrative expenses averaged approximately $235,000 per quarter during 2010. The Company expects cost to remain relatively
constant in 2011 with probable increases to manage the new Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. offset by expected management fee income. The Company's share of
income from the ownership of the Hooters restaurants in South Africa is also continuing to increase. In addition, the Company has a note for $250,000 owed to its
bank which is due in July 2011. The Company plans to continue to use limited partnerships to fund its share of costs for additional Hooters restaurants.

The Company expects to meet its obligations in 2011 with some or all of the following:

The Company holds 3,724,961 shares in DineOut at December 31, 2010, which are free-trading on the Frankfort Exchange and were trading at
approximately €1.30 (approximately $1.74) per share at December 31, 2010. The Company plans to continue to sell some of these shares to meet its
short-term capital requirements;

The Company received $400,000 in January 2011 when the acquisition of the Hooters restaurants was completed (See Note 15);

Extend a portion of its existing line of credit;

Convert its convertible notes payable into common stock (See Note 15);

The Company expects to raise all of its cash requirements for the South Africa restaurants from limited partners; and

The Company is funding the initial formation of Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc., including the registration of its common stock. The Company
expects to get most of its capital outlay back after the registration statement becomes effective (See Note 11).

If the above events do not occur or if the Company does not raise sufficient capital, substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
exists. These consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Significant estimates include the valuation of the
investments in portfolio companies and deferred tax asset valuation allowances. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company's current source of revenue is from management fees from both affiliated companies and non-affiliated companies. Our revenue recognition policy
prov1des that revenue is generally realized or realizable and earned when all of the following criteria have been met:
Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
Delivery has occurred or services have been rendered;
The seller's price to the buyer is fixed or determinable; and
Collectability is reasonably assured.

We may collect revenue in both cash and in the equity securities of the company to whom we are providing services. Typically when we are paid cash for services, it is
based on a monthly fee and is recorded when earned. When we receive equity securities for our management services, we generally receive the securities in advance for our
services to be earned over the life of the contract, generally one year. We value these securities and defer recognition of the revenue over the life of the management
contract.

The fair value of the equity instruments received was determined based upon the stock prices as of the date we reached an agreement with the third party. The terms of
the securities are not subject to adjustment after the measurement date.

MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES

Trading securities

The Company's investment in marketable equity securities are carried at fair value and are classified as current assets in the consolidated balance sheets. Unrealized
gains and losses, net of tax, are reported in the statement of operations as unrealized gain (loss) on marketable equity securities. Gains and losses are reported in the
consolidated statements of operations when realized, based on the disposition of specifically identified investments, using a first-in, first-out method.

Available-for-sale securities

The Company’s investments in marketable equity securities which are classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value. Investments available for current
operations are classified in the consolidated balance sheets as current assets; investments held for long-term purposes are classified as non-current assets. Unrealized gains
and losses, net of tax, are reported in other comprehensive income as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Gains and losses are reported in the consolidated
statements of operations when realized, determined based on the disposition of specifically identified investments, using a first-in, first-out method.

Investments identified by the Company as being potentially impaired are subject to further analysis to determine if the impairment is other than temporary. Other than
temporary declines in market value from original costs are charged to investment and other income, net, in the period in which the loss occurs. In determining whether
investment holdings are other than temporarily impaired, the Company considers the nature, cause, severity and duration of the impairment.

OTHER INVESTMENTS

Investments in which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence and that, in general, are at least 20 percent owned are stated at cost plus equity in
undistributed net earnings (loss), less distributions received. The Company also has equity investments in which it owns less than 20% which are stated at cost. An
impairment loss would be recorded whenever a decline in the value of an equity investment or cost investment is below its carrying amount and is determined to be other
than temporary. In judging “other than temporary,” the Company considers the length of time and extent to which the fair value of the investment has been less than the
carrying amount of the investment, the near-term and long-term operating and financial prospects of the investee, and the Company’s long-term intent of retaining the
investment in the investee.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

For financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, fair value is the price we would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction with a market participant at the measurement date. In the absence of active markets for the identical assets or liabilities, such measurements involve
developing assumptions based on market observable data and, in the absence of such data, internal information that is consistent with what market participants would use in
a hypothetical transaction that occurs at the measurement date.

Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions. Preference is given to observable
inputs. These two types of inputs create the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-
derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable.

Level 3 Significant inputs to the valuation model are unobservable.

We maintain policies and procedures to value instruments using the best and most relevant data available. Our investment committee reviews and approves all
investment valuations.

Our available-for-sale equity securities are all valued using Level 1 inputs or Level 2 inputs.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is required to disclose fair value information about financial instruments when it is practicable to estimate that value. The carrying amounts of the
Company’s cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, convertible notes payable and notes payable approximate their estimated fair value due to the short-term maturities
of these financial instruments and because related interest rates offered to the Company approximate current rates.

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets (generally five and seven years). The carrying amount of all long-lived assets is evaluated periodically to determine if adjustment to the depreciation and amortization
period or the unamortized balance is warranted. Based upon its most recent analysis, the Company believes that no impairment of property and equipment exists at
December 31, 2010 and 2009. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Betterments and renewals are capitalized. When property and equipment
are sold or otherwise disposed of, the asset account and related accumulated depreciation account are relieved, and any gain or loss is included in operations.
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INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are provided on the liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and their tax basis. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date
of enactment. The Company has provided a valuation allowance for the full amount of the deferred tax assets.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009 the Company had no accrued interest or penalties relating to any tax obligations. The Company currently has no federal or state
examinations in progress, nor has it had any federal or state tax examinations since its inception. The last three years of the Company's tax years are subject to federal and
state tax examination.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions (including the cost of all employee stock options) is required to be recognized in the financial
statements. That cost is measured based on the estimated fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. A wide range of share-based compensation arrangements
including share options, restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights and employee share purchase plans are included. The Company’s

financial statements would include an expense for all share-based compensation arrangements granted on or after January 1, 2006 and for any such arrangements that are
modified, cancelled or repurchased after that date based on the grant-date estimated fair value.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were no options outstanding.
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

The Company is required to report both basic earnings per share, which is based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding, and diluted earnings
per share, which is based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding plus all potentially dilutive shares outstanding. At December 31, 2010 and 2009,
there are no potentially dilutive shares outstanding. Accordingly, no common stock equivalents are included in the earnings (loss) per share calculations and basic and
diluted earnings per share are the same for all periods presented.
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Standards for reporting and displaying comprehensive income and its components (revenues, expenses, gains and losses) in a full set of general-purpose financial
statements requires that all items that are required to be recognized under accounting standards as components of comprehensive income be reported in a financial
statement that is displayed with the same prominence as other financial statements. We are required to (a) classify items of other comprehensive income by their nature in
financial statements, and (b) display the accumulated balance of other comprehensive income separately in the equity section of the balance sheet for all periods presented.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Cash is maintained at financial institutions, which at times, may exceed the FDIC insurance limit.
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RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made in the financial statements at December 31, 2009 and for the periods then ended to conform to the December 31, 2010

presentation. The reclassifications had no effect on net loss.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

There are several new accounting pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) which are not yet effective. Each of these
pronouncements, as applicable, has been or will be adopted by the Company. At March 23, 2011, none of these pronouncements is expected to have a material effect on the

financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

INVESTMENTS

Trading securities:
Balance, beginning of year
Shares acquired from a related party
Exchange oil and gas property
Transfer to available-for-sale securities
Cost of securities sold

Balance, end of year

Proceeds from sale of trading securities

Gain from sale of trading securities

Available for sale securities:
Cost at beginning of year
Transfer from trading securities
Transfer from investments accounted for by the cost method
Received as management fees
Acquired in exchange for DineOut shares
Proceeds from sale of securities
Realized loss
Cost at end of year
Unrealized gain (loss)
Total

INVESTMENTS ARE SUMMARIZED AS FOLLOWS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009.
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2010 2009
-8 -

26,334 31,500

- 126,000

- (126,000)

(26,334) (31,500)
Y B

32,917 $ 40,197
6583 $ 8,697

2010 2009

83,286 $ 108,545

- 126,000

100,000 275,000
33,000 =
124,573 -
(41,645) =
(98,741) (342,259)
200,473 167,286
152,027 (84,000)
352,500 $ 33,286




2010 2009
Investments using the equity method:

Balance, beginning of year $ 82,500 $ 1,241,371
Equity in earnings (loss) 58,337 23,000
General partnership formed - 82,500
Sale of investment (37,500) (575,000)
Transfer to investments at cost - (575,000)
Asset impairment - (50,000)
Distributions received (16,137) (64,371)
Balance, end of year $ 87,200 $ 82,500
2010 2009
Investments at cost:
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,191,598 $ 442,598
Impairment (250,000) -
Distributions - -
Proceeds from sale of investment (75,000)
Exchange for marketable equity securities - (76,000)
Investment transferred from equity investments - 575,000
Investment transferred to available-for-sale securities (100,000) (275,000)
Investments acquired pursuant to management agreements - 525,000
Total $ 766,598 $ 1,191,598
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

Our available-for-sale securities consist of the following:

Realized Unrecognized
Holding Holding Fair
Cost Loss Gains (Losses) Value
December 31, 2010
Special Projects Group * $ -3 - 8 - 8 -
Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. * 1,286 (1,286) - -
Remodel Auction * 40,000 (39,100) 100 1,000
North American Energy 126,000 - (98,000) 28,000
North American Energy * 10,500 - (4,500) 6,000
Efftec International, Inc. * 22,500 - 22,500 45,000
Efftec International, Inc. (warrant) * - - 22,500 22,500
HiTech Stages 124,573 - 125,427 250,000
$ 324859 $ (40,386) $ 68,027 $ 352,500
December 31, 2009
Special Projects Group * $ 31,407 $ (31,407) $ - 3 =
Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. * 77,138 (75,852) - 1,286
Remodel Auction * 275,000 (235,000) - 40,000
North American Energy 126,000 - (84,000) 42,000
$ 509,545 $ (342,259) $ (84,000) $ 83,286

* Investments acquired in exchange for management services.

Special Projects Group - The transaction in which Special Projects Group was involved to acquire an operating company was cancelled and Special Projects became a shell
company. During 2009, Special Projects was dropped from the Pink Sheets and the Company determined it was an other than temporary impairment and wrote off its remaining
investment in 2009.

Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. - During 2007, the Company acquired 342,814 shares of Syzygy in exchange for a management services contract which covered a one-year
period commencing April 1, 2007. The shares were valued at $1.50 per share, a discount to the listed price at that time. Also during 2007, Mr. Pruitt contributed 300,000 shares of
Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. to the Company, which was valued by the investment committee at $600,000 on the dates contributed. Mr. Pruitt did not receive additional
compensation as a result of the transfers.

As a result of the above transactions, the Company owns 642,814 shares of Syzygy with a cost of $1,114,221 and a fair value as of December 31, 2010 of $0. The Company
considers this decline in value to be other than temporary and has recognized an impairment loss of $75,852 in 2009 and $1,286 in 2010.

Remodel Auction Incorporated - Remodel Auction Incorporated was formed to launch and operate an online listing service for remodeling projects. The Company received
167 shares of Remodel Auction common stock in exchange for providing management services for one year, effective January 1, 2009. We valued our initial investment of 167
shares at 50% of the price Remodel was receiving from third parties for its stock, $125,000. Remodel Auction began trading under the symbol REMD on August 10, 2009, and
the Company received an additional 167 shares of Remodel common stock pursuant to its management agreement. We recorded the additional 167 shares at the trading price of
the stock on that date of $900 per share and recognized $150,000 in management income. Remodel Auction began trading on the Pink Sheets, and the market price was readily
determinable. Therefore, the Company transferred this investment from investments accounted for by the cost method to available-for-sale securities. The market value of
Remodel Auction was approximately the same as the original cost at the time of the transfer. Accordingly, the transfer was recorded at the original cost. At December 31, 2009,
the common stock had declined to $120 per share and the Company determined that the loss was other-than temporary and recorded a loss of $235,000 on its investment in
Remodel Auction common stock. During 2010, the Company recognized an additional impairment of $39,100. At December 31, 2010, the Company valued its investment at
$1,000 and recorded an unrealized gain of $100.
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North American Energy Resources, Inc. - During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, the Company exchanged its oil & gas property investments for 700,000 shares of North
American Energy Resources, Inc. ("NAEY") which were valued at $126,000 based on the closing price of NAEY on the date of the trade. The Company initially classified the
NAEY as a trading security when it was acquired based on the Company's intent to begin selling the shares before the end of 2009. In November 2009 the Company decided that it
would not sell the stock in the near term and determined that the investment should be reclassified as an available-for-sale security and classified as non-current, due to
uncertainties about when it would be sold. At the time of the decision to reclassify the investment as available-for-sale, the trading price and value were approximately equal to the
cost. Accordingly, upon the transfer at fair value, the shares were transferred at $126,000, the original cost to the Company. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the stock had
declined to $0.04 and $0.06 per share and the Company recorded an unrealized loss of $98,000 and $84,000, respectively, based on the Company's determination that the price
decline was temporary.

During the first quarter of 2010, the Company received an additional 150,000 shares of NAEY in exchange for management services. The shares were initially valued at
$10,500, based on the trading price at the time. At December 31, 2010, the Company recorded an unrealized loss of $4,500 based on the market value of $6,000.

NAEY appointed a new management team in December 2010 and appears to have an opportunity for the stock price to recover. Accordingly, the Company determined that
the decline was temporary.

Vought Defense Systems Corp. -On May 31, 2006, we acquired debt owed by Atlas Defense Systems, Inc. ("ADS") and formerly Vought Defense Systems Corp. ("VDSC")
(formerly, Lifestyle Innovations, Inc.) with a face value of $1,177,395 for $100,000 in cash. Lifestyle has traded under the symbol LFSI and has only had a deminimus amount of
income from a royalty during the last three years. LFSI is not currently a reporting company. The debt was converted into a note with interest at 12% on July 1, 2008. We owned
approximately 28% of the debt of LFSI at December 31, 2009. LFSI was valued at approximately $400,000 as a shell, ($100,000 for the Company's interest) based on estimates
provided by an attorney knowledgeable in the area.

On February 16, 2010, a majority of the shareholders of LFSI approved a name change to Vought Defense Systems Corp. and a 1 for 545 reverse stock split of the issued
shares of common stock. On February 17, 2010, VDSC acquired 100% of RedTide Defense Group, Inc. ("RedTide") which has created a solution to a growing worldwide demand
for the manufacturing of Unmanned Aerial Vehicles ("UAVs"). RedTide owns and operates www.redtidedefense.com. The Company's debt was converted into 449,959 shares of
VDSC common stock. The Company sold all of its shares for total proceeds of $41,645 and recorded a loss of $58,355 during the last three quarters of 2010.

EffTec International, Inc. - Effective April 1, 2010, the Company's CEO became a director and the CEO of EffTec International, Inc. The Company received 150,000
shares of EffTec and an option to acquire an additional 150,000 shares at $0.15 per share in exchange for the management services to be provided. The shares were valued at
$22,500 based on the trading price of EffTec at the date of the transaction. At December 31, 2010, the shares were valued at $0.30 per share and the $22,500 increase in value plus
the value of the option of $22,500 was included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

EffTec has developed a powerful, easy to use, Internet-based chiller tool called EffTrack™ that:

Collects, stores and analyzes chiller operating data,

63




Calculates and trends chiller performance,
Diagnoses the cause of chiller inefficiencies,
Notifies plant contacts when problems occur,
Recommends corrective actions,

Measures the results of corrective actions and
Provides cost analysis of operational improvements.

Chillers are the single largest energy-using component in most industrial or commercial type facilities using water-cooled chillers for comfort or process cooling and can
consume up to 50% of the facility’s electrical usage. There is a vast array of operational and mechanical problems that occur causing a chiller to lose performance. Even small
inefficiencies can result in thousands of dollars in energy waste.

HiTech Stages, Ltd. - HiTech Stages, Ltd. ("HiTech") is registered in the UK and is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Symbol "JT2.F"). HiTech, in conjunction with a
manufacturer, has developed a mobile event stage, including multimedia, which can be packed in three 20' x 8' x 8' containers. The stage can be fully assembled in less than one
hour and deployed and operational in ten minutes, including the set-up of all lighting, sound and video systems. This is a revolutionary first in the event business and will rent for
approximately one-half of the cost of conventional stage systems. HiTech is in its initial funding stage and intends to raise up to $5.5 million to finance the manufacture of the first
stage and build the distribution support services.

The Company acquired 275,000 shares of HiTech in exchange for 150,450 shares of DineOut. The transaction was initially recorded as an available-for-sale security at the
average net sales price of DineOut shares of $124,573. At December 31, 2010, HiTech closed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange at €1.00 ($1.34). Due to the start-up status of
HiTech and limited trading volume, the Company valued its investment at $250,000 at December 31, 2010.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Equity investments consist of the following at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009:

2010 2009
Carrying value:
Chanticleer & Shaw Foods Pty. Ltd. (50%) $ 87,200 § 82,500
$ 87,200 $ 82,500
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Activity from equity investments during the year ended December, 2010 and 2009 follows:

2010 2009
Equity in earnings (loss):
Chanticleer Investors, LLC N/A $ 23,000
Hoot S.A. I, LLC (20%) 27,448 N/A
Hoot S.A. II, LLC (20%) 30,889 N/A
$ 58,337 $ 23,000
Distributions:
Chanticleer Investors, LLC NA $ 23,000
Hoot S.A. I, LLC (20%) 16,137 N/A
Hoot S.A. II, LLC (20%) - N/A
Investment liquidation - 41,371
$ 16,137 $ 64,371

The summarized financial data for the Hoot SA limited partnerships of which we owned 20% in 2010 and Chanticleer Investors LLC, of which we owned 23% until May
2009, follows:

2010 2009
(6 months)
Revenue $ 3,942,663 $ 150,000
Gross profit 2,717,191 150,000
Income from continuing operations 545,432 99,940
Net income 545,432 99,940
The summarized balance sheet of the Hoot SA limited partnerships as of December 31, 2010 is as follows:
2010
ASSETS
Current assets $ 101,900
Non-current assets $ 1,604,500
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,706,400
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities $ 172,700
PARTNER'S EQUITY $ 1,533,700
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY $ 1,706,400

Hooters S.A., GP - The Company formed CHL to own the Company's 50% general partner interest in Hooters S.A., GP, the general partner of the Hooters' restaurant
franchises in South Africa. The initial restaurant opened in December 2009 in Durban, South Africa and operations commenced in January 2010. In the initial restaurant CHL has
a 10% interest in restaurant cash flows until the limited partners receive payout and a 40% interest in restaurant cash flows after limited partner payout. The second location opened
in Johannesburg in June 2010 and a third location is planned to open in Cape Town in the spring of 2011.
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Chanticleer Investors LLC - the Company reduced its interest in Investors LLC during 2009 and transferred the remaining investment to investments accounted for under the
cost method at that time. The Company recorded $23,000 in earnings from equity investments and received a distribution of $23,000 before it sold 1/2 of its interest for the book
value of $575,000. See Investments accounted for under the cost method below for additional details.

First Choice Mortgage - this partnership discontinued operations at the end of 2008 and a final distribution of $41,371 was received in 2009.
Confluence Partners -the Company formed a partnership in which it owned 50% and its partner owned 50%. Each partner contributed $50,000 and the resulting $100,000

was invested with a group that raises funds for a SPAC. The SPAC was delayed due to the current market conditions and the Company elected to fully impair its investment at
December 31, 2009 due to these uncertainties.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE COST METHOD

Investments at cost consist of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Chanticleer Investors, LLC $ 500,000 $ 575,000
Edison Nation LLC (FKA Bouncing Brain Productions) 250,000 250,000
BreezePlay, Inc. - 250,000
Lifestyle Innovations, Inc. - 100,000
Chanticleer Investors II 16,598 16,598
$ 766,598 § 1,191,598

Chanticleer Investors LLC - The Company sold 1/2 of its investment in Investors LLC in May 2009, which reduced its ownership from 23% to 11.5%. Accordingly, in May
2009, the Company discontinued accounting for this investment using the equity method and began to account for the investment using the cost method. In December 2010, the
Company sold an additional $75,000 of its investment at cost.

On April 18, 2006, the Company formed Investors LLC and sold units for $5,000,000. Investors LLC’s principal asset is a convertible note in the amount of $5,000,000 with
Hooters of America, Inc. (“HOA”), collateralized by and convertible into 2% of Hooters common stock. The original note included interest at 6% and was due May 24, 2009. The
note was extended until November 24, 2010 and included an increase in the interest rate to 8%.

The Company owned $1,150,000 (23%) of Investors LLC until May 29, 2009 when it sold 1/2 of its share for $575,000. Under the original arrangement, the Company
received 2% of the 6% interest as a management fee ($25,000 quarterly) and 4% interest on its investment ($11,500 quarterly). Under the extended note and revised operating
agreement, the Company receives a management fee of $6,625 quarterly and interest income of $11,500 quarterly.

On January 24, 2011, Investors LLC and its three partners combined to form HOA Holdings, LLC ("HOA LLC") and completed the acquisition of Hooters of America, Inc.
("HOA") and Texas Wings, Inc. ("TW"). Together HOA LLC has created an operating company with 161 company-owned locations across sixteen states, or nearly half of all
domestic Hooters restaurants and over one-third of the locations worldwide.

Investors, LLC had a note receivable in the amount of $5,000,000 from HOA that was repaid at closing. Investors LLC then invested $3,550,000 in HOA LLC
(approximately 3.1%) ($500,000 of which is the Company's share). One of the investors in Investors LLC that owned a $1,750,000 share is a direct investor in HOA LLC and will
now carry its ownership in HOA LLC directly. The Company now owns approximately 14% of Investors LLC.

EE Investors, LLC -On January 26, 2006, we acquired an investment in EE Investors, LLC with cash in the amount of $250,000. We acquired 1,205 units (3.378%) in EE
Investors, LLC, whose sole asset is 40% of Edison Nation, LLC (formerly Bouncing Brain Productions, LLC). Edison Nation was formed to provide equity capital for new
inventions and help bring them to market. The initial business plan included developing the products and working with manufacturers and marketing organizations to sell the
products. This has evolved into a less hands-on program which involves selling products with patents to other larger companies and retaining royalties. Edison Nation has now
reached cash flow break-even, and in addition has been retained by a number of companies for which they do product searches to supplement its business. Edison Nation has
repaid the majority of its debt and expects to begin making distributions to its owners during 2011. Based on the current status of this investment, the Company does not consider
the investment to be impaired.
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BreezePlay, Inc. - BreezePlay™ LLC (“BreezePlay”), headquartered in Charlotte, NC, was an energy solutions provider serving the needs of residents and utilities via
partnership programs with major utilities. BreezePlay offered a proprietary monitoring system called EnviroScape™, which was the only residential consumer energy management
product on the market that monitors residential energy consumption 24/7 to provide actual usage and rate data, and that enables customers the ability to automatically adjust
systems to effect consumption and automate savings. We valued the 250,000 shares we received in BreezePlay at $250,000, the price at which BreezePlay was selling its common
stock to unrelated parties. We received the shares in exchange for management services which were provided from February 1, 2009 through January 31, 2010. We recognized
eleven months of income in 2009 and recognized the remaining balance in 2010. BreezePlay was unable to complete its funding to establish its business plan and based on the
Company's analysis determined to fully impair its investment at December 31, 2010.

Vought Defense Systems Corp. - On May 31, 2006, we acquired debt owed by Vought Defense Systems Corp. ("VDSC") (formerly, Lifestyle Innovations, Inc.) with a face
value of $1,177,395 for $100,000 in cash. Lifestyle has traded under the symbol LFSI and has only had a deminimus amount of income from a royalty during the last three
years. LFSI is not currently a reporting company. The debt was converted into a note with interest at 12% on July 1, 2008. We owned approximately 28% of the debt of LFSI at
December 31, 2009. LFSI was valued at approximately $400,000 as a shell, ($100,000 for the Company's interest) based on estimates provided by an attorney knowledgeable in
the area.

On February 16, 2010, a majority of the shareholders of LFSI approved a name change to Vought Defense Systems Corp. and a 1 for 545 reverse stock split of the issued
shares of common stock. The Company's debt was converted into 449,959 shares of VDSC common stock in March 2010. In March 2010, the stock was transferred to available-
for-sale securities and by the end of 2010, the Company had sold all of its shares for proceeds of $41,645 and recognized a loss of $58,355.

Chanticleer Investors II - The Company paid $16,598 in professional services to form this partnership. Chanticleer Advisors, LLC acts as the managing general partner and
receives a management fee based on a percentage of profits.

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Office and computer equipment $ 29371 $ 26337
Furniture and fixtures 47,686 46,203
77,057 72,540
Accumulated depreciation (51,494) (40,415)

$ 25,563 $ 32,125

5. NOTES PAYABLE

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had notes payable as follows:
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5. NOTES PAYABLE

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had notes payable as follows:

2010 2009
Line-of credit with a bank with interest at Wall Street Prime +1% (minimum of 5.5%) payable monthly; due in
monthly payments of $1,729 commencing February 10, 2011 with the balance due in full on July 10, 2011;
collateralized by substantially all assets of the Company; guaranteed by Mr. Pruitt $ 250,000 $ 250,000
Note payable to an individual with interest at 18%; due June 30, 2010; refinanced as a convertible note payable on
December 31, 2010 - 162,500
$ 250,000 $ 412,500

6. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company issued convertible notes payable with a total principal balance of $691,000 and made a partial repayment of
$4,500. The convertible notes include interest at 10% per annum, which is payable quarterly beginning on April 1, 2010 until maturity on January 4, 2012. The convertible notes
are convertible into our common stock at the rate of $1.75 per share, effective March 23, 2011 (392,286 shares). The conversion price was below the market price of our common
stock on the date the convertible notes were issued. Accordingly, $56,660 of the proceeds were allocated to the intrinsic value of the conversion feature by crediting additional paid
in capital and charging interest expense, since the notes were immediately convertible. The effective interest rate including the beneficial conversion feature was 24.8% in
2010. All of the convertible notes were converted to our common stock effective March 30, 2011.

7. ACQUISITION RELATED COSTS

FASB ASC 805-10-25-23 replaced prior guidance and became effective January 1, 2009. Acquisition-related costs are defined as costs the acquirer incurs to effect a business
combination. The acquirer shall account for acquisition-related costs as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services received. Pursuant to the
Company's planned acquisition of HI, the Company incurred $279,050 in acquisition-related costs which were capitalized in 2008 pursuant to accounting guidance in effect at that
time.

FASB ASC 805-10-25-23 applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning after December 15, 2008. Accordingly, on January 1, 2009 the Company charged its previously capitalized acquisition costs to expense on that date.

8. DEFERRED REVENUE
The Company receives equity securities from companies for which it provides management services. Generally the securities are issued in advance of the period over which
the service is to be provided, generally one year. The Company values the equity instruments received based upon the stock prices as of the date we reached an agreement with the

third party and defers the related revenue. The revenue is then recognized over the period earned. Deferred revenue consists of the following during the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009.
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Balance at beginning of year

Additions:
North American Energy common stock
Remodel Auction common stock
BreezePlay, Inc. common stock
Amortization

Balance end of year
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2010 2009
20,833 $ :
10,500
- 125,000
2 250,000
(29,583) (354,167)
1,750 $ 20,833




9. INCOME TAXES

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the provision for income taxes (all deferred) differs from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. Federal income
tax rate of 34% to income before provision for income taxes as a result of the following:

2010 2009
Computed "expected" income tax expense (benefit) $ (343,900) $ (276,700)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit (40,500) (32,500)
Travel, entertainment and other 10,100 (8,900)
Valuation allowance 374,300 318,100
Income tax expense (benefit) $ - S -
Significant components of net deferred income tax assets are as follows:
2010 2009
Investments $ 8,900 $ 461,700
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,381,600 1,003,300
Foreign losses - 16,500
Capital loss carryforwards 478,300 13,000
Total deferred tax assets 1,868,800 1,494,500
Valuation allowance (1,868,800) (1,494,500)
Net deferred tax assets $ - 8 -

The Company has a net operating loss carryforward of approximately $3,656,000, which will expire at various dates beginning in 2024 through 2030, if not utilized. The
Company has a capital loss carryforward of $1,258,000 which expires in 2015 if not utilized. The tax basis of investments exceeds their book cost by approximately $23,000.

10. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Company has 200,000,000 shares of its $0.0001 par value common stock authorized and 2,571,918 and 2,492,752 shares issued and 2,048,688 and 1,969,822 shares
outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. There are no warrants or options outstanding.

Effective March 23, 2011, the Company's common stock was forward split, 2 shares for each share issued, pursuant to written consent by a majority of the Company's
shareholders. All share references have been adjusted as if the split occurred prior to all periods presented.
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2010 Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company issued: 15,572 shares of its common stock valued at $25,000 to two consultants for consulting services; 33,594
shares of its common stock valued at $58,790 for amounts due a related party; and issued 10,000 shares for $17,500 in accounts payable. Effective December 31, 2010, the
Company issued 20,000 shares of its common stock to its outside directors for directors fees valued at $42,500.

2009 Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company sold 77,070 shares of its common stock for proceeds in the amount of $76,578. In addition, the Company issued
522,930 shares of its common stock to form a new subsidiary, DineOut, which was valued at $536,003 and has been included in treasury stock upon consolidation.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Due to related parties

The Company has received non-interest bearing loans and advances from related parties. The amounts owed by the Company as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as
follows:

2010 2009
Tyler Industrial Group, a company partially owned by Mr. Pruitt $ -3 58,590
Chanticleer Investors, LLC - 6,000
Hoot SA 11T, LLC 70,000 =
Avenel Financial Group, a company owned by Mr. Pruitt 46,349 33,000
Personal friend of Mr. Pruitt - 12,000
$ 116,349 $ 109,590

The Company issued 33,594 shares of its common stock in exchange for the amount due to Tyler Industrial Group during 2010.
Due from related parties

The Company has earned income from and made advances to related parties. The amounts owed to the Company at December 31, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

72




2010 2009

Green St. Energy, Inc. $ - 8 24,907
Chanticleer Investors, LLC 6,035 7,149
Chanticleer Investors II, LLC * 46,547 -
Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. 30,937 -
Other 750 750
$ 84,269 $ 32,806
*Collected March 15, 2011.
Management income from affiliates
The Company had management income from its affiliates in 2010 and 2009, as follows:
2010 2009
Chanticleer Investors, LLC $ 26,500 $ 63,250
Chanticleer Investors II LLC 57,718 561
Green St. Energy, Inc. - 24,000
Efftec International, Inc. 22,500 -
North American Energy Resources, Inc. 8,750 -
Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. - 11,000
$ 115,468 $ 98,811

Chanticleer Investors LLC

On April 18, 2006, the Company formed Investors LLC and sold units for $5,000,000. Investors LLC’s principal asset is a convertible note in the amount of $5,000,000 with
Hooters of America, Inc. (“Hooters”), collateralized by and convertible into 2% of Hooters common stock. The original note included interest at 6% and was due May 24,
2009. The note was extended until November 24, 2010 and includes an increase in interest rate to 8%.

The Company owned $1,150,000 (23%) of Investors LLC at December 31, 2008 and until May 29, 2009 when it sold 1/2 of its share for $575,000. Under the original
arrangement, the Company received 2% of the 6% interest as a management fee ($25,000 quarterly) and 4% interest on its investment ($11,500 quarterly). Under the extended
note and revised operating agreement, the Company receives a management fee of $6,625 quarterly and interest income of $11,500 quarterly. The Company sold $75,000 of its
investment in December 2010, leaving it with a balance of $500,000 at December 31, 2010.

The Company received management income of $26,500 and $63,250 in 2010 and 2009, respectively, for its management services, which is included in management income

from affiliates. The Company recorded earnings from its equity investment of $23,000 in 2009. After the Company sold 1/2 of its investment in May 2009, the Company's
earnings of $46,000 and $23,000 was included in interest income in 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Chanticleer Investors I LLC

The Company manages Investors II and earned management income of $57,718 (346,547 was collected March 15, 2011 and $11,171 was collected in 2010) and $561 in 2010
and 2009, respectively.

Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. ("CDF")

On November 10, 2010 the Company formed CDF under the general corporation laws of the State of Maryland. CDF filed a registration statement under Form N-2 to register
as a non-diversified, closed-end investment company in January 2011. The Company, through Advisors, will have a role in management of CDF when its registration statement
becomes effective.

Green St. Energy, Inc. ("Green St.")

Mr. Pruitt was a director of Green St. and during 2009, the Company billed Green St. $24,000 for management services and advanced $907 for Green St. expenses. This
amount was included in bad debt expense at December 31, 2010.

Efftec International, Inc. ("Efftec")

The Company's CEO became CEO and the sole director of Efftec during 2010 and the Company received 150,000 common shares and an option to acquire 150,000 shares for
management services. The shares and option were valued at $22,500, based on the trading price of Efftec at the time.

North American Energy Resources, Inc. ("NAEY")

The Company's CEO became CEO and a director of NAEY during 2010 and the Company received 150,000 common shares for management services. The shares were
valued at $10,500, based on the trading price of NAEY at the time. The Company's CEO resigned as CEO of NAEY in December 2010 and remains a director.

Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. (""Syzygy")
Mr. Pruitt was a director of Syzygy until his resignation on June 1, 2009. Revenue in 2009 included $11,000 in cash management fees from Syzygy. During 2007, Mr. Pruitt

contributed 300,000 shares of Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. to the Company, which was valued by the investment committee at $600,000 on the dates contributed. Mr. Pruitt did not
receive additional compensation as a result of the transfers. The Company owns 642,814 shares of Syzygy which have been fully impaired at December 31, 2010.
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Other

The Company acquired trading securities from a related party for $26,334 and $31,500 which were sold for $32,917 and $40,197 in 2010 and 2009, respectively.
12. SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS

The Company is organized into two active segments as of the end of 2010. One of which was added during 2009 and had its initial revenue in 2010.

Management and consulting services ("'Management')
The Company provides management and consulting services for small companies which are generally seeking to become publicly traded. The Company also provides
management and investment services for Investors LLC and Investors II. The Company will also provide management services to CDF.

Insurance and specialized financial services ("'Insurance')
We have formed AFS to provide unique financial services to the restaurant, real estate development, investment advisor/asset management and philanthropic
organizations. AFS's business operation has not been activated and is expected to initially include captive insurance, CHIRA and trust services.

Operation of restaurants (South Africa) ("Restaurants')

The Company formed CHL to own the Company's 50% general partner interest in Hooters S.A., GP, the general partner of the Hooters' restaurant franchises in South
Africa. The initial restaurant opened December 2009 in Durban, South Africa and operations commenced in January 2010. In the initial restaurant CHL has a 10% interest in total
restaurant cash flows until the limited partners receive payout and a 40% interest in total restaurant cash flows after limited partner payout. The second location opened in
Johannesburg in June 2010 and a third location is planned to open in Cape Town during the spring of 2011. The Company's cash requirement has been financed with limited
partnerships.
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13.

Revenues
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization

Profit (loss)
Investments and other
Non-controlling interest

Assets
Investments

Liabilities

Expenditures for non-current assets

Revenues
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization

Profit (loss)
Investments and other

Assets
Investments

Liabilities

Expenditures for non-current assets

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Financial information regarding the Company's segments is as follows for 2010 and 2009.

Year ended December 31, 2010

Management

s 136301 g
g 140016 g
s 11,079

$ (949,904) §

$ 208,261 $

s 1332134 g
$ 4517 ¢

Year ended December 31, 2009

Management
$ 602,978
$ 33,914
$ 11,481
$ (702,734)
$ 71,285
$ 708,651
$ 7,446
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Insurance

$

$

Insurance

(15,000)

$

$

Restaurants

58,337

87,200

Restaurants

(43,451)

107,500

27,000

62,500

@ B

@ PH

Total

136,301
140,016

11,079

(891,567)
(138,351)
18,353

(1,011,565)

295,461
1,119,098

1,414,559

1,332,134

4,517

Total

602,978
33,914

11,481

(761,185)
(52,511)

(813,696)

178,785

1,274,884
1,453,669

735,651

69,946

Effective August 1, 2010, the Company extended its office lease agreement for its office for a term of one year with monthly lease payments of $2,100.




On April 23, 2009, the Company through its 50% joint venture agreement with Shaw Holdings (Chanticleer & Shaw Pty, Ltd.) entered into a franchise agreement with HOA to
open and operate Hooters restaurants in the Republic of South Africa. The initial plan calls for four restaurants in the first phase with three additional locations to be added
later. The first restaurant opened in December 2009 in Durban and commenced operations January 1, 2010. A location in Johannesburg opened in June 2010 and a location in
Cape Town is scheduled to open in the spring of 2011. The majority of the Company's financial commitments have been and will be covered with limited partner commitments.

14. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized in the following tables according to FASB ASC 820 pricing levels.

Fair Value Measurement Using
Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets of other Significant
identical observable Unobservable
Recorded assets inputs Inputs
value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 2010
Assets:
Available-for-sale securities $ 352,500 $ 101,500 $ 251,000 $ -
December 31, 2009
Assets:
Available-for-sale securities $ 83,286 § 83,286 $ -3 -

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company's available-for-sale equity securities were valued using Level 1 and Level 2 inputs as summarized above. Level 1 inputs are
based on unadjusted prices for identical assets in active markets that the Company can access. Level 2 inputs are based on quoted prices for similar assets other than quoted prices
in Level 1, quoted prices in markets that are not yet active, or other inputs that are observable or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets.

The Company does not have any investments that are measured on a recurring basis using Level 3 inputs.

Certain assets are not carried at fair value on a recurring basis, including investment accounted for under the equity and cost methods. Accordingly, such investments are only
included in the fair value hierarchy disclosure when the investment is subject to re-measurement at fair value after initial recognition and the resulting re-measurement is reflected
in the consolidated financial statements.

In 2010, the Company considered a cost basis investment to be impaired and recognized an impairment loss of $250,000 in the consolidated statement of operations. In 2009,
the Company considered an equity method investment to be impaired and recognized an impairment loss of $50,000 in the consolidated statement of operations. These

impairments were determined using Level 3 inputs to determine the estimated fair value, which was determined to be less than the recorded amounts.

See Note 3 for further details of the Company's investments.
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15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

ACQUISITION OF HOOTERS RESTAURANTS

On January 24, 2011, Investors LLC and its three partners combined to form HOA Holdings, LLC ("HOA LLC") and completed the acquisition of Hooters of America, Inc.
("HOA") and Texas Wings, Inc. ("TW"). Together HOA LLC has created an operating company with 161 company-owned locations across sixteen states, or nearly half of all
domestic Hooters restaurants and over one-third of the locations worldwide.

Investors, LLC had a note receivable in the amount of $5,000,000 from HOA that was repaid at closing. Investors LLC then invested $3,550,000 in HOA LLC
(approximately 3.1%) ($500,000 of which is the Company's share). One of the investors in Investors LLC that owned a $1,750,000 share is a direct investor in HOA LLC and will
now carry its ownership in HOA LLC directly. The Company now owns approximately 14% of Investors LLC.

The Company received a payment of $400,000 at closing for its services in facilitating the acquisition. In addition, for a minimum of four years, the Company will receive
annual payments of $100,000 due in January each year while Mr. Pruitt serves on its board.

COMMON STOCK SPLIT

Effective March 23, 2011, the Company's common stock was forward split, 2 shares for each share issued, pursuant to written consent by a majority of the Company's
shareholders. All share references have been adjusted as if the split occurred prior to all periods presented.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

Effective March 30, 2011 the holders of the $686,500 in convertible notes payable and other obligations totaling $35,000 were converted into 412,286 shares of the
Company's common stock.

WARRANT REGISTRATION
On January 6, 2011, the Company filed a Form S-1 Registration Statement under the Securities Act of 1933. The Registration Statement, when effective, would register one
Class A Warrant and one Class B Warrant for each common share of the Company issued. The warrants have a subscription price of $0.04 which entitles our shareholders to

acquire one Class A Warrant which would entitle the holder to acquire one share of our common stock for $2.75 and one Class B Warrant which would entitle the holder to acquire
one share of our common stock for $3.50. The warrants have a five year life.
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PART 1: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1: CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 30, 2011 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2010

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Due from related parties

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Available-for-sale investments at fair value
Investments accounted for under the equity method
Investments accounted for under the cost method
Deposits
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Notes payable and current portion of long-term debt

Deferred revenue

Due to related parties

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders' equity:

Common stock, $0.0001 par value. Authorized 200,000,000 shares; issued 3,011,954 and 2,571,918 shares and outstanding
2,498,724 and 2,048,688 shares at September 30, 2011 and at December 31, 2010, respectively

Additional paid in capital

Non-controlling interest

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Accumulated deficit

Less treasury stock, 513,230 shares and 523,230 shares at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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2011 2010
$ 223,857 $ 46,007
66,667 4258

75,106 84,269

99,238 24,184

464,368 158,718

17,990 25,563

105,618 352,500

786,560 87,200

766,598 766,598

23,980 23,980

$ 2,165,614 $ 1,414,559
$ 191,821 $ 211,432
13,071 66,103

1,301,723 250,000

- 1,750

44,053 116,349

1,550,668 645,634
238,026 686,500
1,788,694 1,332,134

301 257

6,436,348 5,456,067

48,359 24,175

(156,213) 68,027
(5,425,455) (4,929,418)
(526,420) (536,683)

376,920 82,425

$ 2,165,614 § 1,414,559




Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

(Unaudited)
2011 2010
Management and consulting revenue
Affiliate $ (30,726) $ 9,250
Other 25,000 -
(5,726) 9,250
Expenses:
General and administrative expense 280,446 163,177
280,446 163,177
Loss from operations before income taxes (286,172) (153,927)
Income taxes 2 =
Loss from operations (286,172) (153,927)
Other income (expense)
Realized gain from sales of investments - (1,658)
Other than temporary decline in available-for-sale securities (147,973) -
Equity in earnings (losses) of investments (20,820) 21,597
Interest and other income - 11,500
Interest expense (41,190) (27,421)
Total other income (expense) (209,983) 4,018
Net loss before non-controlling interest (496,155) (149,909)
Non-controlling interest 399 553
Net loss (495,756) (149,356)
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities (172,031) (62,901)
Net comprehensive Income (loss) $ (667,787) $ (212,257)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.20) $ (0.07)
Weighted average shares outstanding 2,477,759 2,009,272

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Management and consulting revenue
Affiliate
Other

Expenses:
General and administrative expense

Loss from operations before income taxes
Income taxes

Loss from operations

Other income (expense)
Realized gain from sales of investments
Other than temporary decline in available-for-sale securities
Equity in earnings (losses) of investments
Interest and other income
Interest expense
Total other income (expense)
Net loss before non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest
Net loss
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities
Net comprehensive loss

Net loss per share, basic and diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding

Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Unaudited)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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2011 2010
1,750 $ 59,671
466,667 20,833
468,417 80,504
769,732 657,249
769,732 657,249
(301,315) (576,745)
(301,315) (576,745)
19,991 149,350
(147,973) (40,386)
(9,256) 42,850
5,016 34,500
(63,876) (104,396)
(196,098) 81,918
(497,413) (494,827)
1,376 430
(496,037) (494,397)
(224,240) 38,946
(720277) $ (455,451)
(0.21) $ (0.25)
2,332,222 1,969,822




Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Net earnings (loss)

(Unaudited)

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:

Other than temporary decline in available-for-sale securities
Depreciation
Equity in (earnings) loss of investments
Beneficial conversion feature of convertible notes payable
Amortization to interest expense of value of warrants
Common stock issued for services
Investment received in exchange for management services
Realized (gains) losses from sales of investments
Bad debt expense
Non-controlling interest
Change in other assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Advances from (repayment to) related parties
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of investments
Purchase of treasury stock
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock
Distributions from equity investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from sale of common stock warrants, net
Loan repayment
Loan proceeds
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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2011 2010
(496,037) $ (494,397)
147,973 40,386

7,573 8,281
9,256 (42,850)

- 49,994

12,588 -
29,723 -
- (33,000)
(19,991) (149,350)
750 -
(1,376) (430)
(62,410) (2,482)
(14,507) 2,500
(53,054) 44,163
(38,883) 3,174
(1,750) (16,459)
(480,145) (590,470)
- (3,628)
(877,228) (26,334)
- (680)

26,401 -
8,140 11,833
190,325 182,710
(652,362) 163,901
20,608 -
(5,251) (4,500)
1,295,000 441,000
1,310,357 436,500
177,850 9,931
46,007 2,374
223857 $ 12,305
(Continued)




Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010
(Unaudited)

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid for interest and income taxes:
Interest
Income taxes

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Investments received for management consulting contracts
Due to related party exchanged for convertible note payable
Convertible notes payable exchanged for common stock
Accrued interest exchanged for common stock
Common stock issued for loan from related party
Investment exchanged for another investment
Investment contributed by the Company's CEO
Common stock issued for prepaid consulting contract

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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2011 2010

85,176 20,139

- 33,000

25,000 -
711,500 -
10,000 -

- 58,790

- 124,573

125,331 -
44,850 10,000




NOTE 1:

Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2011
(Unaudited)

NATURE OF BUSINESS

(1) Organization — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. (“Holdings”) and its wholly owned subsidiaries Chanticleer
Advisors LLC (“Advisors”), Avenel Ventures LLC ("Ventures"), Avenel Financial Services LLC ("Financial"), Chanticleer Holdings Limited ("CHL"), Chanticleer
Holdings Australia Pty, Ltd. ("CHA"), Chanticleer Investment Partners, LLC ("CIP") and DineOut S.A. Ltd. ("DineOut") (Holdings owns 88.99% at September 30,

2011) (collectively the “Company”, "Companies,

"o

we”, or “us”). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in

consolidation. Holdings was organized October 21, 1999, under the laws of the State of Delaware. On April 25, 2005, the Company formed a wholly owned
subsidiary, Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. and on May 2, 2005, Tulvine Systems, Inc. merged with and changed its name to Chanticleer Holdings, Inc.

Information regarding the Company's subsidiaries is as follows:

Advisors was formed as a Nevada Limited Liability Company on January 18, 2007 to manage related companies, Chanticleer Investors, LLC ("Investors
LLC"), Chanticleer Investors II, LLC ("Investors II") and other investments owned by the Company (for additional information, see www.chanticleer
advisors.com);

Ventures was formed as a Nevada Limited Liability Company on December 24, 2008 to provide business management and consulting services to its clients;

CHL is wholly owned and was formed as a Limited Liability Company in Jersey on March 24, 2009 and now owns 100% interest in Hooters SA, GP, the
general partner of the Hooters restaurant franchises in South Africa. CHL owned 50% of Hooters SA, GP until September 2011, when it acquired the
remaining 50%;

DineOut was formed as a Private Limited Liability Company in England and Wales on October 29, 2009 to finance growth activity for the Company around
the world. DineOut's common stock is listed on the Frankfurt stock exchange. As of September 30, 2011, the Company has sold 11.01% of its interest in
DineOut;

CHA was formed on September 30, 2011 in Australia as a wholly-owned subsidiary to invest in Hooters Restaurants in Australia;

AFS was formed as a Nevada Limited Liability Company on February 19, 2009 to provide unique financial services to the restaurant, real estate development,
investment advisor/asset management and philanthropic organizations. AFS's business operation had never been activated and was discontinued in September
2011; and

CIP was formed as a North Carolina Limited Liability Company on September 20, 2011. CIP has not commenced business at September 30, 2011. The
intended use of CIP will be to manage separate and customized investment accounts for investors. The Company plans to register CIP as a registered
investment advisor so that it can market openly to the public.

(2) General - The consolidated financial statements included in this report have been prepared by the Company pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission for interim reporting and include all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) that are, in the opinion of management,
necessary for a fair presentation. These consolidated financial statements have not been audited.
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3)

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations for interim reporting. The Company believes that the
disclosures contained herein are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. However, these financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report for the period ended December 31, 2010, which is included in the Company’s
Form 10-K/A.

Going Concern - At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company had current assets of $464,868 and $158,718; current liabilities of $1,550,668 and
$645,634; and a working capital deficit of $1,085,800 and $486,916, respectively. The Company had a loss of $496,037 during the nine months ended September 30,
2011 and had an unrealized loss from available-for-sale securities of $224,240 resulting in a comprehensive loss of $720,277.

The Company's general and administrative expenses were $769,732 during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $657,249 in the same period of
2010. The Company expects its general and administrative cost to be approximately $250,000 for the remaining quarter of 2011.

As of September 30, 2011, the Company had raised the following amounts from limited partners and made its own LP contributions for its share of cost of the Durban
and Johannesburg restaurants which opened in 2010 and the Cape Town restaurant which opened in June of 2011. The Johannesburg and Cape Town restaurants are
expected to require some additional funding to settle outstanding liabilities, but all are expected to operate with positive cash flow in the future.

Durban Johannesburg Cape Town Total
Other limited partners $ 351,500 $ 412,500 $ 433,250 $ 1,197,250
Chanticleer LP interest 9,299 68,596 183,861 261,756

$ 360,799 $ 481,096 $ 617,111 $ 1,459,006

The Company expects to meet its obligations in the next twelve months with some or all of the following:

During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, the Company executed a line of credit with its bank in the amount of $2,000,000 and at September 30, 2011 had
borrowed $920,000. This line of credit is planned to be used for the buy-out of the other GP in South Africa and for investments in other countries, as
discussed elsewhere herein. The Company plans to sell its common stock in the future with the intended use of the funds to repay existing loans and complete
restaurant expansion plans;

The Company currently is receiving its share of earnings from the Durban and Johannesburg, South Africa restaurants which commenced operations in 2010
and will begin receiving its share of earnings from the Cape Town, South Africa location which opened in June of 2011;

The Company is funding the initial formation of Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. ("CDF"), including the registration of its common stock. The Company
expects to get most of its capital outlay back after the registration statement becomes effective and CDF begins raising funds; and
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The Company has completed a registration statement on Form S-1, which was declared effective on July 14, 2011, to register one Class A Warrant and one
Class B Warrant for each share of the Company issued. The Company raised $20,608, net of legal and professional fees from the sale of the warrants.

If the above events do not occur or if the Company does not raise sufficient capital, substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
exists. These consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made in the financial statements at December 31, 2010 and for the periods ended September 30, 2010 to conform
to the September 30, 2011 presentation. The reclassifications had no effect on net earnings (loss).

Fair value measurements - For financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, fair value is the price we would receive to sell an asset or pay
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction with a market participant at the measurement date. In the absence of active markets for the identical assets or liabilities,
such measurements involve developing assumptions based on market observable data and, in the absence of such data, internal information that is consistent with what
market participants would use in a hypothetical transaction that occurs at the measurement date.

Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions. Preference is given to observable
inputs. These two types of inputs create the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-
derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable.

Level 3 Significant inputs to the valuation model are unobservable.

We maintain policies and procedures to value instruments using the best and most relevant data available. Our investment committee reviews and approves all
investment valuations.

Our available-for-sale equity securities are all valued using Level 1 or Level 2 inputs.

Management has determined that it will not, at this time, adopt fair value accounting for nonfinancial assets or liabilities currently recorded in the consolidated
financial statements, which includes property and equipment, equity method investments, investments carried at cost, deposits and other assets.

New accounting pronouncements - There are several new accounting pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) which are not

yet effective. Each of these pronouncements, as applicable, has been or will be adopted by the Company. At October 31, 2011, none of these pronouncements is
expected to have a material effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company when adopted.
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INVESTMENTS

Trading securities:

Balance, beginning of year

Shares acquired from a related party
Cost of securities sold

Balance, end of period

Proceeds from sale of trading securities
Gain from sale of trading securities

Available for sale securities:

Cost at beginning of year
Transfer from investments accounted for by the cost method
Contributed by the Company's CEO
Received as management fees
Acquired in exchange for DineOut shares
Impairment
Proceeds from sale of securities
Realized loss

Cost at end of period
Unrealized gain (loss)

Total

Investments using the equity method:
Balance, beginning of year
Investments made
Equity in earnings (loss)
Sale of investment
Distributions received

Balance, end of period

INVESTMENTS ARE SUMMARIZED AS FOLLOWS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND DECEMBER 31, 2010.

2011 2010
$ -3 -
- 26,334
- (26,334)
$ -5 =
$ -5 32,917
$ -5 6,583
2011 2010

$ 284473 $ 167,286
= 100,000

125,331 R

= 33,000

- 124,573

(147,973) -
- (41,645)
- (98,741)

261,831 284,473

(156,213) 68,027

$ 105,618  $ 352,500

2011 2010

$ 87,200 $ 82,500
716,756 §

(9,256) 58,337
= (37,500)
(8,140) (16,137)

$ 786,560 $ 87,200
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2011 2010
Investments at cost:

Balance, beginning of year $ 766,598 $ 1,191,598
Impairment - (250,000)
Proceeds from sale of investment - (75,000)
Investment transferred to available-for-sale securities - (100,000)
Total $ 766,598 $ 766,598

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

Our available-for-sale securities consist of the following:

Realized Unrecognized
Holding Holding Fair
Cost Loss Gains (Losses) Value

September 30, 2011
Remodel Auction * $ 900 $ (900) $ - 3 -
North American Energy 126,000 - (98,000) 28,000
North American Energy * 10,500 - (4,500) 6,000
North American Energy 125,331 - (53,713) 71,618
Efftec International, Inc. * 22,500 (22,500) - -
Efftec International, Inc. (warrant) * - - - -
HiTech Stages 124,573 (124,573) - -

$ 409,804 $ (147,973) $ (156,213) $ 105,618
December 31, 2010
Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. * $ 1,286 $ (1,286) $ - S8 -
Remodel Auction * 40,000 (39,100) 100 1,000
North American Energy 126,000 - (98,000) 28,000
North American Energy * 10,500 - (4,500) 6,000
Efftec International, Inc. * 22,500 - 22,500 45,000
Efftec International, Inc. (warrant) * - - 22,500 22,500
HiTech Stages 124,573 - 125,427 250,000

$ 324,859 $ (40,386) $ 68,027 $ 352,500

* Investments acquired in exchange for management services.

HiTech Stages, Ltd. - HiTech Stages, Ltd. ("HiTech") is registered in the UK and is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Symbol "JT2.F"). HiTech, in conjunction with a
manufacturer, has developed a mobile event stage, including multimedia, which can be packed in three 20' x 8' x 8' containers. The stage can be fully assembled in less than one
hour and deployed and operational in ten minutes, including the set-up of all lighting, sound and video systems. This is a revolutionary first in the event business and will rent for
approximately one-half of the cost of conventional stage systems. HiTech is in its initial funding stage and intends to raise up to $5.5 million to finance the manufacture of the first
stage and build the distribution support services.

The Company acquired 275,000 shares of HiTech in exchange for 150,450 shares of DineOut. The transaction was initially recorded as an available-for-sale security at the
average net sales price of DineOut shares of $124,573. At December 31, 2010, HiTech closed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange at €1.00 ($1.34). Due to the start-up status of
HiTech and limited trading volume, the Company valued its investment at $250,000 at December 31, 2010. At September 30, 2011, the value of HiTech had dropped to near zero
and the Company determined that its investment was permanently impaired. Accordingly, the Company fully impaired its investment in HiTech.
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North American Energy Resources, Inc. - During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, the Company exchanged its oil & gas property investments for 700,000 shares of North
American Energy Resources, Inc. ("NAEY") which were valued at $126,000 based on the closing price of NAEY on the date of the trade. The Company initially classified the
NAEY as a trading security when it was acquired based on the Company's intent to begin selling the shares before the end of 2009. In November 2009 the Company decided that it
would not sell the stock in the near term and determined that the investment should be reclassified as an available-for-sale security and classified as non-current, due to
uncertainties about when it would be sold. At the time of the decision to reclassify the investment as available-for-sale, the trading price and value were approximately equal to the
cost. Accordingly, upon the transfer at fair value, the shares were transferred at $126,000, the original cost to the Company. At December 31, 2010, the stock had declined to
$0.04 per share and the Company recorded an unrealized loss of $98,000, based on the Company's determination that the price decline was temporary. At September 30, 2011, the
Company valued the stock at $0.04 with an unrealized loss of $98,000.

During the first quarter of 2010, the Company received an additional 150,000 shares of NAEY in exchange for management services. The shares were initially valued at
$10,500, based on the trading price at the time. At December 31, 2010, the Company recorded an unrealized loss of $4,500 based on the market value of $6,000. At September
30, 2011, the Company recorded an unrealized loss of $4,500 based on a market value of $6,000.

During June 2011, the Company's CEO contributed 1,790,440 shares of NAEY to the Company which was valued at $125,331 based on the trading price at the time. At June
30, 2011, the Company recorded an unrealized loss of $53,713 based on a market value of $71,618. Mr. Pruitt did not receive additional compensation as a result of this transfer.

NAEY appointed a new management team in December 2010. On October 31, 2011, NAEY announced it had agreed to purchase a number of onshore and offshore oil and
gas fields from a private seller for $175 Million in cash, subject to certain purchase price adjustments at closing. The acquisition is subject to due diligence, financing and other
customary closing conditions. Accordingly, the Company determined that the decline was temporary.

EffTec International, Inc. - Effective April 1, 2010, the Company's CEO became a director and the CEO of EffTec International, Inc. The Company received 150,000
shares of EffTec and an option to acquire an additional 150,000 shares at $0.15 per share in exchange for the management services to be provided. The shares were valued at
$22,500 based on the trading price of EffTec at the date of the transaction. At December 31, 2010, the shares were valued at $0.30 per share and the $22,500 increase in value plus
the value of the option of $22,500 was included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). At September 30, 2011 and immediately after, the value of the EffTec stock
dropped to near zero. The Company determined the reduction was other than temporary and impaired its investment to zero.

EffTec has developed a powerful, easy to use, Internet-based chiller tool called EffTrack™ that:

Collects, stores and analyzes chiller operating data,
Calculates and trends chiller performance,
Diagnoses the cause of chiller inefficiencies,
Notifies plant contacts when problems occur,
Recommends corrective actions,

Measures the results of corrective actions and
Provides cost analysis of operational improvements.

Chillers are the single largest energy-using component in most industrial or commercial type facilities using water-cooled chillers for comfort or process cooling and can
consume up to 50% of the facility’s electrical usage. There is a vast array of operational and mechanical problems that occur causing a chiller to lose performance. Even small
inefficiencies can result in thousands of dollars in energy waste.
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Remodel Auction Incorporated - Remodel Auction Incorporated was formed to launch and operate an online listing service for remodeling projects. The Company received
167 shares of Remodel Auction common stock in exchange for providing management services for one year, effective January 1, 2009. We valued our initial investment of 167
shares at 50% of the price Remodel was receiving from third parties for its stock, $125,000. Remodel Auction began trading under the symbol REMD on August 10, 2009, and
the Company received an additional 167 shares of Remodel common stock pursuant to its management agreement. We recorded the additional 167 shares at the trading price of
the stock on that date of $900 per share and recognized $150,000 in management income. Remodel Auction began trading on the Pink Sheets, and the market price was readily
determinable. Therefore, the Company transferred this investment from investments accounted for by the cost method to available-for-sale securities. The market value of
Remodel Auction was approximately the same as the original cost at the time of the transfer. Accordingly, the transfer was recorded at the original cost. At December 31, 2009,
the common stock had declined to $120 per share and the Company determined that the loss was other-than temporary and recorded a loss of $235,000 on its investment in
Remodel Auction common stock. During 2010, the Company recognized an additional impairment of $39,100. At December 31, 2010, the Company valued its investment at
$1,000 and recorded an unrealized gain of $100. At September 30, 2011, the Company valued its investment at $0 and recorded an impairment loss for the remaining balance of
$900.

Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. - During 2007, the Company acquired 342,814 shares of Syzygy in exchange for a management services contract which covered a one-year
period commencing April 1, 2007. The shares were valued at $1.50 per share, a discount to the listed price at that time. Also during 2007, Mr. Pruitt contributed 300,000 shares of
Syzygy Entertainment, Ltd. to the Company, which was valued by the investment committee at $600,000 on the dates contributed. Mr. Pruitt did not receive additional
compensation as a result of the transfers.

As a result of the above transactions, the Company owns 642,814 shares of Syzygy with an original cost of $1,114,221 and a fair value as of September 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010 of $0. The Company considers this decline in value to be other than temporary and has recognized an impairment loss for the full amount of the investment.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

In the third quarter of 2011, the Company determined it would increase the direction of its business on the ownership and operation of Hooters franchises. In this regard, the
Company has made the following investments and is initially directing its efforts in the countries discussed below.

Equity investments consist of the following at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

2011 2010
Carrying value:
South Africa $ 536,560 $ 87,200
Australia 250,000 -
$ 786,560 $ 87,200

Hooters S.A., GP - The Company formed CHL to own the Company's 50% general partner ("GP") interest in Hooters S.A., GP, the general partner of the Hooters' restaurant
franchises in South Africa. During September 2011, the Company purchased the remaining 50% GP interest and now owns 100% of the GP interest. The initial restaurant opened
in December 2009 in Durban, South Africa and operations commenced in January 2010. The second location opened in Johannesburg in June 2010 and a third location opened in
Cape Town in June of 2011. The Company owns the following interest before the acquisition and after the acquisition as of September 30, 2011. After the LPs receive their
investment back plus a 20% return, the LP interest will reduce to 20% and the GP interest will increase to 80% in each of these three restaurants. After completing the acquisition
and effective October 1, 2011, the Company formed a management company to operate the current South African Hooters locations. We own 80% of the management company
and key management company personnel own the remaining 20%.
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Before Acquisition After Acquisition

GP LP Total GP LP Total
Durban 10.00% 1.17% 11.17% 20.00% 1.17% 21.17%
Johannesburg 10.00% 8.32% 18.32% 20.00% 24.70% 44.70%
Cape town 10.00% 15.85% 25.85% 20.00% 32.73% 52.73%

Activity from equity investments in South Africa during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 (the restaurant in Australia is not scheduled to open until
January 2012):

2011 2010
Equity in earnings (loss):
Durban (4,901) 21,023
Johannesburg (9,933) 21,827
Cape Town 5,578 -
$ (9,256) $ 42,850
Distributions:
Durban 6,248 11,834
Johannesburg 1,892 -
Cape Town - -
$ 8,140 $ 11,834

The summarized financial data for our three restaurants in South Africa is as follows for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

2011 2010
Revenues $ 3,364,265 $ 2,696,902
Gross profit 2,122,073 1,715,081
Income from continuing operations 125,730 269,519
Net income 125,730 269,519

Chanticleer Holdings Australia Pty, Ltd ("CHA") - We are partnering with the current Hooters franchisee in Australia in a joint venture. The first Hooters
restaurant under this joint venture (which will be the third Hooters restaurant to be opened in Australia) is expected to open in January 2012 in Campbelltown, a
suburb of Sydney and we will own a 49% interest. We are in discussions to purchase from the same franchisee a partial interest in the first two existing Hooters
locations in the Sydney area. We have invested $250,000 as of September 30, 2011.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE COST METHOD

Investments at cost consist of the following at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

2011 2010
Chanticleer Investors, LLC $ 500,000 $ 500,000
Edison Nation LLC (FKA Bouncing Brain Productions) 250,000 250,000
Chanticleer Investors II 16,598 16,598
$ 766,598 $ 766,598

Chanticleer Investors LLC - On April 18, 2006, the Company formed Investors LLC and sold units for $5,000,000. Investors LLC’s principal asset was a convertible note
in the amount of $5,000,000 with Hooters of America, Inc. (“HOA”), collateralized by and convertible into 2% of Hooters common stock. The original note included interest at
6% and was due May 24, 2009. The note was extended until November 24, 2010 and included an increase in the interest rate to 8%.

The Company owned $1,150,000 (23%) of Investors LLC until May 29, 2009 when it sold 1/2 of its share for $575,000. Under the original arrangement, the Company
received 2% of the 6% interest as a management fee ($25,000 quarterly) and 4% interest on its investment ($11,500 quarterly). Under the extended note and revised operating
agreement, the Company received a management fee of $6,625 quarterly and interest income of $11,500 quarterly. In December 2010, the Company sold an additional $75,000 of
its investment at cost.

On January 24, 2011, Investors LLC and its three partners combined to form HOA Holdings, LLC ("HOA LLC") and completed the acquisition of Hooters of America, Inc.
("HOA") and Texas Wings, Inc. ("TW"). Together HOA LLC has created an operating company with 161 company-owned locations across sixteen states, or nearly half of all
domestic Hooters restaurants and over one-third of the locations worldwide.

The Company received $400,000 in January 2011 for services provided in completion of the purchase of HOA and TW by HOA LLC. The Company has a consulting
agreement with HOA LLC and is scheduled to receive $100,000 in January of each year for director and other services provided by Mr. Pruitt. We have accrued eight months of
the consulting fee in the amount of $66,667 at September 30, 2011.

Investors, LLC had a note receivable in the amount of $5,000,000 from HOA that was repaid at closing. Investors LLC then invested $3,550,000 in HOA LLC
(approximately 3.1%) ($500,000 of which is the Company's share). One of the investors in Investors LLC that owned a $1,750,000 share is a direct investor in HOA LLC and now
carries its ownership in HOA LLC directly. The Company now owns approximately 14% of Investors LLC.

EE Investors, LLC -On January 26, 2006, we acquired an investment in EE Investors, LLC with cash in the amount of $250,000. We acquired 1,205 units (3.378%) in EE
Investors, LLC, whose sole asset is 40% of Edison Nation, LLC (formerly Bouncing Brain Productions, LLC). Edison Nation was formed to provide equity capital for new
inventions and help bring them to market. The initial business plan included developing the products and working with manufacturers and marketing organizations to sell the
products. This has evolved into a less hands-on program which involves selling products with patents to other larger companies and retaining royalties. Edison Nation has now
reached cash flow break-even, and in addition has been retained by a number of companies for which they do product searches to supplement its business. Edison Nation has
repaid the majority of its debt and expects to begin making distributions to its owners during 2011. Based on the current status of this investment, the Company does not consider
the investment to be impaired.
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Chanticleer Investors II - The Company paid $16,598 in professional services to form this partnership. Chanticleer Advisors, LLC acts as the managing general partner and
receives a management fee based on a percentage of profits.
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NOTE 3: LONG-TERM DEBT AND NOTES PAYABLE

Long-term debt and notes payable are summarized as follows.

September 30, December 31,
2011 2010

$2,000,000 line of credit with a bank, interest at Wall Street Journal Prime +0.5% (minimum of 4.5%) payable monthly; due August
20, 2012; collateralized by a certificate of deposit owned by a shareholder; collateralized by substantially all of the Company's assets
and guaranteed by Mr. Pruitt $ 920,000 $ -
Note payable to a bank due in monthly installments of $1,739 including interest at Wall Street Journal Prime + 1% (minimum of
5.5%); remaining balance due August 10, 2013; collateralized by substantially all of the Company's assets and guarnateed by Mr.
Pruitt 244,749 250,000
18% convertible notes payable; interest payable quarterly; due on the six-month anniversary of the date issued; convertible under the
same terms as the subsequent capital raised in connection with a public offering of the Company's securities 375,000 -
10% convertible notes payable; interest payable quarterly; due January 4, 2010; converted into common stock at the rate of $1.75 per
share on March 30, 2011 - 686,500

1,539,749 936,500
Notes payable and current portion of long-term debt 1,301,723 250,000
Long-term debt, less current portion $ 238,026 $ 686,500

The Company pays the shareholder whose certificate of deposit is used as collateral on the $2,000,000 line of credit 1% of the outstanding balance on the line of credit
monthly. In addition, the Company issued warrants to the shareholder, as described in Note 6.

During the three months ended March 31, 2011, the Company issued convertible notes payable with a total principal balance of $25,000 in exchange for an amount due a related
party of $25,000. The convertible notes included interest at 10% per annum, which was payable quarterly beginning on April 1, 2010 until maturity on January 4, 2012. The
convertible notes were convertible into our common stock at the rate of $1.75 per share. Convertible notes with a face value of $711,500 and accrued interest of $10,000 were
converted into 412,286 shares of our common stock on March 30, 2011.
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NOTE 4: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Due from related parties

The Company has earned income from and made advances to related parties. The amounts owed to the Company at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 is as
follows:

2011 2010
Chanticleer Investors, LLC $ - 8 6,035
Chanticleer Investors II, LLC - 46,547
Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. 74,281 30,937
Hoot SAIT LLC 825 -
Other - 750
$ 75,106 $ 84,269

Due to related parties

The Company has received non-interest bearing loans and advances from related parties. The amounts owed by the Company as of September 30, 2011 and December 31,
2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Avenel Financial Group, a company owned by Mr. Pruitt 13,849 46,349
Chanticleer Investors, LLC 4,045 -
Hoot SA I, LLC 15,409 -
Hoot SA III, LLC - 70,000
Chanticleer Foundation 10,750 -
$ 44,053 $ 116,349

$25,000 of the amount due Avenel Financial Group was exchanged for a convertible note payable effective January 1, 2011 and converted to common stock on March 30,
2011.

Management income from affiliates

The Company had management income from its affiliates in the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, as follows:
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2011 2010

Chanticleer Investors, LLC $ - $ 19,875
Chanticleer Investors II, LLC - 11,171
North American Energy Resources, Inc. 1,750 6,125
Efftec International, Inc. - 22,500

$ 1,750 § 59,671

Chanticleer Investors LLC

See Note 2.

Chanticleer Investors II LLC

The Company manages Investors II and earns management income based on a share of any increase in investment value on an annual basis. At June 30, 2011, the Company
had recorded revenue in the amount of $30,726 for management fees based on investment results for the six months ended June 30, 2011. During the quarter ended September 30,
2011, the market experienced a significant decline and the losses in the fund exceeded the profits accrued at June 30, 2011. Accordingly, the Company reversed the $30,726 in
previously accrued revenue at September 30, 2011, resulting in negative revenue during the three months ended September 30, 2011 and no revenue for the nine months ended
September 30, 211. The 2010 amount was the amount earned in 2009 but not recorded until received in 2010. See Note 2.
Chanticleer Dividend Fund, Inc. ("CDF")

On November 10, 2010 the Company formed CDF under the general corporation laws of the State of Maryland. CDF filed a registration statement under Form N-2 to register
as a non-diversified, closed-end investment company in January 2011. The Company, through Advisors, will have a role in management of CDF when its registration statement
becomes effective.

North American Energy Resources, Inc. ("NAEY")

The Company's CEO became CEO and a director of NAEY during 2010 and the Company received 150,000 common shares for management services. The shares were
valued at $10,500, based on the trading price of NAEY at the time. The Company's CEO resigned as CEO of NAEY in December 2010 and remains a director. See Note 2.

Chanticleer Foundation

A non-profit organization formed for charitable purposes.
NOTE 5: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease

Effective August 1, 2009, the Company entered into an office lease agreement for its office with a term of one year and monthly lease payments of $2,100. During the quarter
ended September 30, 2011, the lease term expired and the Company is continuing to occupy the space on a month-to-month basis.
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Hooters South Africa

On April 23, 2009, the Company's wholly owned subsidiary CHL through its 50% ownership of Chanticleer & Shaw Pty, Ltd. entered into a franchise agreement with HOA to
open and operate Hooters restaurants in the Republic of South Africa. The current plan calls for four restaurants in the first phase with three additional locations to be added
later. The first restaurant opened in December 2009 in Durban and commenced operations effective January 1, 2010. A location in Johannesburg opened in June 2010 and the
third location opened in Cape Town during June of 2011. A fourth location at Emperor's Palace Casino in Johannesburg is expected to open in January 2012. Our total expected
cost is $850,000.

During September 2011, the Company acquired the remaining 50% ownership of Chanticleer & Shaw Pty, Ltd. and now owns all of the GP interest and the LP interest listed
in Note 2.

Hooters Australia

We are partnering with the current Hooters franchisee in a joint venture. The first Hooters restaurant under this joint venture (which will be the third Hooters restaurant to be
opened in Australia) is expected to open in January 2012 in Campbelltown, a suburb of Sydney and we will own a 49% interest.

At September 30, 2011, we have advanced $250,000 of our expected total cost of $650,000 for our share of the Campbelltown location cost. We have agreed to participate in
a second location in Australia under the same terms with an anticipated total cost for our share of $650,000.

NOTE 6: STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

The Company has 200,000,000 shares of its $0.0001 par value common stock authorized and 3,011,954 and 2,571,918 shares issued and 2,498,724 and 2,048,688 shares
outstanding at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. There are no options outstanding.

Effective March 23, 2011, the Company's common stock was forward split, 2 shares for each share issued, pursuant to written consent by a majority of the Company's
shareholders. All share references have been adjusted as if the split occurred prior to all periods presented.
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Warrants

On January 6, 2011, the Company filed a Form S-1 Registration Statement under the Securities Act of 1933. The Registration Statement was declared effective on July 14,
2011 and registers one Class A Warrant and one Class B Warrant for each common share of the Company issued. The warrants have a subscription price of $0.04 which entitles
our shareholders to acquire one Class A Warrant which would entitle the holder to acquire one share of our common stock for $2.75 and one Class B Warrant which would entitle
the holder to acquire one share of our common stock for $3.50. The warrants have a five year life. At September 30, 2011, the Company had issued 2,194,509 Class A and Class
B warrants. Proceeds from the offering are summarized as follows.

Proceeds from sales of Class A and Class B warrants $ 87,780
Legal and professional fees incurred for offering (67,172)
$ 20,608

On August 10, 2011, the Company issued two warrants to the shareholder who collateralized the Company's $2,000,000 line of credit discussed in Note 3. The Class A
Warrant is for 200,000 shares exercisable at $2.75 per share for 10 years and the Class B Warrant is for 225,000 shares exercisable at $3.50 per share for 10 years. The warrants
were valued using Black-Scholes at $906,351. This amount will be amortized to interest expense over the ten year life of the warrants. At September 30, 2011, interest expense
includes $12,588 in amortization.

2011 Transactions

On March 30, 2011, the Company issued 412,286 shares of its common stock in exchange for convertible notes payable with a balance of $711,500 and accrued interest of
$19,588.

On July 28, 2011, the Company issued 10,000 shares of its common stock in exchange for consulting services valued at $21,500.

On September 23, 2011, the Company issued 15,000 shares of its common stock in exchange for consulting services to be performed valued at $44,850.

On September 23, 2011, the Company issued 2,750 shares of its common stock in exchange for services performed and valued at $8,223.
2010 Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company issued: 15,572 shares of its common stock valued at $25,000 to two consultants for consulting services; 33,594
shares of its common stock valued at $58,790 for amounts due a related party; and issued 10,000 shares for $17,500 in accounts payable. Effective December 31, 2010, the
Company issued 20,000 shares of its common stock to its outside directors for directors fees valued at $42,500.
NOTE 7: SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS

The Company is organized into two segments as of September 30, 2011.

Management and consulting services ("'Management')

The Company provides management and consulting services for small companies which are generally seeking to become publicly traded. The Company also provides
management and investment services for Investors LLC and Investors II.
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Operation of Hooters restaurants (""Restaurants')

Hooters South Africa -On April 23, 2009, the Company's wholly owned subsidiary CHL through its 50% ownership of Chanticleer & Shaw Pty, Ltd. entered into a
franchise agreement with HOA to open and operate Hooters restaurants in the Republic of South Africa. The current plan calls for four restaurants in the first phase with three
additional locations to be added later. The first restaurant opened in December 2009 in Durban and commenced operations effective January 1, 2010. A location in Johannesburg
opened in June 2010 and the third location opened in Cape Town during June of 2011. A fourth location at Emperor's Palace Casino in Johannesburg is expected to open in
January 2012.

During September 2011, the Company acquired the remaining 50% ownership of Chanticleer & Shaw Pty, Ltd. and now owns all of the GP interest and the LP interest listed
in Note 2.

Hooters Australia - We are partnering with the current Hooters franchisee in a joint venture. The first Hooters restaurant under this joint venture (which will be the third
Hooters restaurant to be opened in Australia) is expected to open in January 2012 in Campbelltown, a suburb of Sydney and we will own a 49% interest.

Financial information regarding the Company's segments is as follows for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.
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Revenues
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization

Profit (loss)
Investments and other

Non-controlling interest

Assets
Investments

Liabilities

Expenditures for non-current assets

Revenues
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization

Profit (loss)
Investments and other

Non-controlling interest

Assets
Investments

Liabilities

Expenditures for non-current assets

Three months ended September 30, 2011

Management
$ (5,726)
$ 41,190
$ 2,512
$ (327,362)
$ 506,838
$ 1,071,938
$ -

Three months ended September 30, 2010
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Management
$ 9,250
$ 27,422
$ 2,713
$  (181,348)
$ 89,336
$ 1,118,615
$ 3,628

Restaurants
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ (20,820)
$ 786,560
$ 716,756
$ -

Restaurants
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ 21,597
$ 76,016
$ 25,000
$ -

$

$

$

Total

(5,726)
41,190

2,512

(348,182)

(147,973)

$

$

$

$

$

$

(496,155)
399

(495,756)

1,293,398
872,216

2,165,614

1,788,694

Total

9,250
27,422

2,713

(159,751)

9,842

$

$

$

$

(149,909)
553

(149,356)

165,352
1,400,571

1,565,923
1,143,615

3,628




Financial information regarding the Company's segments is as follows for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Nine months ended September 30, 2011

Management  Restaurants Total

Revenues $ 468,417 $ - 8 468,417

Interest expense $ 63,876 $ -3 63,876

Depreciation and amortization $ 7,573 $ - 3 7,573
Profit (loss) $  (365,191) $ (9,256) $  (374,447)
Investments and other (122,966)
(497,413)

Non-controlling interest 1,376
$  (496,037)

Nine months ended September 30, 2010

Management  Restaurants Total
Revenues $ 80,504 $ -3 80,504
Interest expense ** $ 104,396 $ -3 104,396
Depreciation and amortization $ 8281 § -3 8,281
Profit (loss) $  (681,141) $ 42850 $  (638,291)
Investments and other 143,464
(494,827)
Non-controlling interest 430
$  (494,397)

** includes $49,994 fro the beneficial conversion feature of converetible notes payable.

102




NOTE 8: DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized in the following tables according to FASB ASC 820 pricing levels.

Fair Value Measurement Using
Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets of other Significant
identical observable Unobservable
Recorded assets inputs Inputs
value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
September 30, 2011
Assets:
Available-for-sale securities $ 105,618 $ 105,618 $ - 3 -
December 31, 2010
Assets:
Available-for-sale securities $ 352,500 $ 101,500 $ 251,000 $ -

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company's available-for-sale equity securities were valued using Level 1 and Level 2 inputs as summarized above. Level
1 inputs are based on unadjusted prices for identical assets in active markets that the Company can access. Level 2 inputs are based on quoted prices for similar assets other than
quoted prices in Level 1, quoted prices in markets that are not yet active, or other inputs that are observable or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of the assets. The Company recorded an other than temporary decline in available-for-sale securities in the amount of $147,973 at
September 30, 2011.

The Company does not have any investments that are measured on a recurring basis using Level 3 inputs.
Certain assets are not carried at fair value on a recurring basis, including investment accounted for under the equity and cost methods. Accordingly, such investments are only
included in the fair value hierarchy disclosure when the investment is subject to re-measurement at fair value after initial recognition and the resulting re-measurement is reflected

in the consolidated financial statements.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company considered a cost basis investment to be impaired and recognized an impairment loss of $250,000 in the consolidated statement of
operations. This impairment was determined using Level 3 inputs to determine the estimated fair value, which was determined to be less than the recorded amounts.

See Note 2 for further details of the Company's investments.
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PART II
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS
ITEM 13. OTHER EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION.

The following table shows the costs and expenses payable by the Company in connection with the registration statement.

SEC Registration Fee $ 4,425.57
FINRA Filing Fee $ 2,363
Blue Sky Fees and Expenses $ 60,000
Underwriter’s Non-accountable Expense allowance $ 300,000
Printing Expenses $ 20,000
Accounting Fees and Expenses $ 20,000
Legal Fees and Expenses $ 150,000
Miscellaneous Expenses $ 5,000
Total $

All expenses, other than the SEC and FINRA filing fees, are estimated.
ITEM 14. INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS.

Our officers and directors are indemnified as provided by the Delaware General Corporate Law and our bylaws. Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law provides
that a corporation may indemnify directors and officers as well as other employees and individuals against expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid
in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with any threatened, pending or completed actions, suits or proceedings in which such person is made a
party by reason of such person being or having been a director, officer, employee or agent of our company. The Delaware General Corporation Law provides that Section 145 is

not exclusive of other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

Our bylaws provide that we shall indemnify our directors and officers, our employees and other agents, to the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law
and that we shall pay the expenses incurred in defending any proceeding in advance of its final disposition. However, the payment of expenses incurred by a director or officer in
advance of the final disposition of the proceeding will be made only upon the receipt of an undertaking by the director or officer to repay all amounts advanced if it should be
ultimately determined that the director or officer is not entitled to be indemnified.

Section 102(b)(7) of the Delaware General Corporation Law permits a corporation to provide in its certificate of incorporation that a director of the corporation shall not be
personally liable to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability (i) for any breach of the director’s duty of
loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) for unlawful
payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases, redemptions or other distributions, or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.
Our certificate of incorporation provides for such limitation of liability.

We do not currently maintain standard policies of insurance under which coverage is provided (a) to our directors, officers, employees and other agents against loss arising from
claims made by reason of breach of duty or other wrongful act, and (b) to us with respect to payments which may be made by us to such officers and directors pursuant to the above

indemnification provision or otherwise as a matter of law, although we may do so in the future.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers and control persons pursuant to the foregoing provisions or
otherwise, we have been advised that, in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public policy, and is, therefore, unenforceable.
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ITEM 15. RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES.
During the three months ended September 30, 2009, the Company sold 38,535 shares of its common stock for net proceeds of $76,578 pursuant to a Reg S offering.

During the three months ended December 31, 2009, the Company issued 261,465 shares of its common stock valued at $2.05 per share based on the trading price on the issuance
date, October 29, 2009, to DineOut for 4,000,000 shares of DineOut common stock. DineOut is a wholly owned subsidiary at December 31, 2009 and the value of these shares of
$536,003 is included in treasury stock at December 31, 2009 upon consolidation.

During the three months ended June 30, 2010, the Company issued 16,797 shares of its common stock to a related party in exchange for $58,790 in loans previously made to the
Company. The shares were sold pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(2) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

During the three months ended September 30, 2010, the Company issued 3,500 shares of its common stock to a consultant in exchange for a one year consulting agreement valued
at $10,000. The shares were sold pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(2) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

In December 2010, the Company issued 4,286 shares of its common stock to a consultant in exchange for a six-month consulting agreement valued at $15,000. The shares were
sold pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(2) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

During the third quarter of 2011, the Company entered into three convertible notes with three accredited investors for an aggregate principal amount of $375,000. The convertible
notes are unsecured, and have a six month term, and bear interest at an 18% annual interest rate, payable quarterly. The notes were sold pursuant to an exemption from registration
under Section 4(2) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

On August 10, 2011, the Company issued 10 year Common Stock Warrants to an accredited investor, 200,000 at $2.75 and 225,000 at $3.50, as a facilitation fee for guaranteeing

the Company’s bank line of credit. The warrants were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(2) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended.
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ITEM 16. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

The following exhibits are included herein or incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit

Number Description

1.1 Form of Underwriting Agreement (1)

3.1(a) Articles of Incorporation (2)

3.1(b) Certificate of Merger, filed May 2, 2005 (3)

3.1(c) Certificate of Amendment, filed July 16, 2008 (1)

3.1(d) Certificate of Amendment, filed March 18, 2011 (4)

32 Bylaws (2)

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate

42 Form of Unit Certificate (1)

43 Form of Warrant Certificate (1)

44 Form of Warrant Agreement (1)

4.5 Form of Representative’s Warrant (1)

5 Legal opinion of Counsel (1)

10.1 Revolving Credit Facility dated August 10, 2011 between the Company and Paragon Commercial Bank
10.2 Form of Franchise Agreement between the Company and Hooters of America, LLC
21 Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Roetzel & Andress LPA (1)

232 Consent of Creason & Associates, P.L.L.C.

(1) To be filed via amendment to this Form S-1.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form 10-SB filed on February 15, 2000.

(3) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 15, 2011.
(4) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 18, 2011.

ITEM 17. UNDERTAKINGS

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

1. To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
@) to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act;
(ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment

thereof) which, individually or together, in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any
deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b)
if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the “Calculation of
Registration Fee” table in the effective registration statement; and

(iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to
such information in the registration statement;
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2. That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration
statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof;

3. To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities that remain unsold at the termination of this offering;
4. That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act to any purchaser:
@) If the registrant is relying on Rule 430B:
(A) Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as of the date the filed

prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and

3B) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in reliance on Rule 430B
relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for the purpose of providing the information required by section 10(a) of the Securities Act
of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness
or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any
person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the
registration statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or
deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of
contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the
registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date; or

(ii) If the registrant is subject to Rule 430C, each prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) as part of a registration statement relating to an offering, other than
registration statements relying on Rule 430B or other than prospectuses filed in reliance on Rule 430A, shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration
statement as of the date it is first used after effectiveness. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration
statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement
will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such first use, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that
was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such date of first use.

5. That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities:
The undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the

underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the
undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:
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1) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;

(ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by the undersigned
registrant;

(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned registrant or its securities
provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

@iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

6. The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to provide to the underwriter at the closing specified in the underwriting agreements, certificates in such
denominations and registered in such names as required by the underwriter to permit prompt deliver to each purchaser.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Act") may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant
pursuant to the foregoing provisions or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against
public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant
of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director,
officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling
precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question of whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by
the final adjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in Charlotte, North Carolina, on December 2, 2011.

CHANTICLEER HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Michael D. Pruitt
Michael D. Pruitt
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

The registrant and each person whose signature appears below hereby authorizes the agent for service named in this registration statement, with full power to act alone, to file one
or more amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement, which amendments may make such changes in this registration statement as such agent
for service deems appropriate, and the registrant and each such person hereby appoints such agent for service as attorney-in-fact, with full power to act alone, to execute in the name
and in behalf of the registrant and any such person, individually and in each capacity stated below, any such amendments to this registration statement.

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES

TITLE

DATE

/s/ Michael D. Pruitt

Michael D. Pruitt

/s/ Michael Carroll

Michael Carroll

/s/ Brian Corbman

Brian Corbman

/s/ Paul 1. Moskowitz

Paul 1. Moskowitz

/s/ Keith Johnson

Keith Johnson

Chairman of the Board of Directors,

CEO, CFO and Director

December 2, 2011

(Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description

1.1 Form of Underwriting Agreement (1)

3.1(a) Articles of Incorporation (2)

3.1(b) Certificate of Merger, filed May 2, 2005 (3)

3.1(c) Certificate of Amendment, filed July 16, 2008 (1)

3.1(d) Certificate of Amendment, filed March 18, 2011 (4)

32 Bylaws (2)

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate

42 Form of Unit Certificate (1)

43 Form of Warrant Certificate (1)

44 Form of Warrant Agreement (1)

4.5 Form of Representative’s Warrant (1)

5 Legal opinion of Counsel (1)

10.1 Credit Facility dated August 10, 2011 between the Company and Paragon Commercial Bank
10.2 Form of Franchise Agreement between the Company and Hooters of America, LLC
21 Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Roetzel & Andress LPA (1)

232 Consent of Creason & Associates, P.L.L.C.

(1) To be filed via amendment to this Form S-1.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form 10-SB filed on February 15, 2000.
(3) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 15, 2011.
(4) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 18, 2011.
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PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK
3535 Glenwood Avenue, Raleigh, North Carolina

COMMERCIAL NOTE

Loan Officer: CWB,

arfes W. Bartz, @ President
Loan Mumber: # 3330000580

Date:  August 10, 2011 Bomrower: Chanticleer Holdings, Inc

Loan Amount; 5$2,000,000.00 ] Revolving Line of Credit

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, joinlly and severally, promisa(s) lo pay 1o PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK ("Bank®), or
arder, the sum of Two Millien and 00/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00) or so much as shall have been disbursed from time to time and

remains unpaid, including or together with interest at the rale and payable in the manner hereinafter stated. Principal and interest shall
be payable at Bank al the address indicated above, or such other place as the holder of this Nole may designate.

INTEREST RATE

All payments made on this Nete will be applied first to accrued interest and then to principal. Interest will acerue on the unpaid principal
balance at the rate set forth below until maturity and will accrue on any unpaid past due interest before maturity and on any unpaid
balance after maturity as set forth on the reverse side of this Mate,

Interest payable on this Note will be at the per annum rate of:

[ Wall Street Journal Prime + 0.5% with a floor rate of 4.5%

As used in this Note “Wall Street Joumnal Prime” shall mean the prime rate most recently published in the “Money Rates” section
specified in the Eastern Edition of the Wal Street Journal. provided that if more than one such “Prime Rate” is published, the higher of
such rate shall be applicable.

Interest will be calculated on the basis of. [£] Actual days/360 day year

All rates except the “Fixed” rate will be subject ta change without prior natice at the sale option of Bank and will be effective:
[E As of the date the base rate (Prime or Treasury Bill) changes

Effect of Variable Rate: A change in the interest rate will have the following effect on the payments:
[ The amount of each scheduled payment will change,

PRINCIPAL PAYMENT TERMS
Principal (and interast if indicated under Interest Payment Terms below) shall be payable as follows:

[E Payable in one single payment on August 10, 2012 (herein referred to as “Maturity”).

INTEREST PAYMENT TERMS
Interest shall be payable in arrears, as follows:

[# Payable monthly beginning September 10, 2011 and consecutively on the same calendar day of each such calendar period
thereafier.

ADVANCES
[ See Advance Addendum (Exhibit A) attached hereto and made a part hereof for an explanation of the line of credit advance terms
and conditions.

LATE CHARGE

If any scheduled payment is in default 15 days or more (unless interest on this Nole is payable in advance, in which case such period
shall be 30 days or more), Obligors agree to pay a late charge equal to 6% of the amount of the paymen that is in default, but not more
than maximum amount allowed by applicable law.

PREPAYMENT

[ This Note may be prepaid in whole or in part any time without premium,

For partial prepayments, the Bank may, in its sole discretion, apply the prepayment to principal and recalculate the installment payment
amount so that equal payments of principal and inlerest will cause this Promissory Note to be paid in full with the same Maturity date
(set forth abowve). If the Bank decides not to recalculate the instaliment payment amount, then such prepayment will ba applied to the
mast remote installment then unpaid and shall not otherwise reduce the instaliment payments coming due prior thereto,

COLLATERAL

[ The Bank and undersigned have entered into a Commercial Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement’) dated August 10, 2011,
[ SECURED. This Note is secured by collateral described in the following security instruments:

[E] Assignment of Deposit dated August 10, 2011, Money Market Account Mo. 651588 in the name of Michael
Winder Haley Revocable Trust Dated 12/13/2008, Michael Winder Haley Trustee, in the amount of Two
Million and 00/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00).




Cross-Collateralized with Paragon Commercial Bank Loan # 9330000455 to Borrower dated July 15, 2009, secured by:

B Security Agreement dated July 15, 2009 and perfected by the filing of UCC-1 Financing Statement(s) with North
Carglina Secretary of State covering: a blanket first priority lien on all furnishings, equipment, inventary and
other items and types of persanal properly now owned or hereafter acquired, all the Borrower's general
intangibles, Instruments and or investment documents and accounts receivable, whether presently
existing or arising in the future, and all the proceeds and products from the foregoing (including insurance
proceeds). In addition to the foregoing, the collateral shall also include the Borrower's 11.5% interest in
Chanticleer Investors, LLC sole asset a Convertible Secured Promissory Note dated May 24, 2006
between Robert H. Brooks and any and all amendments thereto ("Security Agreement”).

1) At maturity of this Mote, or upon default, Bank |s authonzed and empowered 1o apply to the payment hereaf, any and all
money deposited in Bank in the name of or to Ihe credit of each party, without advance nofice, and is authorized to offset any
obligation of Bank ta any party 1o the payment heraof.

2) Collateral securing ofher loans of each party with Bank may also secure this loan and this loan may also be supported by
separate Guaranty Agreemant(s).

SIGNATURES
The undersigned parties are jointly and severally lable for the payment of this Note and have subscribed their names hereto. The
provisions printed below are a part of this Note. The provisions of this Note are binding on the heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assigns of sach and every party and shall inure to the benefit of the holder, its successors and assigns. This Note is
executed under the seal of each of the parties and of the endorsers, if any.

CHANTICLEER HOLDINGS, INC.

Bie W (SEAL)

: Michael D. Pruitt, President/CEQICFO

Additional Terms and Provisions of Note

DEFAULT. Any of the following shall constitute an event of default: (1) the failure to make when due any payment described herein,
whether of principal. interest, or otherwise; (2) the failure of any party herato to parform any of the terms and conditions written into, the
Loan Agraement of securily instrument(s) securing this Mote of any guaranty agreement or security instrument{s) securing such
guaranty agreement which apply o this Nate; (3) the death, dissolution, merger, consolidation or lermination of existence of any party;
or if amy party is a corporation with thirty-five (35) or fewer shareholders, the aggregate transter(s) of voling shares in such party
whereby persons or entities not owning on the date hereof, singly of in the aggregate, 50% or more of the voting shares of such party,
become the owner(s), singly or in the aggregate, of 50% or more of such voting shares, or if such party is a limited or general
partnership, any change in general partnership interest{s) in such party; (4) the application for the appaintment of a receiver for any
party or the filing of a pelition under any provisions of the Bankruptcy Code or Act by or against any parly or any assignment for the
benefit of creditors by or against any party; (5) the failure of any party to fumish from time to time, at Bank’s reques!, financial
infarmation requested with respect to such party without undue delay; (G) a determination by Bank that it deems itself insecure or that
an adverse change in the financial condition of any party has occurred since the date hereof: (7) the failure of any party 1o perform any
other cbligation to Bank: (8) the termination of any guaranty agreement which applies o this Note.
LATE CHARGES, EXPENSES AND ACCELERATION. Each party agrees to pay any late charges permitted by applicable law that
Bank may, in its discretion, charge for late payments. If this Note is not paid in full whenever it becomes due and payable, each party
agrees to pay all costs and expenses of collection, including a reasonable attomey’'s fee up 1o the amount of filleen (15) percent of the
then outstanding balance. Upon the occurmence of an evenlt of default, the entire unpaid balance of this Note shall, at the option of
Bank, become immediately due and payable, without notice or demand. Failure lo exercise the oplion to accelerate shall not constilute
a waiver of the right to exercise same in the event of any subsequent default,
INTEREST. Upon the nonpayment of any payment of interest described harein, the Bank, at its option and without accelerating this
Nofe, may accrue interest on such unpaid interest at the rate(s) applicable hereundes from time to time until maturity of this Note. Afler
maturity of this Note, whether by acceleration or otherwise, interest will accrue on the unpaid principal of this Mote and any accrued but
unpaid interest shall bear interest at the lesser of (1) the highest contract rate, if any, permitted by applicable law (i) a rate equal to 18%
per annum. Such interest rate shall apply both before and after any judgment herean,
WAIVER. Each party waives presentment, demand, protest and notice of dishonor, waives any rights which they may have lo require
Bank lo proceed against any other person or property, agrees that withoul notice lo any party and withoul affecting any party’s liability,
Bank, at any time or times, may grant extensions of the time for payment or other indulgences to any party or permit the renewal,
amendment or medification of this Note, the Loan Agreement or any security instrument(s), or permit the subsiitution, exchange or
release of any security for this Mote and may add or release any party primarily o secondarily iable, and agrees that Bank may apply
all moneys made availabie to it from any part of the proceeds from the disposition of any security for this Note either to this Note or to
any other obligation of any of the parties to Bank, as Bank may elect from time to time.
PARTIES. Each signatory of Ihis Mote is herein sometimes referred 1o as "Party” or collectively as “Parties” and each agrees to be
liable hereunder jointly and severally. This Note shall apply to and bind each party's heirs, personal representatives, successors and
assigns. All references in this Note to Bank shall include the holder hereof and this Note shall inure to the benefit of any holder, its
successors and assigng,
PARTIES' DUE DILIGENCE. The undersignad acknowledge and represent that they have refied upen their own due diligence in
P
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Cross-Collateralized with Paragon Commercial Bank Loan # 9930000455 1o Borrower dated July 15, 2009, secured by:

[ Security Agreement dated July 15, 2009 and perfected by the filing of UCC-1 Financing Statement(s) with North
Carolina Secretary of State covering: a blanket first priority lien on all furnishings, equipment, inventory and
other items and types of parsonal property now owned or hereafter acquired, all the Borrower's general
intangibles, Instruments and or investment documents and accounts receivable, whether presently
existing or arising in the future, and all the proceeds and products from the foregoing (including insurance
proceeds). In addition to the foregoing, the collateral shall also include the Borrower's 11.5% interest in
Chanticleer Investors, LLC sole asset: a Convertible Secured Promissory Note dated May 24, 2006
between Robert H. Brooks and any and all amendments thereto ("Security Agreement”).

1) At maturity of this Note, or upon default, Bank is authorized and empowered to apply to the payment herecf, any and all
maney deposited in Bank in the name of or to the credit of each party, without advance notice, and is authorized to offset any
obligation of Bank lo any party to the payment hereal.

2) Collateral securing other leans of each party with Bank may also secure this loan and this loan may also be supported by
separate Guaranty Agreemeni(s).

SIGNATURES
The undersigned parlies are jointly and severally liable for the paymant of this Note and have subscribed their names herelo. The
provisions printed balow are a part of this Note. The prowisions of this Mote are binding on the heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assigns of each and every party and shall inure to the benefit of the holder, its successors and assigns, This Note is
executed under the seal of each of the parlies and of the endarsers, if any.

CHANTICLEER HOLDINGS, INC.

: Michael D. Pruitt, President/CEQ/CFQ

Additional Terms and Provisions of Note

DEFAULT. Any of the following shall constitute an event of default: (1) the fallure to make when due any payment described herein,
whether of principal, interest, or otherwise; (2) the failure of any party hereto to perform any of the terms and conditions written into, the
Loan Agreement or security instrument{s) securing this Note or any guaranty agreement or security instrument(s) securing such
guaranty agreement which apply 1o this Note; (3) the death, dissolution, merger, consolidation or lermination of existence of any pary;
or if any party is a corporation with thirty-five (35) or fewer shareholders, the aggregate transfer(s) of vofing shares in such party
whereby persons or entities not owning on the date hereof, singly or in the aggregate, 50% or maore of the voting shares of such party,
become the owner(s), singly or in the aggregate, of 50% of more of such voling shares_ or if such party is a limited or genaral
partnership, any change in general partnership interest(s) in such party; (4) the application for the appointment of a receiver for any
party or the filing of a petition under any provisions of the Banknuplcy Code or Act by or against any parly or any assignment for the
benefit of creditors by or against any party, (5) the failure of any party to furnish from time to time, at Bank's reques!, financial
information requested with respect to such party without undue delay; (6) a determination by Bank that it deems itself insecure or that
an adverse change in the financial condition of any party has occurred since the date hereof; (7) the failure of any party to perform any
other abligation 1o Bank: {8) the termination of any guaranty agreement which applies to this Note.

LATE CHARGES, EXPENSES AND ACCELERATION. Each party agrees to pay any late charges permitted by applicable law that
Bank may, in its discretion, charge for late payments. If this Nole is not paid in full whenever it becomes due and payable, each party
agrees to pay all costs and expenses of collection, including a reasonable attomey’s fee up to the amount of fifteen {15) percent of the
then outstanding balance. Upon the coccurrence of an event of default, the entire unpaid balance of this Note shall, at the option of
Bank, become immediately due and payable, without notice or demand. Failure 1o exercise the option to accelerate shall not constitute
a waiver of the right to exercise same in the event of any subsequent dafault.

INTEREST. Upon the nonpayment of any payment of interest described herein, the Bank, at its option and without accelerating this
Mote, may accrue interest on such unpaid inferest al the rate(s) applicable hereunder from time to time until maturity of this Note, After
maturity of this Note, whether by acceleration or otherwise, inlerest will acerue on the unpaid principal of this Note and any accrued but
unpaid interest shall bear interast at the lesser of (1) the highest contract rate, if any, permitted by applicable law (i) a rate equal to 18%
per annum. Such interest rate shall apply both before and afier any judgment hereon.

WAIVER. Each party waives presentment, demand, protest and notice of dishonor, waives any rights which they may have to require
Bank to proceed against any other person or property, agrees that without notice to any party and without affecting any party's liability,
Bank, at any time or times, may grant extensions of the time for payment or other indulgences to any party or permit the renewal,
amendment or modification of this Note, the Loan Agreement or any security instrument(s), of permit the substitution, exchange or
release of any security for this Note and may add or release any party primarily or secondarily liable, and agrees that Bank may apply
all moneys made available to it from any part of the proceeds from the disposition of any security for this Note either to this Note or to
any other cbligation of any of the parties to Bank, as Bank may elect from time to time.

PARTIES. Each signatory of this Note is herein sometimes referred to as "Party” or collectively as “Parties” and each agrees o be
liable hersunder jointly and severally. This Mole shall apply o and bind each party's heirs, personal representatives, successors and
assigns. All references in this Note to Bank shall include the holder hereof and this Note shall inure to the benafit of any holder, its
successors and assigns.,

PARTIES' DUE DILIGENCE. The undersigned acknowledge and represent that they have relied upon their own due diligence in
making their own independent evaluations of the purposes for which the proceeds of this Note will be used and of the business affairs
and financial condition of all parties hereto, and they will confinue to be responsible for making their own appraisals of such matters.
The undersigned have not relied upon and will not hereafter rely upon Bank for such information for such appraisal or other assessment
or review and, further, will not rely upon any such information which may now or hereafter be prepared by Bank.

CREDIT INVESTIGATION. The Bank is authorized to investigate from time to time the credit of each party and lo answer questions
relating to the Bank's credit experience with each party.




PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK
ASSIGNMENT OF DEPOSIT

Date:  August 10, 2011

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned (jointly and severally) hereby selljs), assign{s) and transfer(s) to PARAGON
COMMERCIAL BANK, Raleigh, North Carolina, and its successors and assigns (hereinafter "BANK”), the account(s)
(hereinafter “Account(s)”) andior instrument(s) (hereinafter “Instrument(s)”) identified below, together with any renewals
thereof or substitutions andlor proceeds therefor:

[ Account No(s): Money Market Account No. 651588 and all associated CDARS certificates of deposits in
the name of Michael Winder Haley Revocable Trust Dated 12/13/2008, Michael Winder Haley Trustee.

Amount of Funds Assigned $2,000,000.00

And all claims, rights, options, privileges, title, and interest therein and thereunder including, without imitation, all interest
and other proceeds eamed thereon. The exercise of any right, option, privilege, or power given herein to BANK shall be at
the option of BANK.

The above Account(s) andior Instrument(s) is(are) maintained in or were issued by:

] Paragon Commercial Bank

This Assignment is given as security for a loan made by BANK to Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. (hereinafier “Deblor(s)") in
the amount of Two Million and 00/100 U.S. Dollars ($2,000,000.00).

Loan Account # 9930000580
{SEE PAGE TWOQ FOR ADDITIOMAL AGREEMENTS OF PARTIES)
IN'WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor has hereunto executed this Assignment under Assignor's hand and seal (or, if Assignor

15 a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other legal entity, it has caused this Assignment 1o be executed
under seal by its duly authorized officer or partner) as of the day and year first above written.

Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. Grantor

By: (SEAL) By: (SEAL)
Michael D. Pruitt, President/CEQ/CFO Michael Winder Haley, Trustee

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT

We acknowledge receipt of notice and copy of the foregoing Assignment as collateral for obligations due Paragon
Commercial Bank, Raleigh, Morth Carolina (hereinafter "BANK").

As lo any Account{siInstrument(s) identified above, our records indicate the balance in Accountinstrument Mumber(s)
651588 in the name of Michael Winder Haley to be in the amount of $2,000,000.00 as of this date. We further certify
that any Account{sMinstrument(s) identified above is{are) valid and do(es) evidence our abligation(s) to the Assignons)
execuling said Assignment. Our records do nol disclose any liens, claims, or encumbrances agains! said
Account(s)instrument(s) except NIA.

We have compared the signature(s) appearing on the Assignment filed by BANK with us with the signature(s) on our
records, and the same comparne(s) correctly therewith and is {are) sufficient to authorize withdrawal of funds from said

sffumeni(s) and for all purposes with respect to said Account(s)finstrument(s). We will be guided by the above
Assignmep untildecept of further contrary written nolice or instructions from BANK.

By (SEAL) Date: August 10, 2011

Earies w. Bartz, Sjy(or Vice President

” RELEASE OF ASSIGNMENT

Paragon Commercial Bank (hereinafter "BANK’) hereby releases and lerminates its interest in the above described
Account{s)Instrument(s), this the day of , and if the above described Account(s)/Instrument(s) is(are)
malntained with BANK, we certify thal this Assignment has been terminated on our racards maintained regarding same. If
the Accountis)Instrument(s) is(are) not maintained with BANK, you are encouraged to present this document to the
institution in which same is(are) maintained and request their records reflect this release of assignment,

Paragon Commercial Bank

By: (SEAL) Date:
{CDO Signature)

By: (SEAL) Date:
(Laan Documentation Spacialist)




PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK
ASSIGNMENT OF DEPOSIT

Date:  August 10, 2011

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned (jointly and severally) hereby sell{s), assign{s) and iransfer(s) to PARAGON
COMMERCIAL BANK, Ralaigh, Morth Carolina, and its successors and assigns (hereinafter “BANK"), the account{s)
(hereinafter “Account{s)”) andior instrumeni(s) (hereinafter “Instrument(s)”) identifed below, togethes with any renewals
thereof or substilutions andfor proceeds therefor:

[ Account Ma(s): Money Market Account No. 651588 and all associated CDARS certificates of deposits in
the name of Michael Winder Haley Revocable Trust Dated 12/13/2008, Michael Winder Haley Trustee.

Amount of Funds Assigned $2,000,000.00

And all claims, rights, options, privileges. litle, and interest therein and thereunder including, without limitation, all interest
and other proceeds eamed thereon. The exercise of any right, oplion, privilege, or power given herein to BANK shall be at
the option of BANK.

The above Accownt(s) andfor Instrument(s) is(are) maintained in or were issued by:

] Paragen Commercial Bank

This Assignment is given as security for a loan made by BANK to Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. (hereinafter *Debtor{s)") in
the amcunt of Two Million and 001100 U.S. Dollars ($2,000,000.00).

Loan Accournt & 9930000580
(SEE PAGE TWO FOR ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OF PARTIES)
INWITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor has hereunto executed this Assignment under Assignor's hand and seal (or, if Assignor

is a corporalion, partnership, limited liability company or other legal entity, it has caused this Assignment to be executed
under seal by its duly authorized officer or partner) as of tha day and year first above written.

Chanticlear Holdings, Inc. Grantor

(SEAL) By {SEAL)

Biy:
Michael D. Pruitt, President/CEQ/CFO Michael Winder Haley, Trustee

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT

We acknowledge receipt of nofice and copy of the foregaing Assignment as collateral for obligations due Paragon
Commercial Bank, Raleigh, Morth Carplina (hereinafter "BANK"),

As to any Account{s)instrument(s) identified abave, our records indicate the balance in Accountinstrument Number(s)
651588 in the mame of Michael Winder Halay fo be in the amount of $2,000,000,00 as of this date. We further certify
that any Account{s)instrument(s) identified above is(are) valid and do(es) evidence our cbligation(s) to the Assignor(s)
executing said Assignment. Our records do nol disclose any liens, claims, er encumbrances against said
Account(siinstrument(s) except NiA

‘W have compared the signature(s) appearing on the Assignment filed by BANK with us with the signature(s) on our
compare(s) comectly therewith and is (are} sufficient to aulhorize withdrawal of funds from said

t(z) and for all purposes with respect lo said Account{spinstrument(s). We will be guided by the abava
t of further contrary written notice or instructions from BANK.

(SEAL) Date: August 10, 2011

/ RELEASE OF ASSIGNMENT

Paragon Commercial Bank (herainafter "BANK") hereby releases and terminates its interast in the abowe described
Accountisiinstrumentis). this the dav of . and if the above described Accountisi/insirumentis) islare)




PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK
ASSIGNMENT OF DEPOSIT

Date:  August 10, 2011

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned (jointly and severally) hereby sell{s). assignis) and transfar(s) to PARAGON
COMMERCIAL BANE, Raleigh, Norh Carolina, and its successors and assigns (herainafter "BANK), the account{s)
(hereinafter “Account(s)") andior instrument(s) (hereinafter “Instrument(s)") identified balow, logether with any renewals
thereof or substitutions andior proceeds therefor:

[ Accoumt Nofs): Money Market Account No. 651588 and all associated CDARS certificates of deposits in
the name of Michael Winder Haley Revocable Trust Dated 12/13/2008, Michael Winder Haley Trustee.

Amount of Funds Assigned $2,000,000.00

And all claims, rights, options, prvileges, title, and interest therein and thereunder including, without Bmitation, all interest
and othes proceeds eamed thereon. The exercise of any nght, option, privlege, or power given herein to BANK shall be at
the option of BANK.

Thie above Account(s) and'or Instrument(s) is{ane) maintained in of were issued by

B Paragon Commercial Bank

This Assignment is given as security for a lean made by BANK to Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. (hereinafter "Debtor(s)”) in
the amount of Two Million and 00/100 U.S. Dollars ($2,000,000.00).

Loan Account # 9930000580
(SEE PAGE TWO FOR ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OF PARTIES)

IN WITMESS WHEREOQF, Assignor has hereunto this Assh under Assignor's hand and seal for, if Assignor
i5 a corporation, parnnership, limited Kability company or other legal entity, i has caused this Assignment 10 be exécuted
under seal by its duly avthorized officer or pariner) as of the day and year first abowe written.

Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. Grantor M M
By. (SEAL) Br /[/ (SEAL}

Michael D. Pruitt, President/CEQICFQ Michael Winder Haley, Trustee

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT

We acknowledge recept of nolice and copy of the foregoing Assignment as collateral for obligations due Paragon
Commercial Bank, Raleigh, North Caralina (hereinafter “BAMEK)

AS 10 any Account{sMinstrement(s) identified above, our records indicate the balance in Accountinstrument Mumber(s)
651588 in the name of Michael Winder Haley 1o be m the amount of $2,000,000.00 as of this date  We further cartily
that any Accouni(s)instrument{s) identified above is{are) valid and do(es) evidence our obligation(s) (o the Assignor(s)
executing said Assignment. Our records do not disclose any Bens, claims, or encumbrances against said
AccountisMInstrument(s) except NIA.

We have compared the signature{s) appearing on the Assignment fled by BANK with us with the ssgnalure{s) on our
records, and the same compane(s) cormectly therewith and is (are) sufficsent to authorize withdrawal of funds from said
Account(s)instument(s) and for all purposes with respect to said Account{s)/instrumentis). We will be guided by the above
Assignment untilfeceipl of further CONMEATY WITEN NOLGE OF ISIUEtoNS from BANK.

Paragon cfmmmwﬁy

By: | iRt

(SEAL) Date: August 10, 2011
Eharles W. Bartz, S}p‘lﬂr‘d‘m President

RELEASE OF ASSIGNMENT

Paragon Commercial Bank (hereinafter “BANK") hereby releases and terminates its interast in the above described
Account(spinstrument(s), this the day of . and if the above descrbed Account(s)instrument(s) is(are)




ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OF PARTIES

{Continued from Page Ona)
This Assignment shall be a continuing ene and shall nemain effective for any i W5). ). AT of
modificabon(s) of the above loanis). It further shall secure any other oblgations andior habdiies. of any ang of maf of I abowe named
DEBTOR(S) to PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK, cue or 1o becoma dus, whelher now h

oW axeEling of arising. and h
evidented or acquired, whether direct, indirect, absolute or contingent and whaether the individual, several, or jint and several obligation|s)
or liabilty(ies) of sad DEBTOR(S).

The Assgnos) hersby imevocably authorzeds) and empowen(s) sad PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK, at any b in its own namse or in
the nams of the Assignor(s), to demand, apply for withdrawal, recaive and give Bcquittance for any and all moneys and claims for moneys
hereby assigned and 10 exercise any and all nghts and privileges and recerve all benefits (including without limitation eamed intenest)
accorded by 584 Accountis)inairument(s) and o execute ary and all ingtruments requined thereof, and il the Account(s)Instument|s)
were{ane) issued by an institution other than PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK, such institulian it herelby specifically authoraed and
direcied, on demand of FARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK to pay all moneys heteby assigned n saud Account[s) andier all maneys dus
Assignar(s) unded the terms of said instruments) divect to said PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK. The failure of PARAGON COMMERCIAL
BANK 1o exeiCise any of 3 nghts unded this assigament shall not constitule a waiver theneol

The Assignor(s) warrart(s) and mmmqs] that thee abm umwmmuﬂmmnﬂsz is{are) owned solely by Assignon(s) and
siane) free and cear of all bens and has(have) full power, righl and aulhodity o execute ard deliver this
assignrment

¥ 3aid Accouni{sMInsrumentis) is(ane) replesented by 8 passbook. cartificale of other document enoenEing ownershp, suCh paper
writing(s) has(have) boen delivared and S(are) harewith assigned and pledged to sald PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK by Assignors),

Until this Assigremant has been released by Bank as sst forth above, the Assigeoss) shall have no right 1o make any withdrawals from swuch
Aceounbispinalriments).




UNCONDITIONAL GUARANTY

Date: August 10, 2011
OBLIGOR(S): Chanticleer Holdings, Inc.
ADDRESS: 11220 Elm Lane, Suite 203
Charlotte, NC 28277-0450
GUARANTORI(S) Michael D. Pruitt
ADDRESS: 11502 Stonebriar Drive

Charlotte, NC 28277

OBLIGEE: PARAGON COMMERCIAL BANK
3535 Glenwood Avenue
Raleigh, North Carolina 27612

WHEREAS, the: above QBLIGOR(S) (hereinafler jointly and severally termed “Cuslomer”) desine(s) lo oblain extensions of credit andfor a continuation
of cradit extensions and/or to engage in business transactions and enter into varous contractual relationships and otherwise to deal with Paragon
Commercial Bank (hereinafter tarmed “Bank”); and

WHEREAS, Bank is unwilling to extend or continue to exfend credit to andior to engage in business transactions and enter into varous contractual
ralationships with, and clherwise to deal with Customer unless it receives an unconditional and continuing, joint and several guaranly from the above
identified, undersignad GUARANTOR{S) (each, any and all of whom is hereinafer termed “Guaranter’), covenng all “Obligations of Customer,” as
hereinafier defined.

HOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of other gosd and valuable consideration, and in arder to induce Bank, from time o time, in
its sole discreton 1o extend or continue to exend credd(with or withoul securly) 1o andfor 1o engage in business transactions and enler into vanous
contraciual relationshiss with Customer (withaut limiting the generality of the foregoing, this Guaranty is being given in order to induce Bank to lease
andfer sell real, personal andfor mixed property to Customer, to purchase or discount any Acceptances, Accounts, Chattel Paper, Checks, Condracts,
Coniract Rights. Drafts, General Intangibles, Instruments, Investment Securities, Land Contracts, Purchase Money Security Agresments (Conditional
Sale Contracts of real andfor personal property), Real andfor Personal Proparty Leases, o any other instrumants or evidences of indebtedness (with or
without recourse) upan which Custormer, jointly or saverally, is or may be liable as maker, co-maker, andorser, accaptor, guarantor, suraty or stherwise
and otherwise to deal with Custormer), Guaranter (jointly and severally, if more than ene) hereby absolutely and unconditionally guarantees to Bank and
its successors and assigns, the due and punctual payment of all indebledness, obbgations and kabiliies of sakd Customer to Bark, and all claims of
Bank against the Customer primary or secondary (whether by way of endorsement or otherwise), whether now existing or hereafter arising, whather
arising out of contract{s), tort{s) of sthervise, whether crealad directly with Bank of acquired by Bank through assignment, endorsement o olhanwise,
whether matured or unmatured, whether absolute of contingent. whether joint or several, whether secureéd of unsecured. whelher monetary of
nonmonatary; whether liquidated or uniiguidated, as and when the same become due and payable (whether by acceleration of othenvise), in accordance
with the terms of any instruments, accounts recevable, security agreements, land andior other contracts, drafts, leases, chattel pager. debts, obligations
or labilities evidencing any such indeblednass, obligations, labilites, or claims, including all renewals, axtensions. substitutions andior modifications.
thareof {all indebtedness, sbigatans and liabililes of the Customer 1o Bank and claims of Bank against Customer, including all of the faregaing, being
hereinafter collectively termed “Obligations of Customer”) provided, however, that the liability, jointly and sewerally, of the undersigned Guaraniors
hereunder, al any one tirme culstanding. with respect to the aggregate principal amount of the “Obligations of Customer.” shall not excead the sum of
manay here specified (the “Specified Amount’), plus. in addition to the Specfied Amount, Guarantors shall also be liable for payment of all inberest or
finance charges thereon, costs of courl. default interest thereen, late payment charges and the reasonable atiorneys’ fees of Bank, to wit:

Two Million and 00/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00)

Further, if the Obligations of Customer or this Guaranty are referred 1o an attomey-at-law. including Bank’s in-house counsel, for collection, whether or
not suit is commenced, Guaranior expressly hereby agress fo pay, in addition to the Specified Amount, all expenses of collection, including, without
firnitation, reagonable attorneys’ fees. Guarantor hereby stipulates and agrees that, if suit is instituted, up 1o and not in excess of fifleen percent (15%) of
the tolal amount(s) due hereunder and remaining unpaid at the time suit is instituted by Bank shall be deamed to be the “reasonable attormeys’ fees.”

In arder o implement the foregoing and as additional inducements 1o Bank, Guarantor further covenants and agrees:

1. This guaranty is and shall remain an unconditional and continuing guaranty of payrnent and not of coBection, shall ramain in full ferce ang
offect imespective of any interruption(s) in the business or other dealings and relations of Customer with Bank and shall apply to and
guarantes the dus and punctual payment and pedormance of all “Obkgations of Custorner due by Customer 1o Bank, To that end,
Guarantor hereby expressly waives any nght to require Bank to bing any action against any Cuslomed or any ofher pedsson(s) of 1o require
that resort be had to any security of to any balance{s) of any deposil of elher accountis) of deblis) or credit(s) on the books of Bank in faver
of Customer of any other person(s) and withaut limding the generality of the feregoing, undersigned Guarantor herewith expressly waives
any rights he otherwize might have had under the provisions of G.S. §26-7, &1 seq. andior other laws 10 require Bank 1o atlempd 1o recover
against Customer and/or to realizé upon any securfies or collateral security which Bank holds for the Obligations of Cuslomer. Any
Guarantor may, by & wiitten notice, delivered personally to or received by certified or registered United States Mail by an officer of Bank
aclually invalved in the ransactions being guaranteed bereby, at the address of Bank first above given, terminate this Guaranty with respect
to all “"Oblgations of Customer” incurred or contracted by Customer, acquired by Bank, or otherwise arising more than thirty (30} business
days aler the date on which such writlen natice is so delivered to er received by said Bank officar. Such writtan nofice of terminatien shall be
the sole and exclusve mathed for terminating this Guaranty as to future Obligations of Customer and notwithstanding termination, this
Guaranty and all $écurity given for this Guaianty andfor tha Obligations. of Customer shall remain in full force and effect as to ail Obligations
of Customer mcured, existing, or arising i any manner pre-tarmination, including, without limitation, all Obligations. of Customear then
existing of thereafer ansing under loan commitments which exist pre-termination and all Obligations of Customer under lines of credit andior
revolving lings of credit for advances both pre- and post-termination.

2, TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE HEREOF. Any notice(s) to Guarantor shall be sufficiently given, if mailed to the first above stated address(es)
of Guaranter.

3. This Guaranty Agreement constitules the entire agreement between the pamies with respec to this Guaranly, and no waivers or
modifications shall be valid unkass they are reduced to writing, duly execuled by the pary to be charged thereby, and expressly approved in
wiiling by an officer of Bank actually involved in the transactions being guaranteed hereby. This Guaranty does not terminate, cancel,
supersede, rengw, or subslitule for any existing guarantee to Bank by any Guarantor, unless expressly provided herein, and the execution
and delivery hereafler to Bank by any Guarantor of a new guarantee shall not terrminate, cancel, supersede, or be a renawal or substitulion
for this Guaranty, unless expressly provided therein, and all nghts and remedies of Bank hereunder, under any existing guaraniee, or under
any guarantee hareafier given to Bank by any Guarantor shall be cumulative and may be enforced singly or concurrently.

4. Wany process is issued or ordered 10 be served upon Bank, seaking 1o seize Customers andior Guaramor's rights andler imMerests in any
bank account(s). such bank account(s) shall be deemed o have been and shall be set-off against any and all “Obligations of Customer”
andior all obligations and liabdlties of Guarantor hereunder, as of the time of the issuance of any such will or process, whather or not
Custorner, Guarantor and/or Bank shall then have been sarved with notice thereof.

5. Al moneys avalabie to andfor received by Bank for applcation toward payment of (or reduction of) the “Obligations of Customer” may be
applied by Bank to such individual debi(s) in such manner, and appodtioned in such amount(s) and at swch tima(s), as Bank, in fis sola
discretion, may deem suitable or desirable.

& As secunty for any and all liabilities. of Guarantor hereunder, now existing or hereafter arising, Guaramor hereby grants Bank a security
interest in any and all monays or other propedy (Le. goods and merchandise, as well as all documents relative thereto, alss, funds,

1
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investment securnties. choses in action and any and all other forms of proparty. whether real, personal of mixed, and any right, titk, or
interast of Guarantor therein or thereto) andfor the proceeds thereof, which have been or may hareafter be, deposited or beft with Bank {or
with any agent or othar third party acting on Bank's behalf) by or for the account or credit of Guarantor, including (without limitation of the
fofegaing), any property in which Guarantor may have any ineresl. Further, where any obligation of Guarantor is due and unpaid Bank
hereunder, Bank is herewith authorized to exercisa its right of Set-Off or "Bank Lien” as to any moneys deposited in demand, checking, tima,
savings, or other accounts of any nature maintained in and with it by any of the undersigned, without advance notice. Such right of Set-Off
shall also be applicable and exercisad by Bank, in its sole discretion, where Bank is indebled to any Guarantor by reason of any Cerificate(s)
of Deposd, Bond(s), Nate{s) or otherwise,

G or that any termination of liability | . @5 provided for in paragraph 1 above shall not terminate this Guaranty as
to muisting Obligations of Customer nor release Guarantor from full Kability for “Obligations of Customer” hereby guaranteed and then in
existence including, without Emitation, all Obligations of Customer then existing or thereafter asising under loan commitments which exist pre-
termination and all Gbligations of Customer under lines of cradit and for revalving lines of cradit for advancas subsegquent to the effective
date of termination, or from full liability for renewal(s) or extension(s) of the “Obligations of Custorner” in whole of in pan. whether such
renewals or extensions are made before or after the effectve date of such termination, and with or without notice to Guaranter, and for
substitution therefor, or modifications thereof.

The terminaton of the Guaranty by one of mofe Guarantors, of the release, setllement or compromase by Bank wilh respect 1o any one of
mare Guarantors, shall not affect the oblgations of Kability of the remaining Guaraniors hereunder, and as to the rémaining Guaramars, thig
Guaranty shall continue in effect a8 ¥ such Guarantors had baen the only Guarantors executing this Guaranty.

Guarantor agrees that his liability hereunder shall not be diminished by any failure on the pan of Bank to perfect of continue perfection of (by
filing, recording of olherwise) any securty interest(s) ® may have in any propety securing this Unconditional Guaranty andfor the
“Obligations of Custarmer secured hereby and hereunder.

Guaranter further heveby consents and agrees that Bank may at any time, or from time o time, in ils sode discretion: (i) renaw, extend or
olherwise change the time of payment, andior the manner, place or tarms of payment of any or all of the “Obligations of Custormer or
otherwise modify the Obligations of Custorner; (i) grant indulgencas generally from time to time to the Customer andior any other person
liable for the “Obligations of Custormer™, () exchange, release andior surrendar all or any of the collaleral security, or any pan(s) theraaof, by
whomsoever deposited, which is or may hereafter be hald by it or in which it has a lien or securnty inlerast in conneclion with all or any of the
“Obligations of Customer” and/or any kabilities or obligations of Guaranior hereunder; (iv) sell or otherwise dispose of andior purchase all or
any of any such collateral at public or privale sale, er to or through any investment securies broker, and afler deducling all costs and
expanses of every kind for collection, prepasation for sale, sale or delivery, the net proceeds of any such sale(s) or other disposition may be
applied by Bank upen all or any of the “Obligations of Customer”. and (v} seftle or compromise with the Customer, any insurance carrier
andior any other person(s) liable thereon, any and all of the “Obligations of Cuslomer,” andior subordinate the payment of all or any part of
same, to the payment of any other debls or claims, which may at any time(s) be due or owing o Bank andfor any other person(s); all in such
manner and upon such terms as Bank may deem proper andor desirable, and without notice to or further assent from Guarantor, it being
agreed that Guarantor shall be and remain bound upon this Unconditional Guaranty, imespective of the existence, value or condition of any
collateral, or the impairment of any coliateral (to include, without limitation, failure 1o pedect a security interest in coliateral), or the
unenforceabiity of any of the Obligations of Customer or the discharge of or release of Customer from llability for any of tha Obligations of
Custormer and notwithstanding any suech change, exchange. settiement. compromise, surrender, release, sale or other dispesition,
application, renewal or extension and notwithstanding also that the “Obligations of Customer” may at any time(s) exceed the aggregate
principal sum hersinabove prescribed (if any such limiting swn appears). If Bank should request Guaranor 1o consent to any of the
foregaing, such request and'or consent by Guarantor shall not constitute 8 waiver by Bank of the previsgions of this paragraph which permit
such actions without Guarantor's consent, nor of any ather provision of this Guaranty relating to acts of inactions of Bank and such request
andfor consent shall not creata a course of dealing bebween Bank and Guaranter that would require the consent of Guarantor to any of the
foregoing in the future. Further, this Guaranty shall not be construed 1o impose any ebligation on Bank to extend of continue 1o extend cradit
or athersise deal with Customer at any time,

If Customer is an organization, this Guaranty covers all “Obdigations of Customer” purpadting 1o be created or underaken on behalf of such
organzation by any officer, partner, manager, employee, or agent of such organization, without regard to the actwal authority of any such
officar, parnar, manager, employee, or agent, whethar or not corporate or partnesship resolutions, proper or othensdse, are given by any
Customer 1o Bank, and'or whether or not such purporied crganizations. are legally chartered or crganized.

This Unconditional, Continuing Guaranty shall be binding upon Guarantor, and the heirs, execulors, administralors, successons and assigns.
of Guarantar: and it shall inura to the benefit of, and be enforceable by Bank, and ils successors, transferees and assigna. The death of
Guaranter shall not terminate any Rability hereunder. This Unconditional Guaranty shall remain in force after Guaranior's death urtil written
natice of tarmination, sent by a legal representative of Guarantor, is recetved by Bank as sei foth in paragraph 1 above and such termination
shall be limited as provided in paragraphs 1 and 7 above.

This Unconditional Guaranty shall be deemed to have been made under and shall be govemad by the Laws of the State of North Carolina in
all respects, including matters of construction, validity and perfarmance, Further, all terms or expressions contained hengin which are defined
in Articles 1, 3, or 9 of the Nerth Carolina Uniform Commercial Code shall have the same meaning herein a5 in said Articles of said Code.

. No waiver by Bank of any default(s) by Guarantor or Customer shall operate as a waiver of any other default or of the same default on a

future oczasion, if more than one person has signed this Guaranty, such parties are jointty and severally obligated hereunder. Further, use
of the masculing or neuter proncun harein shall include the masculine, faminine or neuter, and also the plural. The term “Guarantor,” as
used herein, shall (i signed by more than one persan) mean the “Guarantors and each of them.” if any Guaranter shall be a partnership or a
limited Eability company, the obligations, Kabilities and agreements on the part of such Guarantor shall remain in full force and effect and fully
applicable notwithstanding any changes in the individuals composing the partnarship or the bmited lability company. Furthes, the temn
“Guarantor” shall include in such event any altered or successive partnerships or imited liabilty companies, it being also understood that the
predecassor partnership(s) or LLCI(s) and thair o and managers shall not thereby be released from any obligations of
liabilities hereunder. Bank, or any other holdar hereof, may correct patent ermors in this Guaranty.

Guarantor hereby waives: (i) notice of accaptance of this Guaranty: (i) notice(s) of extensions of credil andiof continuations of credit
extensions to Customer by Banik; (i) notice(s) of entering into and engaging in business ransaclions and/or coMractual relalionships and
any other dealings between Customer and Bank; (iv) presantmant andior demand for payment of any of the “Obligstions of Custorner; (v)
protest or notica of dishonor or default to Guarantor or to any ofther person with respect to any of the “Obligations of Customer” ar with
respect 1o any security therefor; (vi) all other natices to which Guarantor might othenwise be entitled; (vil) any demand for payment wnder this
Guaranty; (viil) any defansa of any kind which the Customer might have, and (ix) apphcation of any other defenses avaiable to Guarantor,

Anything containad herein to the conlrary notwsthstanding, if for any reason the effective rate of interest on any of the Obligations of
Customer should exceed the maximum lawlul contract rate, the effective rate of such abligation(s) shall be deemed reduced 1o and shall be
such maximum lewful contract rate, and any sums of interest which have been callécled in excess of such maximum lawful contract rate shall
be applied as a credit against the unpaxd principal balance due hereunder.

In the evant any provision(s) of this instrument should be leR blank or incomplete, Guarantor hereby authorizes and empowers Bank to
supply and complete the necessary information to comphate or fill in the blank provision(s),

Should any one or more provisions of this Unconditional Guaranty be determined to be illegal or unenforceable by a court of competent
Jjurisdiction, the other provisions shall remain in full farce and effect,

In the event of a changs in. or amendment of modification of the legal status of exdstence of the Customer, this Guaranty shall continue and
shall also cover the indebledness of the Customer under the new of amended status, according to the terms hereof guaranteeing the
Obligations of the oniginal Customer.

:;:obligalian of any Guarantor executing this Unconditional Guaranty shall not be dependent upan the subsaquent execution hereof by any
T parson,
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Guarantor shall provide Bank with such financial infermation as Bank may from time to time request. Any statément of account of records
that bind the Custorner shall be binding against the Guarantor and the records of Bank maintainad in the ordinary course of its business with
respect bo the Obligations. of Customer shall be binding on Guarantor in all respects, including, withowt limitation, the extent and nature of the
Obligations of Customer and the kabilities of Guarantor under this Guaranty.

. Guarantor warrants and covenants that Guarantor has made such inguiries as Guarantor deems necessary in order to ascenain the financial

condition of Customer, and has, in fact, ascertained the financial condition of Customer and is satisfied with such financial condition, that
Guarantor has adequate means to obtain from Customer. on a continuing basis, information conceming the financial condilion of Cusiomer,
and that Guarantor has not relied, and will not rely, on Bank to provide such information, now or in the fuure,

Guarantor agreas that in the event judgmant or any court order of administrative crdar for turnover or recovery is entered against Bank
{whether by consent, compromise, settlement or otherwisa) for, or Bank is required or agrees to repay (i) the amount of any manatany
payment or transfer of any propery (whether real. personal or mixed, tangible or intangitle. or the value therecf) made to Bank by or on
bahalf of the Customer andior Guarantor for credit to the Obligations of Custemer, of (i) the amount of any set-off{s) exercised by Bank and
credited to Obligations of Customer, then in such event (and notwithatanding the prier discharge of satisfaction in whede or in pan of any or
all Obdigations of Customer due Bank or the wiitten or stamped notation of release or satisf, 1 atfixed to this Guaranty or any
instrument of indebtedness evidencing the Obligations of Custormer, of any phor nolice of the termination of this Guaranty as to future detts
of Cugtomar) the amaunt of value of any such payments, propedy of set-ofi(s) recovered from Bark shall be deemed to be Obligations of
Customner and this Guaranty and the liabilities of Guaranter hereunder shall be automatically revived and reinstated and shall continue and
remain in full force and effect as to the same, together with interest thereon from date of recovery at the rabe{s) applicatde to the Obligations
of Customer 1o which such payments, transfers or set-offis) were credited, costs of court, and the reasenable attomeys' fees incurred by
Bank in connection thenewilh.

. Guarantor further expressly waives, for Bank's benefit and the benefit of Cestemer and any other guasantor, maker or endorser of the

Obligations of Customer, any and all rights of recourse aganst Customer, or any other guaramor, makar, of endorser of the Obbgations of
Customer, or property or assets of the same, arising out of any payment made under o pursuant to this Guaranty, including any claim of

rair ion, contribution or indemnity that the undersigned Guarantor may have against the Cuslomer, any
D‘I]IGH]I..IHIBI‘IUI or maker or endorser of the Obligations of Customer. Guarantor will not enter into any contract or agreemnent in violation of
the proviskons hereinabove, and any such purported contract or agreament shall be void ab initio.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT. Guaranter shall be in default under this Unconditional Guaranty upon the happening of any of the following events,
circumstancas or condiions, to wit:

Default in the payment or performance of any of the obligations or of any covenant, warranty or liability corained or referred to henein, or
contained in any other contract or agreemaent of Customer andor Guarantor with Biank, whether now existing or hereafter arising: or

Any warranty, representation or statement made or fumished to Bank by or on behalf of Customer andior Guarantor, in connection with this
Guaranty Agreement or to induce Bank to extend credit or othenwise deal with Customer andfor Guarantor proving 1o have been materially
false in any matesial respect when made or furnished; or

Dieath, dissolution, termination of existence, insalvency, business fallure, appointment of a recefver of any part of the property of, assignment
for the benafit of credi by, or the commer of any p Wy under any State or Federal Bankruplcy of insolvency laws by or
against Guarantor and/or Customer. or

Failure of a Custormer andfor Guarantor which is a legal entdy 1o maintain its existence in good standing; of

Upon the entry of any monetary judgment of the assessment andlor filing of any tax lien against eher Customer andior Guarantor or upan the
issuance of any wilt of gamishment or altachrment against any properly of. debls due or rights of Customer andior Guarantor, fo specifically
include the cormmencement of any action of proceeding 1o seize moneys of either Customer and'or Guarantor on depesit in any bank account
with Bank, of

If Bank should ctherwise deem itself, any security interests, its collateral or property, or the "Obligations of Customer” guaranieed hereby and
hereundar andior the liability of Guarantor hareunder unsafe or insecure, or should Bank, in good faith, believe that the prospact of payment or
other performance by Customear andior Guarantor is impaired.

REMEDIES ON DEFAULT. Upon the cccurrence of any of the foregoing events, circumslances, or condiions of default, all of the
obligations evidenced herein and secured or guaranieed hereby shall immediately be due and payable without notice. Furthes, Bank shall
then have all of the rights and remedies granted hereunder, all of the rights and remedies of a Secured Party andfor Holder.in-Due Course:
under the North Caralina Uniform Commercial Code andior under other laws of North Carcling

Gmmzflor acknowledges that Guaranter has read this Guaranty and fully understands the rights granted to Bank herein, and the waiver of
n 3

G

r, G further ges that each of the terms comained herein is a matenal inducament 1o Bank to extend credit 10 the

Cusiomer and is necessary in ordar for the Bank to fully realize the benefits of Bank's bargamad for agreement with the Custormer and Guaranior,

This Guaranty is secured by, MA

1N WITHESS WHEREOF, this Guaranty is executed (i) If by individuals. by hereunlo setling their hands under seal by adeption of the word "SEAL
appearing next to the individuals” namas, (i) if by a corporation, by the duly authorzed officers of the corporation on its behalf under seal by adoption of
the facsimile seal printed hereon for such purpose or, if an impression seal appears hereon, by affang such Impression seal, (m} if by a pannership, by
the duly autharized partners of the partnership on its behall under seal by agoplion of the word “SEAL" appearing next to the name of the panership
andlor the signatures of the partners, or (iv) if by a limied liabiity compary, by the duly authonized member of manager of the limied labiity company
an its behalf under seal by adoption of tha word *SEAL" appeaning next to the name of the imited Eability company and/or the signatures of the members
of managers, on the day and year firs! abave written,

By: & (SEAL)

Michael D. Pruitt, an Individual
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed this Warrant as of the date first written
above,

CHANTICLEER HOLDINGS, INC.

Mame: /&'&'{‘4'{ Z"’f&’;_

Title: Lottt

A025 T L2043 10001




Aug. 11.

W 13 Tuggle Dusgins ) No. (281 P 5§

mawmmwm
Customer Raquest for Account Placemen

mmmmwnmmmmmwmmm

Contact {for non-personsl sccounts):
Customer Class: [ { Joint'# Resvocable Trust [ Estate / Ifwvocuble Trush Dwxmmm
DMEMIT uFuH'nw %l’ m qum
" Swreel Address: 12124 W End Road "
Gty / State | Zip: North Pato Bisach FL 33408
Telephore Number: 518-878-0821 dq s
o Lts..ﬂtw:ﬂ-m_ﬂhhmm;dm.
¥ ax 10 Nimbers}. 240:64-8570 Type. W‘D“ Ao m“?ﬂ"’“ﬁ"

mmumunw B van Dwmw;w Elour

Accountto be Used: [T] Checiing (2] Money Masket; Account & 651583 [ Ofer CDO

Orver tnformation:

OnoMey Se1? (1 ¥es CINo | 187 (1 Yew BN Aot §

Datobeplaced ] Anvismi Ifersot Rate: .35 and {or APY: 35

[Tem?® | Oawesi [ O13wocks | Wasweons |Disaweess. | D2Teen (4 [Ciavown | T8 Team

intbrat Paymbnt Fianuency: Cventh Ed m:-mrrsu O Semannasl | C)YearEnd lﬂmmmr‘

Intarest Peid via: Licmdte | Domet Cfranaser Acocunt

B e AR R R e
Aol Inforaton:

'Em-m &mmhmwﬂmu-mdmwwu twmmmwwn
ihution tPal iresed i CO-and- e o folows. 4 Weeds, 28 Oy of timple ibtomst; 13 Wesks, 80 Days-of sivple interest: 28 Wawkal, 90 Days of sinple
‘et 52 Wowiss, 180 Duys of mimple 'msmet 2 yiam. 360 days of simgle indenes T ymam, S40 duyy of dhpie interest; § year, $00 Sy of simpie e’
A gty wilarinial peniiry may bvade privcipel, Mo perlty el wﬁrw\rwmmmmwwwwnnn.
it ool e €O, A Mty iraroat optibr & wvaitablic ok o CD8 B Weeks and aborier.

m-mmmumuﬁw R Thurdsy i o helldery, dchaies’ nunqu-fﬁq

Bank:;

NV Z/"':Jafi&/.{b’f!;“(z{.fc'\ | B%O/kf

5 e

CLMAS el Sty of Qe Acrmirt ek Sdsticsl a1 v k' 7 e fepinciel W, LLE




]‘ICl'l:)'l']:".Rff,E INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LL.C
1815 THE EXCHANGE
ATLANTA. GEORGIA, USA 30339
(770)951-2040

AND
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HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC
INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”™) 1s made and entered mto the

day of .20 (the “Effective Date™), by and between HOOTERS OF AMERICA,
LI1C. a Georgia, USA hmuted liability company with s prncipal busmess address at 1815 The
Exchange. Atlanta, Georgia, USA 30339 (heremafter “HOA™), and ,a

with its principal business address at
(heremafter the “Franchisee™).

RECITALS

A HOA developed a distinctive system (the “Hooters System”) for the establishment and
operation of restaurants that offer a limited menu featuring seafood and chicken wings, together with
beer, wine, and liquor. The Hooters System includes HOA's distinctive exterior and iterior restaurant
design, trade dress. décor. and color scheme: uniform standards, specifications, and procedures for
operations; procedures for quality control: trammng and ongomng operational assistance; and advertising
and promotional programs; all of which HOA may add to, delete from. and modify from time to tume.

B. HOA entered mto a license agreement (the “License Agreement™) with HI Linuted
Parmership (“HILP”). pursuant to which License Agreement HILP granted HOA the night to use certain
trademarks, trade names, service marks, logotypes. and other commmercial symbols, including without
limitation the mark “Hooters™” in connection with the operation of restaurants. HOA identifies the
Hooters System by means of such trademarks. trade names, service marks, logotypes. and other
commercial symbols, together with HOA's trade dress, décor. color schemes. and other identifying
characteristics (all of which are referred to collectively mn this Agreement as the “Proprietary Marks™), all
of which HOA may add to. delete from. and modify from trme to tume.

C. HOA continues to develop, use, and control the use of. the Proprietary Marks and the
Hooters System to identify for the public the source of products and services marketed under the
Proprietary Marks and the Hooters System. and to represent the Hooters System’s high standards of
quality, appearance, and service.

D. Franchisee desires for HOA to grant Franchisee a francluse to operate a Hooters
restaurant, using the Proponetary Marks, under the Hooters System. and for HOA to provide Franchisee
with certamn trammng and other assistance 1 connection with such franchise, all as set forth 1n and subject
to this Agreement.

E. Franchisee understands and acknowledges the importance of HOA s lugh standards of
quality. appearance, and service, and the necessity of operating 1ts franclused business m compliance with
HOA’s standards and specifications.

In consideration of the foregomg and the mwitual pronuses and commumtments set forth m thus
Agreement, the parties hereby agree as follows:

L GRANT. APPROVED I OCATION. CONSTRUCTION, AND PERMITTING

A Grant. HOA hereby grants to Franchisee, on the terms and conditions set forth m this
Agreement and subject to the License Agreement, the right, license, and pnvilege. and
Franchisee undertakes the obligation, to operate a business (the “Franchised Business™) to
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develop. open, and operate a franchised Hooters restaurant (the “Restaurant™), using the
Proprietary Marks and the Hooters System. at the Approved Location (as defined in
Section LB. of this Agreement) (collectively. the “Franchise™).

B. Approved Location.

1. The address of the Restaurant location approved under this Agreement (the
“Approved Location™) 1s:

A locanon i the Option Termtory set forth on Exlubit A to the Option

Addendum attached to this Agreement as Exhibit D. selected and approved
as set forth i this Agreement

2. The Approved Location will be deternuned by mmtual written agreement of the
parties within days after the Effective Date of this Agreement; provided,
however, that Franchisee shall have the nght to substitute a different site, 1f such
different site 15 acceptable to HOA, within sixty (60) days after the Effective
Date of this Agreement.

3. Franchisee shall not relocate the Restaurant without HOA s prior express written
consent.
4. During the term of this Agreement. HOA will not establish. and will not license

another entity to establish. a Hooters restaurant under the Hooters System within
a rads of eight (8) kilometers from the Approved Location (heremafter the
“Protected Terrtory™).

& Construction. Permutting. and Licensing.

1. Franchisee shall complete the construction of the Restaurant in accordance with
the provisions and requurements of Section V.E. of tlhis Agreement (the
“Construction”™) and shall open the Restaurant for business on or before

.20 (the “Opening Date™). On Franchisee’s written
request, HOA may grant Franchisee up to three (3) thirty (30) day extensions past
the date set forth above within which to open the Restaurant. HOA will not
require Franchisee to pay HOA any fee for the first such extension.  Franclusee
shall pay HOA a non-refundable extension fee of Two Thousand Five Hundred
and No/100 United States Dollars ($2.500 USD) contemporaneously with
Franchisee’s request for the second such extension. Franchisee shall pay HOA a
non-refundable extension fee of Five Thousand and No/100 United States Dollars
{$5.000 USD) contemporaneously with Franchisee's request for the third such
extension.

=

Provided that Franchisee has made full and complete application for all building
pernuts, alcoholic beverage licenses. and all other permits required to open its
Hooters Restaurant, within sixty (60) days after the Effective Date of tlus
Agreement, HOA may, on Franchisee’s written request. grant Franchisee up 1o
three (3) thirty (30) day extensions to obtain all necessary pernuts. without
charging Franchisee any amounts for such extensions, if the delay was due to
causes beyond Franchisee's reasomable control, which grant HOA will not
unreasonably withhold. Franchisee must submmt documentation of the status of
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II.

TERM

the applications together with Franchisee’s request for each such extension. On
HOA’s grant of each such extension, HOA will commensurately extend the
Opening Date.

3. Should Franchisee be unable to obtain all necessary permuts and licenses during
the stated period and extension time penods as a result of causes bevond
Franchisee's reasonable conmol. HOA or Franchisee may termunate tlus
Agreement and any Option Addendum on wnitten notice to the other, without the
necessity of further action by esther party or further documentation. On such
termunation. HOA will retam one-third (1/3) of the mitial franchise fee set forth
m Section IV.A. of thus Agreement and one hundred percent (100%) of any pre-
paid option fees to compensate HOA for uts costs and expenses related to
enfranclusing Franchisee and its lost or deferred opportunities to enfranchise
others. HOA will refund the amount HOA owes Franchisee within thirty (30)
days after notice by HOA or Franchisee of the ternunation of this Agreement.

Destruction of Approved Location In the event the Restaurant building is damaged or
destroyed by fire or other casualty. or 15 required by any governmental authonty to be
repaired or reconstructed, Franchisee shall commence repair or reconstruction of the
building within mnety (90) days after the date of such casuvalty or notice of governmental
requirement (or such lesser period as such sovernmental requirement may specify) and
shall complete all required repair or reconstruction as soon as possible thereafter. but in
no event later than one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of such casualty or
governmental requirement. In the case of reconstruction due to casualty, the mimmum
acceptable appearance for the restored building will be that which existed mmmediately
prior to the casualty: provided. however, Franchisee will use its best efforts to have the
restored building include the then-current image. design, and spectfications of new
Hooters restaurants. If the building 1s substantially destroved by fire or other casualty,
Franchisee may, with HOA’s agreement and on payment to HOA of a royalty in an
amount equal to five percent (3%) of all msurance proceeds as a consequence of such
casualty. ternunate this Agreement as to the Restaurant i lieu of Franchisee’s
reconstructing the bulding.

Franchise 15 Non-Fxclusive,. FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES
THAT. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT. THIS
FEANCHISE IS NON-EXCLUSIVE: HOA RESERVES THE RIGHT TQ DEVELOP,
OPEN, AND OFERATE. AND TO AUTHOEIZE OTHEES TO DEVELOP, OPEN,
AND OPERATE., HOOTERS RESTAURANTS OUTSIDE FRANCHISEE™S
PROTECTED TERRITORY ON ANY TEEMS HOA DEEMS APPROPRIATE.

No Subfranchising. FRANCHISEE SHALL HAVE WO RIGHT TO GRANT
SUBFRANCHISES TO OTHERS. FRANCHISE SHAILL NOT. AND SHALL NOT
ATTEMPT TO. GRANT SUBFRANCHISES TO OTHERS.

- RENEWAL

Imitial Term. As to the mutial Restaurant under this Agreement, this Agreement will
commence on the Effective Date and will continue i effect for a peried of twenty (20)
years thereafter. subject to earlier termunation as set forth in this Agreement. As to all
subsequent Restaurants Franchisee develops under this Agreement. thus Agreement will
continue in effect for twenty (20) years from the date such Restaurant opens, subject to
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earlier termination as set forth i this Agreement. Tlis Agreement refers to such twenty
(20) wear term. whether as to the itial Restaurant or any subsequent Restaurant, as the
“Initial Term.”

B. Renewal Term. Franclusee mav renew the Franchise as to each Restaurant for one (1)
additional twenty (20) wear term (such additional term bemng referred to m tlus
Agreement as the “Renewal Term,” and the Imitial Term. together with the Renewal
Term, being referred to collectively in this Agreement as the “Term”). provided that:

1. Franchisee delivers written notice (the “Renewal Notice™) fewer than eighteen
{18) months but more than six (6) months before the end of the Initial Term, of
Franchisee’s intent to renew the Franchise as to the Restaurant specified i the
Renewal Notice. for the Renewal Term:

]

Franchisee pays HOA a renewal fee i the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand and
No/100 United Siates Dollars ($25.000 USD) (the “Renewal Fee”).
contemporaneously with Franchisee’s delivery of the Renewal Notice, for
renewal of the Franchise as to the Eestaurant specified in the Renewal Notice;

3. Franchisee is, at the time Franchisee delivers the Renewal Notice, in compliance
with: (1) this Agreement and all amendments to it; (1) all other agreements to
which HOA or 1ts affiliates on the one hand. and Franchisee or ts affiliates on
the other hand. are parties; and (1) HOA s confidential operations manuals {the
“Manuals™);

4. Franchisee has been. at all tumes durmg the Tmtial Term, m comphance with:
(1) this Agreement and all amendments to 1t; and (1) the Manuals;

3 Franchisee enters mto HOA's then-current form of mternational franchise
agreement, including all schedules, exhubits, addenda. and attachments to it
(collectively, the “Renewal Franchise Agreement”), all of which may contain
terms that vary materially from the terms of tlus Agreement; and

6. Franchisee and 1ts Prncipals (as defined in Section XILB. of this Agreement)

execute and deliver to HOA a release, estoppel, covenant not to sue
mdemmfication, and related provisions in substantially the form set forth
Exhibit H to this Agreement (collectrvely, the “Release™).

C. Non-Renewal By Franchisee. Franchisee will be deemed to have declined to renew the
Franchise as to a Restaurant. and the option to renew the Francluse set forth in
Section ILB. of this Agreement will expire automatically and without notice as to such
Restaurant, if Franchisee does not deliver to HOA all items required for renewal,
mcluding without lumtattion the Renewal Fee, the executed Renewal Franchise
Agreement. and the executed Release. to HOA within thirty (30) davs after HOA delivers
the Renewal Franchise Agreement and Release to Franchisee for execution.

D. Effect of Non-Renewal or Expiration. Non-renewal or expiration of the Franchise as to a
Restaurant will constitute termunation of this Agreement and the Franchise as to such
Restaurant, but not as to any other Restaurants Franchisee may own under this
Agreement.
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E. Future Renewal Provisions. At the end of the Renewal Term. HOA will offer Franchisee
the renewal provisions that HOA then offers franchisees generally. provided that
Franchisee satisfies HOA s then-current terms.

IIL HOA’S OBLIGATIONS

A HOA will provide Franchisee with advice m locating and opening a completed restaurant,
mcluding without hmitation providing acceptable site criteria, approved supplier lists,
and approved renovation critenia; and, at HOA's option, a set of arclutectural plans of an
existing Hooters restaurant.

B. HOA will provide Franchisee with the manager traming program described in
Section V.F. of this Agreement.

e HOA will offer Franchisee the additional pre-opemng traming described i Section V.EH.
of this Agreement.

D. HOA will provide such continuing advisory assistance to Franchisee in the operation,
advertising, and promotion of the Restaurant as HOA deems appropriate.

E. HOA will provide such refresher traming for Franchisee and Franchisee’s employees as
HOA deems appropniate.

E. HOA may provide Franchisee with advertising and promotional plans and matenials for
local advertising as described 1n Section XA of this Agreement.

G HOA will provide Franchisee, on loan, with one copy of the Manuals. as set forth 1n
Section VII. of this Agreement.

H HOA may provide Franchisee with such merchandising. marketing. and other data and
advice as HOA may develop and deem to be helpful in the management and operation of
the Restaurant.

L HOA may provide Franchisee with such periodic wndividual or group advice.
consultation. and assistance, rendered by personal visit or telephone, or by newsletters or
bulletins made available from time to time to all HOA franchisees, as HOA deems

appropriate.

I HOA will provide Franclusee with such bulletins, brochures. manuals, and reports. as
HOA may publish for franchisees generally regarding HOA's plans, policies,
developments, and actrvintes. In addiion. HOA wall provide such commumcation
concerming new developments, techmiques, and improvements i food preparation,
equipment. food products, packaging. and restavrant management. that HOA deems
relevant to the operation of the Restaurant.

K. HOA will provide Franchisee with the requirements for a standardized system for
accounting, cost control, and mnventory control.
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IV.

]
7

.

Imitial Franchise Fee. Franchisee shall pay to HOA an imtial franchise fee (the “Tmitial
Franchise Fee”) in the amount of Seventy-Five Thousand and No/100 United States
Dollars ($75,000 USD) on Franchises's execution of this Agreement and deliverv of this
Agreement to HOA  Franchisee shall pay the Imtial Francluse Fee 1n a lump sum in
immediately-available bank funds. Except as described m Section IC.3. of this
Agreement, the Tnitial Franchise Fee shall be deemed fully-eamed and nonrefundable on
Franchisee’s execution of this Agreement, in consideration of the adnunistrative and
other expenses HOA wmcurs m granting Franchisee its Francluise and in further
consideration of HOA's lost or deferred opportunities to enfrancluse others. If
Franchisee paid HOA an application fee prior to HOAs execution of this Agreement,
HOA wnll credit the amount of the application fee agamnst the amount of the Imtial
Franchize Fee.

Continning Rovalty Fee  Franchisee shall pay to HOA a continuing rovalty fee (the
“Contimung Rovalty Fee™) equal to five percent (5%) of Franchisee’s monthly Gross
Sales (as defined 1n Section IV.G. of this Agreement) of the Restaurant. so that HOA
actually receives such payment by the end of ten (10) days after the end of such calendar
month.

Local Advertising  Franchisee shall spend each calendar vear a mumimum of four percent
(4.0%) of the Gross Sales of the Restaurant on local advertising and promotion (the
“Local Advertising Expenditure™). In the event HOA establishes an International
Advertising Fund (as set forth 1 Section IV.D. of this Agreement), Franchisee may
reduce the amount of 1ts Local Advertising Expenditure by the amount of the
International Advertising Fee.

International Advertising Fee. HOA may establish an international advertising fund (the
“International Advertising Fund™) for its franchisees located outside the United States. In
the event that HOA establishes the International Advertising Fund, Franchisee shall pay
to HOA an international advernising fee (the “International Advertising Fee™) equal to
one percent (1%) of Franchisee’s monthly Gross Sales of the Restaurant, so that HOA
actually recerves such payment by the end of ten (10) days after the end of such calendar
month. HOA or HOA’'s designee will maintain and adnunister the International
Advertising Fee 1 an International Advertising Fund as provided m Section 3 .C. of thus
Agreement.

Casualties.  Franchisee’s obligation to pay the Continuing Rovalty Fee and the
International Advertising Fee. if imposed (collectively. the “Fees™), shall not be altered
by the occurrence of anv casualty or event that would cause a temporary closing of the
Restaurant for a penod of more than five (5) days. In the event that such a casualty or
event occurs. the Fees to be paid by Franchisee for each calendar month in which such
Restaurant 15 closed shall be the average of all Fees payable by Franchisee dunng the
mmediately-preceding twelve (12) calendar months, or such lesser period as the
Restaurant has been open if the Restaurant has been open fewer than twelve (12) calendar
months.

Past-Due Pavments. Any payment that HOA does not actually receive by the end of the
specified date shall be deemed past due  If any payment 1s past due. mn addition to
HOA’s right to exercise all rights and remedies available to HOA under Section XIIIL of
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this Agreement. Franchisee shall pay to HOA, in addirion to the past-due amount, inferest
on such amount from the date 1t came due until the date HOA actually recerves such
payment. The rate of such mrerest shall be the lesser of: (1) eighteen percent (18%) per
amum: or (1) the maximum rate allowed by the laws of Franchisee’s jurisdiction or any
successor or substitute law (hereinafter the “Default Rate™), until paid m full.

G. Gross Sales. As used in this Agreement, “Gross Sales™ shall include all revenue related
to the sale of products and performance of services i, at, about. through, or from the
Restaurant, whether for cash or credir, and regardless of collection in the case of credit,
and mcome of every kind and nature related to the Restauwrant, including without
limitation insurance procesds and condemmartion awards for loss of sales. profits, or
business: and further mcluding without linutation amounts from games, ATM fees,
hquor, gift cards, catering, and catering vehicles: provided, however. that “Gross Sales™
shall not include: (1) revenues from sales taxes or other add-on taxes Franchisee collects
from guests and actually transmts to the appropniate taxing authority: (1) tips guests give
and that are charged to the guests™ credit or debit cards; and (111) the retail value of any
complimentary services. discounts, trade-outs, credit card fees, cash refunds to guests,
and coupons used by guests (collectively. the “Comps™). up to a maximum of two percent
{2%%) of Gross Sales in the aggregate. In no event may Franchisee exclude or deduct
from Franchisee’s Gross Sales greater than two percent (2%) of such Gross Sales for
Comps. The sale and delivery of products and services away from the Restaurant without
HOA'’s consent 1s stnictly prohibited; however, should such sales occur, Franchisee shall
mclude such sales in computing Gross Sales.

H Currency Conversion  All amounts payable to HOA under this Apreement shall be paid
in United States Dollars. On or about the first (1) business day of each calendar month,
HOA will notify Franclisee of the exchange rate for payments for that month. HOA wall
base such exchange rate on the prevailing exchange rate as reported in the “Currency
Trading” section of The Wall Street Journal (or its future equavalent). or such other
source as HOA reasonably deems appropriate, on or for the first business day of each
calendar month.

L Legal Restictions on Pavment.  If at any tume any legal restriction shall be imposed on
the purchase of United States Dollars. or on the removal of the United States Dollars
from Franclusee’s junsdiction, Franchisee shall notify HOA mmmediately: and 1n such
event. to the extent pernutted by Law, HOA may direct Franchisee to make payment to
HOA 1 such other currency or in such other junisdiction as HOA may select. Franchisee
shall use 1ts best efforts to obtain any consents or authonizations that may be necessary to
effect payment in United States Dollars in compliance with applicable Law. at
Franchisee’s sole cost and expense. HOA's acceptance of payment in a currency other
than United States Dollars shall not relieve Franchisee of its obligation to make foture
payments 1n United States Dollars to the extent pernutted by applicable Law.

I Taxzation. With respect to all amounts Franchisee 1s obligated to pay HOA, Franclisee
shall, if required by Law. deduct the amount of any withholding taxes or other required
taxes due directly from the amount due HOA and shall remut the tax directly to the
appropriate taxing authorities at the time payment is made to HOA. Franchisee shall
promptly provide HOA with a copy of the transmuttal letter to the taxing authonty that
accompanies any such tax payment. Franchisee will cooperate fully with HOA m any
dealings with any taxing anthonities 1 any effort by HOA to reduce the amount of taxes
pavable and to obtain refunds. credits. or exemptions. Franchisee shall promptly obtain
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tax recetpts from the appropriate taxing authorities evidencing any tax payment made and
shall promptly submit such tax receipt to HOA.

K. Bavment of Amounts Owed.

1. Franchisee shall pay HOA all Contimung Rovalty Fees, International Advertising
Fees. and any and all other sums Franchisee owes HOA, by automatic debut, wire
transfer. or such other means as HOA may specify from time to time. Franchisee
shall promptly execute all documentation HOA or Franchisee’s bank may require
n order to effect such payvments. Franchisee shall pay any and all fees, costs, or
expenses mcurred m  connection with any cusrency exchange and the
transtussion of any pavment to HOA. Franchisee shall include with any
pavment to HOA calculations showing the deternunation and amount of such
payment.

2. Franchisee shall pay all amounts due to HOA under this Agreement without
counterclamm or set-off.

V. DUTIES OF FRANCHISEE

A Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that every detail of the Franchised Business,
mcluding without limatation the umformity of appearance., service, products, and
advertising of Franchisee’s Restaurant. 1s important to Franclhisee, HOA  the Hooters
System, and HOA's other franchisees, m order to maimntain the Hooters System’s lugh
and uniform operating standards. to increase the demand for the products and services,
and to protect HOA s reputation and goodwill

B. If Franchisee 15 or becomes 3 corporation, limited parmership. general partnership,
Iimited hability company, or other business entity, Franchisee shall comply with
Section XII. of this Agreement and the following requirements:

1 Franchisee shall confine its activities exclusively to the operation of the
Franchised Business. and the Franchised Business shall confine its activities
exclusively to the development, opening, and operation of the Restaurant.

X Franchisee’s Certificate or Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws. Partmership
Agreement, Articles of Organization, Operating Agreement, or comparable
governing documents shall at all ttmes provide that (1) Franchisee’s activities
shall be confined exclusively to the operation of the Franchised Business. and the
Franchised Busmess’s activities shall be confined exclusively to the
development. opening, and operation of the Restaurant. and (11} the issuance,
redemption. purchase for cancellation, and transfer of voting stock. partnership
mterests, membership interests, or other equity interests in Franchisee, are
restricted by the rterms of this Agreement.

3 Franchisee shall provide to HOA copies of Franchisee’s Certificate or Articles of
Incorperation, Bylaws, Parnership Agreement, Articles of Orgamizaton,
Operating Agreement. or comparable governing documents, and any other
documents HOA may reasonably request, and any amendments to any of them.
so that HOA actually recerves such copies by the end of ten (10) days after HOA
requests such copies.
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4. Franchises shall maintain stop transfer mstructions agaimnst the transfer on its
record of anv equity securities (voting or otherwise) except 1 compliance with
Section XII. and Section XV. of this Agreement. All securities Franclisee 1ssues
shall bear the following legend, which shall be printed legibly and conspicuously
on each stock certificate or other evidence of ownership mterest:

THE TRANSFER OF THESE SECURITIES IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS
AND CONDITIONS OF A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH HOOTERS OF
AMERICA, LLC DATED [INSERT DATE]. REFERENCE IS MADE TO
SUCH AGREEMENT AND TO THE RESTRICTIVE PROVISIONS OF THE
[OINSERT TYPE OF CERTIFICATE] OF THIS [INSERT TYPE OF ENTITY].

5. Franchisee shall maintain a current List of all owners of record and all beneficial
owners of any class of votng equity of Franchisee and shall firnish the list to
HOA so that HOA actually recetves such list by the end of ten (10) days after
HOA requests such list.

6. If Franchisee is a partnership. Franchisee shall mamtain a current list of all

general and linited partmers, and a list of all owners of record and all beneficial
owners of any class of voting equity of Franchisee and such general and limited
partners, and shall furnish such list to HOA so that HOA actually recetves such
Iist by the end of ten (10) days after HOA requests such list.

e Each Principal of Franchisee, and such of Franchisee's other equityholders as HOA may
specify. shall enter into a contimnng guaranty agreement in the form attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit A (the “Guaranty™). HOA may amend or modify the form of such
Guaranty from time to tume as to equityholders signing the Guaranty after the Effective
Diate of this Agreement.

D. Franchisee assumes all costs, hability, expense, and responsibility for locatng, obtaining,
and developing the Approved Location for the Restaurant and for constructing and
equipping the Restavrant at such Approved Location. Franclusee shall not make any
binding commutment to a prospective vendor or lessor of real estate with respect to the
Approved Location unless HOA approves such Approved Location in accordance with
the procedures set forth m this Agreement and unless the lease documents for such
Approved Location provide, without limitation: (1) that the landlord shall provide HOA
with notice of anv default thereunder at least thirty (30) days prior to any termunation of
the lease. specifying such default and granting HOA the right (but not the obligation) to
cure any such default within such period; and (i1) that the landlord approves of HOA as
an assignee of Franchisee’s mterest thereunder FRANCHISEE ACEMNOWLEDGES
THAT HOA’S APPROVAL OF AN APPROVED LOCATION AND THE
RENDERING OF ASSISTANCE IN THE SELECTION OF AN APPROVED
LOCATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE HOA'S REPRESENTATION. PROMISE,
WARRANTY. OR GUARANTY THAT A HOOTERS RESTAURANT AT THAT
APPROVED LOCATION WILL BE PROFITABLE OR OTHERWISE SUCCESSFUL.

E. Franchisee shall at its expense., and to HOA's satisfaction, comply with all of the
following requirtements:

1. Before commencing Construction of the Restaurant, Franchisee shall submuit a
site plan to HOA mcluding a footpnnt of the proposed building, and
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architectural, kitchen, and signage drawings, for HOA s approval. Franchisee, at
its option, may use any architect or engmneer HOA currently uses ta prepare
detailed plans and specifications for the Construction of the Restaurant.

2. Franchisee shall: (1) use a qualified general confractor or construction supervisor
to supervise the Construction of the Restaurant and the completion of all
improvements; and (i) submit to HOA a statement providing the name and
contact mformation of such general contractor or construction supervisor.

3 Franchisee shall cause such Construction to be performed only in accordance
with the site plan and the plans and specifications HOA approved. No changes
will be made to such approved plans and specifications. or to the Construction, or
to any of the materials used in the Restaurant. or to interior and exterior colors of
the Restaurant, without HOA s express prior written consent.

4. Franchisee shall obtain and shall thereafter mamntain all licenses, pernmts, and
certifications required for lawful Construction of the Restaurant, including
without himitation building, zoning, access. parking, driveway access. sign, and
occupancy permits and licenses, and shall cernfv in wrniting to HOA that 1t has
obtained all such licenses, pernuts, and certifications.

5. Franchisee shall obtain and shall thereafter maintain all health life, safety,
alcoholic beverage. and other licenses, permmts, and certifications requred for
operation of the Restaurant and shall cemtify in wnting to HOA prior to the
Opening Date that 1t has obtained all such hcenses. permuts. and certifications.

F. HOA will provide 1ts manager traming program to up to six (6) of Franchisee’s manager-

m-tramming  (“MIT™) personnel  If Franclusee 15 an mdradual, Franchisee and
Franchisee’s management personnel must complete HOA s manager training program to
HOA’s reasonable satisfaction prior to Franchisee’s opening of the Restaurant for
business. If Franchisee 1s a corporation, partmership, limited hability company, or other
business entity, at least one (1) Prncipal of Franchisee and Franchisee's management
personnel must complete HOA's manager trammg program to HOA's reasonable
satisfaction prior to Franchisee's opening of the Restaurant for business. At HOA's
option. key personnel Franchisee subsequently employs must also complete HOA's
manager traimng program to HOAs reasonable satisfaction. HOA may. at its discretion,
make avalable additional tramung programs, semunars, and refresher courses to
Franchises and Franchisee’s designated personnel from time to time. All such training
will take place at the locations HOA designates. HOA may, at any tume, discontinue
management traimng and decline to certify Franchisee or Franchisee's designated
personnel who fail to demonstrate an understanding acceptable to HOA of the
management traming. If HOA discontinues the management tramng of Franchisee or
Franchisee’s designated personnel. Franchisee shall have thirty (30) days to present HOA
with an acceptable altemative candidate for the manager tramng program  If HOA
reasonably determunes that Franchisee 1s unable or unwilling to provide mdividuals who
can complete the manager training program to HOA s reasonable satisfaction, or if HOA
reasonably deterrmines that the individuals whom Franchisee has presented for manager
traiming lack the skills to operate the Restaurant successfully, HOA will have the right to
termunate this Agreement purspant to Section XIIID.7. hereof HOA will provide
mstructors and training materials for all required traimng programs. Franclusee shall be
responsible for all expenses Franchisee or iis personnel meur m connection with any
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traiming programs, includimg without limitation wage and benefit costs. and the costs of
transportation, lodging. and meals.

G. Franchisee shall designate at least one (1) manager (the “General Manager™) of the
Restaurant who shall have authority over the other managers. If Franchisee is an
mdrvidual, Franchisee may serve as General Manager. Franchisee’s designated General
Manager shall devote his or her full time. energy. and best efforts to the management and
operation of the Restaurant. Franclusee will require such General Manager to complete,
to HOA’s reasonable sansfaction, an HOA-approved manager training program by the
end of mnety {90} days after such mdividual’s appomtment to serve as General Manager.

H. HOA will offer Franchisee the trammung resources for Franchisee’s hourly emplovees
described 1 this Section V.H.  HOA will provide such trammng at Franchisee’s
Restaurant prior to. dunng. and mmmediately after Franchisee’s opening of the Restaurant
for business. Franchisee must give HOA not less than thirty (30) days notice of when
traiming should begin. In order for trammg to begin. Franchisee must have recerved such
governmental approvals as are required to open the Restaurant for business, and all
refrigeration, katchen. and cooking equipment nust be functiomng.

1. Pre-Opening Training (FOR FRANCHISEE'S FIRST RESTAURANT). As 1o
Franchisee’s first Restaurant under this Agreement, HOA shall furnish the
following traming assistance:

a Two (2) training coordinators. HOA 1s responsible for all compensation,
costs, and expenses of the traming coordinators.

b. Up to six (6) certified front-of-house tramers. as HOA designates. for
seven (7) days of trammg.  HOA 1s responsible for the wages of the
front-of-house tramers for such seven (7) days.

c. Up to four (4) back-of-house tramers, as HOA designates, for fourteen
(14) days of trammg. HOA is responsible for the wages of the back-of-
house tramers for the first seven (7) days. Franclusee is responsible for
the wages of the back-of-house tramers after such seven (7) days.

d. One or two bar tramers. as HOA designates, for seven (7) days of
trammng.  Franchisee shall pay HOA $130.00USD to $200.00 USD
nunimum total compensation per bar trainer for each lunch shift and
$1530.00 USD to $200.00 USD pummmum total compensation per bar
trainer for each dinner shift each bar trainer works

e Up to ten {10) jumpstarters. The general complement for the opening of
a franchisee’s first Restaurant 1s six (6) Hooters Gurl jumpstarters and
four (4) cook jumpstarters. Such jumpstarters will generally commence
working 1n the Restaurant on the Restaurant’s opening day. Franchisee
shall pay HOA 3$15000USD to $200.00USD mimmum total
compensation per Hooters Gurl jumpstarter for each lunch shift and
$150.00 USD to $200.00 USD minimmun total compensation per Hooters
Girl jumpstarter for each dinner shift each Hooters Girl jumpstarter
works. Hooters Girl jumpstarters shall be entitled to keep guests’ tips.
Franchisee shall pay HOA $150.00 USD to $200.00 USD nunimum total
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compensation per shift for each cook jumpstarter. depending on the
expertence of such cook jumpstarter.

f HOA shall have the right to increase the munimum compensation of such
bar tramers, Hooters Girl jumpstarters. and cook jumpstarters as needed
to respond to changes 1n busmess conditions, supply and demand, and
like factors. with prior written notice to Franchisee. Jumpstarters
generally work in the Restaurant duning the first seven (7) days after
opening,

2. Pre-opening Traming (FOR FRANCHISEE'S SECOND OR SUBSEQUENT

BRESTAURANTS). As to Franchisee's second or subsequent Restaurants under
this Agreement. 1f applicable, HOA shall fumish twe (2) traimng coordinators.
HOA will pay the costs and expenses of the trainng coordiators.

E3 Pnior to the time Franchisee opens its second or any additional
Restaurants, Franchisee shall cause key employees from Franchisee’s
first Restaurant to be trained as certified tramners in accordance with the
Wamuals. Franchisee's certified tramers and Hooters Girl jumpstarters
will then conduct the traiming of new employees in the second or

additional Restaurants.

b. Franchisee will be responsible for the costs and expenses of its ceritfied
trainers and Hooters Girl jumpstarters used in openmng the second or
additional Restaurants.

3. Franchisee shall pay HOA the expenses of HOA’'s tramers. Hooters Gl

jumpstarters, and cook jumpstarters. Expenses shall include, without hinntation,
travel expenses, per diem. and lodging expenses. Travel within 250 nules of an
HOA restaurant 15 by automobile, and drvers are paid $0.20 (US) per mile.
Travel farther than 250 nules 1s by commercial atrline with tickets booked to
nunimize fares, subject to availability. Per diem is currently $25.00 USD per day
unless HOA approves some other amount 1 advance. Lodging rates can be
negotiated locally at Franclusee's discretion; however. Franchisee must select
and designate lodging with consideration for safety, security. cleanliness of the
facility. and proximuty of the lodging to the Restanrant. HOA mav change the
above-stated rates from time to time. on prior written notice to Franchisee.

4. HOA will provide Franchisee with invoices for amounts owed under tlus
Section V.H. HOA may require Franchisee to pre-pay all or a portion of such
amounts. Franchisee shall pay such amounts so that HOA actually receives
payment by the end of thirty (30) days after HOA delivers each such mnvoice.

L Franchisee shall use the Approved Location solely for the operation of the Restaurant.
Franchisee shall not use or pernut the use of the Approved Location for any other
purpose of actrvity at any tune without first obtaining HOA s written consent. Franchisee
shall keep the Restaurant open and in normal operation for a nunimum of seven (7) days
a week, fiftv-two (52) weeks per vear. during the hours of 11:00 a.m. to 12:00 nudmght
Monday through Thursday, 11:00 am. to 1:00 am:. Fnday and Saturday, and 11:00 am.
to 10:00 p.m. on Sundays; provided, however, Franchisee may close the Restaurant on
two (2} holidays that Franchisee selects and that are considered national holidays within
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Franchisee’s jurisdiction, subject to HOA's approval HOA may specify different
nunumum hours and davs of operation from time to time 1 the Manuals or otherwise. All
such minimum days and hours of operation are subject to local ordinances and lease
restrictions, if any. Franchisee shall not locate or permut to be located on or about the
Restaurant premises or any other area of the Approved Location any slot machines or
gambling devices, or any coin-operated machines for vending of any merchandise. or
entertamnment devices for the playing of electronic or manual games or for any smular
purpose. except as prescribed m the Manuals or as HOA may otherwise approve in
writing. Franchisee shall not permut the sale of products or services not included n the
Hooters System without HOA's prior express wrntten consent. HOA, m its sole
discretion. may prescribe conditions under which Franchisee may sell such products or
services.

I Franchisee shall display all signs and other promotional materials HOA may require, to
the extent permutted by applicable constitutions. statutes. ordinances, rules. regulations,
court orders. and decisional authority (hereinafter collectively the “Laws™) of all national,
state, provincial, regional. and local governmental authonities having junisdiction over the
Restaurant. The color. size, design. and location of such signs shall be as HOA specifies
or approves. Franclusee shall not place additional signs, posters. or other décor 1tems 1n,
on. or abour the Approved Location without HOA s prior written consent.

K. Franchisee shall comply with. and shall cause the Franchised Business, the Approved
Location. the Restaurant. and any Operatmg Company (as defined i Section XII.C. of
this Agreement) to comply with. all applicable Laws. Franchisee shall be solely
responsible for ensuring that all requirements set forth m tlus Agreement and all other
requirements related to the development. opening. and operation of the Restaurant,
mcluding without limiatation all requirements related to employment, employment
discrimunation, building design. buildng construction, hyoiene, food and beverage
products, and alcoholic beverages, comply with anv and all Laws. In the event that any
requirement set forth i this Agreement or any other requirement related to the
development, opening, and operation of the Restaurant violates any Law, and as a result
Franchisee does not comply with this Agreement or other requirements related to the
development. opeming. and operation of the Restaurant, the existence or enforcement of
such Law shall not excuse Franclusee’s noncompliance and shall not prevent HOA from
asserting that such noncompliance coustitutes a default of tlus Agreement.  Franchisee
acknowledges and agrees that it has taken any and all steps necessary to ensure thar tlus
Agreement and all other requirements related to the development, opening. and operation
of the Restaurant comply with all applicable Laws.

L. Franchisee shall maintain the interior and exterior of the Restaurant, and all other areas of
the Approved Location. 1n first-class repair and condition. and in compliance with all of
HOA’s mamtenance and operating standards. In connection wath such mamtenance.
Franchisee shall make such additions, alterations. and repairs to the Approved Location,
and such replacement of items in and about the Restaurant, as HOA may require, which
additions, alterations, and repairs may include, without hmutation. peniodic repamting,
refinishing, and repaining of the Restaurant interior and exterior and replacing of obsolete
or worn signs. furnishings, fixtures, and equipment.

ML Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that it 15 in Franchisee’s best interests, and in the

best wterests of the Hooters System. that Franchisee's Restaurant be clean. up-to-date,
well-mantained, and well-appomted. Therefore, Franchisee acknowledges and agrees
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that Franclusee will, at HOAs request, remedel, redecorate, equip. tmprove, and modify
{collectively. “Rencovate™) the Restaurant to conform such Restaurant to: (1) the bulding
design, trade dress. color schemes. signage. and presentation of trademarks and service
marks consistent with HOA's then-cumrent image; (11) the requirements set forth m the
Manmuals: and (11) the condition, state of repawr, and general appearance of Hooters
restaurants that HOA reasonably deems desirable. HOA and Franchisee acknowledge
and agree that the Renovations are mtended to be penodic remodeling. redecorating,
equipping, muprovement to. and modification of Franchisee’s Restaurant, and that
nothing contamed m this Section V.M. will affect Franchisee’s obligation to mamtan 1ts
Restaurant in compliance with the other provisions of this Agreement and the Manuals.
Notwithstanding anytiung set forth i this Section V.M. to the contrary, HOA will not
require Franchisee to Renovate the Restaurant more often than one (1) time every five (5)
years.

N Franchisee shall operate the Restaurant mn stnct compliance with such methods,
standards, and specifications as HOA may from time to tume prescribe in the Manuals or
otherwise in writing, to mamtain maxunum efficiency and productivity and to ensure that
the highest degree of quality, appearance, and service is uniformly mamntamed. Without
limating the generality of the foregoing, Franchisee specifically agrees:

1 To maintain n sufficient supply, and to use at all tmes. only such produets,
materials. supplies. ingrechents. and like items as HOA may requre, and to
refrain from deviatnng therefrom by using nonconformung items without HOA s
prior wiitten consent;

2. To use at all tmes only such methods of preparation. methods of service. and like
methods as HOA may require, including withour limitation HOA s standards and
specifications for preparation and presentation of products served; and to refrain
from dewviating therefrom by using nonconforming methods withouwt HOA s prior
written cousent;

3 To maimntain the highest standards of cleanliness. health, and sanitation;
4. To obtain such products, equipment. services, and supplies as HOA may require.

for the appropriate handling. preparation. presentation, selling. and service of any
food or beverage products:

A

To require clean uniforms confonming to such specifications as to color, design,
and like factors as HOA may designate from tume to time, to be worn by all of
Franchisee’s personnel ar all imes while working at, in, through, or on behalf of
the Restaurant, and to cause all personnel to present a clean, neat appearance and
to render competent and courteous service to guests,

6. To permut HOA | at any reasonable time, to remove from the Restaurant samples
of items without payment therefor. in amounts reasonably necessary for testing
by HOA or an independent laboratory to deternmne whether such samples meet
HOA’s then-current standards and specifications. HOA may require Franclisee
to bear the cost of such testing 1f HOA has not previously approved the supplier
of the ttem, or if the sample fails to conform to HOA s specifications;
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7. Not to mstall or permut to be installed on or about the Restaurant premuses.
without HOAs prior written consent, any furnishings. fixtures, equipment. décor.
signage. or other improvements not previously approved as meeting HOA's

standards and specifications;
8. To employ a sufficient number of tramed and qualified personnel to operate the
Restaurant at its maximum capacity; and
9 To mamtain sufficient inventories to operate the Restaurant at its maximum
capacity.
O HOA may require Franclusee to purchase or lease certamn products, equipment. services,

and supplies. including without houtation furnishings, fixtures. equipment. signage, and
other items required for the operation of the Restaurant. solely from suppliers (including
manufacturers. distributors, and other sources), that demonstrate. to HOA s continung
reasonable satisfaction, the ability to meet HOA's then-cumrent standards and
specifications for such items; that possess adequate quality centrols and capacity to
supply Franchisee’s needs promptly and reliably: and that HOA has first approved
writing and has not thereafter withdrawn from the approved supplier list. HOA will list
such items and suppliers in the Manuals or in periodic bulletins and newsletters HOA
may supply. If Franclisee desires to purchase any items from an unapproved supplier,
Franchisee shall submit to HOA a written request for HOA's consent to use such
supplier, and shall have such supplier acknowledge m writing that Franchisee 15 an
mdependent entity from HOA and that HOA 1s not hable for debts Franchisee meurs.
HOA shall have the nght to require that 1ts representatives be pernutted to mspect the
supplier’s facilities. and that samples from the supplier be delivered to HOA or to an
mdependent laboratory that HOA designates for testing. Franchisee will pay a charge not
to exceed the reasonable cost of the mspection and the actual cost of the test. HOA may
also require that the supplier comply with such other reascnable requirtements as HOA
may deem appropriate. mcluding without Linutation payment of reasonable continuing
mspection fees and admumstrative costs. HOA reserves the right following HOA's
consent 1o use any supplier, to reinspect the facilities and products of such supplier and to
revoke 1ts consent on the supplier’s failure to continue to meet any of HOA s then-current
standards. If in providing products. equipment, services, or supplies to Franchisee, any
third party may obtamn access to any of HOAs Confidential Information or Trade Sectets
(as defined in the Confidentiality Agreement attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B),
HOA may require. as a condition of approval of such supplier, that the supplier execute
covenants of non-disclosure and non-competition 1n a form HOA provides.

P. Franchisee shall grant HOA the right to enter the Restaurant premises at any reasonable
time to mspect. photograph. audiotape, or videotape the Restaurant and the equipment
and operations at the Restaurant. to ensure compliance with this Agreement and the
Manuals: provided. however, that HOA m the exercise of such right shall use all
reasonable efforts to prevent disruption or iterference with the operation of the
Restaurant. Franchisee shall cooperate with HOA 1in such mspections by rendering such
assistance as HOA may reasonably request. and shall enforce and comply with all
mspection standards HOA may establish; and., on reasonable notice from HOA, and
without limiting HOA's other rights under this Agreement. shall take such steps as may
be necessary to correct immediately the deficiencies detected during any such inspection,
wmcluding without linutation immediately desisting from the further use of any products,
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equipment. services. or supplies. mcluding without linitation advertising matenial, that do
not conform to HOA's then-current standards or specifications.

Q. Franchisee shall not engage in any trade practice or other activity, and shall not offer any
product or service, that HOA determines to be harmful to the goodwill of. or to reflect
unfavorably on the reputation of, Franchisee, HOA the Restaurant, the products sold at
the Restaurant, or the Hooters System; or that constitutes a deceptive or unfair trade
practice; or that otherwise violates any applicable Law.

R Franchisee shall give HOA advance written notice of Franchisee’s intent to institute legal
action agamst HOA, stating with specificity the basis for such proposed action, and shall
grant HOA thirty (30) days from HOA’s receipt of such notice to cure the alleged act on
which such legal action 1s to be based.

S In any equipment or trade fixture lease or financing that Franchisee enters mio 1n
connection with the Franclused Business, Franchisee shall include a provision approving
HOA as transferee without any nght to accelerate or to modify such lease or financing,
and requining the lessor or lender to send notice of any default of such lease or financing
to HOA at HOA's then-current address and to give HOA tharty (30) days from the date
HOA receives such notice of default to cure such default. HOA is under no duty or
obligation whatsoever to cure such default. but should HOA elect te cure such default,
Franchisee shall reimburse and mdemmfy HOA for any costs and expenses HOA incurs
i comnection with the cure of such default. on HOA s wrtten request, so that HOA
actually recerves such remmbursement by the end of ten (10) days after HOA requests
such reimbursement.

T, Franchisee may, at its expense, create its own website and social media sites for the
Restaurant. To do so. Franchisee must submit all website and social media site plans and
mformation to HOA for HOA's prior written consent. Franchisee's website, and the
content of all Franchisee’s social media sites, must conform to HOA's then-current
standards. Franchisee must: (1) execute the Internet Web Sites and Listings Agreement
attached to this Agreement as Exiubit F contemporaneously with Franchisee’s execution
of this Agreement; and (i1) keep HOA advised at all times of all of Franchisee’s website
and social media site addresses and domain names.

U. In the event that Franchisee s junisdiction requires HOA to register 1ts franchise offering
m such jurisdiction or to record or register this Agreement. the trademark license granted
by this Agreement, or any docwments, amendments, or agreements related to this
Agreement, or in the event such junsdiction requures such recordal or registration m order
to enforce this Agreement or any of the rights granted under this Agreement, HOA wall
effect such registration or recordals. Franchisee will reimburse HOA for the amount of
the reasonable costs and expenses HOA 1ncurs 1 effecting such registration or recordals,
mcluding without limitation translation costs, filing fees. and reasonable attomeys™ fees
and costs, so that HOA actually recerves such rermbursement by the end of ten (10) days
after demand therefor.

V. Franchisee will immediately notify HOA, in writing, of any act, onussion, or
circumstance that: (1) would constitute a default by Franchisee of this Agreement or any
other agreement to which Franchisee and HOA are parties; or (i1) would reasonably be
expected to impair Franchisee’s ability to fulfill 1ts obligations to HOA  Franchisee will
not intentionally, willfully. or negligently: (a) nusrepresent any matter to HOA: or (b) fail
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to immediately notify HOA of any marter as to which this Agreement requires Franchisee
to nonfy HOA.

VL PROPRIETARY NMARKS

A HOA represents with respect to the Proprietary Marks that:

1.

Pursuant to the License Agreement ongmally dated July 21, 1984 and
subsequently amended. between HOA and HILP, a Florida limited partnership,
as successor m interest to Hooters, Inc.. 2 Flonda corporation. HOA has been
granted the exclusive right to use and to license others to use the Proprietary
Marks to establish Hooters restaurants mn the jurisdiction m which Franchisee’s
Restaurant 1s to be located.

The current registration status of the Proprietary Marks in Franchisee's
qurischction 15 set forth on Exhibit G to this Agreement.  Franchisee
acknowledges that HOA does not covenant, warrant, represent, or agree that it
has the sole or exclusive nght to vse the Propretary Marks i Franchisee's
Jurisciction, or that use of the Proprietary Marks in Franchisee’s jurisdiction does
not violate the nghts of any other person.

HOA has taken, and shall take or cause to be taken. all steps reasonably
necessary to preserve and protect the ownership and validity of the Proprietary
Marks that HOA has designated for use in the Hooters System.

B. Franchises covenants, warrants. represents. and agrees that:

1.

=

il
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Franchisee will use only the Proprietarv Marks HOA designates. and will use
them only i the manner HOA authonizes and permits. Franclusee acknowledges
and agrees that any unauthonized use of the Proprietary Marks will constitute an
mfringement of HOA s rights.

Franchisee will use the Proprmetary Marks only for the operation of the
Franchised Busmess and the Restaurant, and only at the Restaurant or m
advertising for the Restaurant.

Unless HOA otherwise authonzes or requires. Franclusee will operate and
advertise the Restaurant only under the name “Hooters™ without prefix or suffix,
except to describe the location of the Restaurant.

Franchisee will identify itself as the owner of the Franchised Business in
connection with any use of the Proprietary Marks, mcludmg without himitation
on inveices, order forms, receipts, and contracts, and at such conspicuous
locations on the premuses of the Restaurant as HOA may require. The form and
content of such identification will comply with HOA's standards and
specifications.

Franchisee will not use any Propnetary Mark: (1) to meur any obligation or
mdebtedness on behalf of HOA; (i1) as a part of Franchisee’s corporate or other
legal name; (11) m any part of a website domam name without HOA s prior
written consent, wiuch consent HOA will not unreasonably withhold: or (iv) on a
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webstre, mcluding without himitanion a social media site, without HOA s prior
written consent.

Franchisee will file for and maintain, at 1ts sole cost and expense. all trade name
or business name registrations required by HOA or by Law.

Franchisee will prompily execute any powers of attorney or other documents
HOA deems necessary to obtain or enhance protection for the Proprietary Marks,
to maintain the continued validity and enforceability of the Proprietary Marks, to
further HOA's exercise of its rights under this Agreement. or otherwise. In
comnection with Franchisee’s foregoing obligations, Franchisee hereby appomts
HOA. and such other reasonably acceptable firms or mdividuals as HOA may
designate (such firms or individuals being referred to n this Agreement as the
“Trademark Representative™) to obtamn any regstration of Franchisee
Franchisee shall not take any action related to any registration. or cancellation of
any registration, of any Proprietary Mark without HOAs express prior written
consent. On registering such a business name, Franchisee will execute i blank
and give to HOA a then-current business name form (the “Business Name
Form™) necessary to notify the appropriate authority of a change m the entity
operating under the relevant name. HOA will not file the Business Name Form
until the expiration or termunation of this Agreement HOA may complete any
part of the Business Name Form.

In the event that any person or entity commences or threatens liigation against
Franchisee related to the Proprietary Marks. Franchisee will promptly notify
HOA and will cooperate fully m defending or settling such liigation as
determined exclusively by HOA.

C. Franchisee expressly acknowledges and agrees that:

1.

il
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As between HOA and Franchisee, HOA has the sole and exclustve night and
mterest in and to the Proprietary Marks and the goodwill associated with and
symbolized by them.

The Proprietary Marks are valid, distinctive, and serve to identify HOA as the
source of the goods and services offered pursuant to those marks and by those
who are authonized to operate under the Hooters System.

Franchisee will not directly or indirectly contest the validity, dishnctiveness. or
ownership of the Proprietary Marks. or HOAs night to license the Proprietary
Marks, etther during the Term or thereafter.

Franchisee has no ownership interest or other interest i or to the Proprietary
Marks, except the license granted by this Agreement.

In the event HOA substitutes different Proprietary Marks for the Proprietary
Marks Franchisee 1s then using, Franchisee will promptly effect such substitution

at Franchisee’s sole cost and expense.

Any and all goodwill related to Franchisee’s use of the Hooters System or the
Proprietary Marks will inure solely and exclusively to the benefit of HOA, and
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on ternunation or expiration of this Agreement and the license granted under this
Agreement. no monetary amount will be assigned as attributable to any goodwill
associated with Franchisee’s use of the Hooters System or the Proprietary Marks.

7. The license of the Proprietary Marks granted to Franchisee under thus Agreement
15 nonexclusive, and HOA thus has and retains the nights, among others:

a. To use the Proprietary Marks ttself in connection with selling products
and services:

b. To grant other licenses for the Proprietary Marks, in addition to those
licenses already granted to existing franchisees and otherwise; and

c. To develop and establish other systems using marks siular to the
Proprietary Marks. or any other marks. and to grant licenses or franchises
thereto at any locations whatsoever, without providing any nghts or
compensation to Franchisee.

8. HOA and HILP each has the unresinicted nght to engage. directly or indirectly.
through 1ts or their employees, representatives. licensees, assigns, agents. and
others. at wholesale, retail. and otherwise. in the production, distribution. and
sale of products beaning the Proprietary Marks licensed under this Agreement or
other names or marks. mcluding without linmtation products included as part of
the Hooters System. Franclusee will not under any circumstances engage m any
wholesale trade or sale of Hooters System products for resale.

VII. HOOTERS OF AMERICA MANUATS

A

In order to protect the reputation and goodwill of HOA and the Proprietary Marks, to
maintam the high standards of operation under the Hooters System. and to protect the
mvestments of HOA and HOA's other franclusees, Franchisee shall conduct the
Franchised Business and the Restaurant in complhiance with this Agreement. the Manuals,
and such other wrntten directives as HOA may ssue from tune to time whether or not
such directives are made part of the MManuals, and any other manuals. wideotapes, or
materials HOA may create or approve for use i the operation of the Hooters System. the
Franchised Business. or the Restaurant.

Franchisee shall at all imes treat the Manuals. any wntten directives of HOA . any other
manuals, videotapes, and matenals, including without limitation any restaurant plans and
specifications and any supplements to any of them, and the mformation contamed m any
of them, thar HOA created or approves for use in the Hooters Svstem. the Franclused
Business. or the Restaurant, i trust and as Confidential Information or a Trade Secret.

The Manuals, wrnitten directives. other manuals and matenals, and any other confidential
commumications HOA provides or approves, shall at all times remain the sole property of
HOA and shall at all ttmes be kept and maintained 1n a secure place on the Restaurant
Prenuses.

HOA may add to. delete from, or modify the contents of the Manuals and any other
written directives. manuals, and materials created or approved for use in the operation of
the Hooters System. the Franchised Business, or the Restauramt. Franchisee expressly
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agrees that such contents shall be deemed effective on receipt by Franchisee or at such
other time as HOA may otherwise specify.

Franchisee shall at all imes ensure that 1ts copy of the Manuals 15 kept current and up-to-
date. In the event of any dispute as to the contents of the Manuals, the master copy of the
Manuals that HOA mamtains shall be controlling.

Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that: (1) the Manuals will not be tailored for use in
amy country other than the United States; (1) the Manuals will be 1n the English language;
(i11) Franchisee may need to talor the Manuals for vse in Franchisee's jurisdiction;
(1v) Franchisee may need to translate the Manuals for use 1 Franchisee's junsdiction;
(v) Franclusee must comply with the Manvals: and (vi)in the event of any conflict
between a provision of the Manuals for use in the United States, i English. and a
provision of the Manuals as tailored for use i Franchisee’s junisdiction. 1n some other
language, HOAs version of the Mamuals, in English, will prevail.

VI CONFIDENTIAT INFORMATION

A

Franchisee shall strictly comply with the terms of the Confidentiality Agreement attached
to this Agreement as Exlubit B. The Confidentiality Agreement 1s hereby mcorporated
mto this Agreement as if fully ser forth herein.

Franchisee shall without request by HOA. cause its Principals, General Manager,
managers. and any cther personnel, agents, or representatives having access to any of
HOA’s Confidential Information or Trade Secrets. mncluding without linutation the
MManuals. to execute Exhibat A to the Confidentiality Agreement, to provide the date and
such party’s address as required by Exhubit A, and to deliver a fully-executed. dated
original of Exhibit A to HOA prior to and as a condition precedent to granting such
person access to the Confidential Information or Trade Secrets.

Franchisee agrees that any failure to comply with the requirements of this Section VIIL
or the Confidentiality Agreement will cause HOA irreparable injury for which HOA has
no adequate remedy at law. Therefore, Franchisee agrees that HOA will have the night to
myunctrve relief including without limstation a decree for specific performance, to
compel Franchisee’s compliance with tlus Section VI and the Confidentiality
Agreement. Franchisee will pay all court costs and reasonable attomeys’™ fees HOA
meurs related to obtaining specific performance of or that HOA incurs related to
obtaming an mjunction agamst violation of this Section VIII. or the Confidentiality
Agreement together with all damages HOA may incur related to Franchisee’s failure to
comply with the requirements of this Section VIIL or the Confidentiality Agreement.

IX. ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS

A

Franchisee shall maintain. and shall preserve for at least four {(4) vears after the dates of
their preparation. full. complete, and aceurate books, records. and accounts, prepared in
accordance with generallv-accepted accounting principles of Franchisee™s jurisdiction,
consistentlv applied. 1n the form and manner HOA prescribes.

Franchisee shall submur to HOA:
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1. After the opeming of the Restaurant: (1) a royalty report. on a calendar month
basis, 1 the form HOA prescriibes, that accurately states all Gross Sales dunng
each preceding calendar month and that provides such other data or imformation
as HOA may requure, so that HOA actually recerves such report by the end of ten
{10) days after the end of each calendar month; (1) profit and loss statements and
balance sheets prepared in accordance with generally-accepted accounting
principles consistently applied for each accounting period. so that HOA actually
recetves such information by the end of fifteen (15) days after the end of each
month covered by the report; and (111) copies of all tax retums that Franchisee 15
required by law to file related to the Restaurant. so that HOA actually receives
such returns by the end of ten (10) days after the end of the applicable tax
reporting pertod.

2. Reports of daily receipts, vendor purchases, payroll pavments, and such other
forms. reports, records, and mformation as HOA may request from time fo time,
and reports of all rebates. discounts, allowances, marketing assistance, or other
benefits recerved from vendors, on forms HOA provides to Franchisee or in the
form HOA specifies.

3 Such records, reports. documents, data. certificates, and other mformation related
to this Agreement. Franchisee’s obligations, the Franchised Business, or the
Restaurant, as HOA may require, so that HOA actually recerves such items by
the end of ten (10) days after HOA requests that Franchisee submt such items to
HOA.

C. Franchisee shall_ at 1is expense, provide to HOA a profit and loss statement and balance
sheet, accompanied by a review report certified by Franchisee’s chief executive officer or
chief financial officer, within nunety (90) days after the end of each of Franchisee’s fiscal
years, showing the results of operations of the Restaurant during such fiscal year. HOA
reserves the right to require Franchisee to have such review report prepared by an
independent certified public accountant i Franchisee’s jurisdiction satisfactory to HOA.

D. HOA and 1ts designated agents shall have the right, at all reasonable times, to exanune
and copy. at HOA's expense, the books. records, tax returns. and tax filings of
Franchisee, any Operating Company, the Franchised Business, and the Restaurant. HOA
shall also have the right. at any time, to have an mdependent audit made of the books of
the Franchised Business and the Restaurant. If an imspection should reveal that any
payments to HOA have been understated i any report to HOA, Franchisee shall
mmmediately pay to HOA the amount understated on HOA's demand. plus mnterest on
such amount from the date such amount came due until paid, at the Default Rate,
calculated on a daily basis. If an mspection discloses an understatement 1n any payvment
to HOA of two percent (2%) or more, Franchisee shall. in addition. reimburse HOA for
any and all costs and expenses related to the wspection (including without linmtation
travel, food. lodging. and wage expenses of HOAs personnel. and reasonable accounting
and legal fees and costs); and, at HOA’'s discretion, shall submut audited financial
statements prepared, at Franclusee's expense. by an independent certified public
accountant sarisfactory to HOA. If an inspection discloses an understatement in any
payment to HOA of four percent (4%) or more, such act or omission shall constitute
grounds for termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section XIILA 4 of this
Agreement. The foregoing remedies shall be 1 addition to any other remedies HOA may
have pursuant to this Agreement or at law, in equity, or otherwise.
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E.

Franchisee shall comply with the daily accounung and reporting procedures HOA
prescribes, as modified from time to time. and shall purchase the accounting and
reporting equipment, wmcluding without Limtation point of sale equipment. that HOA
requires.

b & ADVERTISING

A
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HOA may, from time to time, provide to Franchisee, at Franchisees expense, such
advertising and promotional plans and matenals as HOA deems advisable for local
advertising. HOA may develop advertising programs for the promotion of the
Proprietary Marks or merchandise offered at Hooters restaurants, and Franchisee must
comply with the requirements of such programs.

Franchises will comply with its local advertising obligations set forth m Section IV.D. of
this Agreement. Franchisee may conduct such additional local advertising and promotion
of the Restaurant as Franchisee deems appropmate. All advertising and promotion
Franchisee conducts shall conform to soch standards and requrements as HOA may
specify. Franchisee shall submit to HOA for HOA’s prior written approval (except with
respect to product prices to be charged) samples of all advertising and promotional plans
and materials that Franchisee desires to use and that HOA has not prepared or previously
approved. Franchisee shall display the Proprietary Marks m the manner HOA prescribes
on all signs and other advertising and promotional materials used 1 connection with the
Franchised Business.

International Advertising Fund.

1. If HOA establishes the Intemnational Advertising Fund, Franchisee will pay the
International Advertising Fee as set forth m Section IV.D. of tlus Agreement.
HOA or HOA s designee will maintain the International Advertising Fee in the
International Advertising Fund. on terms HOA determunes. HOA or its designee
will direct all advertising and promotional programs with sole discretion over the
crearive concepts., content, sponsorships, materials. and endorsements for any
marketing programs, together with the geographic, market, and media placement.
and allocation thereof. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that HOA may use
the International Advernsing Fund, in HOA's sole discretion, to. among other
thungs. fund advertising, promotional, and public relations activities; pay costs of
producing, preparing, distnibuting, and using marketing. advertismg, and other
materials and programs; admunister national. regional, and other marketing
programs; purchase sports sponsorslups; purchase media; employ advertising,
public relations. and other agencies and firms: support market research: and pay
reasonable administrative costs and overhead related to such uses. In connection
therewith, the International Advertising Fund shall have the nght to hire
consultants. some of whom may be affiliated with HOA, such as an in-house
advertising agency, to assist with marketing programs and matenials for the
Hooters System. Franclusee acknowledges and agrees that the International
Advertising Fund shall be used to maximize general public recogmition and
acceptance of the Proprietary Marks and all Hooters restaurants, and that HOA 1s
not obligated in administering the International Advertising Fund to undertake
expenditures for Franclusee that are equivalent to Franchisee’s confribution. or to
ensure that any particular franchisee benefits directly or pro rata from
expenditures the International Advertising Fund makes. On Franchisee’s written
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request, HOA will furnish or cause to be furmshed to Franchisee, not more than
once annually. an accounting of the Intemational Advertising Fund's receipts and
disbursements.

The International Advertismng Fund., all contributions to the International
Advertising Fund, and any earmings on such contributions, will be used
exclusively to meet any and all costs of maintaining, adnunistering, researching,
directing, preparing, and conducting advertising or promotional activities.

All sums Franchisee pays to the Intemational Advertising Fund will be
maintamed i an account separate from the other monies of HOA and will not be
used to defray any of HOA s expenses. except for such reasonable adnunistrative
costs and overhead as HOA may mcur in activities reasonably related to the
admnistration or direction of the International Advernsing Fund and advertising
programs for franchisees under the Hooters System. The International
Advertising Fund will not otherwise mnure to HOA's benefit HOA or 1ts
designee will maintain separate bookkeeping accounts for the International
Advertising Fund.

HOA anticipates that most contributions to and earings of the Intemnational
Advertising Fund will be expended for advertising or promotional purposes
during the taxable year m which the International Advertising Fund recerves such
contributions and earnings. To the extent that excess amounts remain m the
International Advertising Fund at the end of such taxable year. all expenditures m
the following taxable year will be made first out of accumulated earmings from
previous vears. next out of earmings in the cumrent yvear. and finally from
contributions. HOA, in its sole discretion, may spend in any fiscal year an
amount greater or less than any aggregate contributions to the International
Advertising Fund 1 that vear. HOA may canse the International Advertising
Fund to borrow from HOA or its affiliates or other lenders to cover deficits of the
International Advertismg Fund. HOA may cause the International Advertising
Fund to invest any susplus for future use. HOA may apply Franchisee's
International Advertising Fee payments. m HOA's sole discretion. to any
obligations Franchisee owes to HOA or any of HOAs affiliates.

The International Advertising Fund 1s not and will not be an asset of HOA or 1ts
designee. HOA shall not have any direct or mdirect liability or obligation to
Franchisee, the Intermational Advertsing Fund. or otherwise, related to the
maintenance, management, direction, admimstration, or otherwise of the
International Advertising Fund. Franclisee acknowledges and agrees that:
(1) Franchisee’s and HOA's nghts and obligations with respect to the
International Advertising Fund and all related matters are governed solely by tlus
Agreement; and (11) this Agreement and the International Advertising Fund are
not in the nature of a “trust.” “fiduciary relationship.” or smular specaal
arrangement, and are rather an arms-length commercial relationship between
mdependent business entities for their independent economic benefit.

Although HOA intends that the International Advertising Fund be of perpetual
duration, HOA retains the right to termumate the International Advertising Fund.
HOA will not termunate the International Advertising Fund until all monies 1 the
International Advertismg Fund have been expended for advertising or




promotional purposes or returned to contributors on the basis of their respective
contributions:

HOA may require Franclusee to participate i cooperative advertising programs with
certain suppliers or approved sources of goods. Franchisee shall have the right to sell its
products and offer services at any price Franchisee may deternune, and shall 11 no way be
bound by any price that HOA may recommend or suggest.

XL INSURANCE

A

Franchisee shall obtain, prior to the commencement of anv operations under this
Agreement. and shall mamtamn m full force and effect at all times. at Franchisee’s
expense, an insurance policy or policies msunng Franchisee, together with HOA, HILP,
and Franchisee's and their respective directors. officers. shareholders. general partners,
limted parmers, members, employees, and agents. as additional msureds. agamst any
demand or claim related to personal mjury, death, or property damage. or anv other loss.
expense, liability, damage. or damages whatsoever, amsing out of or related to the
Franchised Business.

Such policy or policies shall be wntten by an mnsurance company satisfactory to HOA,
and shall be in accordance with standards and specifications =et forth in the Manuals or
otherwise m writing from time to time, and shall mclude. at a mumimum (except as HOA
may specify additional coverages and higher policy linuts from time to time), the
following initial nummum coverages:

1. (1) Commercial General Liability Insurance. wncluding coverage for products
Liability. completed operations lability, confractual liability, persenal injury,
advertising myury, fire damage. medical expenses, and hquor liability, plus
{i1) non-owned automobile liability insurance and, if Franchisee owns. rents, or
wdentifies any velucles with any Proprietary Mark or if velucles are used m
connection with the operation of the Franchised Business, automobile hability
coverage for owned, non-owned, scheduled, and lured vehicles; plus (i11) excess
liability umbrella coverage for the general hability and automobile habality
coverages. All such coverages shall be on an occurrence basis and shall prowvide
for watvers of subrogation.

2. Comprehensive crime and blanket employee dishonesty insurance.

3. All-nsk property msurance, mcluding theft and flood coverage (when
applicable), covering the Restaurant bulding. improvements, fumiture, fixtures,
equipment, and food and beverage products. Coverage shall be written in a value
that will cover not less than eightv percent (80%) of the replacement cost of the
building and one hundred percent (100%) of the replacement cost of the contents
of the building.

4. Business interruprion msurance of not less than $50,000 per month for loss of
mcome and other expenses with a linut of not less than six (6) months of
coverage.

5. Employer’s hability and workers” compensation insurance, as applicable Law

may now or later require.
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6. The monetary amounts of the coverages set forth m Sections XI.B.1. through
XIB4 of this Agreement shall be the amounts that a reasonably prudent
businessperson would mamtain m connection with the openg and operation of
restaurants similar to Franclusee's Restaurant and a business sinular to the
Franchised Busmess. all within the junsdiction where Franchisee’s Terntory 1s

located.

The amount of coverage of each policy HOA requires Franchisee to obfamn and mamtain
shall be the amount that a reasonably prudent businessperson would obtain and maintain
for a restaurant sinular to the Restaurant, and for a busmess similar to the Franclused
Business. i Franchisee™s junisdiction.

Franchises’s obligation to obtain and mamtam the foregomg policy or policies in the
amounts specified shall not be limted 1n any way by reason of any msurance that HOA
may maintain, nor shall Franclusee’s performance of such obligations relieve Franchisee
of liability under the indemnity provisions set forth 1n Section XVIIL of tlus Agreement.

Prior to the opening of the Restaurant, and thereafter at least thirty (30) days prior to the
exprration of any such policy. Franchisee shall deliver to HOA certificates of msurance
evidencing the proper coverage with limits not less than those required uvnder this
Agreement.  All certificates shall expressly provide that the msurer will grve HOA not
less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice in the event of matenal alteration to,
ternunation of, non-renewal of, or cancellatton of the coverages evidenced by such
certificates.

XII. TRANSFER OF INTEREST

A
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Transfer by HOA HOA shall have the absolute right to transfer, assign, and delegate all
or any part of 1ts rights and obligations under this Agreement to any person or enfity
HOA deems appropriate. Such transfer, asstgnment, or delegation shall effect a complete
novation as to the right or obligation transferred. assigned. or delegated. After such
transfer, assignment, or delegation, Franchisee shall look solely to the transferee
assignee, or delegatee. and not to HOA  for the satisfaction of any obligation transferred,
assigned. or delegated. HOA may also, without Franchisee’s consent. transfer, assign. or
otherwise alter any or all of the ownership in HOA

Transfer by Franchisee or Principals.

1. “Principal” of Franchisee shall mean: (1) a natural person who owns or holds a
ten percent (10%) or greater share of the equity of Franchisee; and (i) a natural
person who owns or holds a ten percent (10%) or greater interest i any business
entity that holds a ten percent (10%) or greater equity interest i Franclusee. If
there are no such natural persons. “Prncipals”™ shall mean the eight (8) natural
persons who own or hold the greatest shares of equity of Franclusee. An
equitvholder shall be deemed to “own™ equity where such ownership is direct.
mdirect, or beneficial. Franchisee’s Principals and other equutyholders as of the
Effective Date, and the percentage and tvpe of equity of Franchisee each such
equitvholder owns or holds, and the manner of such holding, are set forth on
Exhibit E to this Agreement.

]
N
i




wn

HEOAIn FAT41141211

Franchises acknowledges and agrees that: (1) thas Agreement is a contract for the
persenal services of Franchisee and 1ts Principals: and (1) HOA has granted thus
Agreement in reliance on mnformation Franchisee and its Prncipals provided
related to Franchisee’s and such Principals™ business skills. business acumen,
personal character, education, credit rating, and financial resources (collectively,
the “Pancipal Qualifications™). Franchisee hereby directs any party constriung
this Agreement. including without limitation any court, mediator, master. or other
party acting as a trier of fact or law. to conclusively presume that this Agreement
15 a contract for the personal services of Franchisee and 1ts Principals.

Principals shall own and hold a majonity of the equity in Franchisee and any
Operating Company. The remamning equity m Franchisee and any Operating
Company may be owned or held by non-Prncipal natural persons not to exceed
ten {10) in number, directly. indirectly. or beneficially. with HOA s prior written
consent, which consent HOA may grant or withhold in HOA s sole discretion.

HOA’s prior written consent is a necessary condition precedent to the sale,
assignment. delegation, transfer. conveyance, gifi. pledge. mortgage,
encumbrance, or hypothecation (collectively, the “Transfer™) of any of the
following:

a Any direct, mdirect. or beneficial interest of Franchisee or any
equitvholder 1 Franchisee, the Franclused Business. any Operating
Company. this Agreement. the Franchise granted under this Agreement.
any Approved Location, any Restaurant. or all or substantially all of the
assets of the Franchised Business except as expressly permutted in this
Agreement; and

b. Franchisee, the Franchised Business, anv Operating Company, this
Agreement. the Franchise granted under tlus Agreement. any Approved
Location. any Restaurant, or all or substantially all of the assets of the
Franchised Business. except as expressly permutted 1n this Agreement.

Except as specifically provided m this Agreement. HOA has the absolute and
unfettered nght to withhold 1ts consent to a Transfer of any mierest described m
Section XILB 4. of this Agreement (collectively, any “Interest”™). Any pernutted
transferee must satisfy the Prancipal Qualifications. In addition. HOA may. n 1fs
sole discretion. require any or all of the following as conditions precedent to
HOA s consent to such Transfer:

a Franchisee and its affiliates must sansty all monetary obligations and
other outstanding obligations owed to HOA, HOA's affiliates. and
Franchisee’s other creditors.

L. Franchises and its affiliates must have substantally complied with this
Agreement. any amendment to this Agreement, and all other agreements
between Franchisee or such affiliates on the one hand. and HOA or
HOAs affiliates on the other hand: and. at the time of Transfer. must not
be 1n default of any such agreements.
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C. Franchisee. Principals, transferor, and transferee must duly execute and
deliver to HOA's then-current form of transfer and assumption
agreement, wiach transfer and assumption agreement: (1) will require the
transferee to assume and agree to discharge all of the obligations of the
transferor; (1) will provide that the transferor shall remain hable for all
of the obligations to HOA and HOA’s affiliates in commection with the
Franchized Business ansing prior to the effective date of the Transfer
and (iti) will contain a Release in substantially the form attached as
Exhibit H to this Agreement.

d. If the Transfer 1s a Transfer of Franclusee. the Franchised Business, any
Operating Company. the Francluse granted under this Agreement, any
Approved Location. any Restaurant. or all or substantially all of the
assets of the Franchised Business. the transferee must enter into HOA s
then-current  form of mternational franchise agreement (the
“Replacement Franchise Agreement™). The provisions of the
Replacement Franchise Agreement may differ matenally from the
provisions of this Agreement. HOA will not require the transferee fo pay
the mutial francluse fee set forth 1 Section IV A of thus Agreement. The
nitial term of the Replacement Franchise Agreement shall be the balance
remaming of the Initial Term of this Agreement.

e The transferee. at 1ts expense, must Renovate the Restaurant. and must
complete such Renovation by the end of the reasonable time HOA may
specify.

f The transferee and, if applicable, the transferee’s designated general

manager, must complete any training programs then m effect for new
franchisees prior to the effective date of such Transfer. on such terms and
conditions as HOA may reasonably require.

e Except mn the case of a Transfer to an Operating Company. transferor or
transferee must pay HOA a Transfer fee m an amount equal to twenty
percent (20%) of HOA s then-current initial francluse fee (the “Transfer
Fee™).

h The transferee must agree to a sublease, or to a transfer and assumption,
of the lease of the Approved Location from the oniginal franchisee, and
must obtam the landlord™s approval prior to any transfer or sublease, if
applicable.

6. Any purported Transfer that does not comply with this Section XII.B. shall be
votdable by HOA. and shall be a default of this Agreement that shall pernut
HOA to ternunate this Agreement pursuant to Section XIIIA 7. of tlus
Agreement.

C. Transfer to Franclusee’s Operating Company.

1. As used m this Agreement, “Operating Rights” shall mean the night and
obligation to operate a specific Restanrant: (1) under, and m comphiance with, tlus
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Agreement; and (11) subject to the consent of HOA set forth 1n HOA's form of
Consent to Transfer of Operating Rights.

Franchisee may transfer the Operating Rights to a specific Restaurant to an
operating company {the “Operating Company™). Franchisee or Principals must
own and hold (directly. mndirectly, and beneficially) a majonty of the voting
equity of such Operatng Company. Such transfer shall be subject to HOA s
consent. which consent HOA will not unreasonably withhold: provided, however,
as a condition precedent to such transfer:

a Franchisee and Operating Company must enter into HOA’s then-current
form of consent to transfer of operating nights. which consent to transfer
of operating nights: (1) will require the Operating Company to assume
and agree to discharge all of the operating nghts and obligations of
Franchisee; (11) will provide that Franchisee shall remain liable for all of
the obligations to HOA and HOA's affihates in connection with the
Restaurant; and (ui) will contain a Release i substantially the form
attached as Exlubit H to tlus Agreement:

b. The Operating Company must comply, except as otherwise approved in
writing by HOA, with the requirements set forth m Section VB, of thus
Agreement; and

c. The Operating Company must execute HOA's then-corrent form of

Registered User Agreement for filing with the appropriate governmental
agencies m all applicable jurisdictions.

Any purported transfer of Operating Rights that does not comply with
Section XI1.C.2. shall be voidable by HOA, and shall be a defaulr of tlus
Agreement that shall pernmt HOA to termunate this Agreement pursuant to
Section XTIT A 7 of this Agreement.

In the event of any transfer to an Operatng Company, whether such transfer is
permutted or unpermutted, and regardless of whether HOA, Franclusee, and
Operating Company have entered into HOA's then-current form of consent to
transfer of Operating Raghts, all provisions of this Agreement that grant HOA the
right to terminate this Agreement as a result of acts. onussions, circumstances. or
defaults of Franchisee shall be expanded to permut HOA to termunate tlus
Agreement as a result of acts. onussions, circumstances, or defaults of Operating
Company, as if the term “Franchisee™ specifically included Operating Company.
By way of example, and not by way of lumtation, the provisions of this
Agreement that grant HOA the right to terminate tlus Agreement as a result of
Franchisee’s failure to pay HOA sums Franchisee owes HOA shall likewise grant
HOA the night to termunate thus Agreement as a result of Operating Company’s
fatlure to pay HOA sums Operating Company owes HOA. By way of further
example, and not by way of limitation, the provisions of this Agreement that
grant HOA the night to termunate this Agreement as a result of Franchisee's
msolvency shall likewise grant HOA the nght to termunate this Agreement as a
result of Operating Company’s insolvency.

)




HOA will not charge Franchisee a Transfer Fee for the transfer of Operating
Raghts set forth 1 this Seetion XIL.C: provided, however. Franchisee shall
reimburse HOA for HOA’s actual costs related to such transfer of Operating
Raghts.

wn

D. Raght of First Refusal.

1. Franchises and any Principal who desires to accept any bona fide offer from a
third party to purchase any Interest shall notify HOA 1 writing of each such
offer, and shall prowvide such information and documentation related to the offer
as HOA may require, including witheut limitation a true copy of any such offer.
HOA shall have the right and option, exercisable within twenty (20) business
days after HOA receives such written notification. to send written notice to the
seller that HOA may desire to purchase the Interest on substantially the same
terms and conditions as offered by the third party. To enable HOA to deternune
whether 1t will exercise 1ts option, Franchisee or Prineipal, as appropniate, and the
third party shall provide such information and documentation, including without
limitation financial statements. as HOA may require. In the event that HOA
elects to purchase such Interest, closing on such purchase must occur within
ninety (90) days after the date of notice to the seller of HOA's election to
purchase such Interest. HOA’s election not to exercise the option afforded by
this Section XILD. shall not constitute a watver of any other provision of this
Agreement. mcloding all of the reqmrements of this Section XTI related to a
proposed Transfer of any Interest. Any subsequent change in the terms of any
offer prior to closimg shall constitute a new offer subject to the same rights of
first refusal by HOA as in the case of an initial offer.

=

In the event that the consideration. terms, or conditions offered by a third party
are such that HOA may not reasonably be required to furnish the same
consideration, terms, or conditions, then HOA mav purchase such Interest for the
reasonable equivalent i cash.  If the parties cannot agree within a reasonable
time on the cash consideration, HOA will designate an mdependent appraiser
expertenced 1 appraising such Tnterest, and the determunation of such appraiser
shall be conclusive and binding on all parties.

E. Transfer On Death or Mental Incompeience. On the death or mental mcompetence of
any Principal, the executor, administrator, or personal representative of such individual
shall Transfer within one (1) vear after such death or mental incompetence the Interest
owned and controlled by the Prncipal to a natural person or persons who satisfy the
Principal Qualifications, and whom HOA approves. Mental incompetence, for purposes
of this Agreement, shall mean the appowntment of a gnardian for the Prnetpal by a court
of competent jurisdiction. Such Transfers, including without himatation Transfers by
devise or nhentance, shall be subject to the same conditions as any mter vivos Transfer.
However. m the case of Transfer by devise or inheritance, if the heirs or beneficianies of
any such Principal are unable to safisty the conditions in this Section XII. within such one
(1) vear period. HOA may termunate this Agreement or may exercise 1its option fo
purchase the Interest at fair market value, as determined by an independent appraiser
HOA designates. which deternunation shall be conclusive and binding on all parties.

E. Interim Operation of the Restaurant. Pending assignment on the death of the Principal, or

tn the event of any temporary or permanent mental mcompetence ot physical disabality of
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the Pnncipal. a manager shall be employed for the operation of the Restaurant who has
successfully completed an HOA-approved manager trainmg program, to serve as General
Manager and to operate the Restaurant for the account of Franchisee. If the Restaurant is
not being managed by such General Manager, HOA may appoint a General Manager to
operate the Restaurant until an approved assignee 15 able to assume the management and
operation of the Restaurant, but in no event for a period exceeding one (1) year without
the approval of the Prncipal's personal representative. Such General Manager shall be
deemed an employee of Franchisee. All funds from the operation of the Restaurant
during the pertod of management by such appomrted or approved General Manager shall
be kept in a separate fund, and all expenses of the Restaurant, mncluding the compensation
of such General Manager and the costs and travel and living expenses of such General
Manager (collectively. the “Management Expenses™), shall be charged to such fund. As
compensation for the management services provided, 1 addition to the Fees due under
this Agreement. HOA shall charge such fund the full amount of the direct expenses HOA
mcurs during such period of management for and on behalf of Franclusee, provided that
HOA shall only have a duty to use reasonable efforts and shall not be lable to
Franchisee, the Prnincipal. any personal representative of the Prncipal, the Operating
Company, or any person or enfity having an mterest theremn. for any debts, losses. or
obligations the Restaurant imcurs, or to any creditor of Franclusee or the Pnncipal. duning
any pertod m wlach the HOA-appointed or approved General Manager operates the
Restaurant.

Non-Waiver of Claims. Neither HOAs consent to any proposed Transfer of any Iuterest
nor HOA s election not to exercise its option to purchase any Interest shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of any claims HOA may have against the transferor. nor shall it be
deemed a warver of HOAs night to demand exact compliance with this Agreement or any
future rights or options of HOA.

XIII. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

A

Franchisee shall be in default of this Agreement, and all nights granted under thus
Agreement shall ternunate, in their entirety or as to one or more Restaurants, at HOAs
option, immediately on notice to Franchisee. on the occurrence of any of the following
events:

1. If Franchisee or any Operating Company shall become msolvent. which shall
mean that any one or more of the following apply to Franchisee or Operating
Company:

a A petition 1n bankruptey, msolvency. or like proceeding 15 filed or a case
i bankruptcy, insolvency. or like proceeding 1s commenced by
Franchisee or any Operating Company, or 1s commenced agamnst
Franchises or Operating Company and 1s not dismmssed within tharty (30)
days:

b. Franchisee or any Operating Company 15 adjudicated bankoupt,
msolvent, or mn any sinular financial circumstance;

c Franchisee or any Operating Company takes or attempts to take the
benefit of any law for the relief of debtors;
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Proceedings for a composition of creditors or like proceedings under any
Law are commenced by Franchisee or any Operating Company. or are
commenced agamnst Franchisee or any Operating Company and are not
disnmssed within thurty (30) days:

Franchisee or any Operating Company makes a general assignment for
the benefit of creditors:

A proceeding for the appomtment of a recerver. liquidator. manager, or
other custodian (permanent or temporary) of Franchisee, any Operating
Company, the assets of Franclisee. the assets of any Operating
Company, the Franchised Business, the assets of the Franclused
Business. the Restaurant. or the assets of the Restaurant. or anv part of
any of the foregomg. 1s commenced by Franchisee or any Operating
Company, or 15 commenced against Franchisee or any Operating
Company and 15 not disnussed withmn thirty (30) days;

A recetver, lhiquidator, manager. or other custodian (permanent or
temporary) of Franclisee. the assets of Franchisee, any Operating
Company. the assets of any Operatng Company. the Franclused
Business. the assets of the Franchised Business. the Restaurant. or the
assets of the Restaurant, or any part of the foregoing: (1) 1s apponted by
Franchises or any Operating Company; or (i) 15 appointed by a court of
competent junisdiction or by prvate mstrument or otherwise and such
appointment 15 not disnussed within tharty (30) days;

Execution 1s levied agamnst any ownership interest i, or assets of,
Franchisee, any Operating Company, the Franchised Business. or the
Restaurant;

Any interest 1, or asset of Franchisee, any Operating Company. the
Franchised Business, or the Restaurant 15 sold after levy thereon by any
shenft marshal. bailiff cletk of court. or comparable governmental
authority:

Franchisee or Operating Company 1s evicted from the premmses of the
Approved Location or Restaurant;

HOA reasonably determines that Franchisee or anv Operating Company
15 unable to pay all of its indebtedness as such ndebtedness comes due,
as evidenced by Franchisee’s or Operating Company’s actual failure to
pay such indebtedness as such mdebtedness comes due. or otherwise:

HOA reasonably determunes that Franchisee’s or any Operating
Company’s capital 15 insufficient to carry on Franchisee’s or Operating
Company’s business transactions and all business transactions in which it
15 requred to engage. as evidenced by Franchisee’s or Operating
Company’s actual faillure to carry on such business transactions. or
otherwise;

.
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. An unappealed final judgment agamst Franclisee or Operating Company
remams unsatisfied for thirty (30) days. unless a supersedeas bond or
like bond guarantying payment 1s filed:

n Franchisee or any Operating Company 1s dissolved or 1s wound up; or

o. Franchisee or any Operating Company. jointly or severally, fails on three
(3) or more occasions during any twelve (12) consecutive month period
to pay when due any sum Franchisee or such Operating Company 1s
required to pay HOA or HOA s affiliates, whether or not Franchisee or
Operating Company cure such failure to pay:

If Franclusee, any Operating Company, or any Principal 1s convicted of or pleads
nolo contendere to a felony, fraud. sale of illegal drugs, crime mvolving moral
turpitude. coime that 15 directly related to the Franchised Busmess. or any other
crime that HOA determunes to have an adverse effect on the Restaurant, the
Hooters System, the Proprietary Marks, the goodwill associated with the
Proprietary Marks, or HOAs interest in the Proprietary Marks;

If in violation of Sections VIL or VIIL of this Agreement, or 1if i violation of the
Confidentiality Agreement or Exhibit A to the Confidentiality Agreement.
Franchisee, its Principals, any Operating Company. such Operating Company’s
principals. or the personnel of such Franchisee or Operating Company required to
sign Exhibit A disclose or divulge the contents of the Manuals or any of HOAs
other Confidential Information or Trade Secrets to any person or enfity not
authorized fo recerve such mformation;

If Franchisee or any Operating Company maintains false books or records, or
submits any false reports to HOA. or if any inspection of Franchisee’s or any
Operating Company’s records discloses an understatement of pavments due to
HOA of four percent (4%5) or more;

Except as otherwise provided mn this Agreement. if Franchises or any Operating
Company at any time ceases to operate or otherwise abandons the Franchised
Business. or otherwise forfeits the night to do or transact business in the
Jurischction where the Restaurant 15 located:

If Franchisee or any Operating Company fails to open the Restaurant by the later
of: (1) the Opemng Date prescribed in Section 1.C.1. of this Agreement; or (11) the
last extension of time, if any, that HOA grants Franchisee or such Operating
Company to open the Restaurant;

In the event of the intentional. willful. or grossly negligent breach by Franchisee,
any Operating Company, or any Principal of any of the covenants, warranties,
representations, agreements, or obligations of Franchisee, Operating Company.
or Principal set forth 1 this Agreement or the Manmals:

If Franchisee or the Restaurant are nationalized: or




9. Franchises or anv Operating Company. jointly or severally. defaults under tlus
Agreement three (3) or more times during anv twelve (12) consecutive month
period, whether or not Franchisee or Operating Company cure such defaults.

B. Franchisee shall have five (5) days after HOA's delivery of wrtten notice of default
withm which to cure any default under tlus Section XITIB.. and to provide evidence of
such cure to HOA. If Franchisee has not cured such default by the end of such cure
period, HOA shall have the nght to terminate this Agreement 1n 1ts entirety or as to one
or more Restaurants, at HOA s option. on notice to Franchisee. Franchisee shall be
subject to termunation under this Section XIIIB. on the occumrence of any of the
following events:

1. If Franchisee or any Operating Company fails, refuses. or neglects promptly 1o
pay when due the Continming Royalty Fee or any other momies owing to HOA or
HOA’s affiliates, or to pay when due the International Advertising Fee, or to
submut the rovalty report or other financial information that Franchisee 1s
required to provide HOA: or if Franchisee or any Operating Company makes any
false statements m connection with any of the foregomng:

A If Franchisee or any Operating Company sells nnauthorized products or products
not meeting HOA's specifications:

3 If a threat or danger to public health or safety results from the maintenance or
operation of the Restaurant:

4. If Franchisee or any Operating Company fails to mamtamn any of the standards or
procedures HOA prescribes i this Agreement. the Manuals. or otherwise in
writing:

5 If Franchisee or any Operating Company nususes or makes any unauthorized use

of the Proprietary Marks or otherwise materially impairs the goodwill associated
with the Proprietary Marks or HOAs rights in the Proprietary Marks;

6. If Franchisee or any Operating Company engages in any business or markets any
service of product under a name or mark that. m HOAs opimen. 1s confusingly
simmlar to the Proprietary Marks or the Hooters System:

7. If Franchisee or any Operating Company. through alteration of restaurant design.
trade dress, décor, product selection, product restrictions, image, or inventory,
fails to maintamn the character and nature of the Restaurant; or

8. If Franchisee or any Operating Company fails to provide HOA with the
governing documents, other documents, forms, reports, records. certificates. tax
returns, mformation, reports. data. certificates. notification. or other information
that Franchisee 15 required to provide HOA as set forth in this Agreement.

C. Franchisee shall have ten (10) days after HOA's delivery of written notice of default
within which to cure any default under tlus Section XII1.C .. and to provide evidence of
such cure to HOA. If Franchisee has not cured such default by the end of such cure
period, HOA shall have the night to terminate thas Agreement m 1ts entirety or as to one
or more Restaurants. at HOA's option, on notice to Franchisee., Franchisee shall be
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subject to termunation under this Section XIIL.C. on the occumence of any of the
following events:

1.

If Franchusee fails to: (1) comply with the in-term agreements set forth in the
Confidentiality Agreement attached as Exhibit B to this Agreement; or (ii) obtain
execution of the confidentiality agreement for mndrviduals attached to the
Confidentiality Agreement (the “Individual Confidentiaity Agreement™ as
Exhibit A by all persons required to execute such Individonal Confidentiality
Agreement;

If Franchisee fails to: (1) comply with the mn-term covenants set forth in the
Covenant Not to Compete artached as Exlubit C to this Agreement; or (ii) obtain
execution of the covenant not to compete for individuals amached to the
Covenant Not to Compete (the “Tndrvidual Covenant Not to Compete”) as
Exhibit A by all persons required to execute such Individual Covenant Not to
Compete: or

If Franchisee or any Operating Company closes or otherwise ceases to operate
any Restaurant without HOA s prior written consent.

D. Franchisee shall have thirty (30) davs after HOA's delivery of written notice of default
within which to cure any default under tius Section XIII.D . and to provide evidence of
such cure to HOA If Franchisee has not cured such default by the end of such cure
period, HOA shall have the right to terminate this Agreement n its entirety or as to one
or more Restaurants. at HOA's option. on notice to Franclusee. Franchisee shall be
subject to termunation under this Section XIILD. on the occurrence of any of the
following events:

1.

=

wn
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If Franchisee's or any Operating Company’s alcoholic beverage license 1s
revoked or suspended for any reason:

If Franchisee or any Operating Company, by act or omission, commits or permits
a violation of any Law, in the absence of a good-faith dispute over such Law’s
application or legality and without promptly resorting to an appropnate
admnistrative or judicial forum for relief therefrom:

If Franclusee or any Operating Company fails to pay when due all undisputed
bills, mvoices, and statements from third-party suppliers of goods and services to
the Franchised Busmess. Approved Location, or Restaurant, including without
limitation rent and other payments due under the lease of the Approval Location,
and payments Franchisee or any Operating Company owes contractors or other
trade creditors;

If Franclusee or any Operating Company fails to pay when due any taxes or other
governmental charges:

If Franclusee or any Operating Company defaults under any real property or
equipment lease for or related to the Franclused Business, Approved Location, or
Restaurant, or under any mortgage. chattel mortgage. conditional bill of sale, title
retention contract, or security agreement of any kind or character, and does not
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cure such default within any grace period provided by the lease or security
mstrument;

6. If Franchisee or any Operating Company, without HOA's prior written consent,
enters into a management agreement or cousulting arrangement related to the
Restaurant with any person. or with an enfity not wholly owned by Franchisee;

=

If HOA reasonably determines that Franchisee or any Operating Company are
unable or unwilling to provide mndividuals whe can complete HOA's manager
traiming program to HOA’s reasonable satisfaction. or if HOA reasonably
determines that the mdividuals Franchisee or any Operating Company have
provided for manager traming lack the skills required to operate the Restaurant
successfully;

8. If an approved transter 1s not effected within the times set forth 1n Section XITE.
of this Agreement, following a Principal’s death or mental incompetence; or

9. If Franchisee or any Operating Company, by act or onusston, conumits or permits
a violation of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement or the Manuals
not specifically addressed i this Section XIIT.

Any and all claims (except for monies due HOA) ansing out of or related ro: (1) the offer
for sale. sale, negotation, admunistration, or termination of the Francluse or tlus
Agreement; (11) the development. opening. operation, or closure of a Restaurant. or
(111) the relationship between the parties to this Agreement. shall be barred unless an
action at law or 1n equuty 15 properly filed 1n a court of competent jurisdiction within one
(1) year after the date Franchisee or any Operatung Company on the one hand, or HOA on
the other hand. knows or should have known of the facts giving rise to such claim_ except
to the extent any Law provides for a shorter pertod of time to bring a claim.

OBLIGATIONS ON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION

On termunation or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, all nghts granted to Franchisee
under this Agreement shall immediately terminate, and:

A

Franchisee shall mmmediately cease to operate the busmess franclised under thus
Agreement, and shall not thereafier. directly or indirectly. represent to the public or hold
wtself out as a present or former franchisee of HOA

Franchisee shall immediately and permanently cease to use. m any manner whatsoever,
any or all of (1) HOA's Confidential Information or Trade Secrets; and (1) the
Proprietary Marks. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Franchisee shall
cease to use all signs, advertising matersals, displays, stationery. forms, and any other
arficles that display the Propnietary Marks: provided, however, that this Secrion XIV B.
shall not apply to the operation by Franchisee of any other franchise under the Hooters
System that HOA may separately and independently have granted to Franchisee and that
HOA has not terminated.

Franchisee shall remove or change all signs, displays, furmiture, fixtures. equipment. and
other trade dress. and shall change all colors of buildings and other structures. to the
extent required to distinguish the Restaurant from 1ts former appearance and from any

(¥5]
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other Hooters restaurants, and shall comply with HOA s other restaurant de-1dentification
requirements {collectively. to “De-Identify” the Restaurant), so that the Restaurant 1s
fully De-Identified by the end of ten (10) days after the termunation or expiration of this
Agreement.

1. If Franchisee fails to fully De-Idennfy the Restaurant by the end of ten (10) days
after the ternunation or expiration of this Agreement, HOA and its agents shall
have the night to enter onto the prenuses of the Restaurant without prior notice to
Franchisee. and without liability for trespass, and to De-Identify the Restaurant at
Franchisee’s expense, which amounts Franchisee agrees to pay so that HOA
actually recetves such payment by the end of ten (10) days after demand therefor.

2. Franchises will provide HOA with photographic or other evidence of the De-
Identification satisfactory to HOA.  If Franchisee fails to provide HOA with
satisfactory photograpluc or other evidence of De-Identification so that HOA
actually recetves such evidence by the end of ten (10) days after the by the end of
ten (10) days after the termination or expiration of this Agreement, HOA shall
have the night to enter onto the prenuses of the Restaurant without prior notice to
Franchisee, and without hability for trespass, to inspect the Restaurant at
Franchisee’s expense, which amounts Franchisee agrees to pay so that HOA
actually recerves such payment by the end of ten (10) days after demand therefor.

D. Franchisee shall: (i) comply with 1ts obligations set forth in the Internet Web Sites and
Listings Agreement attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F: and (1) take such action as
may be necessary to cancel any assumed name or equivalent registrations of Franchisee
that contain the mark “Hooters™ or any other Proprietary Mark. Franchisee shall furmsh
HOA with confirmation that Franchisee has fulfilled such obligations by the end of thirty
(30) days after termunation or expiration of this Agreement.

E. Franchisee shall not, m connection with any other business. use any reproduction,
counterfeir, copy, or colorable imuration of the Proprietary Marks, either in connection
with such other business or the promotion of such other business or otherwise, that may
cause or constitute confusion. mustake. or deception, or that is likelv to dilute HOAs
nights m or to the Proprietary Marks. and further shall not use any designation of origin or
description or representation that falsely suggests or represents an association or former
association with HOA or the Hooters System.

F. Pavments.

1. Franchisee shall pay to HOA and HOA s affiliates, so that HOA and its affiliates
actually recerve such payment by the end of ten (10) days after the ternunation or
expiration of this Agreement, all sums owing to HOA and its affiliates accrued
through the effective date of termination or expiration.

2. If HOA termunates this Agreement prior to the expiration of the Initial Term.
Franchisee shall pay to HOA_ so that HOA actually recerves such payment by the
end of ten (10) days after such ternunation:

E3 An amount equal to the Fees pavable by Franchisee for the lesser of:
(1) the balance of the Imitial Term remaming; or {u)the twelve (12)
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calendar month period immediately prior to the effective date of HOAs
termnation of this Agreement: or

b. If HOA ternunates this Agreement and the Restaurant has not been open
for business for twelve (12) calendar months. the amount of Fees payable
by Franchisee for the periods Franchisee was obligated to pay Fees prior
to the effective date of HOA’s ternunation of this Agreement, projected
to twelve (12) calendar months; or

c. If HOA ternunates this Agreement before Franchisee’s obligation to pay
Fees has commenced. the average amount of Fees payable by HOA’s
mtemational franchisees generally. for the twelve (12) calendar month
peniod unmediately prior to the effective date of HOA's ternunation of
this Agreement.

d. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees. and hereby directs any party
construng  this Apreement, wcluding without linutation any court,
mediator. master, or other party acting as a trier of fact or law, to
conclusvely presume, that the damages set forth 1 thus
Section XIV.F.2.: (1) are true hiquidated damages; (1) are intended to
compensate HOA for the harm HOA will suffer as a result of the
premature ternunation of this Agreement: (111) are not a penalty; (1v) are a
reasonable estimate of HOA's probable loss resulting from the premature
termmnation of this Agreement. viewed as of the date of this Agreement;
{v) shall be in lieu of, and not mn addition to, actual damages for loss of
the benefit of the bargamn that HOA 1s entitled to recerve; and (v1) shall,
subject to clause (v) above, be in addition to all other rights HOA may
have to legal or equitable relief.

3. If HOA termunates this Agreement as a result of Franchisee’s default of this
Agreement. Franchisee shall pay to HOA all costs and expenses HOA may incur
related to such default and termmanion. meludmg without linutation attorneys’
fees and costs that HOA incurs related to: (1) drafting notices, demands. and other
documents related to such default and temmnation: (u} obtaimng decrees for
specific performance; (iu1) obtainmng injunctive or other relief. (1v) collection of
amounts owed; and (v) appeal; so that HOA actually recetves such payments by
the end of ten (10) days after demand therefor.

4. The obligations set forth in this Section XIV.F., until paid in foll. shall be and
constitute a lien in favor of HOA agamst any and all of Franchisee’s personal
property, furnishings. fixtures, equipment, signage, invenrory. and other assers.

G Franchisee shall immediately deliver to HOA all manuals, including the Manuals; all
records, files, imnstructions. correspondence, and other materials related to the operation of
the Franchised Busmess. mcluding without lmmtation brochures, agreements, and
mvoices, i Franchisee™s possession or under Franchisee’s control, and all copies thereof
(all of which Franchisee acknowledges are HOA s property). and shall retain no copy or
record of any of the foregoing. except Franchisee’s copy of this Agreement and of any
correspondence between the parties and any other documents that Franchisee reascnably
needs for compliance with any provision of Law.
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H. fithin ten (10) days after the ternunation of tlus Agreement. Franchisee and HOA shall.
on the demand of either, arrange for an wwventory to be made, at HOAs cost 1f demanded
by HOA, and at Franchisee’s cost if demanded by Franchssee, of all of the assets of the
Restaurant, including without limitation resaleable merchandise. the décor package.
signage, and any ttems beanng the Proprietary Marks. HOA shall have the option to
purchase from Franchisee any or all such items at fair market value, as determined by an
mdependent appraiser HOA designates. which determunation by such appraiser shall be
conclusive and binding on all parties. HOA may exercise such option within thirty (30)
days after the date HOA recerves such apprasal. for closing of purchase and sale within
sixty (60) days after the date HOA exercises such option.

L Any right or mterest Franchisee, any Operating Company, any Principal. any affiliate, or
any person or entity otherwise under Franclusee’s direction or control (collectively, a
“Licensed Party™) has in any Beer or Wine License, Malt Beverage Pernut, Mixed
Beverage License, Retail On-Prenuses Consumption License, Liguor License, M-
Bottle Permit. Sunday Sales Permit. Local Option Permit, Consumption by Drink Pernur,
Entertainment Permut, Outdoor Permit, or any ather alcoholic beverage license or permut
related to the Restaurant (collectively, a “Liquor License™) shall automatically transfer to
HOA or 1ts designee. Franchisee shall have five (5) days after HOAs delivery of written
notice of termunation or expiration of tlis Agreement to commence all procedures
necessary to transfer or relocate all Liquor Licenses to HOA: or. if HOA designates
another party to recerve such Liquor License, to such designee. and to notify HOA
writing of such comumencement. Licensed Party shall promptly use all commercially
reasonable efforts to obtain the necessary approvals from any state or local authority for
the prompt transfer or relocation of the Liquor License.

1 If applicable law does not permut the transfer or relocation of the Liquer License,
Licensed Party shall have five (5) days after HOA's delivery of written notice of
ternunation or expiration of this Agreement to conract all applicable authorities
regarding. and to initiate. all procedures necessary to apply for a new Liguor
License in the name of HOA or its designee m all applicable junisdictions, and
shall notify HOA i wnting of such mutiation. Licensed Party shall jom and
cooperate with HOA in promptly procuring a replacement Liquor License. Both
Licensed Party and HOA shall immediately fulfill anv directives or requirements
from all applicable authorities tn order to expedite the transfer or relocation of
the existing Liquor License or acquisition of a new Liquor License.

=

Franchisee shall pay or promptly arrange for the full payment of all taxes of any
kind or nature whatsoever. mcluding without limitation property taxes, personal
property taxes, sales, use, withholding. and any other taxes. that may affect title
or the nights to any Liquer License in any way.

3 Franchisee shall mdemnify and hold HOA hammless for any and all of any
Licensed Party’s liabilities and obligations related to the rights of HOA or 1ts
designee to own, possess, and use any Liquor License,

I In the event that Franchisee closes or ceases to operate a Restaurant. but such closure or
cessation of operation does not mvolve or 1s not accompanied by ternunation of this
Agreement. Franchisee shall pay to HOA. so that HOA actually recerves such payment
by the end of ten (10) days after such closure or cessation of operation:
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1. An amount equal to the Fees payable by Franclusee as to such Restaurant for the
lesser of the balance of the Tmitial Term remamung or the twelve (12) calendar
month period immediately prior to the date Franchisee closes or ceases 1o operate
the Restaurant; or

2. If Franchisee closes or ceases to operate the Restaurant and the Restaurant has
not been open for business for twelve (12) calendar months, the amount of Fees
payable by Franclusee for the months the Restaurant has been open for business
projected to twelve (12) calendar months; or

3 If Franchisee ceases its effort to open the Restaurant. the average amount of Fees
payable by HOA's international franchisees generally, for the twelve (12)
calendar month period mmmediately prior to the date HOA deternunes that
Franchisee ceased 1ts effort to open the Restaurant.

4. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees, and hereby directs any party construing
this Agreement. mcluding without himitation any court, mediator. master. or other
party acting as a trier of fact or law. to conclusively presume, that the damages
set forth m this Section XTIV .I: (1) are true hquidated damages: (u1) are mntended
to compensate HOA for the harm HOA will suffer as a result of the premature
closure or cessation of operation of the Restaurant: (111) are not a penalty; (1v) are
a reasonable estimate of HOA's probable loss resulting from the premature
closure or cessation of operation of the Restaurant, viewed as of the date of tlus
Agreement; (v) shall be 1 lieu of. and not 1n addition to, actual damages for loss
of the benefit of the bargam that HOA is enttled to receive; and (wvi) shall,
subject to clause (v) above, be in addition to all other rights HOA may have to
legal or equitable relief.

3. The obligations set forth in this Section XIV T untl paid 1 full, shall be and
constitute a lien in favor of HOA agamst any and all of Franchisee’s personal
property, furnishings. fixtures, equipment, signage, invenrory. and other assers.

K In the event that Franchisee closes or ceases to operate a Restaurant, but such closure or

cessation of operation does not mvolve or 1s not accompanted by remunation of this
Agreement, any and all nights Franchisee may have had related to the former Protected
Territory of such Restaurant shall termunate and revert automatically and without notice
to HOA: provided, however, 1if such former Protected Ternitory 15 within Franchisee's
Option Territory, such former Protected Termtory will remain a part of the Option
Territory for as long as such Option Territory remains in effect. and on termunation or
exprration of Franchisee's nghts to the Option Termtory shall terminate and revert
automatically and without notice to HOA.

L. If applicable Law does not permut HOA to collect the liquidated damages set forth 1n
Section XIV.F.2 or Section XIV.J of thus Agreement. HOA wall be entitled to collect
actual damages equal to: (1) the loss of the benefit of the bargain HOA would have
recetved had Franchisee fully performed its obligations: plus (1) HOA s out-of-pocket
costs and expenses, including without limitation HOA s reasonable attorneys™ fees and
costs, and further includmg without limutation HOA's reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs of appeal, and further including without linutation HOAs reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs of collection.
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XV. COVENANTS

A

Franchisee covenants, warrants. represents. and agrees that Franchisee shall devote its
full ime, energy, and best efforts to the management and operation of the Franchised
Business.

Franchisee covenants., warrants, represents, and agrees that, dunng the term of tlus
Agreement, except as HOA may otherwise approve in writing, Franchisee shall not,
etther directly or indirectly, for 1tself or through, on behalf of or 1n conjunction with, any
person or other entity, employ or seek to employ any person who 1s ar that time. or who
has been within the immediately-precedng sixty (60) days, employved by HOA or by any
other franchisee or affiliate of HOA, or otherwise directly or indirectly induce such
person to leave lus or her employment.

Franchisee specifically acknowledges that, as an HOA franchisee, Franchisee will recerve
valuable specialized tramung and confidennal formation, including, without hmitation
HOA’s Confidential Information and Trade Secrets. and other information regarding
HOA’s operational. sales, promotional. and marketing methods and rechniques.

HOA’s form of Covenant Not to Compete 1s attached to this Agreement as Exlubat C.
Franchisee will deliver an original of such Covenant Not to Compete, executed by
Franchisee, together with an orniginal of this Agreement, to HOA  Franclisee will comply
with the terms of the Covenant Not to Compete. The Covenant Not to Compete 1s hereby
mcorporated wnto this Agreement as 1f fully set forth heremn.

HOA's form of Individual Covenant Not to Compete 1s attached to the Covenant Not to
Compete as Exlubit A, Franchisee will. antomatically and without HOA s request, cause
Franchisee’s: (1) Pnncipals; (1) Managers: (i) directors, officers, and managers (if
Franchisee 15 a corporation, hmited Lability company. or similar business entity);
(1v) general parmers and limited partners (including without lumitation each holder of a
direct or beneficial interest of ten percent (10%) or more i any corporation, limuted
lLiability company, or other businiess entity that controls, directly or indirectly. any general
or limited partner); and (v) other personnel m employvment or simlar capacites HOA
specifies (collectively, the “Covenanung Personnel™). to execute such Indrvidual
Covenant Not to Compete, to provide the date and such party’s address as required by
such Individual Covenant Not to Compete. and to deliver a fully-executed. dated original
of such Individual Covenant Not to Compete to HOA. prior to and as a condition
precedent to such person comung within the scope of persons defined as “Covenanting
Personnel.”

Franchisee expressly agrees that the existence of any claims 1t may have agamst HOA,
whether or not arising from this Agreement, shall not constitute a defense to the
enforcement by HOA of the covenants m this Section XV. Franchisee agrees to pay all
damages. costs. and expenses (including reasonable attorneys” fees) HOA may incur in
connection with the enforcement of this Section 3V,

XVI. TAXES PERWITS. AND INDEBTEDNESS

A

Franchisee shall pay when due all taxes levied or assessed. including, without limitation
unemployment and sales taxes, and all accounts payable and other mdebtedness of every
lind Franchisee incurs in the conduct of the Franchised Business.
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Should any taxing autherity impose on HOA any “franchise™ or other tax thar 1s based on
the gross sales., gross revenues, business activities, or operation of the Franclused
Business or the Restaurant. except for federal or state income taxes. Franchisee will
reimburse HOA an amount equal to the amount of such taxes and related costs and
expenses imposed on or paid by HOA. unless the tax 1s credited against income tax
otherwise payable by HOA. Franchisee will make such reimbursement so that HOA
actually recerves such reimbursement by the end of ten (10) days after delivery of wrnitten
notice by HOA that HOA 15 enritled to reimbursement for payment of such taxes and
other amounts.

In the event of any bona fide dispute as to Franchisee's liability for taxes assessed or
other mndebtedness. Franchisee may contest the validity or the amount of the tax or
mdebtedness in accordance with the procedures of the taxing authonity or applicable law:
however, i no event shall Franchisee permut a tax sale or seizure by levy or execution or
similar writ or warrant, or attachment by a creditor, wncluding without hmtation
foreclosure, eviction, or repossession. to occur against the premuses of the Restanrant, or
any improvements to such premises, or any fumishings, fixtures, equipment, or other
assers of the Restaurant.

Franchisee shall notify HOA m writing within five (5) days of the commencement of any
action, suit. or proceeding, and of the issuance of any order. wnit. ijunction, award, or
decree of any court. agency. or other governmental mstrumentality, ansing our of or
related to the Franchised Business.

XVII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

A

HOA and Franchisee acknowledge and agree that: (1) this Agreement does not create a
fiduciary relationship between the parties hereto or any affiliated or related parties or
entities; {11) Franchisee 15 an independent contractor; and (111) nothng in this Agreement
15 intended to or shall be construed to constifute either party as an agent. legal
representative, subsidiary, joint venturer, partner. emplovee, or servant of the other for
any purpose whatsoever.

Franchisee shall hold itself out to the public as an independent contractor operating the
Franchised Business pursuant to a franchise from HOA. Franclusee will take all such
actions as may be required to notify all mterested persons or entities of such independent
contractual relationship by exlubiting a notice of such relationship m a conspicuous place
in the Restaurant, the content and form of which notice HOA shall have the right to
specify.

Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that nothing i this Agreement authorizes
Franchisee. and that Franchisee shall have no authority, to make any contract, agreement,
warranty, or representation on behalf of HOA. or to meur any debt or other obligation mn
HOA’'s name; and that HOA shall m no event assume liability for. or be deemed liable
hereunder or thereunder as a result of any such action; nor shall HOA be hable by reason
of any act or onussion of Franchisee m its conduct of the Franchised Business or for any
claim or judgment ansing out of or related to the Franchised Business agamst Franchisee
or HOA.

Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that: (i) HOA's busmess is the business of
developing the System. granting franchises to mdependent business operators to use the
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System, and servicing independent operators of franchised businesses m the Swstem:
(1) Franchisee’s Franchised Business 1s the busmess of operating the Restaurant. and
(111) the business HOA operates and the business Franchisee operates are separate and
distinct businesses engaged in separate and distinct activities.

Enforcement.

1. Franchisee, for itself. its Prncipals. and its emplovees, hereby covenants,
warrants, represents. and agrees that netther 1t nor they nor any of them will:
{i) make or raise any claim. counterclaim. crossclaim. affirmative defense, or
demand: (1) commence, or cause or permut to be commenced: (111) prosecute, or
cause or permit to be prosecuted; or (iv)assist or cooperate in the
commencement or prosecution of. any suit or action at law or in equity or
otherwise. any arbitratton or like proceeding. or any admmmistrative or agency
proceeding, agamst or related to HOA, HOA s affiliates, or HOA's or such
affiliates” directors, officers, shareholders. partners. members, employees, agents.
or attorneys (collectively, the “HOA Parties™). alleging any martter contrary to
any acknowledgment or agreement set forth in this Section XVIL of thus
Agreement.

X Franchisee, for itself. 1ts Pnineipals, and 1ts employees, hereby acknowledges and
agrees that in the event of any breach of Section XVILE 1 of this Agreement. the
HOA Parties would be trreparably mjured and withour adequate remedy at law.
Therefore. 1 the event of a breach or a threatened or attempted breach of any
provision of Section XVILE.1, Franchisee, for itself its Prnncipals. and uts
employees, agrees that HOA and the other HOA Parties will be entitled. m
addition to any other remedies such HOA Parties may have at law or in equity or
otherwise, fo a preliminary and pemmanent ijunction and a decree for specific
performance of the terms of Section 3VILE 1. without the necessity of showing
actual or threatened damage and without being required to furnish a bond or

other securtty.

£3 Franchises hereby covenants. warrants, represents, and agrees that it has the
authority to bind its Pnncipals and employees to tlus Section XVIL of tlus
Agreement.

XTI INDEMNIFICATION

A

As used in this Section XVIIL, the term “Losses and Expenses™ shall include, without
limitation, any and all obligations, debts, claims. demands, rights, actions, causes of
action, loss. losses. damage damages. expenses. costs, liability, and habilities of any
nature or kind: including without limitation reasonable accountants’. attorneys’, and
expert witness fees and costs: costs of investigation and proof of facts: court costs and
other expenses of litigation: and travel and living expenses. together with compensation
for damages to HOA's reputation and goodwill costs of or resultng from delays.
financing, costs of advertising material and media time or space, and costs of changing,
substituting, or replacing such advertising matenial and media time or space. and any and
all expenses of recalls. refunds, compensation. public notices. and other amounts arising
out of or related to such matters.
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B. Franchisee shall. at all times, fully indenmnify and hold harmless HOA and s affiliates.
and HOA's and such affihates” directors, officers. shareholders. partners, members,
emplovees, agents, and attorneys, and the predecessors, successors. heirs. and assigns of
any and all of the foregomng (collectively, the “Indemmnitees™), from all Losses and
Expenses arising out of or related to Franchisee, any Operating Company. the Franchised
Business, the Approved Location, and the development, opening, operation, or closure of
the Restaurant. Such obligations shall mclude, without linutation, Losses and Expenses
mncurred in connection with:

1 Any action, suit, proceeding. claim. demand, investigation. or mguiry (formal or
mformal). or any settlement thereof (whether or not a formal proceeding or
action has been mnstituted) that arises out of or 1s related to any of the foregoing:

2. Franchisee’s defauli of any covenant. warranty. representation, agreement. or
obligation set forth in this Agreement or any schedule, extubit, addendum,
attachment. or amendment to this Agreement;

3. Franchisee’s default or alleged default of any other agreement;

4 Franchisee’s violation or alleged violation of any Law, any standard or directive,
or any uwdustry standard. including without linutation violations resulting from
Franchisee’s use of the Hooters System:

3. Libel slander. or any other form of defamation by Franchisee; and

6. Acts, errors. or omissions of Franchisee or any of Franchisee™s directors. officers,

shareholders. partners. members. emplovees. agents. and attorneys.

This mndemumfication shall include losses alleging the negligence of any Indemmitee,
mcluding without limitation neghgence mn the supervision and inspection of the
Restaurant, the traming of a Restaurant employee, and the Hooters System standards, but
excluding any case i which the Indemmnitee 1s determmed by a court of competent
junisdiction to have engaged in grossly neghgent or willful misconduct. The
mdemmfication set forth 1 this Section XVIIL shall survive the termunation or expiration
of this Agreement.

e Franchisee shall promptly notify HOA of any action. suit. proceeding. claim. demand,
meuiry, nvestigation, or default descnibed 1n Section XVIILB. If HOA 1s or may be
named as a party m any action, suit, or proceeding, HOA may elect to undertake. but
shall not be obligated to undertake. the defense or settlement thereof at Franchisee’s cost
and expense. No such undertaking by HOA shall, tn any manner or form, dinunish
Franchisee’s obligation to mdemmfy HOA and to hold 1t harmless.

D. With respect to any action, smt, proceeding, claim. demand. mquiry, or investigation,
HOA may. at any time and without notice, in order to protect persons or property or the
reputatton or goodwill of HOA or others. order. consent, or agree to any settlement or
take any remedial or corrective action that HOA deems expedient; if in HOAs sole
Judgment, there are reasonable grounds to believe that:

1. Any of the acts, omissions, or circumstances giving rise to the action, suir,
proceeding, claim, demand. mquiry, or investigation, in fact occurred: or
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2. Any act, error, or ommssion of Franclusee may result directly 1o or mdirectly in
damage, iyury, or harm to any person or any property.

All losses and expenses mcurred under this Section XVIIL shall be chargeable to and
paid by Franclusee pursuant to Franchisee's obligations of indemmity under tlus
Agreement.

Under no circumstances shall the Indemmnitees be required or obligated to seek recovery
from third parties or to otherwise nutigate their losses n order to maintain a clamm against
Franchisee. Franchisee agrees that the failure fo pursue such recovery or to nutigare loss
shall 1n no way reduce the amounts the Indemmnitees may recover from Franchisee.

The Indenmitees assume no liability whatsoever for any acts, errors, or onusstons of any
persons with whom Franchisee may contract, regardless of the purpose. Franclusee shall
hold harmless and indemmify the Indemmitees and each of them for all Losses and
Expenses that may arise out of any acts, errors, or onussions of persons with whom
Franchisee may contract.

XIX. APPROVALS AND WAIVERS

A

Whenever this Agreement requires the prior approval or consent of HOA, Franchisee
shall make a timely written request to HOA for such approval or consent. and Franchisee
shall obtain such approval or consent in writing.

HOA makes no representations. warranties, or guaranties on which Franclisee may rely,
and assumes no lability or obligation to Franchisee, by providing any waiver, approval,
consent, or suggestion to Franclusee or 1n connection with any consent, or by reason of
any neglect, delay. or demal of any request therefor.

No failure of HOA to exercise any power reserved to it in this Agreement, or to nsist on
compliance by Franchisee with any obligation or condition m this Agreement, and no
custom or practice of the parties at vanance with the terms of this Agreement. shall
constitute a waiver of HOA s nights to demand exact compliance with any of the tems of
this Agreement. Waiver by HOA of any particular default shall not affect or impair
HOA’s night with respect te any subsequent default of the same or of a different nature;
nor shall any delay. forbearance. or onussion by HOA to exercise any power or right
ansing out of any breach or default by Franchisee of anv of the terms. prowvisions, or
covenants of this Agreement affect or impawr HOA's nghts: nor shall such delay,
forbearance. or omussion constitute a warver by HOA of any rights under this Agreement
or any night to obtain relief for any subsequent breach or default.

XX NOTICES

A

Any and all notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be mn writing, shall
be in the English language, and shall be: (1) personally delivered: or (1) delivered by
mtemational couner service, such as UPS, Federal Express. or DHL, to the respective
parties at the following addresses unless and until a different address has been designated
by written notice to the other party:
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Notices to HOA:

Hooters of Amenca. LLC
1815 The Exchange

Atlanta, Georgia, USA 30339
Attention:  General Counsel

with simultaneous written copy. which shall not constitute notice. to:

A 1 Block, Jr, Esq.

Fine and Block

2060 M. Paran Road, N.W.
Atlanta, Georgia, USA 30327

Notices to Franchisee:

Attention:

B. Any notice delivered under Section 330 A. of this Agreement shall be deemed to have
been given on the earlier of: (1) the date and time of receipt: (1) three (3) business days
after having been deposited with an mtemational courter service for express delivery; or
(111) the mtended recipient’s failure or refusal to accept delivery.

3. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

A This Agreement, including the exlubits, attachments. and amendments to i, 1s a complete
mtegration that sets forth the entire agreement between HOA and Franclusee, fully
superseding any and all prior negotiations, agreements, representations, or understandings
between HOA and Franchisee, whether oral or written, related to the subject matter of
this Agreement. HOA and Franchisee hereby expressly confirm that there are no other
oral or written agreements, “side-deals,” amrangements, or understandings between HOA
and Franchisee except as expressly set forth in this Agreement or 1n a duly-executed
written amendment to this Agreement. No course of dealing. whether occurnng before or
after the Effective Date of this Agreement. shall operate to amend. modify. termate. or
Warve any express written provision of this Agreement.

B. Except for those acts that this Agreement permuts HOA to take umilaterally. no
amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement will be binding on HOA unless
such amendment, change. or vanance is set forth with particularity m a written agreement
duly executed by HOA s authonized officer and by Franchisee.

C. Franchisee hereby covenants. warrants, represents, and agrees that 1t will not: (1) make or
ratse  any clamm, counterclaim  crossclaim.  affiomative  defense. or  demand:
(11) comumence, or cause or permit to be commenced: (111) prosecute. or cause or pernuf to
be prosecuted: or (1v) assist or cooperate m the commencement or prosecution of. any
suit or action at law or m equity or otherwise. alleging or asserting any matter contrary to
Sections XXLA. or XXIB. of this Agreement.
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XL

A

SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION

No Implied Covenant. HOA and Franchisee have negotiated the terms of tlus Agreement
and agree that neither party shall claim the existence of an implied covenant of good faith
and far dealing to contravene or limit any express wrntten term or provision of this
Agreement.

Partial Invalidity. If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, such provision will be modified to the mmmum extent
necessary to make it valid and enforceable; or. if it cannot be so modified. then severed,
and the remaming provisions of this Agreement will remam 1n full force and effect. The
parties agree that they would have signed the Agreement as so modified.

Interpretation.  The table of contents and section headings m this Agreement are inserted
for convemence only and will not affect the meamng or construction of this Agreement.
Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement. the language of tlus Agreement will be
construed simply according to 1ts fair meaning and not stnctly for or agamst erther party.
Both parties have been represented by skilled and experienced counsel in the transaction
resulting 1n the execution of this Agreement, and both parties are skalled and experienced
business professionals; and as a result, both parties shall be deemed to have drafted this
Agreement and 10 no event will any adverse construction of this Agreement be attributed
to HOA as the drafting party. The Recitals of this Agreement are a material part of this
Agreement, and shall in no event be considered mere prefatory material or surplusage.
“Heremn,” “hereof.” and “hereunder” refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any
particular part. Words importing the singular number only shall mclude the plural and
vice-versa, and words mmporting the masculine gender shall mclude the feminine and
neuter genders and vice-versa. The word “mcluding”™ means “including without hmiting
the scope or generality”™ of any description preceding such word, and the word “or”
means, and 1s used m the mclusrve sense of, “and/or” References to decuments,
mstruments, or agreements shall be deemed to refer as well to all addenda, exhibits,
schedules. or amendments thereto.

Survival of Obligations. All obligations of this Agreement. whether HOA's or
Franchisee’s, that expressly or by their terms require performance after the ternunation or
expiration of this Agreement, or that by their nature would reasonably be expected to
continue 1n effect after ternunation or expiration of this Agreement, mcludmg without
limitation the Guaranty, Confidentiality Agreement. Individual Confidentiality
Agreement, Covenant Not to Compete, and Individual Covenant Not to Compete,
required to be given under this Agreement, will continue in full force and effect after and
notwithstanding 1ts termination or expiration, until they are satsfied m full or by their
nature expire.

Calculation of Days. Except where this Agreement expressly requires “business days™ in
any calculation of time. all references to “days™ shall mean “calendar days™ Where thus
Agreement requires “business days” in any calculation of time. “business days” shall
mean “U.S. business days.”

Subnmussion of Agsreement Submussion of thus Agreement to Franchisee does not
constitute an offer to enter ito a contract. This Agreement will become effective only on
1ts execution by HOA and Franchisee, and will not be binding on HOA unless and until 1t
15 signed by HOA s authorized officer and delivered to Franchisee.
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G. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed i multiple counterparts. and each copy
so executed shall be deemed an ongmal.

H Further Assurances. Franchisee shall execute and deliver all documents and agreements
that HOA may require in order to further the intent of this Agreement, promptly on
HOA’s request.

XXIII. FORCE MAJEURE

Except for: (1) the covenants and obligations of the Franchisee set forth in SectionI of this
Agreement; and (i) monetary obligations under this Agreement. and except as otherwise
specifically provided in this Agreement. 1f erther party to this Agreement shall be delaved or
hindered in or prevented from the performance of any act required under this Agreement by
reason of strikes, lock-ours. labor troubles, inability to procure materials, failure of power, war,
acts of terror, riots. msurrection. or other caunses beyond the reasonable control of the party
required to perform such work or act under the terms of this Agreement not the fault of such party
(a “Force Majeure™). then performance of such act shall be excused during the period of such
Force Majeure. The party whose performance 1s affected by a Force Majeure shall give prompt,
written notice to the other party of such Force Majeure. If there shall be a Force Majeure that
HOA deems economically harmiful or otherwise detrimental to HOA or the Hooters System. then
HOA shall be ennitled to termunate this Agreement on nmety (90) days™ wntten notice to
Franchisee; provided, however, that HOA may withdraw such notice if, within such nmety (90)
day pertod, HOA determines that the econonucally harmful or otherwise detrimental effects have
ceased.

XXIV. APPLICABIE I AW: DISPUTE RESOLUTION

A Govermng Law. All matters related to this Agreement, meluding without hnuntation all
matters related to the making, existence, construction, enforcement, and sufficiency of
performance of this Agreement. shall be determined exclustvely i accordance with, and
governed exclusively by, the laws of the State of Georgia, USA applicable to agreements
made and to be entirely performed in the State of Georgia, which laws shall prevail in the
event of any conflict of laws. Notwithstanding the foregoing. 1f any matter related to thus
Agreement would be unenforceable under the laws of the State of Georgia, but would be
enforceable under the laws of Franchisee’s junsdiction. then the laws of Franchisee’s
jurischction shall apply to such matter.

B. Fomm Venue and Junsdiction In the event of any dispute ansing out of or related to
this Agreement, mcluding without limitation any dispute ansing out of or related to the
making of this Agreement, such dispute shall be resolved exclusively through litigation.
The exclustve forum and venue for such hitigation shall be a state or federal court having
jurisdiction over the subject matter in or for the city or county where HOAs principal
business office 1= located. Franchisee hereby irevocably accepts and submuts to,
generally and unconditionally. the exclusive junisdiction of any such state or federal
courts having junisdiction over the subject matter and hereby waives, to the extent
pernutted by applicable law. defenses based on jurisdiction, venue, or forum non
conveniens. The provisions of this Section 330V .B. shall remain in full force and effect
after the expiration or termunation of this Agreement.
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D.

Waivers.

1. Warver of Class Action Litigation. Litigation ansmg out of or related to thus
Agreement shall be conducted on an individual, not a class-wide, basis. No
Iitigation under this Agreement may be consolidated with any other litigation
mvolving us and any other person without HOA s prior written consent.

% Waiver of Trial By Jury. HOA and Franchisee hereby watve trial by jury in any
litigation ansing out of or related to this Agreement.

3 Waiver of Punitive Damages. HOA and Franchisee hereby waive any right to or
clasm for pumtive, exemplary, consequential, nmmltiphied, enhanced or
speculative damages.

No Limutation.  No night or remedy conferred on or reserved to HOA or Franchisee by
this Agreement 1s intended to be, nor shall be deemed. exclusive of anyv other nght or
remedy set forth in this Agreement or by law or equity provided or permutted, but each
shall be cumulative of every other nght or remedy.

Injunctive Relief. Nothing set forth in this Agreement contained shall bar HOA s night to
obtamn iyunctive relief agamst threatened conduct that shall cause 1t loss or damages,
under the wvsual equity rules. including the applicable rules for obtaining restraimng
orders and preliminary injunciions.

Remstered Agent Franclusee wrevocably constitutes and appoints C.T. Corporation, at
1ts Atlanta. Georgia, USA address. and its successors, to be 1ts true and lawful agent, to
recerve service of any lawful process i any civil liigation or proceeding ansmg out of or
related to this Agreement. Service on such agent shall have the same force and validity
as 1f HOA had obtamed valid personal service on Franchisee. Franchisee shall furmsh its
current address to C.T. Corporation, and shall pay such fees to C.T. Corporation as are
necessary fto retam C T. Corporation as Franchisee’s agent for service of process, at all
times during the ferm of this Agreement.

XXV. ENGLISHILANGUAGE REQUIRED

A

The English language shall be used 1n all dealings and commumcations between HOA
and Franchisee. All traming, seminars, and programs HOA conducts, and all franchisee
meetings. shall be m the English language. All notices, correspondence, memos, emails,
and other communications, whether written or oral, between HOA and Franchisee shall
be 1 the English language.  All materials. mcluding without linutation all advertising,
promotional, marketing, recruiting. and training materials; all agreements: and all
Manmuals, other manuals, rules of operations, policy directives. standards and
specifications. instructions, and operating procedures, shall be in the English language.
In the event that any Law requires any material HOA provides to Franchisee to be
translated into another language. Franchisee, at 1ts sole cost and expense, shall have such
material translated in accordance with such Law. Franclusee, 1n its discretion and at ifs
sole cost and expense. may have matenals HOA prowides to Franchisee, or
comumumications HOA sends Franchisee, translared into another language. Franchisee
shall provide HOA with a copy of any material HOA provides to Franchisee that 1s
translated mto another language. for HOAs approval prior to any use or dissemination of
such material. which approval HOA will not unreasonably withhold or delay. Franchisee
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shall be solely responsible for the truth. accuracy, and completeness of any translations,
notwithstanding any review or approval of such material by HOA  Any and all
translations of material that HOA may provide to Franchisee shall be the sole and
exclusive property of HOA and shall inure to the benefit of HOA. In the event of any
conflict between any matenial 1n English and the translated version of such materzal, the
English version of such material shall control.

HOA and Franchisee have requested that this Agreement and any amendments to this
Agreement be drafted in English. This Agreement and such amendments may be
translated mto Franclusee’s native language or some other language. In the event of any
conflict between the English language version and the translated version. the English
language version shall prevail.

VI ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

A

Eeasonable Busimness Judgment. HOA acknowledges and agrees that it will and
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that HOA may, use Reasonable Business Judgment
m the exercise of HOA's nghts. discharge of its obligations, and exercise of its
discretion, and i all circumstances where HOA 1s required to give its consent. unless this
Agreement expressly provides some other standard. “Reasonable Business Judgment”
shall mean that HOA’s deternunations or choices will prevail, even 1f other alternatives
are also reasonable or arguably preferable. if HOA mtends to benefit, or 1s acting 1n a
way that could benefit, the Hooters System (by. for example, enhancing the value of the
Proprietary Marks, mereasing franchisee or guest satisfaction, or increasing HOA's
financial strength). Franclusee agrees to this concept of Reasonable Business Judgment
m acknowledgment of the fact that HOA should have at least as nwch discretion 1n
admimistering the Hooters System as a corporate board of directors has in directing a
corporation and because the long-term mterests of the Hooters System. all franchisees
and owners of franchised businesses m the Hooters System, and HOA and its owners,
taken together, require that HOA have the latitude to exercise Reasonable Business
TJudgment. HOA shall not be required to consider a franchisee’s particular econonuc or
other circumstances or to slight HOA's own economuc or other business interests when
HOA exercises 1ts Reasonable Busmess Judgment. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees
that: (1) HOA has a legitimate interest i seeking to maximuze the return to ifs
equitvholders: and (1) the fact that HOA or 1ts affiliates benefit economically from an
action will not be relevant to showing that HOA did not exercise Reasonable Business
Tudgment. Nesther Franchisee nor any third party (including without limitation any third
party acting as a trier of fact or law) shall substitute Franchisee’s, his. her. or 1ts judgment
for HOA s Reasonable Business Judgment. In a given situation, Franchisee shall have
the burden of establishing, by clear and convincing proof that HOA failed to exercise
Reasonable Business Tudgment.

Nature of Obligations.

1. Franchisee aclnowledges and agrees that: (1) all obligations HOA owes under
this Agreement HOA owes to Franchisee alone; and (11) no other person or entity.,
mcluding without linutation Franchisee’s affihiates. and Franchisee’s and such
affiliates™ directors. officers, shareholders, partners, members, employees. and
agents, and the predecessors, successors. heirs, and assigns of any of them, shall
be entitled to rely on. enforce. or obtain relief for breach of any of HOA's
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obligattons ansing out of or related to this Agreement. whether directly.
mdirectly. by subrogation, as an mtended third-party beneficiary, or otherwise.

2. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that: (1) all obligations of HOA under this
Agreement are owed by HOA alone; and (11) no other person or entity, mcluding
without himitation HOA s officers, members, employees, and agents, and HOA's
affiliates and their directors. officers, shareholders, parmers, members,
employees, and agents, and the predecessors. successors. heirs, and assigns of
any of them. shall be subject to liability under this Agreement.

C. Revenue. HOA may require Franchisee to purchase or lease products. equipment,
services, and supplies from HOA, HOA’s affiliates, or third parties HOA designates or
approves. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that HOA and HOA's affiliates may
enter mto agreements with third parties. including without linutation suppliers and
distributors. under which HOA and HOA's affiliates mayv derve revenue, profits, and
other benefits. mcluding without limtation rebates. discounts. allowances, or marketing
assistance, as a result of consideration Franchisee pays to such third parties for purchases
or leases HOA requires Franchisee to make. Franclusee further acknowledges and agrees
that HOA may require Franchisee to purchase or lease products. equipment. services, and
supplies from HOA and HOA's affiliates. that HOA and 1ts affiliates may include a
reasonable maskup m the price HOA and its affiliates charge Franchisee, and that HOA
and its affiliates may derive revenue and profit from purchases or leases HOA requires
Franchisee to make from HOA or 1ts affilates.

D. Business Risks. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that: (1)1t has conducted an
mdependent mvestigation of the business contemplated by this Agreement; (um) 1t
uanderstands that such business mvolves business risks: and (1) it understands that
making a success of the Franchised Business depends largely on Franchisee’s business
skall, effort. and business acumen.

E. Review of Documents. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that: (1) HOA s review of
any lease. loan agreement. purchase agreement, sale agreement, assignment, transfer
agreement, site plan, or other agreement or document Franchisee proposes to enter into or
provides 1s intended solely to ensure that HOA's interests are adequately protected:
(1) HOA 1s not undertaking any such review on Franchisee’s behalf or for Franchisee's
benefit: {111) HOA s review will not replace review by Franchisee’s accountant, attorney,
architect, and other business and professional advisors: and (iv) HOA will have no
responsibility or liability related to such review.

F. Wanances. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that: (1) HOA may from time to tume
approve exceptions or changes to the standards and specifications of the Hooters System
(including, without linutation, the amount and payment terms of any fee) that HOA
deems mnecessary or deswable under paricular circumstances (the “Vanances™):
(11) Franchisee will have no night to require HOA to disclose any Varnances to Franchisee
or to grant Franchisee the same or sumilar Variances; and (i11) other franclusees, whether
existing now or i the future. will operate under different forms of agreements, and that
as a result their nghts and obligations may differ matenally from Franchisee’s nights and
obligations.

G No Unauthonzed Representations or Commnutments. Franchisee acknowledges and
agrees that: (1) HOA does not pernut any agreements or conumitments. and does not
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approve any changes in this Agreement, except by means of a written amendment signed
by the parties to tlus Agreement: and (1) if any representations or commutments. or any
promuses of changes i this Agreement, have been made to Franchisee that are not in an
amendment signed by HOA's authonized officer and delivered to Franchisee, such
representations, commitments. and prommses will not be enforceable.

I Receipt; No Contrary Representations: No Financial Performance Representations.

1.

i
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Franchisee acknowledges that it recerved HOA's Intemational Franchise
Disclosure Document at least fourteen (14) davs pror to the date on which
Franchisee executed this Agreement or pard HOA any consideration related to
the Franchise. Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that it received a
copy of this complete Agreement, the attachments to this Agreement, and all
agreements related to this Agreement. if any. complete and with all blanks filled
i, at least five (5) business days prior to the date on which Franchisee executed
this Agreement or pard HOA any consideration related to the Franchise.

Franchises acknowledges and agrees that neither HOA nor any person or enfity
acting on HOA's behalf has made any representation. commutment. claim, or
statement to Franchisee that is different from. or that 1s contrary to, any of the
representations, comtmtments, clamms, or statements contamed i HOA's
International Franchise Disclosure Document.

Franchises acknowledges and agrees that neither HOA nor any person or entity
acting on HOA’s behalf has made any oral wrtten. wvisual or other
representation, commitment. clamm or statement from which any level or range
of actual or potential sales. costs. income. expenses. profits. cash flow. or
otherwise might be ascertained, related to a Hooters franchise, that 1s different
from, contrary to, or not contained m, HOA’s International Franchise Disclosure
Document.

Franchisee aclmowledges and agrees that the acknowledgments and agreements
set forth 1n this Section XX VIH : (1) are mtended to show that this Agreement
supports the disclosures set forth in HOA s International Franchise Disclosure
Document, and that tlus Agreement does not waive or contravene such
disclosures; (i) are not Franchisee’s warver of its right to relief for viclation of
any laws governing the offer and sale of franchises, but are rather Franchisee’s
acknowledgment and agreement that no such violations occurred; and (iii) are
being relied on by HOA to its detriment in connection with HOA s decision to
enter mto this Agreement with Franchisee.

The only exceptions to the acknowledgments and agreements set forth in this
Section XX VIH. are as follows:

None

. INITIALS:




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Agreement as
of the Effectsve Date set forth above.
HOA: FRANCHISEE:
HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC

By: By:
Terrance M. Marks
Title: Chief Executive Officer Tatle:
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EXHIBIT A

TO THE HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC
INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

PERSONAL GUARANTY OF FRANCHISEE'S PRINCIPALS
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PERSONAL GUARANTY OF FRANCHISEE'S PRINCIPALS

THIS GUARANTY (the “Guaranty”) 15 made by the Guarantor named on the signature pages of
this Guaranty (whether one or more, the “Guarantor”) m faver of HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC. a
Georgia, USA lumited hability company wath 1ts principal business address at 1815 The Exchange,
Atlanta, Georgia. USA 30339 (heremafter “HOA™). as of the date set forth beneath such Guarantor’s
signature.

RECITALS

A HOA as franchisor, and (the “Franchisee™), as
franchisee. are entering into that certain Hooters" international franchise agreement (the “Franchise
Agreement”) contemporaneously with Guarantor’s execution of this Guaranty and as a part of the same
transaction.

B. As an express condition precedent to. and in consideration of. HOA entering nto the
Franchise Agreement, HOA has required that Guarantor guaranty: (1) the payment and performance of all
monetary covenants and agreements of Franchisee contained in the Franchise Agreement and any other
agreements related to the Franchise Agreement or the business franclhised under the Franchise Agreement
(such monetary covenants and agreements being referred to collectively in tlus Guaranty as the
“Monetary Covenants”™); and (u) the performance of all non-monetary covenants and agreements of
Franchises contained in the Franchise Agreement and anv other agreements related to the Franchise
Agreement or the business franclised under the Franchise Agreement (such non-monetary covenants and
agreements bemng referred to collectively in this Guaranty as the “Non-Monetarv Covenants™) (the
Monetary Covenants and Non-Monetary Covenants being referred to collectively in this Guaranty as the
“Covenants™).

ol Guarantor 15 a Principal (as defined in the Francluse Agreement) of Franchisee. and as
such anticipates benefit from the transactions contemplated under and evidenced by the Franchise
Agreement and any other agreements related to the Francluse Agreement or the business franclused under
the Franchise Agreement (the Francluse Agreement and such other agreements bemg referred to
collectively in this Guaranty as the “Agreements™), and is therefore willing to execute this Guaranty.

D. HOA would not have entered into the Franchise Agreement without Guarantor’s
guaranties and agreements set forth m this Guaranty, wluch guaranties and agreements HOA has relied on
to 1ts detriment.

NOW. THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregomg. and in further consideration of the
Franchise Agreement and the mutual promuses and commutments set forth therein, and in further
consideration of Ten and No/100 United States Dollars ($10.00 USD) mn-hand paid to Guarantor, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and suffictency of all of which Guarantor hereby
acknowledges, Guarantor agrees as follows:

1. Guaranty.

1.1 Guarantor hereby guaranties the due and punctual payment and perfonmance when due of
all Monetary Covenants and the due and punctual performance when due of all Non-Monetary Covenants.

1.2 Guarantor agrees that. as to all Monetary Covenants, this Guaranty is a guaranty of
payment and not of collection.
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13 Guarantor agrees that the guaranties Guarantor 1s giving under this Guaranty: (1) are full,
complete, continung, absolute. unconditional primary, and unlinuted 1 amount: and (1) specifically
mclude amounts owed to HOA prior to the date Guarantor made this Guaranty, as well as amounts owed
to HOA after the date Guarantor made this Guaranty.

14 Guarantor agrees that HOA may at any iime, without impaining. releasing, or affecting in
any way the obligations of Guarantor vnader this Guaranty, and without further notice to Guarantor, and
without further consent by Guarantor:

1.4.1  Addto, delete from. or modify in any respect the Francluse Agreement and any
other Agreements, even if such additions, deletions. or modifications merease Guarantor’s liability under
this Guaranty:

142 Add additional agreements to the Agreements. even if such additional
agreements increase Guarantor’s liability under this Guaranty;

1.4.3 Extend or waive any time for Franchisee's or anv other person’s or enmtity’s
performance of or compliance with, any covenant, warranty, representation. agreement, or obligation to
be performed or observed under the Agreements; or waive such performance or compliance; or consent to
a failure of, or departure from such performance or comphance; and

1.44 Release anv person or other entity primarily or secondarily liable under the
Franchise Agreement or other Agreements. or this Guaranty.

Guarantor hereby subordinates to the Covenants all obligations that Franchisee may owe
to Guarantor: including without Limutation those obligations Franchisee may owe to Guarantor under any
covenant. Warranty, representation, agreement, contract, note, guaranty, accommodation, clamm. action. or
right of action, and any other obligations of Franchisee to Guarantor, however and whenever created.
arising. or evidenced, whether direct or mndirect. absolute or contingent or otherwise, and whether now
due or to become due.

i Joint and Several Guaranty. Ifthere 1s more than ene Guarantor, all the terms. conditions. and
obligations set forth m this Guaranty shall be jomt and several.

3 Pavment and Performance. If Franchisee fails to pay or perform any Monetary Covenant or
fails to perform any Non-Monetary Covenant, HOA may proceed directly against Guarantor without first
proceeding against or notifving Franchisee or any other guarantor. On notice from HOA that Franchisee
has failed to pay or perform any Monetary Covenant or to perform any Noun-Monetary Covenant:
(1) Guarantor will pay all amounts owed under any Monetary Covenant so that HOA actually receives the
amounts owed by the end of five (3) days after demand therefor; and (1) subject to Clause (1) above,
Guarantor will commence performing all other obligations to be performed immediately after HOAs
demand for such performance and shall thereafter wse Guarantor’s best efforts to complete such
performance to HOA's satisfaction.

4. Waivers by Guarantor. Guarantor hereby waives:

41 Notice of default arising out of or related to the Agreements whether such defaults are
related to the Covenants or otherwise;
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42 Notice of acceptance of this Guaranty, notice of settlement or compromuse of differences,
notice of swt. and notice of any arrangement or settlement made with Franchisee or any other guarantor,
mn or out of court;

43 All nghts Guarantor now has or in the future may have to compel HOA to proceed
agamst any other party before proceeding agamst, or as a condition of proceeding against. Guarantor; and

44 Any rights that may be conferred by Official Code of Georgia Annotated Sections 10-7-
23, 10-7-24, and 13-1-11. or any smular provisions of the laws of any other jurisdiction.

3. No Waiver By HOA. No delay or failure by HOA in the exercise of any right, power. or remedy
related to this Guaranty shall operate as a warver thereof and no single or partial exercise by HOA of any
right, power. or remedy shall preclude any further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other night,
power, or remedy.

6. Notices. All communications required or permitted to be grven under this Guaranty shall be m
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given: (1) when recerved in person by the other party;
{11) three (3) business days after being sent by reputable commercial courter service for express delivery
to the address provided under this Guaranty; or (ii1) on the intended recipient’s failure or refusal to accept
delivery of any communication given pursuant to this Guaranty, which failure or refusal shall be deemed
constructive delivery effective on the earlier of the date of such refusal or the times set forth in Clauses (1)
and (11) of tlus Section 6. UPS, Federal Express. and any successors thereto shall conclusively be deemed
“reputable commercial courier services.”™ For the purposes of tlus Guaranty:

6.1 The address of Guarantor 1s as set forth below his or her signature at the end of this
Guaranty.

6.2 The address of HOA 1s set forth in the caption of tlus Guaranty. Guarantor shall direct
any notice 1t delivers to HOA to the attention of HOA s General Counsel.

6.2.1 Guarantor shall deliver a simultaneous written copy of any notice to FHOA to:

Richard E. Johnson, Esq.

The Johnson Franchise Law Firm. LLC
3440 Blue Springs Road NW

Suite 201

Kennesaw, Georgia, USA 30144

622 Delivery of the copy as set forth in Section 6.2.1 of this Guaranty: (1) shall not
constitute notice; and (1) shall be an express condition precedent to the validity of any notice Guarantor
delivers to HOA.

6.3 Either party may designate another address at any time by delivering written notice to the
other in the manner set forth in this Section §.
7. Heirs, Personal Representatives, Successors, and Assigns. The provisions of this Guaranty
shall bind Guarantor and Guarantor's estate, heirs, personal representatives, and assigns, and shall benefit
HOA and HOA's successors and assigns.  Guarantor shall not assign this Guaranty without HOAs prior
written consent.
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8. Dispute Resolution.

8.1 Govermng Law. All matters ansing out of or related to this Guaranty, including without
Limatation all matters arising out of or related to the making, existence. construction, enforcement, and
sufficiency of performance of this Guaranty, shall be determined exclusively i accordance with, and
governed exclusively by, the laws of the State of Georgia, USA applicable to agreements made and to be
entirely performed within the State of Georgia, which laws shall prevail in the event of any conflict of
laws.

8.2 Fomm. Venuve. and Jurisdiction. In the event of any dispute ansing out of or related to
this Guaranty, including without hiontation any dispute ansing out of or related to the making of ths
Guaranty. such dispute shall be resolved exclusively through litigation. The exclusive forum and venue
for such litgation shall be a state or federal court m or for Cobb County, Georgia. USA having
jurischction over the subject matter. Guarantor hereby wrevocably accepts and submits to, generally and
unconditionally. the exclusive junsdiction of any state or federal court in or for Cobb County, Georgia
having jurisdiction over the subject matter, and hereby waives all defenses based on junisdiction. venue,
or forum non conveniens.

83 Watver of Tnal By Jury. Guarantor hereby warves trial by jury m any litigation ansing
out of or related to this Guaranty.

84 Costs and Attorneys” Fees  In the event of any dispute or hifigation ansing out of or
related to this Guaranty, meluding without linutation any dispute or litigation ansing out of or related to
the making of this Guaranty, Guarantor shall pay HOA. on demand. HOA's costs. including without
limtation HOA's reasonable attomevs™ fees and costs, and further mncludmg without hinmtation HOAs
reasonable attomeys” fees and costs of appeal, and further including without limitation HOA s reasonable
attornews’ fees and costs of collection, so that HOA actually recerves such amounts by the end of ten (10)
days after demand therefor. In the event of any default under this Guaranty, Guarantor shall pay HOA. on
demand, HOA's costs ansing out of or related to such default. including without limitation HOA's
reasonable attornevs’ fees and costs, and further including without linmtation HOA's reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs of collection. so that HOA actually recerves such amounts by the end of ten (10)
days after demand therefor.

9. Miscellaneous.

9.1 Contimuty: No Release. This Guaranty and the obligations of Guarantor shall remam n
full force and effect after and notwithstanding: (1) the termanation, expiration, or transfer of the Franchise
Agreement or any of the other Agreements; (1) the transfer of Guaranior’s equity in Franchisee: (1) the
termination or expiration of Guarantor’s relationship with Franchisee: (iv) the dissolution or termination
of existence of Franchises; (v) the ternunation of operation of Franchisee; (vi) the death of Guarantor; or
(vit) any other event or occurrence. except as HOA may expressly agree in an enforceable bilateral
written agreement duly executed by HOA s authorized officer and Guarantor and duly delivered to
Guarantor.

92 Construe In Favor of Enforcement. In the event of any dispute, litigation, or like event or
occurrence arsing out of or related to Guarantor’s obligations set forth m this Guaranty. or arsing out of
or related to the matters set forth in this Guaranty, Guarantor hereby directs any third party construing this
Guaranty. including without linutation any court, mediator, master, or other party acting as trier of fact or
law, to construe the provisions of this Guaranty broadly i faver of enforcement.
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93 Merger: Entire Guaranty. Compliance. This Guaranty 15 a complete integration that sets
forth the entire agreement between the parties. fully superseding any and all prior negotiations,
agreements. representations, or understandings between HOA and Guarantor. whether oral or written,
related to the subject matter of this Guaranty. Guarantor hereby expressly affirms that there are no oral or
written agreements, “side-deals.” arrangements, or understandings between HOA and Guarantor except as
expressly set forth m this Guaranty. No course of dealing, whether occurring before or after the date
Guarantor made this Guaranty, shall operate to amend. terminate, or waive any express Wwritfen provision
of this Guaranty. Notwithstanding anything set forth m this Section 9.3 to the contrary. if HOA or HOAs
affiliates have received any other guarannes related to the Francluse Agreement or the other Agreements,
from Guarantor or otherwise, such other guaranties shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding
this Guaranty, and such other guaranties shall be deemed a supplement to, and in addition to. this
Guaranty.

9.4 Interpretation.  The word “including” means “including without limiting the scope or
generality” of any word or words related thereto, and the words “and™ and “or” mean. and are used 1 the
mclusive sense of. “and'or.” References to agreements, documents, guaranties, and like agreements and
mstruments shall be deemed to refer as well to all schedules. exhibits, addenda, attachments, and
amendments thereto.

95 Guarantor Is Not Beneficiary. Guarantor acknowledges and agrees that notwithstanding
anything set forth i this Guaranty or any other agreement to the contrary: (1) all obligations HOA owes
under the Franchise Agreement and any other agreements are owed to Franchisee alone, and not to
Guarantor; (1) Guarantor shall not be entitled to rely on. enforce. or obtain relief for breach of any of
HOA’s obligations ansing out of or related to the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement, whether
directly, mdirectly. by subrogation, as an mtended third-party beneficiary, or otherwise; and
(111) Guarantor will not make or raise any claim. counterclaim, crossclam. affirmative defense, or
demand. that alleges, asserts, or otherwise raises any matter contrary to Clause (1) or Clause (1) of this
Section 9.5.

9.6 Partial Invalidity. If any prowvision of this Guaranty 1s declared invalid or unenforceable,
such provision shall be modified to the mummum extent necessary to make 1t valid and enforceable; and 1f
it cannot be so modified. then severed. The balance of this Guaranty shall remain in full force and effect,
and Guarantor agrees that 1t, he. or she would have signed this Guaranty as so modified.

9.7 Effect of Recitals. The Recitals to this Guaranty shall be construed as a matenial and
enforceable part of this Guaranty for all purposes. and shall 1n no event be considered prefatory language
or mere surplusage.

98 Further Assurances. (Guaranfor covenants, warrants, represents, and agrees that
Guarantor will perform such acts and execute and deliver such agreements or other documents to HOA as
HOA may require to effect the intent of this Guaranty, and that Guarantor will not unduly delay or
condition the performance of such acts or execution of such agreements or other documents.

9.9 Date. The date shown beneath Guarantor’s signature 1s for reference purposes only. If
Guarantor does not date this Guaranty, Guarantor hereby grants HOA the right to enter the Effective Date
of the Franchise Agreement in the space for such date. and Guarantor agrees that Guarantor shall be
deemed to have given HOA tlis Guaranty as of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement.
Guarantor's onussion of the date. and HOA's entry of the date descrnibed m this Section 9.9, shall not
umpair, release. or affect in any way Guarantor’s covenants, warranties, Tepresentations, agreements, or
obligations set forth 1. ansmng out of, or related to this Guaranty.

h
P
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L AS GUARANTOR., ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT I HAVE READ AND FULLY
UNDERSTAND ALL OF THE TERMS OF THIS GUARANTY. T HAVE HAD A FULL AND
FAIR OPPORTUNITY TO CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY OF MY CHOOSING RELATED
TO THIS GUARANTY AND I HAVE EITHER DONE SO OR HAVE KNOWINGLY,
INTELLIGENTLY., AND VOLUNTARILY ELECTED NOT TO DO S0. I HAVE NOT
RECEIVED, AND I AM NOT RELYING ON, ANY REPRESENTATION OR PROMISE BY
HOA OR ANY PERSON ACTING ON HOA'S BEHALF ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO
THIS GUARANTY, OTHER THAN THOSE THAT ARE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS
GUARANTY.

I AS GUARANTOR, ACKNOWLEDGE, AGREE, AND REITERATE THAT, AS SET FORTH
IN SECTION 1.3 OF THIS GUARANTY, THE GUARANTIES I AM GIVING UNDER THIS
GUARANTY: (I) ARE FULL, COMPLETE, CONTINUING, ABSOLUTE, UNCONDITIONAL,
PRIMARY. AND UNLIMITED IN ANMOUNT: AND (II) SPECIFICALLY INCLUDE ANMOUNTS
OWED TO HOA PRIOR TO THE DATE I MADE THIS GUARANTY. AS WELL AS AMOUNTS
OWED TO HOA AFTER THE DATE I MADE THIS GUARANTY.

I, AS GUARANTOR, ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT I AM SIGNING THIS
GUARANTY OF MY OWN FREE WILL AND VOLITION AND WITHOUT ANY DURESS OR
COERCION.

IN WITINESS WHEREOQF, mtendimng to be legally bound by this Guaranty, I have duly executed
and delivered this Guaranty as of the date set forth beneath my signature:

Guarantor Guarantor

Print Name Print Name

Date: .20 Date: .20
Address: Address:

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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Guarantor Guarantor

Print Name Print Name

Date: .20 Date: 20
Address: Address:

Guarantor Guarantor

Print Name Print Name

Date: .20 Date: 20
Address: Address:
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Guarantor Guarantor

Print Name Print Name

Date: 20 Date: 20
Address: Address:
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EXHIBIT B

TO THE HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC
INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT
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CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement™) 15 made and entered mio the day of
.20 (the “Effective Date™), by and between HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LIC. a
Georgia, USA lumited hability company with 1ts principal business address at 1815 The Exchange,

Atlanta, Georgia. USA 30339 (“HOA™), and i a
with 1ts principal busmess address at (the
“Franchisee™).
RECITALS
A HOA. as franchisor, and Franchises, as franclusee, are entering into that certain Hooters'

mternational franchise agreement between HOA and Franclusee contemporaneously with, and as a
material part of the same fransaction as. thus Agreement (such franchise agreement, together with all
schedules, exinbits, addenda. attachments, and amendments to 1, being referred to collectively m this
Agreement as the “Franchise Agreement™).

B. HOA would not have entered mto the Francluse Agreement without Franchisee's
covenants, warranties, representations. agreements. and acknowledgments set forth 1n this Agreement, all
of which HOA has relied on to its detriment.

NOW. THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregomg. and in further consideration of the
additional consideration acknowledged mn this Agreement, and in further consideration of the mutual
promuses and commutments set forth m tlus Agreement. and 1n further consideration of the Franchise
Agreement and the mutual pronuses and commitments set forth therem. and i further consideration of
Ten and No/100 Umnited States Dollars ($10.00 USD) m-hand paid to Franchisee, and for other good and
wvaluable consideration, the recempt and suffictency of all of which Franchisee hereby acknowledges.
Franchisee agrees as follows:

1 Definitions. As used n this Agreement:

1.1 Specific Defimtions.

1.1.1 Confidential Information “Confidenttal Information™ means any information
that HOA discloses to Franchisee that HOA designates as confidential or that. by its nature, would
reasonably be expected to be held in confidence or kept secret. whether such disclosure occurred prior to
or after the Effective Date of this Agreement. Without hinuting the definiion of “Confidential
Information.” all the following shall be conclusively presumed to be Confidential Information whether or
not HOA designates them as such: (1) all information that HOA has marked or designated as confidential:
{i1) all Hooters System Manuals, together with all sinular directives and documentation: (1i1) HOAs
traming programs and the matenal contammed m them: (1v) HOA's rules. gwdelines. standards,
specifications, plans, programs. procedures, and agreements. related fo the development, opening, and
operation of restaurants: (v) HOA's cost information: and (vi) all other mnformation that HOA provides to
Franchisee 1n confidence, except where such information 1s a Trade Secret.

1.1.2 Trade Secret. “Trade Secret” means information that denives independent
econonuc value. actual or potenttal, from not bemng generally known to, and not bemng readily
ascertamable by proper means by, other persons who may obtain economic value from its disclosure or
use, whether Franchisee obtamned such mformation prior to or after the Effective Date of this Agreement.
Without linuting the definition of “Trade Secret,” all the following shall be conclusively presumed to be
Trade Secrets whether or not HOA designates them as such: (1) the Hooters System’s guest lists. and the
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contact mformation of such guests. including without linutation guest lists and conract nformation
compiled by Franclusee; (1) HOA's food and beverage recipes. lisis of mpgredients, preparation
mstructions. and serving instructions; (1) HOA s advertising. marketing, and public relations strategies;
{1v) HOA s marketing analvses; (v) products and services that HOA proposes to introduce, but that 1t has
not yet mtroduced:; and (vi) HOA s expansion plans.

1.1.3 Obligors. “Obligors™ shall mean: (1) Franchisee’s Prncipals: (i) Franchisee's
Managers; (in1) Franchisee’s other management personnel: (i) any and all of Franchisee’s other
personnel. agents, or representatives having access to any of HOA’s Confidential Information or Trade
Secrets by or through Franclusee or as a result of Franchisee’s relationship with HOA: and (v) other
personnel in emplovment or sumilar capacities that HOA specifies.

12 Linntation.  The terms “Confidential Information™ and “Trade Secrets™ do net mclude.
regardless of the means of disclosure: (1) information generally known to the trade or the public at the
time HOA discloses 1t to Franchisee; (1) information that becomes known to the trade or the public after
HOA discloses 1t to Franclusee, unless it becomes known due to Franchisee’s breach of this Agreement;
or (11) information Franchisee can prove was known to Franchisee at the time HOA disclosed it to
Franchisee. Notwithstanding the foregoing. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that although some of
the information contained in the Confidential Information and Trade Secrets may already be known by
Franchisee or its personnel or be in the pubhc domam HOA has compiled such formation mn the
Confidential Information and Trade Secrets at HOA's considerable effort and expense. and as a result
such compilations shall be Confidential Information and Trade Secrets despite such knowledge of
Franchisee or 1ts personnel and despate the presence of such ttems mn the public domam.

1.3 Other Definmtions. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Agreement
shall have the same meamngs as are ascribed to them 1n the Franchise Agreement.

2z, Ownership and Protection of Confidential Information and Trade Secrets.

2.1 Ownership.

211 Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that HOA s Confidential Information and
Trade Secrets are and shall remain HOA s sole and exclusive property.

212 Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that HOA's Confidential Information and
Trade Secrets: (1) are expressly copynighted by copyright notice and hence protected under the US.
Copvright Act, or are unpublished works nonetheless protected under the US. Copynght Act; and
(11) include HOA s valuable confidential information and trade secrets.

213 Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that HOA has made substantial investment
m the Confidential Information and Trade Secrets. which investment may be recouped only if HOAs
rights set forth in the provisions of the Franchise Agreement goverming the protection of HOAs
mtellectual property, HOA s nights set forth i this Agreement, HOA s nights set forth i Exbubit A to tlus
Agreement. HOAs rights established by Law, and HOAs other nghts ansing out of or related to HOA's
mtellectual property, are honored.

22 Acknowledgments. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that:

221 The Confidential Information and Trade Secrets are not. by definition, generally
known in the trade; that they are bevond Franchisee’s present skall and experience: and that for Franchisee
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to develop such Confidential Information and Trade Secrets on 1ts own would be expensive. time-
consunung, and difficult;

222 The Confidential Information and Trade Secrets would, if disclosed to a third
party or used by Franchisee in violation of this Agreement. provide the third party or Franchisee with an
unfair competitive advantage, and that they would be econonucally valuable to the thurd party or
Franchises in the development of a competing business or otherwise;

223 The Confidential Information and Trade Secrets contam HOA's commercially

valuable confidential information and trade secrets: and

224 Unauthorized disclosure or use of all or any part of HOA's Cenfidential
Information or Trade Secrets would canse HOA great and wrreparable harm for which there 1s no adequate
remedy at law.

23 Protection. In recogniton of acknowledgment of. and agreement with, Section 1.
Section 2.1, and Section 2.2 of this Agreement, Franchisee covenants, warrants, represents, and agrees
that:

2.3.1 Franchisee will limit access to the Confidential Information and Trade Secrets to
Obligors who have first duly executed and delivered the confidentiality agreement for mdrviduals m the
form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A, and who have a legiimate business need to know of such
Confidential Information and Trade Secrets 1 order to further the operation of the Franchised Business
and Franchisee’s Restaurant.

232 Neither Franclhisee nor any Obligor will directly or mdirectly use. copy.
duplicate, record, or otherwise reproduce all or any part of the Confidential Information or Trade Secrets
for any purpose not directly and materially related to complying with Franclisee's obligations under the
Franchise Agreement.

233 If Franchisee is licensed to use any of HOA's proprietary computer programs,
Franchisee will not. nor will Franchisee attempt to, translate, decompile, decode, modify, merge, or
otherwise alter the object code of such programs.

2.34 Franchisee will not, during the term of the Franchise Agreement: (i) appropriate
or use any Confidential Information or Trade Secret for any purpose not directly and matenally related to
complying with Franclusee’s obligations under the Franchise Agreement: (i) use any Confidental
Information or Trade Secret at any place except the Franchized Business and Franchisee’s Restaurant:
(111) disclose or reveal any portion of the Confidential Information or Trade Secrets to any person. other
than to Obligors who have first duly executed and delivered the confidentiality agreement for individuals
mn the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A and who have a legitimate business need to know of
such Confidential Information and Trade Secrets in order to further the operation of the Franchised
Business and Franchisee’s Restaurant; or (1v) otherwise disclose any Confidential Information or Trade
Secret to any other person or entity except as HOA expressly authorizes.

2335 Franchisee will not, for two (2) years after the expiration or termunation of the

Franchise Agreement for any reason: (1) appropriate or use any Confidential Information for any purpose;
or (1) disclose any Confidential Information to any other person or enfity.
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2.3.6 Franchisee will not. at any tume after the expiration or termunation of the
Franchise Agreement for any reason: (1) appropriate or use any Trade Secret for any purpose; or
(11) disclose any Trade Secret to any other person or entity.

23.7 Franchises will not store such Confidential Information or Trade Secrets in a
computer retrieval or database or otherwise make such Confidenttal Information or Trade Secrets
available to any third party. except as set forth i the Franchise Agreement, as set forth in this Agreement,
or as HOA specifically authorizes.

2.3.8 Franchisee will at all times use Franchisee's best efforts to prevent unauthorized
copying or disclosure of any Confidential Information or Trade Secrets.

239 Franchisee will use Franchisee's best efforts to collect all coptes of the
Confidential Information and Trade Secrets from each person or entity gaimng access to them. at such
time as such person or entity no lenger has need to know of such Confidential Information or Trade
Secrets. On termunation or expiration of the Franchise Agreement, or earlier as HOA may request.
Franchisee will return to HOA at Franclusee’s expense or will destroy, as HOA may direct, any or all
Confidential Information and Trade Secrets. all copies thereof, and all other tangible things containing
mformation from or otherwise denved from such Confidential Information and Trade Secrets then in
Franchisee’s actual or constructive possession.

2310 Franchisee will cause Obligors having access to any of HOA's Coenfidential
Information or Trade Secrets by or through Franclusee or as a result of Franchisee's relationship with
HOA to execute HOA s confidentiality agreement for individuals in the form attached to this Agreement
as Exlubit A and to comply with such Exlubit A, Franchisee will immediatelv notify HOA n wniting of
any default of Exlubit A by any Obligor required to execute Exlubit A, Franchisee will, on HOA's
demand, commence such legal proceedings as may be required to compel the compliance of any Obligor
with the covenants, warranties, representations, and agreements set forth in Exhibit A, and will prosecute
such legal proceedings to their conclusion. at Franclusee's sole cost and expense. Franchisee will. on
HOA'’s demand. tender such legal proceedings to HOA and HOA may prosecute such legal proceedings
at Franchisee’s risk. If HOA demands such tender, any and all costs related to such tender, and any and
all costs of such legal proceedings, including without linitation HOAs attomeys” fees and costs, and
further including without lumitation HOA's attorneys™ fees and costs related to counterclaims. cross-
claims, affirmative defenses. appeals. and collection of amounts owed, will be within the scope of
Franchisee’s mdemnification obligations set forth n the Franchise Agreement and otherwise.

2311 HOA may from time to tine modify HOAs form of confidentiality agreement
for individuals attached to this Agreement as Exlubat A. If HOA modifies Exlubit A, Franchisee will, on
HOA’'s request: (1) cause the Obligors to duly execute, date. and deliver onginals of such modified
Exhibit A to Franchisee: and (1) deliver to HOA such duly-executed and dated originals so that HOA
actually receives such originals by the end of ten (10) days after HOA delivers such modified form to
Franchisee for execution.

£3 Infair Competition. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that, and hereby directs any third
party constnung this Agreement. mncluding without limitation any court. mediator, master, or other party
acting as a trier of fact or law. to conclusively presume that: (1) any breach by Franchisee of Section 2 of
this Agreement constitutes a deceptive and unfair trade practice and unfair competition; and (11) Section 1
and Section 2 of this Agreement are HOA s reasonable effort under the circumstances to mamtam the
confidentiality of HOA's Confidential Information and the secrecy of HOA s Trade Secrets.
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4. Works Made for Hire. If Franchisee prepares denvative works from the Confidential
Information or Trade Secrets. or if Franchisee causes such dertvative works (for example. arelntectural
and construction plans) to be prepared, such works shall be prepared as a work made for hire. If such
works are prepared by an independent contractor, Franchusee shall cause them to be prepared under a
written agreement stipulating that they are prepared as a work made for huire. Franchisee shall, without
HOA’s request, and without payvment of any compensation therefor, assign the rights in and to any and all
such works to HOA.

3. Burden of Proof If a dispute arises as to whether particular mnformation 15 Confidential
Information or a Trade Secret. Franchisee shall bear the burden of proving that such information 1s
outside the ambit of “Confidential Information™ or “Trade Secrets” subject to this Agreement.

6. Remedies. If Franchisee defaults under this Agreement, or if any Obligor or other party required
to execute the confidentiality agreement for individuals attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A defaults
under such Exhubit A, or if any such default s threatened or appears to be mmmiment: (1) HOA shall be
entitled to all remedies at law or 1 equity or otherwise for such default or threatened or mmment default;
and (11) HOA shall be entitled, m addition to any other remedies HOA may have at law or in equity or
otherwise, to a prelmminary and permanent mjunction and a decree for specific performance of the terms
of this Agreement or such Exhibit A without the necessity of showing actual or threatened damage and
without being required to furnish a bond or other security.

' Construction.

7.1 Goverming Law. All matters ansing out of or related to this Agreement. mcluding
without linutation all matters ansing out of or related to the making existence. construction. enforcement.
and sufficiency of performance of this Agreement. shall be deternuned exclusively in accordance with,
and governed exclustvely by, the laws of the State of Georgia, USA applicable to agreements made and to
be entirely performed within the State of Georgia, which laws shall prevail in the event of anv conflict of
laws.

72 Fomm Venue and Junsdiction In the event of any dispute arising out of or related to
this Agreement, mcluding without limitation any dispute arising out of or related to the making of this
Agreement, such dispute shall be resolved exclusively through lingation. The exclusive forum and venue
for such ligation shall be a state or federal court m or for Cobb County. Georgia. USA having
jurischction over the subject matter. Franchisee hereby srrevocably accepts and submuts to, generally and
unconditionally. the exclusive jurisdiction of any state or federal court m or for Cobb County. Georgia.
having jurisdiction over the subject matter, and hereby warves all defenses based on junisdiction. venue,
or forum non converuens.

73 Waiver of Trial Bv Jurv. HOA and Franchisee hereby waive trial by jury in any litigation
anising out of or related to this Agreement.

74 Attornevs” Fees and Costs. In the evenr of any dispute or litigation arising out of or
related to this Agreement, including without limitation any dispute or lingation ansing out of or related to
the making of this Agreement. Franchisee shall pay to HOA. on demand, HOA s costs, including without
limtation HOA's reasonable attomevs™ fees and costs, and further mcludmg without hinmtation HOA's
reasonable attomeys” fees and costs of appeal, and further including without limitation HOA s reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs of collection. so that HOA actually receives such amounts by the end of ten (10)
days after demand therefor. In the event of any default under this Agreement. Franchisee shall pav to
HOA. on demand, HOA s costs arising out of or related to such default, including without limitation
HOA'’s reasonable attomeys™ fees and costs, and further including without limitation HOA s reasonable
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attorneys’ fees and costs of collection. so that HOA actually recerves such amounts by the end of ten (10)
days after demand therefor.

1.5 Construction. This Agreement shall be construed to maximmze protection for: (1) HOA's
legitimate business mterests, mcluding without imitation the interests of HOA s other franchisees; (11) the
confidentiality of HOA's Confidential Information and the secrecy of HOA's Trade Secrets: (11) the
mtegrity of the Hooters System; (iv) HOA's investment m the System: (v) the investment of HOAs other
franchisees 1n their franchised businesses; and (vi) the goodwill associated with the System.

a. Miscellaneous.

8.1 Continmity: No Release. This Agreement and Franchisee’s obligations set forth m ths
Agreement shall remaimn in full force and effect after and notwithstanding: (1) the termunation. expiration,
or transfer of the Franchise Agreement. whether such transfer 1s pernutted or unpernutted: (it} the transfer
of Franchisee's interest i the Franchise Agreement. whether such transfer 1s permitted or unpernutted;
(111) the dissolution of existence or termunation of operation of Franchisee; (1v)the termunation of
Franchisee’s relationship with HOA: or {v) any other event or occurrence.

8.2 Construe In Favor of Enforcement. In the event of any dispute, litigation, or like event or
occurrence ansing out of or related to Franchisee’s obligations set forth in this Agreement. or arising out
of or related to the matters set forth i this Agreement. Franchisee hereby directs any tlurd party
construng this Agreement, mcluding without lumtation any court, mediator, master, or other party acting
as trier of fact or law. to construe the provisions of tlus Agreement broadly m faver of enforcement.

83 Merger. Entire Agreement. Compliance. This Agreement. together with the Franchise
Agreement. 15 a complete mtegration that sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, fully
superseding anv and all prior negotiations, agreements, representations. or understandings between HOA
and Franchisee, whether oral or written. related to the subject matter of this Agreement and the Franchise
Agreement. Franclusee hereby expressly affirms that there are no oral or written agreements, “side-
deals.” arrangements. or understandings between HOA and Franchisee except as expressly set forth in this
Agreement and the Franchise Agreement. No course of dealing, whether occurning before or after the
date HOA and Franchisee made this Agreement, shall operate to amend, ternunate, or watve any express
written provision of this Agreement Notwithstanding anvtling set forth in this Section 8.3 to the
contrary. if Franchisee has given HOA or any of HOA s affiliates any other agreements govermng the
protection of HOA s mtellectual property, such other agreements shall remain mn full force and effect
notwithstanding this Agreement. and such other agreements shall be deemed a supplement to, and in
addition to, this Agreement.

84 Interpretation. The word “including™ means “including without limiting the scope or
generality” of any word or words related thereto, and the words “and™ and “or”™ mean, and are used in the
mclusive sense of, “andior.” References to agreements, documents, guaranties, and hike agreements and
mstruments shall be deemed to refer as well to all schedules. exhibits. addenda, attachments, and

amendments thereto.

8.5 Partial Invabdity. If any provision of this Agreement is declared mvalid or
unenforceable, such provision shall be modified to the munmmm extent necessary to make 1t vahd and
enforceable; and if it cannot be so modified, then severed. The balance of this Agreement shall remam in
full force and effect, and Franchisee agrees that 1t would have signed this Agreement as so modified.
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8.6 Effect of Recitals. The Recitals to this Agreement shall be construed as a matersal and
enforceable part of this Agreement for all purposes. and shall m no event be considered prefatory
language or mere surplusage.

8.7 Further Assurances. Franchisee covenants, warrants, represents, and agrees that 1t will
perform such acts and execute and deliver such agreements or other documents to HOA as HOA may
require to effect the intent of this Agreement, and that Franchisee will not unduly delay or condition the
performance of such acts or execution of such agreements or other documents.

8.8 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on the parties hereto and on
their respective predecessors, successors, heirs. and assigns.

8.9 Notices. The parties shall send any notice, consent. request, or simular matersal to the
other i1 writing 1n the same manner as set forth 1 the Franchise Agreement for the delivery of notices.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties to this Agreement, imtending to be legally bound by this
Agreement, have duly executed and delivered this Agreement as of the Effective Date.
HOA: FRANCHISEE:
HOOTERS OF AMERICA LLC

By: By:
Terrance M. Marks
Title: Chief Executive Officer Tatle:
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EXHIBIT ATO
CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

INDIVIDUAL CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

L by my signature set forth below,. agree to be bound bv and to comply with this Confidentiality
Agreement (the “Agreement™).

A I am an owner. emplovee, or mdependent contractor of
(the “Emplover™). Employer is a franchisee of Hooters of America. LLC (“HOA™). under a Hooters”
franchise agreement between HOA and Employer. The franchise agreement 1s a legally binding contract.

B. HOA owns a wide variety of confidential information and trade secrets. HOA is granting
Employer access to its confidential mformation and trade secrets. HOA needs to secure the
confidentiality of 1ts confidential mformation and the secrecy of 1ts trade secrets, so that HOA s legitimate
mterests, including the interests of HOA s other franchisees. and the ntegrity and goodwill of HOA and
1ts affiliates. and the integrity of HOAs and such affiliates” various businesses, are protected.

C. HOA would not have entered mto the franchise relationship with Emplover unless
Employer agreed to have its personnel i positions like mine sign this Agreement.

D. I acknowledge and agree that I will recerve good and valuable consideration from my
agreement to be bound by tlus Agreement and to comply with 1t, m that: (1) without this Agreement
Employer would not employ me or place me m my posttion: or (11) 1if T am already a part of Employer’s
organization in a position that requires me to sign this Agreement and agree to be bound by it without
this Agreement Employer would termunate my employment or remove me from my position.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of all of wluch I hereby acknowledge, 1 hereby covenant,
warrant, represent. and agree as follows:

1 Definitions. In this Agreement:

1.1 “Confidential Information”™ means any information related 1o HOA that Employer or
HOA discloses to me that Emplover or HOA designates as confidential; or that, by 1ts nature, they would
reasonably expect me to hold m confidence or keep secret. whether such disclosure occurred prior to or
after the date I made this Agreement. Without linuting the definition of “Confidential Information.” I
agree that all the following shall be conclusively presumed to be Confidential Information whether or not
Employer or HOA designates them as such: (1) all information that Employer or HOA has marked or
designated as confidential: (11) all Hooters Svstem Manuals, together with all similar directives and
documentation: (ii1) Emplover's or HOA's training programs and the marerial comrained in themy
(iv) Emplover’s or HOA's rmules. guidelines, standards, specifications. plans, programs. procedures, and
agreements_ related to the development, opening. and operation of restaurants; (v) Employer’s or HOA’s
cost information: and (vi) all other information that Emplover or HOA gives to me in confidence, except
where such information 1s a Trade Secret.

1.2 “Trade Secret” means information that derives mdependent econonuc value, actval or
potential, from not beng generally known to, and not being readily ascertamable by proper means by,
other persons who may obtamn economic value from its disclosure or use, whether I obtained such
mformation prior to or after the date I made this Agreement. Without limiting the definition of “Trade
Secret,” T agree that all the following shall be conclusively presumed to be Trade Secrets whether or not
Emplover or HOA designates them as such: (1) all guest lists. and the contact information of such guests;
(11) all food and beverage recipes, lists of ingredients, preparation 1nstructions, and serving 1nstructions:
(i) HOA's advertising. marketing, and public relations strategies; (iv) HOA's marketing analyses:
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(v) products and services that HOA proposes to introduce. but that HOA has not vet introduced: and
{vi) HOA"s expansion plans.

1.3 The terms “Confidential Information™ and “Trade Secrets” do not include, regardless of
the means of disclosure: (1) information generally known to the trade or the public at the time Employer
or HOA discloses 1t to me; (11) information that becomes known to the trade or the public after Employer
or HOA discloses it to me. unless it becomes known due to my breach of this Agreement, or
(111) information I can prove was known to me at the ttme Emplover or HOA disclosed it to me.

2. Ownership and Protection of Confidential Information and Trade Secrets.

21 Ownership.

2.1.1 I acknowledge and agree that the Confidental Information and Trade Secrets are
and shall remain HOA s sole and exclusive property.

212 T acknowledge and agree that the Confidential Information and Trade Seerets:
(1) are expressly copynighted by copyrnight notice and hence protected under the U.S. Copynight Act, or
they are unpublished works nonetheless protected under the U.S. Copyright Act; and (1) include HOA's
valuable confidential information and trade secrets.

213 T acknowledge and agree that HOA has made substantial investment mn the
Confidential Information and Trade Secrets. which investment may be recouped only if HOA s rights set
forth 1n the provisions of the Franchise Agreement govermng the protection of HOA's intellectual
property. HOA s nights set forth mn this Agreement. HOA s nights established by Law, and HOA s other
rights ansing out of or related ro HOA s mtellectual property, are honored.

22 Aclnowledgments. T acknowledge and agree that the Confidential Information and Trade
Secrets are not. by defimtion. generally known in the trade; that they are beyond my present skill and
expertence; and that for me to develop such Confidential Information and Trade Secrets on my own
would be expensive, time-consunung, and difficult. I further acknowledge and agree that the Confidential
Information and Trade Secrets would. if disclosed to a third party or used by me in violation of this
Agreement, provide the third party or me with an unfair competitive advantage. and that they would be
econonucally valuable to the third party or me in the development of a competing business or otherwise.

23 Protection. In recogmtion. acknowledgment. and agreement with Section 1, Section 2.1,
and Section 2.2 of this Agreement, and in consideration of Employver’s employment of me or Emplover’s
placement or retention of me m my position. and m further consideration of the disclosure of the
Confidential Information and Trade Secrets to me. I covenant, warrant, represent, and agree that:

231 I will not, dunng the term of my employment or placement with Employer:
(i) appropriate or use any Confidential Information or Trade Secret for any purpose other than the
operation of Employer’s franchised business; (i) use any Confidential Information or Trade Secret at any
place except Employer’s franchised business and restaurants developed, opened. and operated in
connection with Emplover’s franchised business; (111} disclose or reveal any portion of the Confidential
Information or Trade Secrets to any person. other than to Employer's directors, officers, owners,
management emplovees, and others who have a legitimate business need to know of them i order to
further the operation of Emplover’s franchised business and restaurants: or {1v) disclose any Confidential
Information or Trade Secret to any other person or entity except as Emplover or HOA expressly
authorizes.
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232  Twill nor, for two (2) vears after the termunation or expiration of my emplovment
or placement with Employer for any reason: (1) appropriate or use any Confidential Information for any
purpose; or (11) disclose any Confidential Information to any other person or entity.

2.3.3 I will not, at any time after the termination or expiration of my employment or
placement with Emplover for any reason: (1) appropnate or use any Trade Secret for any purpose; or
{11) disclose any Trade Secret to any other person or entity.

234  Twill not copy, duplicate, record, or otherwise reproduce any of the Confidential
Information or Trade Secrets, in whole or in part; store such Confidential Information or Trade Secrets in
a computer database; or otherwise make such Confidential Informartion or Trade Secrets available to any
third party. except as set forth i this Agreement or as HOA specifically authorizes.

235 I will at all ttmes use my best efforts to prevent unauthonized copying or
disclosure of any Confidential Information or Trade Secrets.

2.3.6 On ternunation or expiration of my employment or placement with Employer for
any reason. orf when I am no longer assigned to work with any Confidential Information or Trade Secrets,
I will promptly surrender to Emplover all copies of any Confidential Information or Trade Secrets and
any copies, notes, memoranda, and like material concerning or derived from the Confidential Information
or Trade Secrets.

237 HOA may from time to time modify the form of confidentiality agreement that
HOA requires individuals like me to sign. If HOA moditfies such form. I wall on Employer’s or HOA's
request, duly execute. date, and deliver onginals of such modified confidentiality agreement to Employer
or HOA so that Emplover or HOA actually receives such originals by the end of ten (10) days after
Employer’s or HOA s request for them.

3. Unfair Competition. I acknowledge and agree that, and I hereby direct any third pamy
construing this Agreement, mcluding without limitation any court, mediator, master, or other party acting
as a trier of fact or law to conclusively presume that: (1) any breach by me of Section 2 of this Agreement
constitutes a deceptive and unfair trade practice and unfair competition; and (11) Section 1 and Section 2
of this Agreement are HOA s reasonable effort under the circumstances to maintain the confidentiality of
1ts Confidential Information and the secrecy of 1ts Trade Secrets.

4. Works Made for Hire. If Employer directs me to create works derived from any Confidential
Information or Trade Secrets. such works shall be deemed works made for hure and Employer shall own
all copynights in such works, subject to 1ts obligations to assign such nghts to HOA,

3 Burden of Proof If a dispute anses as to whether particular mformation 15 Confidential
Information or a Trade Secret, I agree that I will bear the burden of proving that such mformation 1s
outside the ambat of “Confidential Information”™ or “Trade Secrets™ subject to this Agreement.

6. Remedies. If T default under this Agreement, or 1f T threaten any default, or 1f any defaunlt appears
to be imminent. I acknowledge and agree that: (1) Emplover and HOA shall be entitled to all remedies at
law or in equity or otherwise for such default or threatened or rmnunent default; and (1) Employer and
HOA shall be enttled, in addition to any other remedies Employer and HOA may have at law or in equity
or otherwise, to a prelinmnary and permanent myunction and a decree for specific performance of the
provisions of this Agreement without the necessity of showing actual or threatened damage and without
being required to furmish a bond or other security.
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7. Limitation. Iunderstand that this 15 not an emplovment agreement of any kind.
8. Construction.

8.1 Goverming Law. All matters ansing out of or related to this Agreement. mncluding
without linutation all matters arising out of or related to the making, existence, construction. enforcement.
and sufficiency of performance of this Agreement, shall be deternuned exclusively in accordance wath,
and governed exclusively by. the laws of the State of Georgia, USA applicable to agreements made and to
be entirely performed within the State of Georgia, which laws shall prevail i the event of any conflict of
laws.

82 Fomm Venue and Jupsdiction In the event of any dispute arising out of or related to
this Agreement, mcluding without limitation any dispute arising out of or related to the making of this
Agreement, such dispute shall be resolved exclusively through litigation. The exclusive forum and venue
for such lingation shall be a state or federal court m or for Cobb County, Georgia. USA having
jurischction over the subject matter. I hereby irrevocably accept and subnut to. generally and
unconditionally, the exclusive jurisdiction of any state or federal court m or for Cobb County, Georgia,
having jurisdiction over the subject matter. and hereby waive all defenses based on jurisdiction, venue. or
forum non conveniens.

8.3 Waiver of Tral By Jury. 1 hereby waive trial by jury in any littgation arising out of or
related to tlus Agreement.

84 Attorneys” Fees and Costs. In the event of any dispute or hifigation ansing out of or
related to this Agreement, mcluding without limitation any dispute or litigation arising out of or related to
the malang of thus Agreement, I will pay HOA. on demand. HOA's costs, meluding without limtation
HOAs reasonable attorneys” fees and costs, and further including without limitation HOA's reasonable
attornevs’ fees and costs of appeal, and further including without limutation HOA s reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs of collection. so that HOA actually recetves such amounts by the end of ten (10) days after
HOA demands payment. In the event of any default under this Agreement, T will pay HOA on demand,
HOA’s costs ansing out of or related to such default. incloding without limitation HOA's reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs, and further including withour limitation HOAs reasonable attorneys” fees and
costs of collection, so that HOA actually receives such amounts by the end of ten (10} days after HOA
demands payment.

9. Miscellaneous.

9.1 Continnity: No Release. This Agreement and my obligations under 1t shall remain in full
force and effect after and notwithstanding: (1) the expiration or termunation of my employment or other
relationship with Emplover; (11) the expiration or termination of the relationship between HOA and
Employer; (i11) the transfer of Employer's franchise or business; or (1v) any other event or occurrence.

92 Construe In Favor of Enforcement In the event of any dispute, litigation, or like event or
occurrence arising out of or related to my obligations set forth mn this Agreement, or ansing out of or
related to the matters set forth in this Agreement, I hereby direct any third party constmung thus
Agreement, including without limitation any court. mediator, master, or other party acting as trier of fact
or law, to construe the provisions of this Agreement broadly m favor of enforcement.

93 Merger: Entire Agreement. Compliance. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement
between Emplover and HOA on the one hand, and me on the other hand. fullv superseding any and all
prior negotiations, agreements. representations, or understandings. whether oral or written, related to the
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subject matter of this Agreement. I hereby expressly affirm that there are no oral or written agreements,
“side-deals.” amrangements. or understandings between Emplover or HOA on the one hand, and me on the
other hand. related to the subject matter of tlus Agreement, except as expressly set forth in this
Agreement. No course of dealing. whether occuming before or after the date I signed tlus Agreemennt,
shall operate to amend, terminate. or waive any express witten provision of this Agreement
Notwithstanding anything set forth m this Section 9.3 to the contrary. if I have signed, or if I sign in the
future, any other agreements goverming the protection of HOA's imtellectual property. such other
agreements shall remain m full force and effect notwithstanding this Agreement. and such other
agreements shall be deemed a supplement to, and 1n addition 1o, this Agreement.

9.4 Interpretation.  The word “including”™ means “including without limiting the scope or
generality” of any word or words related thereto. and the words “and™ and “or”” mean. and are used 1 the
melusive sense of “and'or.” References to agreements, documents. guaranties, and hke agreements and
mstruments shall be deemed to refer as well to all schedules, exhibits, addenda. attachments, and
amendments thereto.

9.5 1 Am Not a Beneficiary. I acknowledge and agree that notwithstanding anvthing set forth
m this Agreement or any other agreement to the contrary: (1) all obligations HOA owes are owed to
Emplover only. and not to me; (11) I shall not be entitled to rely on. enforce. or obtain relief for breach of,
any of HOA's cbligations ansing our of or related to any agreement. whether directly. indirectly, by
subrogation, as an intended third-party beneficiary. or otherwise; and (111) T will not make or rase any
clamm, counterclaim, crossclaim. affirmative defense, or demand. that alleges. asserts, or otherwise raises
any matter contrary to Clause (1) or Clause (1) of this Section 9.5

9.6 Partial Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement i1s declared mvalid or
unenforceable, such provision shall be modified to the punumum extent necessary to make 1t valid and
enforceable; and if it cannot be so modified, then severed. The balance of this Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect, and I agree that I would have signed 1t as so modified.

97 Effect of Recitals. The Recitals to this Agreement shall be construed as a material and
enforceable part of this Agreement for all purposes. and shall m no event be considered prefarory
language or mere surplusage.

9.8 Further Assurances. I covenant. warrant, represent. and agree that I will perform such
acts and execute and deliver such agreements or other documents to HOA as HOA may require to effect
the wmitent of this Agreement, and that I will not unduly delay or condition the performance of such acts or
execution of such agreements or other documents.

99 Successors and Assigns. Tlis Agreement shall be binding on me and my personal
Tepresentatives, successors, heirs, and assigns.

910 Notces Iacknowledge and agree that:

9.10.1 HOA may send any notice, demand, consent, request. document. or similar
material to me 1 writing at the address set forth beneath my signature to this Agreement.

9.10.2 Any notice, demand, consem, request, document, or simular material shall be
deemed to have been duly delivered: (1) when I receive the item: (1) three (3) business davs after being
sent by reputable commercial courter service for express delivery to me at the address shown beneath my
signature; or (111) on my failure or refusal to accept delivery of the item, which failure or refusal shall be
deemed constructive delivery effective on the earlier of the date of such refusal or the nme set forth in
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Clanse (i1) of this Section 9.10.2. UPS, Federal Express. and any successors to them shall conclusively be
deemed “reputable commereial courter services.”

9.10.3 Imay designate another address at any time by delivering written notice to HOA
i the manner set forth in this Section 9.10.

911 Date IfI do not date this Agreement m the space provided for the date beneath my
signature: (i) such failure by me shall have no effect on the effectiveness of this Agreement; (1) this
Agreement shall be deemed effective as of the date that Employer employs me or places me in a position
that requires me to execute this Agreement, whichever is earlier; and (i11) HOA may. if 1t desires 1o do so,
enter such date as HOA deems appropriate.

I ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT I HAVE READ AND FULLY UNDERSTAND ALL OF
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT. I HAVE HAD A FULL AND FAIR
OPPORTUNITY TO CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY OF MY CHOICE RELATED TO THIS
AGREEMENT AND I HAVE EITHER DONE SO OR HAVE KNOWINGLY, INTELLIGENTLY,
AND VOLUNTARILY ELECTED NOT TO DO SO. I HAVE NOT RECEIVED, AND T AM NOT
RELYING ON, ANY REPRESENTATION OR PROMISE BY EMPLOYER OR HOA, OR ANY
PERSON ACTING ON EMPLOYER'S OR HOA'S BEHALF, ARTSING OUT OF OR RELATED
TO THIS AGREEMENT, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT.

I ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT THIS AGREEMENT SPECIFICALLY APPLIES TO
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION AND TRADE SECRETS THAT I RECEIVED BEFORE 1
MADE THIS AGREEMENT, AS WELL AS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION AND TRADE
SECRETS THATIRECEIVED AFTER I MADE THIS AGREEMENT.

I ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT I AM SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT OF MY OWN
FREE WILL AND VOLITION AND WITHOUT ANY DURESS OR COERCION.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, mtending to be legally bound by this Agreement. I have duly
executed and delivered this Agreement as of the date set forth beneath my signature:

Signature Signature

Print Name Print Name

Date: 20 Date: 20
Address: Address:

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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Signature Signature
Print Name Print Name
Date: 20 Date: 20
Address: Address:
Signature Signature
Print Name Print Name
Date: 20 Date: 20
Address: Address:
Signature Signature
Print Name Print Name
Date: 20 Date: 20
Address: Address:
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EXHIBIT C

TO THE HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC
INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE
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COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE

THIS COVENANT (the “Covenant™) 1s made and entered into the day of
, 20 (the “Effective Date™). by and between HOOTERS OF AMERICA. LLC, a
Georgia, USA limuted liability company with its principal business address at 1815 The Exchange,
Atlanta, Georgia, USA 30339 (“HOA"), and .a
with 1ts principal business address at
(the “Franchisee™).

RECITALS

A HOA. as franchisor, and Franchises, as franclusee, are entering into that certain Hooters'
mternational franchise agreement between HOA and Franclusee contemporaneously with, and as a
material part of the same fransaction as. thus Agreement (such franchise agreement, together with all
schedules, exinbits, addenda. attachments, and amendments to 1t, being referred to collectively m this
Covenant as the “Franchise Agreement™).

B. HOA would not have entered mto the Francluse Agreement without Franchisee's
covenants, warranties, representations. agreements, and acknowledgments set forth 1n this Covenant, all
of which HOA has relied on to its detriment.

NOW. THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregomg. and in further consideration of the
additional consideration acknowledged in tlus Covenant, and in further consideratton of the mwtual
promuses and comnutments set forth m this Covenant. and m further consideration of the Franchise
Agreement and the mutual pronuses and commitments set forth therem. and i further consideration of
Ten and No/100 Umnited States Dollars ($10.00 USD) m-hand paid to Franchisee, and for other good and
wvaluable consideration, the recempt and suffictency of all of which Franchisee hereby acknowledges.
Franchisee agrees as follows:

1. Definitions. As used m this Covenant:

1.1 Specific Defimtions.

1.1.1  Compenng Activity. “Competing Activity” shall mean: (1} developing, opening,
or operating any Competing Business; or (1) authorizing. assistng. or inducing another to develop. open.,
or operate a Competing Business.

1.12 Competing Busmess “Competing Business” shall mean a restaurant or bar
concept that: (1) features female sex appeal; or (11) focuses on the sale of chicken wings. Without linuting
the generality of the foregomng. all of the following businesses shall conclusively be deemed to be
Competing Businesses: (a) Tilred Kilt, Winghouse, Twin Peaks, Bikinis. and any other restaurant or bar
concept that features female sex appeal: and (b) Buffalo Wild Wings, Buffalo’s, and any other restaurant
concept that focuses on the sale of chicken wings.

1.1.3 Covenanting Personnel “Covenanting Persomnel” shall mean Franchisee’s:
(1) Principals: (1) Managers; (111) directors, officers, and managers (1f Franchisee 1s a corporation, linuted
liability company, or similar business entity); (iv) general partners and limited partners (including without
limutation each holder of a direct or beneficial interest of ten percent (10%) or more m any corporation.
limated liability company. or other business entity that controls, directly or indirectly, any general or
limited partner): and (v) other personnel 1n employment or sinular capacities HOA specifies.
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12 Other Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined m this Covenant
shall have the same meamngs as are ascribed to them 1n the Franchise Agreement.

2. Covenant Not to Compete.

%1 Restrictive Covenant. Franchisee covenants, warrants, represents. and agrees that 1t will
comply with the following restrictions, all of which Franclusee acknowledges and agrees are reasonable
and necessary to protect: (1) HOAs legitimate business interests, including without limitation the interests
of HOAs other franchisees: (1) the confidentiahity of HOA's Confidential Information and the secrecy of
HOA’s Trade Secrets; (ui) the integnity of the Hooters System: (1v) HOA s investment in the Systemy
(v) the mvestment of HOA's other franclusees m their franchised businesses: and (vi) the goodwall
associated with the System:

2.1.1  In-Term Covenant Not to Compete. Franchisee covenants. warrants. represents.
and agrees that 1t will not, duning the term of the Franchise Agreement. individually or jointly with others,
directly or mdirectly. by. through. on behalf of or in comunction with. any other person or entity:
(1) engage i a Competing Activity, other than under the Franchise Agreement or another agreement with
HOA; (11) act as a director, officer, shareholder. partner, member. emplovee, independent contractor,
consultant, principal. agent, or proprietor. or participate or assist m the establishment or operation of,
directly or indirectly. any business engaged in a Competing Activity. except that Franchisee may purchase
or hold less than five percent (5%) of the shares of any publicly-traded business engaged in a Competing
Actrvity: or (1) divert or attempt to divert any business from the Hooters System. within: (a) any of
Franchisee’s Protected Territories or former Protected Territories: {b) any of Franchisee’s Option
Territories or former Option Territonies: or (c) the protected terntory or option territory of any other
franchisee or affiliate of HOA.

212 Post-Term Covenant Not to Compete.  Franchisee covenants. warrants.
represents, and agrees that it will not, beginning at the expiration or ternunation of the Franchise
Agreement and continung for two (2) years thereafter or two (2) years after a court of competent
jurisdiction enters an order enforcing this Section 2 of this Covenant. whichever occurs last, mdividually
or jointly with others, directly or indirectly. by, through, on behalf of. or in conjunction with, any other
person or entity, (1) engage m a Competing Activity. other than another business Franclusee operates
pursuant to an agreement with HOA: (i) act as a director, officer. shareholder, partner. member,
emplovee. mdependent contractor, consultant, principal, agent, or proprietor. or participate or assist i the
establishment or operation of directly or indirectly, anv business engaged in a Competing Activity,
except that Franchisee may purchase or hold less than five percent {5%) of the shares of any publicly-
traded business engaged in a Competing Activity: or (111) divert or attempt to divert any business from the
Franchised Business or the Hooters System. within: (a) any of Franchisee’s Protected Territories or
former Protected Territories; (b) any of Franchisee’s Option Termntories or former Option Ternitories; or
{c) a protected territory or option territory of any other franchisee or affiliate of HOA.

22 Directives. In the event of any dispute related to this Section 2 of this Covenant,
Franchises hereby directs anv third party constmung tlus Covenant, including without limitation any
court, mediator, master, or other party acting as trier of fact or law:

221 To conclusively presume that the restrictions set forth mn this Section 2 of this
Covenant are reasonable and necessary in order to protect: (1) HOA's legiimate business interests,
mcluding without limatation the mterests of HOA's other franclusees; (1) the confidentiality of HOA's
Confidential Information and the secrecy of HOA's Trade Secrets; (ii1) the integrity of the Hooters
System; (1v) HOA's investment in the Systemy (v) the mnvestment of HOA's other franchisees in their
franchised businesses; and (vi) the goodwill associated with the System.
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222 To conclusively presume that thus Section 2 of thus Covenant was made freely
and voluntanly by Franchisee. as an mdependent business operator to which HOA delivered good and
valuable consideration, i an arms-length commercial transaction between skilled and experienced
business professionals.

223 To conclusively presume that the restnctions set forth n this Section 2 of this
Covenant will not unduly burden Franchisee’s ability to eamn a livelihood.

224 To construe this Section 2 of this Covenant under Laws governing distribution
contracts between commercial entities in an arms-length business transaction, and not under Laws
governing contracts of employment.

225 To conclusively presume that any violation of any of the terms of this Section 2
of this Covenant: (1) was accompanied by the misapproprmation and mnevitable disclosure of HOA's
confidential information, trade secrets, and other methods and procedures; and (1) constitutes a decephive
and unfair trade practice and vnfair competition.

3. Enforcement. Franclisee acknowledges and agrees that:

31 Each of the covenants set forth m Section 2 of this Covenanr shall be construed as
mdependent of any other covenant or provision of this Covenant. If all or any portion of a covenant set
forth 1 Section 2 of this Covenant is held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency having
valid jurisdiction in an unappealed final decision 1n a proceeding to which HOA 1s a party, Franchisee
will be bound by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms of such covenant that imposes the
maximum duty permutted by law, as if the resulting covenant were separately stated in and made a part of
Section 2.

32 HOA shall have the night, in it sole discretion, to reduce the scope of any covenant set
forth 1n Section 2 of tlus Covenant, or any poriion thereof, without Franchisee’s consent. effective
immediately on HOA's delivery of wrtten notice of such reduction to Franchisee; and Franchisee shall
comply forthwith with any covenant as so modified.

i3 The existence of any claims Franchisee may have agamnst HOA, whether or not ansing
from this Covenant. shall not constitute a defense to HOA s enforcement of the covenants set forth i
Section 2 of this Covenant.

34 Franchises will cause all 1ts Covenanting Personnel to execute the Individual Covenant
Not to Compete attached as Exlubit A to this Covenant and to comply with such Indrndual Covenant Not
to Compete. Franclusee will deliver a fully-executed. dated original of each Individual Covenant Not to
Compete to HOA prior to and as a condition precedent to such mdrvidual coming within the scope of
persons defined as “Covenanting Personnel.” Franchisee will immediately notify HOA mn writing of any
default of any Individual Covenant Not to Compete or the obligations set forth in the Individual Covenant
Not to Compete by any Covenanting Personnel required to execute such Indriidual Covenant Not to
Compete. Franchisee will, on HOA's demand, commence such legal procesdings as may be required 1o
compel the compliance of any Covenanting Personnel with such Individual Covenant Not to Compete,
and will prosecute such legal proceedings to their conclusion. As between HOA and Franchisee. all such
legal proceedings will be prosecuted Franchisee’s sole cost and expense. Franchizee will, on HOA's
demand, tender such legal procesdings to HOA, and HOA may prosecute such legal proceedings at
Franchisee’s nsk. If HOA demands such tender, any and all costs related to such tender. and any and all
costs of such legal proceedings. mecluding without himitation HOA's attorneys” fees and costs, and further
mcluding without limitation HOA's attorneys’™ fees and costs related to counterclamms. cross-claims,
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appeals. and collection of amounts owed, shall be within the scope of Franchisee's mdemmnification
obligattons set forth m Section 3VIIL of the Franchise Agreement and otherwase.

3:5 HOA may from time to time modify the form of Individual Covenant Not to
Compete. If HOA modifies the Individual Covenant Not to Compete, Franchisee will, on HOA s request:
(1) cause the Covenanting Personnel to duly execute and date onginals of such modified Indrvidual
Covenant Not to Compete; and (1) deliver to HOA such duly-executed and dated originals so that HOA
actually recetves such onginals by the end of ten (10) days after HOA delivers such origmals to
Franchisee for execution by the Covenanting Personnel,

4 Injunctive Relief Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that any failure to comply with the
requirements of Section XV. of the Franchise Agreement, this Covenant, or any Individual Covenant Not
to Compete, will cause HOA irreparable harm for which HOA has no adequate remedy at law. Therefore,
Franchisee agrees that HOA will have the right to mpunctrve relief. mecluding without linmitation a decree
for specific performance. to compel Franchisee's compliance with Section XV. of the Franchise
Agreement and this Covenant. and to compel the compliance of all Covenanting Personnel with all
Individual Covenants Not to Compete, without the necessity of showing actual or threatened damage and
without being required to furnish a bond or other security.

a. Dispute Resolution.

5l Goverming Law. All matters arismg out of or related to this Covenant. including without
lrmutation all matters ansing out of or related to the malang. existence, construction, enforcement. and
sufficiency of performance of this Covenant. shall be deternuned exclusively m accordance with, and
governed exclusively by, the laws of the State of Georgia, USA applicable to agreements made and to be
entirely performed within the State of Georgia. which laws shall prevail in the event of any conflict of
laws.

5.2 Fomm. Venue. and Jurisdiction. In the event of any dispute arising out of or related to
this Covenant, including without linutation any dispute ansing out of or related to the malang of this
Covenant. such dispute shall be resolved exclusively through litigation. The exclusive forum and venue
for such litigation shall be a state or federal court in or for Cobb County, Georgia. USA having
jurischction over the subject matter. Franchisee hereby wrevocably accepts and subnuts to. generally and
unconditionally, the exclusive junsdiction of any state or federal court in or for Cobb County, Georgia
having jurisdiction over the subject matter. and hereby waives all defenses based on jurisdiction. venue.
or forum non convenens.

33 Warver of Tral By Jury. HOA and Franclusee hereby waive tnal by jury m any liigation
arising out of or related to this Covenant.

54 Attorneys” Fees and Costs. In the event of any dispute or litigation arising out of or
related to this Covenant, including without hinmtation any dispute or litigation anising out of or related to
the making of this Covenant. Franchisee shall pay to HOA, on demand, HOA s costs, including without
lrmatation HOA's reasonable attorneys™ fees and costs, and further including without hiomtation HOAs
reasonable attorneys™ fees and costs of appeal. and further including without limtation HOA s reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs of collection. so that HOA actually recerves such amounts by the end of ten (10)
days after demand therefor. In the event of any default under this Covenant, Franchisee shall pay to
HOA, on demand, HOAs costs ansing out of or related to such defanlt, including without limitation
HOA'’s reasonable attomeys” fees and costs. and further mncludmg without limitation HOA's reasonable
attorneys” fees and costs of collection, so that HOA actually receives such amounts by the end of ten (10)
days after demand therefor.
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5.5 Construction. This Covenant shall be construed to maxinmize protection for: (1) HOAs
legitimate business mterests. meluding without linmtation the mterests of HOA's other franchisees; (1) the
confidentiality of HOA's Confidential Information and the secrecy of HOA's Trade Secrets: (ii) the
mtegrity of the Hooters System: (iv) HOA's investment in the System: (v) the mvestment of HOA s other
franchisees n their franchised businesses; and (v1) the goodwill associated with the System.

6. Miscellaneous.

6.1 Continuity; No Release This Covenant and Franchisee's obligations set forth mn this
Covenant shall remain i full force and effect after and notwithstanding: (1) the termination, expiration, or
transfer of the Franchise Agreement. whether such transfer 1s permutted or unpermutted; (11) the transfer of
Franchisee’s interest in the Franchise Agreement, whether such transfer is permitied or unpermitted;
(111) the dissolution of existence or ternunation of operation of Franchisee: (1v) the termunaton of
Franchisee’s relationship with HOA: or (v) any other event or occurrence.

6.2 Construe In Favor of Enforcement. In the event of any dispute, litigation, or like event or
occurrence ansing out of or related to Franchisee’s obligations set forth 1n this Covenant. or arising out of
or related to the matters set forth 1n this Covenant, Franchisee hereby directs any third party construing
this Covenant, including without limitation any court, mediator, master, or other party acting as trier of
fact or law, to construe the provisions of this Covenant broadly in favor of enforcement.

6.3 Merger. Entire Agreement. Compliance This Covenant. together with the Franchise
Agreement, 15 a complete integration that sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, fully
superseding any and all prior negotiations, agreements. representations, or understandings between HOA
and Franchisee, whether oral or written. related to the subject matter of this Covenant and the Franchise
Agreement. Franclusee hereby expressly affirms that there are no oral or wrtten agreements, “side-
deals.” arrangements. or understandings between HOA and Franchisee except as expressly set forth 1n this
Covenant and the Franchise Agreement. No course of dealing, whether occurring before or after the
Effective Date of this Covenant, shall operate to amend. ternunate. or waive any express written provision
of this Covenant. Notwithstanding anything set forth in this Section 6.3 to the contrary. if Franchisee has
given HOA or any of HOA's affiliates anv other agreements governing the protection of HOA's
mtellectual property, such other agreements shall remain m full force and effect notwithstanding thus
Covenant. and such other agreements shall be deemed a supplement to. and in addition to, this Covenant.

6.4 Interpretation.  The word “mncluding”™ means “mncluding without lumiting the scope or
generality” of any word or words related thereto. and the words “and” and “or” mean. and are used in the
mclusive sense of, “and'or.” References to agreements, documents. guaranties, and hike agreements and
mstruments shall be deemed to refer as well to all schedules. exhibits. addenda. attachments, and
amendments thereto.

6.5 Partial Invalidity. If any provision of tlus Covenant 1s declared mvalid or unenforceable,
such provision shall be modified to the mimmum extent necessary to make it valid and enforceable; and of
1t cannot be so modified. then severed. The balance of this Covenant shall remam 1n full force and effect.
and Franchisee agrees that 1t would have signed this Covenant as so modified.

6.6 Effect of Recitals. The Recitals to this Covenant shall be construed as a matenal and
enforceable part of this Covenant for all purposes, and shall in no event be considered prefatory language
or mere surplusage.

6.7 Further Assurances. Franchisee covenants, warrants, represents, and agrees that 1t wall
perform such acts and execute and deliver such agreements or other documents to HOA as HOA may

A
i

HEOAInt FAT41141211 "




require to effect the wtent of tlus Covenant, and that Franchisee will not unduly delay or condition the
performance of such acts or execution of such agreements or other documents.

6.8 Successors and Assigns. This Covenant shall be binding on the parties hereto and on
their respective predecessors, successors. heirs, and assigns.

6.9 Notices. The parties shall send any notice, consent, request, or simular matenial to the
other in writing in the same manner as set forth in the Franchise Agreement for the delivery of notices.

IN WITIWESS WHEREQF, the parties to this Covenant, intending to be legally bound by this
Covenant, have duly executed and delivered this Covenant as of the Effective Date.
HOA: FRANCHISEE:
HOOTERS OF AMERICA LLC

By: By:
Terrance M. Marks
Title: Cluef Executive Officer Title:
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EXHIBIT ATO
COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE

INDIVIDUAL COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE

L by my signature set forth below, agree to be bound by and to comply with this Covenant Not to
Compete (the “Covenant™).

A I am an owner. emplovee. or mdependent contractor of
(the “Employer”). Employer s a franchisee of Hooters of Amernica. LLC (“HOA™) under a Hooters”
franchise agreement between HOA and Employer. The franchise agreement 1s a legally binding contract.

B. HOA owns a wide variery of confidential information and trade secrets. HOA is granting
Employer access to its confidential information, trade secrets, and other methods and procedures. HOA
needs to secure the confidentiality of 1ts confidential information. the secrecy of 1ts trade secrets. and 1ts
other methods and procedures, so that HOA's legitimate interests, including the interests of HOA s other
franchisees, the integnity and goodwill of HOA and 1ts affiliates, and the mtegnity of HOA's and such
affiliates” various businesses, are protected.

C. HOA would not have entered mto the franchise relationship with Employer unless
Employer agreed to have its personnel in employvment positions like mine sign this Covenant, agree to be
bound by 1t. and agree to comply with 1t.

D. I acknowledge and agree that I will recerve good and valuable consideration from my
agreement to be bound by this Covenant and to comply with it, in that: (1) without this Covenant
Employer would not employ me or place me m my posttion: or (11) 1if T am already a part of Emplover’s
organization i a position that requires me to sign this Covenant and agree to be bound by 1t. without thus
Covenant Employer would terminate my employment or remove me from my position.

NOW. THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable
consideration. the receipt and suffictency of all of wluch I hereby acknowledge, 1 hereby covenant,
warrant. represent. and agree as follows:

1. Definitions. In this Covenant:

1.1 Competing  Activity.  “Competing Activaty” will mean: (1) owning, mamtaming,
operating, engaging i1, or having any interest in, any restaurant or bar concept that features female sex
appeal or that focuses on the sale of chicken wings: (11) acting as a director, officer, shareholder, partner,
member, employee, independent contractor, consultant, principal, agent, or proprietor, or participating or
assisting i the establishment or operation of directly or mdirectly, any restaurant or bar concept that
features female sex appeal or that focuses on the sale of chicken wings; or (it1) diverting or attempting to
divert any business from Emplover's Franchised Business, from HOA. or from any other franchised
businesses operating under the Hooters System.

1.1.1 fithout limiting the generality of Section 1.1(1) of tlus Covenanr, Tilted Kilr,
Winghouse. Twin Peaks. Bikums. and silar restaurant or bar concepts are concepts that feature female
sex appeal.

1.12  Without limiting the generality of Section 1.1{1) of this Covenant, Buffalo Wild
Wings. Buffalo’s. and similar restaurant or bar concepts are concepts that focus on the sale of chicken
wings.

12 Franchised Busmess “Franchised Business” will mean the business that Employer
operates under its franchise agreement with HOA.
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13 System. “System” will mean businesses operating under the “Hooters™ trademarks. trade
names, service marks. logotypes. and other conunercial symbols.

2. Covenant Not to Compete.

2.1 Restrictive Covenant. In consideration of Employer's emplovment of me, or in
consideration of Employer’s placement or retention of me i my posttion with Employer’s orgamzation. 1
covenant, warrant, represent, and agree that [ will comply with the following restrictions. all of whuch 1
acknowledge and agree are reasonable and necessary to protect Emplover's and HOA's legitimate
interests:

211 Covenant Not to Compete During the Term of My Emplovment I will not.
during the term of my employment or other placement with Emplover, mdividually or jointly with others.
directly or mdirectly. by, through. on behalf of or in conjunction with, any person or entity: (i) own,
maintain, operate. engage i, or have any mterest 1. any business engaged 1n a Competing Activity, other
than my employment or placement with Emplover, without HOA s prior written consent, except that I
may passively own or hold less than five percent (5%) of the shares of any publicly-traded business
engaged in a Competing Activity; (i) act as a director, officer, emplovee, independent coutractor,
consultant, principal. agent, or proprietor. or otherwise participate or assist in the establishment or
operation of, directly or indirectly, any business engaged in a Competing Activity; or (1) divert or
attempt to divert any business from Employer’s Franchised Business. or from any other businesses
operating under the Hooters System, witlhun: (a) any of Employver’s Protected Territories or former
Protected Territories; (b) anv of Emplover’'s Option Territories or former Option Terntories; or (c) the
protected territory or option terntory of any other franchisee or affiliate of HOA

2.1.2 Covenant Not to Compete After the Term of My Emplovment. I will not,
beginming with the date that Emplover no longer employs me or the date that I no longer hold a position

m Employer’s organization, and continuing for two (2) vears thereafter. or for two (2) years after a court
of competent jurisdiction enters an order enforeing this Section 2 of this Covenant, whichever occurs last,
mdividually or jomntly with others, directly or indirectly, by, through, on behalf of, or 1 conjunction with,
any person or entity: (i) own, mamtain, operate, engage ., or have any mnterest in, any business engaged
m a Competing Activity, without HOA s prior written consent, except that I may passively own or hold
less than five percent (5%) of the shares of any publicly-traded business engaged in a Competing
Actrvity; (1) act as a duector, officer. emplovee, independent contractor. consultant. pnineipal. agent, or
proprietor, or otherwise participate or assist i the establishment or operation of. directly or indirectly. any
business engaged 1 a Competing Activity: or (i) divert or attempt to divert any busmess from
Employer’s Franchised Business, from HOA, or from any other businesses operating under the Hooters
System, within: (a) any of Employer’s Protected Ternitories or former Protected Territories; (b) any of
Employer’s Option Territories or former Option Terntories: or (c) the protected territory or option
territory of any franchisee or affiliate of HOA.

22 Directives. If there 1s any dispute related to this Section 2 of this Covenant, T hereby
direct any thard party construing tlus Covenant, including without linitation any court. mediator, master,
or other party acting as trier of fact or law:

221 To conclusively presume that the restrictions set forth in this Section 2 are
reasonable and necessary in order to protect: (i) HOA's legitimate business interests, including without
limitation the interests of HOA's other franclusees: (1) the confidentiality of HOA's confidential
mformation. the secrecy of HOAs trade secrets, and HOA's other methods and procedures; (iti) the
mtegrity of the Hooters System; (1v) HOA s investment mn the System: (v) the investment of HOA s other
franchisees in their franchised businesses; and (v1) the goodwill associated with the System.
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222 To conclustvely presume that this Section 2 was made freely and voluntanly by
me. as a skilled and expenienced businessperson to whom Emplover and HOA delivered good and
valuable consideration.

223 To conclusively presume that the restrictions set forth in this Section 2 will not
will not unduly burden my ability to eam a hivelithood.

224 To conclusively presume that my violation of any of the provisions of this
Section 2 of thus Covenant: (1) was accompanied by the misappropriation and mevitable disclosure of
HOA’s confidential informartion. trade secrets, and other methods and procedures; and (1) constitutes a
deceptive and unfair trade practice and unfair competition.

225 To construe this Section 2 under laws governing distribution comtracts between
commercial entities i an arms-length business transaction, and not under laws governing contracts of
employment.

3. Enforcement. Iacknowledge and agree that:

il Each of the covenants set forth m Section 2 of tlus Covenant shall be construed as
mdependent of any other covenant or provision of this Covenant. If all or any portion of a covenant set
forth 1 Section 2 of this Covenant 1s held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency having
valid jurisdiction in an unappealed final decision in a proceeding to which HOA 15 a party, I will be bound
by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms of such covenant that imposes the maximum duty
pernutted by law, as if the resulting covenant were separately stated 1 and made a part of Section 2.

32 HOA shall have the night. m its sole discretion. to reduce the scope of any covenant set
forth 1 Section 2 of this Covenant. or any portion thereof, without my consent, effective immedhately on
delivery by HOA of wrrtten notice of such reduction to me; and I will immediately be bound by and
comply with any covenant as so modified.

33 The existence of any claims I may have agamst Emplover or HOA, whether or not they
anse from this Covenant, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by Emplover or HOA of the
provisions of this Covenant.

4. Injunctive Relief. I agree that any failure to comply with the requirements of this Covenant will
cause Employer and HOA irreparable harm for which they have no adequate remedy at law. Therefore, 1
agree that Emplover and HOA will have the right to injunctive relief, mcluding without limitation a
decree for specific performance, to compel me to comply with this Covenant, without the necessity of
showing actual or threatened damage and without being required to furnish a bond or other security.

A Construction.

5.1 Govermng Law. All matters arising out of or related to this Covenant, including withour
limitation all matters arising out of or related to the making, existence, construction, enforcement, and
sufficiency of performance of this Covenant, shall be deternuned exclusively 1n accordance with, and
governed exclusively by, the laws of the State of Georgia. USA applicable to agreements made and to be
entirely performed within the State of Georgia. which laws shall prevail i the event of any conflict of
laws.

52 Formum Venue and Junsdiction In the event of any dispute ansing out of or related to
this Covenant. including without linutation any dispute ansing out of or related to the making of this
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Covenant. such dispute shall be resolved exclusively through litgation. The exclusive forum and venue
for such lingation shall be a state or federal court m or for Cobb County, Georgia. USA having
qurischction over the subject matter. I hereby irrevocably accept and submut to, generally and
unconditionally. the exclusive junsdiction of any state or federal court in or for Cobb County, Georgia
having junisdiction over the subject matter. and hereby warve all defenses based on jurisdiction, venue. or
forum non conveniens.

53 Warver of Tnal By Jury. T hereby warve trial by jury i any littgation ansing out of or
related to tlus Covenant.

54 Attorneys” Fees and Costs. In the event of any dispute or hifigation ansing out of or
related to this Covenant, including without limitation any dispute or litigation arising our of or related to
the making of this Covenant, I will pay HOA. on demand. HOA s costs. including without himitation
HOA'’s reasonable attomeys™ fees and costs. and further includmg without Limitation HOA s reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs of appeal. and further including withour linutation HOA s reasonable attorneys
fees and costs of collection. so that HOA actually recerves such amounts by the end of ten (10) days after
HOA demands payment. In the event of any default under this Covenant, I will pay HOA, on demand,
HOA’s costs ansing out of or related to such default. incloding without limitation HOA's reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs, and further including withour limitation HOAs reasonable attorneys” fees and
costs of collection, so that HOA actually recerves such amounts by the end of ten (10} days after HOA
demands payment.

6. Miscellaneous.

6.1 Contimuty: No Release. This Covenant and my obligations under 1t shall remain 1 full
force and effect after and notwithstanding: (1) the expiration or ternunation of my employment or other
relationship with Emplover: {u) the expiration or termunation of the relattonship between HOA and
Employer; {ii1) the transfer of Emplover™s franchise or business; or (1v) any other event or occurrence.

6.2 Construe In Favor of Enforcement  In the event of any dispute, litigation, or like event or
occurrence arsing out of or related to my obligations set forth m this Covenant. or ansing out of or
related to the matters set forth in this Covenant. I hereby direct any third party construing tius Covenant,
wmcluding without linmtation any court. mediator, master, or other party acting as trier of fact or law. to
construe the provisions of this Covenant broadly in favor of enforcement.

63 Merger: Entire Agreement. Comphance. This Covenant sets forth the entire agreement
between Emplover and HOA on the one hand, and me on the other hand. fullv superseding any and all
prior negotiations, agreements. representations, or understandings. whether oral or written, related to the
subject matter of this Covenant. I hereby expressly affirm thar there are no oral or written agreements,
“side-deals,” amrangements, or understandings between Emplover or HOA on the one hand, and me on the
other hand, except as expressly set forth m this Covenant. No course of dealing, whether occurnng before
or after the date I signed this Covenant, shall operate to amend. termunate, or waive any express wiitten
provision of this Covenant. Notwithstanding anything set forth 1n this Section 6.3 to the contrary, 1f 1
have signed, or if I sign in the fumre. anv other agreements governming the protection of Emplover's or
HOA's mrtellectual property, such other agreements shall remain 1n full force and effect notwithstanding
tlus Covenant, and such other agreements shall be deemed a supplement to. and in addition to, this
Covenant.

6.4 Interprefation.  The word “including” means “including without limiting the scope or
generality” of any word or words related thereto, and the words “and™ and “or” mean, and are used in the
mclusive sense of. “andior.” References to agreements, documents, guaranties, and hike agreements and
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mstruments shall be deemed to refer as well to all schedules. exhibits. addenda. attachments, and

amendments thereto.

6.5 I Am Not a Beneficiarv. I acknowledge and agree that notwithstanding anything set forth
m this Covenant or any other agreement to the contrary: (1) all obligations HOA owes are owed to
Employer only. and not to me; {11} I shall not be entitled to rely on. enforce, or obtamn relief for breach of,
any of HOA’s obligattons anising out of or related to any agreement, whether directly. indirectlv, by
subrogation, as an intended third-party beneficiary. or otherwise; and (111) T wall not make or raise any
claim, counterclaim, crossclaim, affirmative defense, or demand, that alleges. asserts, or otherwise raises,
any matter contrary to Clause (1) or Clause (11} of this Section 6.5

6.6 Partial Invalidity. If any provision of tlus Covenant 1s declared mvalid or vnenforceable,
such provision shall be modified to the nunimum extent necessary to make 1t valid and enforceable; and if
1t cannot be so modified. then severed. The balance of this Covenant shall remain 1 full force and effect.
and I agree that I would have signed 1t as so modified.

6.7 Effect of Reaitals. The Recitals to this Covenant shall be construed as a matenal and
enforceable part of this Covenant for all purposes, and shall in no event be considered prefatory language
or mere surplusage.

6.8 Further Assurances. I covenant. warrant, represent. and agree that I will perform such
acts and execute and deliver such agreements or other documents to HOA as HOA may require to effect
the mtent of this Covenant, and that I will not unduly delay or condition the performance of such acts or
execution of such agreements or other documents.

6.9 Successors and Assions.  This Covenant shall be binding on me and my personal
representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns.

6.10 Notices I acknowledge and agree that:

6.10.1 HOA mav send any notice, demand, consent, request. document, or simular
material to me 1 writing at the address set forth beneath my signature to this Covenant.

6.102 Any notice. demand, consent, request. document, or simmlar material shall be
deemed to have been duly delivered: (1) when I recerve the item: (1) one (1) business day after being sent
by reputable commercial courier service for express delivery to me at the address shown beneath my
signature: or (1) on my fatlure or refusal to accept delivery of the item. whuch failure or refusal shall be
deemed constructive delivery effective on the earlier of the date of such refusal or the tme set forth i
Clause (i1) of this Section 6.10.2. UPS, Federal Express, and any successors to them shall conclusively be
deemed “reputable commercial courter services.”

6.10.3 I may designate another address at any time by delivering written notice in the
manner set forth mn this Section 6.10, to:

Hooters of America. LLC
1815 The Exchange
Atlanta, Georgia 30339
Amn:  General Counsel

6.11 Date If I do not date tlus Covenant in the space provided for the date beneath my
signature: (1) such failure by me shall have no effect on the effectiveness of this Covenant; (11) this
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Covenant shall be deemed effective as of the date that Emplover employs me or places me in a position
that requires me to execute this Covenant, whichever 1s eathier: and (111) HOA may, 1f 1t desires to do so.
enter such date as HOA deems appropriate.

I ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT I HAVE READ AND FULLY UNDERSTAND AILL OF
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS COVENANT. I HAVE HAD A FULL AND FATR OPPORTUNITY
TO CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNLEY OF MY CHOICE RELATED TO THIS COVENANT
AND I HAVE EITHER DONE 50 OR HAVE EKNOWINGLY, INTELLIGENTLY, AND
VOLUNTARILY ELECTED NOT TO DO SO. 1 HAVE NOT RECEIVED., AND I AM NOT
RELYING ON, ANY REPRESENTATION OR PROMISE BY EMPLOYER OR HOA. OR ANY
PERSON ACTING ON EMPLOYER'S OR HOA'S BEHALF, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED
TO THIS COVENANT, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS COVENANT.

I ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT: (I) BEFORE I SIGNED THIS COVENANT,
EMPLOYER PROVIDED ME WITH FULL, COMPLETE, AND ACCURATE DESCRIPTIONS
OF EMPLOYER'S PROTECTED TERRITORIES, FORMER PROTECTED TERRITORIES,
OPTION TERRITORIES, AND FORMER OPTION TERRITORIES: (II) BEFORE I SIGNED
THIS COVENANT, EMPLOYER AND HOA GAVE ME A FULL AND FAIR OPPORTUNITY
TO OBTAIN FULL, COMPLETE, AND ACCURATE DESCRIPTIONS OF THE PROTECTED
TERRITORIES AND OPTION TERRITORIES OF FRANCHISEES OR AFFILIATES OF HOA,
AND I EITHER OBTAINED SUCH DESCRIPTIONS OR I KNOWINGLY, INTELLIGENTLY,
AND VOLUNTARILY ELECTED NOT TO OBTAIN THEM: AND (III} I AM SOLELY AND
EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ASCERTAINING THE SCOPE OF EMPLOYER'S
PROTECTED TERRITORIES, FORMER PROTECIED TERRITORIES, OPTION
TERRITORIES, AND FOEREAMER OPTION TERRITORIES: AND THE PROTECTED
TERRITORIES AND OPTION TERRITORIES OF OTHER FRANCHISEES OR AFFILIATES
OF HOA.

I FURTHER ACENOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT I AM SIGNING THIS COVENANT OF
MY OWN FREE WILL AND VOLITION AND WITHOUT ANY DURESS OR COERCION.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF. agreeing to be legally bound hereby, I have duly executed and
delivered this Covenanr as of the dare set forth below.

Signature Signature

Print Name Print Name

Date: .20 Date: .20
Address: Address:
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Signature Signature
Print Name Print Name
Date: 20 Date: 20
Address: Address:
Signature Signature
Print Name Print Name
Date: 20 Date: 20
Address: Address:
Signature Signature
Print Name Print Name
Date: 20 Date: 20
Address: Address:
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EXHIBIT D

TO THE HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC
INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

OPTION ADDENDUM
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OPTION ADDENDUM

THIS OPTION ADDENDUM (the “Option Addendum™) 1s made and entered mnto the

day of .20 (the “Effective Date™), by and between HOOTERS OF AMERICA,
L1C. a Georgia, USA linuted hability company with tts principal business address at 1815 The
Exchange, Atlanta, Georgia. USA 30339 (hereinafter “HOA™). and ;A

with 1ts pnincipal business address at
(the “Franchisee™).

RECITALS

A HOA 15 the franchisor and Franchisee is the franchisee under that certain Hooters®
mternational franchise agreement between HOA and Franchisee of even date with this Option Addendum
{such franchise agreement, together with all schedules. exlubits, addenda, attachments, and amendments
to 1t, bemg referred to collectively in this Option Addendum as the “Franchise Agreement™).

B. HOA and Franchisee nwitually desire to enter mto this Option Addendum. to grant
Franchisee the right to develop, open, and operate the additional Hooters Restaurants (the “Additional
Restaurants™) set forth in the table contained 1n Section 4 of this Option Addendum (the “Development
Schedule™).

NOW. THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing and the mwiual pronuses and
commitments set forth n this Oprion Addendum. and in further consideration of the Franchise Agreement
and the mmtual pronuses and comnutments set forth therein. and for other good and wvaluable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which the parties herebv acknowledge. the parties to
this Option Addendum hereby agree as follows:

1. Grant of Option Rights HOA hereby grants to Franclisee, and Franchisee hereby accepts. the
exclusive option to develop. open. and operate the Additional Restaurants set forth in the Development
Schedule within the territory set forth on Exhibit A to this Option Addendum (the “Option Territory™). as
set forth in, and subject to. the Franchise Agreement and this Option Addendum (such grant of rights
being referred to collectively as the “Option™).

2. Option Fee Franchisee will pay HOA the sum of Fifteen Thousand and No/100 United States
Dollars ($15.000 USD) (the “Option Fee™) for each Additional Restaurant set forth in the Development
Schedule. contemporaneously with Franclusee’s delivery of this Opnon Addendum executed by
Franchisee, to HOA. All Option Fees that Franchisee 15 obligated to pay HOA under this Option
Addendum shall be deemed fully eamed and nonrefundable on HOA's execution of this Option
Addendum, in consideration of HOA's grant of the rights set forth in this Option Addendum. HOA's
costs and expenses related to this Option Addendum, HOA's lost opportunities to enfranchise others or to
develop company-owned Restaurants in the Option Ternitory, and other consideration.

3 Option Franchise Fee. Franchisee will payv HOA an initial option franchise fee in the amount of
Seventy-Five Thousand and No/100 United States Dollars ($75.000 USD) (the “Option Francluse Fee™)
for each Option that Franchisee exercises pursuant to this Option Addendum, contemporaneously with
Franchisee’s exercise of such Option. as set forth 1n Section 6.1 of thus Option Addendum.

4. Time Periods. The Option to develop, open. and operate each Additional Restaurant shown in
the Development Schedule, to the extent granted by this Option Addendum may be exercised by
Franchisee only within the following time periods. and provided Franchisee opens each such Additional
Restaurant on or before the applicable Restaurant Opening Date set forth in such Development Schedule:
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Development Schedule
Additional Latest Exercise Date Restaurant Opening Date
Restaurant No. (On or Before) (On or Before)
1
5
]
4
5

Nothing contained m this Section 4 shall extend the rights HOA granted to Franchisee in Section 1 of this
Option Addendum, or grant or create additional rights.

3. Option Territory. The site of any Additional Restaurant as to which Franchisee exercises an
Option nust be within the Option Ternitory.

6. Exercise of Option.

6.1 To exercise an Option under this Option Addendum, Franchisee mwust, prior to the
expiration of the applicable Latest Exercise Date set forth i the Development Schedule. deliver to HOA:
{1) written notice of the exercise the Option related to such Latest Exercise Date: and (11) the Option
Franchise Fee set forth 1n Section 3 of this Option Addendum.

6.2 If Franchisee fails to exercise any Option by the end of the Latest Exercise Date set forth
i the Development Schedule, or if Franclusee fails to open any Additional Restaurant by the Restaurant
Opening Date set forth i the Development Schedule, or 1f Franchisee fails to perform any other act set
forth in Section 6.1 of this Option Addendum by the date required: (1) such failure shall be conclusively
deemed to be an election by Franchisee not to exercise any of its remaining Option nights set forth 1n this
Option Addendum; (11) all of Franclusee’s nights set forth m thus Option Addendum shall expire
automatically and without further notice; and (111) HOA shall have the right to retain all Option Fees and
Option Franchise Fees paid.

6.3 Provided Franchisee exercises an Option m the manner described in Section 6.1 of tlus
Option Addendum. and on HOA's approval of the proposed site 1 accordance with Section 8 of tlus
Option Addendum, HOA will deliver to Franclusee an addendum to the Franclhise Agreement designating
such proposed site as an Approved Location, as defined 1n the Franchise Agreement, 1n the form attached
to this Option Addendum as Exhubit B or in HOA's then-current form (the “Addendum™), which
Addendum Franchisee shall execute and deliver to HOA so that HOA actually recerves 1t by the end of
ten (10) business days after Franchisee recetves such Addendum from HOA. Oun the parties’ execotion
and delivery of the Addendum, HOA and Franchisee shall be bound by all of the terms. conditions.

requirements, and duties set forth 1n the Franchise Agreement as to such Approved Location.

7. Conditions Precedent to Exercise of Option.

71 Franchisee’s right to exercise an Option to develop. open. and operate an Additional
Restaurant pursuant to this Option Addendum shall be subject to Franchisee’s satisfaction of the
following conditions precedent:
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7.1.1 At the time Franchisee desires to exercise any such Option. Franchisee must not
be i default of any provision of the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement to which HOA or any
of 1ts affiliates on the one hand, and Franchisee or any of its affiliates on the other, are parties; and

7.1.2 Franchisee and all of its affiliates mmst have substantially complied with all the
terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement and any other agreement to which HOA or any of its
affiliates on the one hand, and Franchisee or anv of 1ts affiliates on the other, are parties, dunng the terms
of such agreements.

12 If the Franchise Agreement 1s ternunated or expires, the grant of rights set forth m this
Option Addendum shall automatically termunate or expire simultaneously with such termmation or
expiration of the Franchise Agreement. and HOA shall have the right to retain all Option Fees and Option
Franchise Fees paid.

8. Site Selection.

8.1 Franchisee will submit for evaluation by HOA site approval request documents for each
proposed site for a Hooters Restaurant. HOA will review the site approval request documents and
conduct such other investigations of the proposed site as 1t determines necessary to properly evaluate such
proposed site. which mwvestigation may nclude an evaluation of the financial terms of the acqusition or
rental of the proposed site. Approval of anv proposed site shall be at HOAs sole discretion. HOA will
notify Franchisee promptly of the acceptance. acceptance with contingencies or conditions, or rejection of
a proposed site. HOA’s notice of acceprance of any site will be accompanied by an Addendum. as
provided in Section 6.3 of this Option Addendum. HOA's notice of rejection of any site will set forth
HOA's reasons for any such rejection. HOA will pay all reasonable travel expenses that HOA's agents or
employvees may wncur (the “Costs™) i connection with the inspection of Franclusee’s first proposed site
for each Additional Restaurant, and Franchisee shall pay all Costs for inspection of additional, altemnative.
or subsequent sites Franchisee proposes, so that HOA actually receives such payment by thirty (30) days
after HOA delivers written request for payment of such Costs to Franchisee.

82 Franchisee acknowledges that no proposed site shall be approved except by wtten
acceptance signed by an officer of HOA authorized to approve and accept a proposed site. and that no
other representations. approvals, or acceptances, whether oral or wnitten, shall be of any effect.

8.3 FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HOA'S APPROVAL OF A PROPOSED
SITE IS HOA'S AGREEMENT THAT SUCH PROPOSED SITE SATISFIES HOA™S MINIMUM SITE
SELECTION CRITERIA ONLY, AND THAT SUCH APPROVAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE ANY
REPEESENTATION. WARRANTY. OF. GUARANTY BY HOA THAT SUCH SITE WILL BE A
SUCCESSFUL LOCATION FOR A HOOTERS RESTAURANT.

84 HOA reserves the right to revoke any site acceptance within mnety (90) days after the
date thereof 1f: (1) a Hooters Restaurant 1s not under construction at the site 1 accordance with a fully-
execured Addendum for such site, as provided in this Option Addendum: or (i) Franchisee does not
execute and deliver such Addendum to HOA as set forth 1n tlus Option Addendum.

9 Construction Plans and Site Acquisition.

9.1 Property Acqusition  On receipt of HOA's wriften acceptance of a proposed site.
Franchisee shall immediately rake the necessary steps to acquire the site by purchase. lease, or sublease,
and to otherwise obtain the rights to develop. open, and operate a Hooters Restaurant on the site.

HEOAIn FAT41141211 -3-




92 Stte Plan Approval. On HOA's approval of a site requining the construction of new
mmprovements. HOA will on Franchisee’s written request, provide Franclisee with a set of plans for a
Hooters Restaurant that has already been constructed. Franchisee shall engage a licensed architect or
engineer to conform the plans to all applicable codes and requirements. and to local site conditions. prior
to submission of such plans to HOA. Franchisee shall subout to HOA a site plan for HOA s approval
Such site plan must be reviewed and approved by HOA i writing prior to commencement of
construction.  Rejection of any site plan shall be at HOA's sole discretion. and HOA will notify
Franchisee 1 writing of any rejection of the site plan, setting forth HOA s reasons for such rejection. If
alterations of any kind are required to be made to the site plan other than alterations necessary to conform
the site plan to applicable codes and requirements or to adapt the site plan to site topographv or soil
conditions. as approved by HOA. or to anv of HOA s construction plans, specifications. or layours, for
any reason, HOA must approve such alterations m writing before any work 1s begun on the site.
Franchisee shall remmburse HOA for all HOA's costs for any site plan or alteration of standard
construction plans, specifications. and layouts. including without limutation costs incurred for soil tests,
engineering and architectural fees, and fees required to comply with any applicable codes and
TequIrements.

93 Renovation Plan Approval If Franchisee is renovating an existing building, HOA must
approve all plans and specifications, including a site plan. 1n wniting, prior to commencement of any such
renovation. Rejection of any plans and specifications shall be at HOA's sole discretion. and HOA wall
notify Franchisee 1 writing of such rejection and will set forth the reasons for rejection. HOA wall. on
Franchisee’s written request. provide Franchisee with HOA's standard floor plan specifications and
examples of such floor plan specifications; provided, however, Franchisee, at Franchisee’s expense. shall
provide final working drawings, which HOA must review and approve mn writing prior to commencement
of construction.

9.4 Notification of Construction Commencement As soon as Franchisee has recetved
HOA'’s written approval of a site plan and construction plans. has acquired the nght to use the site, has
obtained all pernuts and governmental approvals. and has otherwise obrained all rights required to
develop. open, and operate the Hooters Restaurant on the site, Franchisee shall notify HOA of such facts
m writing, which writing shall be delivered in the manner set forth in the provisions of the Franchise
Agreement that govern delivery of notices.

10. Conditions of Construction. Prior to the commencement of construction or renovation of any
Additional Restaurant. Franchisee must sanisfy the following conditions precedent:

10.1  Franchises must have obtained an Addendum to the Franchise Agreement, fully executed
by both Franchisee and HOA. as specified in Section 6 of this Option Addendum, for the site;

102  HOA must have approved the site, and any contimgencies or conditions to which such
approval 1s subject must have been met, as specified in Section 8 of this Option Addendum:

103 HOA must have approved Franclusee's site plan and all proposed construction plans,
specifications, and lavouts, as specified i Section 9 of this Option Addendum; and

104  Franchisee must have obtamed the nght to use the site, obtammed all necessary permuts and

governmental approvals, and otherwise obtained all rights required to develop, open, and operate the
Additional Restaurant. as specified in Section 11 of this Option Addendum.
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11. Commencement of Construction.

11.1  Construction. On receipt from HOA of the executed Addendum for an Additional
Restaurant, Franchisee shall commence and complete construction of or renovation for a Hooters
Restaurant at the Approved Location in accordance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement and tlus
Option Addendum:

11.2  Dewviation from Approved Plan. Franchisee shall not deviate from the approved site plan.
construction plans, or specifications, in any manner 1n the construction or renovation of the Hooters
Restaurant without HOA s prior written approval. If at any time HOA determines that Franchisee has not
constructed or renovated the Hooters Restaurant in accordance with the plans and specifications HOA
approved, HOA shall, i addition to all other remedies. have the right to obtain an injunction from a court
of competent jurisdiction against the conunued construction. opening. or operation of the Hooters
Restaurant. Franchisee shall pay all legal fees and expenses HOA mecurs i connection with any such
Iitigation. mcluding such fees and expenses related to an action for mjunctive relief as contemplated
hereby. on demand by HOA

12. No New Franchise Conveved. Franchisee is a franclusee of HOA. The exercise of an Option
hereunder: (1) shall not be deemed to be the sale of a franchise; (11) shall not be deemed to be the grant of
new franchise nghts; and (111) shall be deemed to be the addition to the existing Franchise Agreement of
the Additional Restaurant that relates to such Option, which addition shall become effective at the time
HOA and Franchisee have executed and delivered an Addendum with respect to the Approved Location.

13. Transfer of Interest. If the Franclhise Agreement is transferred to a third party pursuant to the
Franchise Agreement, this Option Addendum shall also be transferred to such transferee.

14. Waiver and Delay. No waiver or delay in enforcement of any term, covenant, or condition of
this Option Addendum shall be construed as a warver of any breach or a watver of the right to enforce any
term, covenant, or condition of this Option Addendum HOA's acceptance of any pavment from
Franchisee shall not be, and shall not be construed to be, a warver of any breach of any term. covenant, or
condition of the Franchise Agreement or this Option Addendum.

15. Entire Agreement. This Option Addendum, together with the Franchise Agreement, constinites
a complete mtegration that sets forth the entire agreement between HOA and Franchisee related to the
subject matter of this Option Addendum and supersedes all prior negotiations. understandings.
representations. and agreements. 1f any, related to the subject matter of this Option Addendum
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee is entering into thus Option Addendum as a result of its own
mdependent investigation of the business and not as a result of any representations by HOA

16. Amendment. This Option Addendum may not be amended orally, but may be amended only by
a written mstrument signed by the parties. Franchisee expressly acknowledges that no oral promises or
declarations were made to 1t and that the obligations of HOA are confined exclusively fo the terms heremn.
Franchisee understands and assumes the business risks inherent in this enterprise.

17. Applicable Law: Dispute Resolution. In the event of any dispute arising out of or related to tlus
Option Addendum, including without limitation any dispute rising out of or related to the making,
enforcement, or sufficiency of performance of this Option Addendum. such dispute shall be subject to.
and governed by. Section XXIV. of the Franchise Agreement.

A
i
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18. Notices. Any notice required or permutted to be given hereunder shall be i writing and shall be
delivered 1n the manner set forth i the provisions of the Franchise Agreement that govern delwvery of
HOTICES.

19 Miscellaneous: Construction and Interpretation.

19.1  Time 1s of the essence to the exercise of all of Franclisee’s nghts. and to the performance
of all of Franchisee’s obligations, arising out of or related to tlus Option Addendum.

192 Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined 1n this Option Addendum shall have the
same meanings as are ascribed to them in the Franchise Agreement.

20. Submission of Option Addendum. Submssion of this Option Addendum to Franchisee does
not constitute an offer to enter mto a contract. This Opuon Addendum shall not be binding on HOA until
it has been signed by an officer of HOA authorized to execute contracts and has been delivered to
Franchisee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Option
Addendum as of the Effective Date.
HOA: FRANCHISEE:
HOOTERS OF AMERICA I1.C

By: By:
Terrance M. Marks
Title: Chief Executive Officer Tatle:
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EXHIBIT A
TO THE OPTION ADDENDUM

OPTION TERRITORY

Franchisee’s Option Territory shall be all that area within:

as the borders of such Option Territory are configured as of the date of thus Option.

HOA and Franclusee specifically agree that such Opton Temntory 15 granted to Franclusee on an
exclusive basis so long as Franchisee: (1) 15 i compliance with the Development Schedule; and (i1) 15 not
m default of any provision of the Franchize Agreement or this Option Addendum.

At such tume as Franchisee opens each Additional Restaurant specified in the Development Schedule set
forth i Section 4 of this Option Addendum. the Franchise Agreement with respect to such Restaurant,
which Franchise Agreement grants Franchisee an exclusive eight (8) kilometer radius around each such
Restaurant location. shall control. and the Option Terntory as to such Restaurant will expire avtomatically
and without further notice.

At such time as Franclusee or any Operating Company develops the last Additional Restaurant shown in
the Development Schedule. or on the expiration or termination of Franchisee’s righis set forth 1n the
Option Addendum, all parts of the Option Territory that are not within the Protected Territory of any of
Franchisee’s Restaurants shall revert automatically and without further notice to HOA.

Accepted and agreed to as of the Effective Date of this Option Addendum.

HOA: FRANCHISEE:
HOOTERS OF AMERICA LLC

By: By:
Terrance M. Marks
Title: Cluef Executive Officer Title:
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Address:

EXHIBIT B
TO THE OPTION ADDENDUM

APPROVED L.OCATION

Dhate of Approval:

HOA:

HOOTERS OF AMERICA. LLC

By:

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Terrance M. Marks
Title: Clief Executive Officer
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ExXHIBIT E

TO THE HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC
INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

LIST OF FRANCHISEE'S PRINCIPALS

HOAInt FA/T41 141211



LIST OF FRANCHISEE'S PRINCIPALS

The full legal name and address of each of Franchisee’s Prineipals, and the percentage of equity in
Franchisee each such Principal owns or holds. are as follows:

Full Name Full Name

Street Address: Street Address:

Pet. of Equity Owned or Held: %% Pet. of Equity Owned or Held: %%
Full Name Full Name

Street Address: Street Address:

Pct. of Equity Owned or Held: %% Pct. of Equity Owned or Held: %%
Full Name Full Name

Street Address: Street Address:

Pet. of Equity Owned or Held: % Pet. of Equity Owned or Held: %

[LIST CONTINUES ON FOLLOWING PAGE!
SIGNATURES CONTAINED ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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Full Name Full Name
Street Address: Street Address:

Pct. of Equity Owned or Held: %% Pct. of Equity Owned or Held:

Franchisee hereby certifies that the information set forth on this List 1s true and correct.

FRANCHISEE:

a0

Title:
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ExHIBIT F

TO THE HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC
INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

INTERNET WEB SITES AND LISTINGS AGREEMENT
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INTERNET WEB SITES AND LISTINGS AGREEMENT

THIS INTERNET WEB SITES AND LISTINGS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement™) 1s made and
entered into the day of . 20 (the “Effective Date™). by and between
HOOQTERS OF AMERICA 1I.C, a Georgia, USA hinted liability company with 1ts principal business
address at 1815 The Exchange, Atlanta, Georgia, USA 30339 (heremafter “HOA™), and

.a with its principal business
address at (hereinafter the “Franchisee™).
RECITALS
A Franchisee desires to enter into that certain Hooters” international franchise agreement

between HOA. as franchisor. and Franchisee, as franchisee. of even date with this Agreement (the
“Franchise Agreement™).

B. HOA would not enter mto the Franchise Agreement without Franchisee’s agreement to
enter mio, comply with, and be bound by, all the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and
commitments set forth m this Agreement. and m further consideration of the Franchise Agreement and the
mutual promises and commitments set forth therein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of all of which the parties hereby acknowledge, the parties hereby agree as
follows:

1. Definitions.

1.1, “Termunation” of the Franchise Agreement shall include. but shall not be hmited to. the
voluntary termination, nvoluntary ternunation, or natural expiration of the Franchise Agreement.

12 Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined m this Agreement shall have the same
meanings as are ascribed to them in the Franchise Agreement.

2. Transfer: Appointment.

21 Interest in Internet Web Sites and Listings. Franchisee has. or may acquire dunng the
Term of the Franchise Agreement, certamn right, title, and mterest m and to certain domain names,
hypertext markup language (“html”), umform resource locator (“url”) addresses. and access to
corresponding Internet web sites, and the right to hyperlink to certain web sites and listings on various
Internet search engmes and other social networlang media, busmess networking media, and marketing
media sites, applications, and platforms, all as modified and expanded from time to time as technology
progresses and otherwise (collectively, the “Tnternet Web Sites and Listings™) related to the Franchised
Business or the Proprietary Marks (all of which right, title, and interest is referred to in tlus Agreement as
Franchisee’s “Interest’™).

22 Transfer. On Termunation of the Franchise Agreement:

2.2.1 Franchise shall immediately and without request therefor provide HOA with a
full and complete wnitten list and deseription of any and all Internet Web Sites and Listings; and

222 If HOA directs Franchisee to do so. Franchisee shall immediately direct all
Internet Service Providers. domain name registries. Internet search engmes. and other lishng agencies
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{collectively. the “Internet Companies™) with which Franchisee has Internet Web Sites and Listings: (1) to
transfer all Franchisee’s Interest n such Internet Web Sites and Listings to HOA: and (1) to execute such
documents and take such actions as may be necessary to effectuate such transfer. In the event HOA does
not desire to accept any or all of such Internet Web Sites and Listings, Franchisee shall immediately direct
the Intemnet Compames to terminate such Internet Web Sites and Listings or shall take such other actions
with respect to the Internet Web Sites and Listings as HOA mav direct.

23 Appoimntment; Power of Atiomev. Franchisee hereby constitutes and appoints HOA and
any officer or agent of HOA, for HOA s benefit under the Francluse Agreement and this Agreement or
otherwise, with full power of substitution. as Franclusee’s true and lawful attorney-in-fact with full power
and authority in Franchisee's place and stead, and in Franchisee's name or the name of any affiliated
persen or affiliated company of Franchisee, on Termunation of the Franchise Agreement. to take any and
all appropriate action and to execute and deliver any and all documents that may be necessary or desirable
to accomplish the purposes of this Internet Listing Agreement. Franchisee further agrees that tlus
appowmtment consiitutes a power coupled with an nterest and 1s irevocable. Without linuting the
generality of the foregoing, Franchisee hereby grants to HOA the power and right to do the following:

231 Duirect the Internet Companies to transfer all or any part of Franchisee’s Interest
in and to the Internet Web Sites and Listings to HOA or any third party HOA designates;

232 Durect the Internet Companies to ternunate all or any part of the Internet Web
Sttes and Listings: and

233 Execute the Internet Companies” standard assignment forms or other documents
mn order to effect such transfer or termunation of Franchisee’s Interest.

2.4 Certification of Ternunation. Franchisee hereby directs the Internet Companies that they
shall accept. as conclusive proof of Termumation of the Franchise Agreement, HOA's wnitten statement.
signed by an officer or agent of HOA, that the Franchise Agreement has Ternunated.

25 Cessation of Obligations.  After the Internet Compames have duly transferred all
Franchisee’s Interest m such Internet Web Sites and Listings to HOA. or after the Intemet Companies
have duly termuinated Franchisee’s Interest in such Internet Web Sites and Listings, as between Franchisee
and HOA, Franchisee will have no further Interest in. or obligations under, such Internet Web Sites and
Listings. Notwithstanding the foregomg. Franchisee shall remain liable to each and all of the Intemet
Compames for the sums Franclusee 15 obligated to pay such Internet Companies for obligatnons
Franchisee mcurred before the date HOA duly accepted the transfer of such Interest. or for any other
obligations not subject to the Franchise Agreement or this Agreement.

3. Miscellaneous.

31 Release. Franchisee hereby releases. remuses, acquits, and forever discharges each and
all of the Internet Companies and each and all of their parent corporations. subsidianies affiliates,
directors. officers. shareholders, partners. members, emplovees, agents, and attorneys, and the
predecessors, successors, heirs, and assigns of any and all of them. from and agamnst any and all
obligations, debts, claims, demands. nghts, actions. causes of action. loss, losses, damage, damages,
expenses, costs. liability, and liabihities of any nature or kind. contingent or fixed, known or unknown, at
law or 1 equity or otherwise, ansing out of, asserted i, assertable m. or in any way related to. tlus
Agreement and the matters set forth in this Agreement.
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32 Indemmification. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, Franchisee 1s solely
responsible for any and all costs and expenses related to Franchisees performance. Franchisee’s
nonperformance, and HOA's enforcement of this Agreement, which costs and expenses Franchisee shall
pay to HOA in full without defense or setoff. on demand. Franchisee agrees that Franchisee shall
mdemmfy, defend, and hold harmless HOA and 1ts officers, members. employees, agents, and attorneys,
and 1ts affiliates and each and all of such affiliates™ directors, officers, shareholders, partners, members,
employees, agents, and attornevs. and the predecessors, successors. hewrs, and assigns of any and all of
them. from and against. and shall resmburse HOA and any and all of them for, any and all obligations,
debts, claims. demands. nights, actions, causes of action, loss, losses. damage, damages, expenses. costs,
liability, and liabalities of any nature or kind, ansing out of or related to, this Agreement and the matters
set forth i this Agreement.

i3 No Duty. The powers conferred on HOA under tlus Agreement are solely to protect
HOA’s mterests and shall not impose on HOA any duty to exercise any such powers. In no event shall
HOA be obligated to accept the transfer of anv or all of Franchisee’s Interest i any or all such Internet
Web Sites and Listings.

i4 Further Assurances Franchisee agrees that at any time after the date of this Agreement,
Franchisee shall perform such acts and execute and deliver such documents as may be necessary to effect
the mtent of this Agreement or to assist in or accomplish the purposes of this Agreement.

i3 Successors. Assipns, and Affiliates All HOA s nghts and powers. and all Franchisee’s
obligatrons, under this Agreement shall be binding on Franclusee’s successors. assigns. and affihiated
persens or enfities as 1f they had duly executed this Agreement.

3.6 Guaranty. Franchisee’s payment and performance obligations under this Agreement shall
be within the scope of the Guaranty that Franchisee’s Principals executed in connection with the
Franchise Agreement.

37 Survival. This Agreement shall survive the Termination of the Franchise Agreement.

N WITINESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Agreement as
of the Effective Date.
HOA: FRANCHISEE:
HOOTERS OF AMERICA_ LLC

By: By:
Terrance M. Marks
Title: Cluef Executive Officer Title:
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EXHIBIT G

TO THE HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC
INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

STATUS OF PROPRIETARY MARKS IN FRANCHISEE'S JURISDICTION
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STATUS OF PROPRIETARY MARKS
IN FRANCHISEE'S JURISDICTION

The status of the Proprietary Marks i Franchisee’s junisdiction 1s as follows:

MARKS

SERVICES/GOODS
CLASS

DATE FILED

SERIAL NUMBER

RECISTRATION
NUMBER
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ExXHIBIT H

TO THE HOOTERS OF AMERICA, LLC
INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FORM OF RELEASE
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PRELIMINARY NOTE

This Exhibit H contains parts of sample agreements. These parts include two types of provisions:
(i) the Caption, Recitals, and Consideration Clause; and (ii) the Release.

The Caption, Recitals, and Consideration Clause are included in this Exhibit H to provide
definitions and to show context. The Release (Sections 1 through 4) contains the release, estoppel,
covenant not to sue, and indemnification provisions, together with the related provisions, described
in Sections ILB.6. XI1.B.5.c, and XTI.C.2.a of the Franchise Agreement.

Except for Sections 1 through 4, the actual agreements Franchisee would sign in connection with
Sections IL.B.6, XILE.5.c, or XILC.2.a would contain additional provisions, and substantially
different provisions, than the provisions set forth in this Exhibit H. Sections 1 through 4 would be
modified as reasonably necessary and included in the applicable agreement.

[NAME OF AGREEMENT]

THIS [NAME OF AGREEMENT)] (the “Agreement™) 1s made and entered mto the day of
.20 (the “Effective Date™). by and among HOOTERS OF AMERICA, L1C. a
Georgia, USA linured liability company ("HOA™): ,a

(the “Franchisee™): [and] . an individual citizen of
. and . an individual cifizen of (such
mdividuals bemng referred to collectively in this Agreement as the “Pnncipals™ [ and
. a (“Transferor’™). and

.a (*Transferee™)].

RECITALS

A HOA. as franchisor, and Franchisee, as franchisee. are parties to that certain Hooters”
mtemational franclise agreement dated ;20 (such franchize agreement
together with all schedules, exlubits, addenda, attachments, and amendments to i, being referred to
collectively in this Agreement as the “Franchise Agreement™), related to the Hooters franchise of
Franchisee as described m such Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise™).

[FOR USE WHERFE FRANCHISEE IS RENEWING THE FRANCHISE]

B. The Initial Term of the Franchise will expire at the end of .20
and Franchisee desires to renew the Franchise.

C. Franchisee and Principals are required to execute this Agreement in order to fulfill those
certain pre-existing legal obligations of Franchisee and Prncipals set forth in Section IIB 6. of the
Franchise Agreement.

D. HOA is agreeable to such renewal, subject to, conditioned on, and in reliance on.
compliance by Franchisee and Principals with Section ILB 6. of the Franchise Agreement.

E. Principals own and hold substantially all of the equity in Franchisee. denive substantal
revenue from the Franclused Business, and anticipate substantial benefit from the renewal of the
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Franchise, and hence from this Agreement. without wlich Agreement HOA would not agree to renew the
Franchise.

NOW, THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual pronuses and
commutments set forth in this Agreement. and in further consideration of the Franchise Agreement, the
Renewal Franchise Agreement, and the mutual promises and comnutments set forth theremn, and m further
consideration of the sum of Ten and WNo/100 United States Dollars ($10.00 USD) in-hand paid to
Franchisee and each Principal, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency
of all of which the parties hereby acknowledge, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows:

[FOR USE WWHERFE FRANCHISEFE OR PRINCIPAL IS TRANSFERRING AN INTEREST]
B. [Franchisee] [Principal] desires to Transfer an Interest to Transferee.

C. Execution of this Agreement by Franchisee. Principals. Transferor, and Transferee is
required 1n order to fulfill those certain pre-existing legal obligations of Franchisee, Principals,
Transferor. and Transferee set forth in Section XILB .5 c. of the Franchise Agreement.

D. HOA 1s agreeable to such Transfer. subject to. conditioned on. and in rehiance on,
compliance by Franchisee. Prancipals, Transferor, and Transferee with Section XILB.5 c. of the Franchise
Agreement.

E. Principals own and hold substannally all of the equity 1 Franchisee, derrve substantial
revenue from the Franchised Business. and anticipate substantial benefir from the Transfer, and hence
from this Agreement. without which Agreement HOA would not consent to such Transfer.

NOW., THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual pronuses and
commitments set forth in this Agreement. and in further consideration of the Franchise Agreement and the
Transfer, and in further consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 United States Dollars (510.00 USD)
in-hand paid to Franchisee. each Principal, Transferor. and Transferee. and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which the parties hereby acknowledge. the parties to
this Agreement hereby agree as follows:

[RELEASE: FOR USE IN ALL SITUATIONS]

1. Release: Estoppel: Covenant Not to Sue: Indemnification.

1.1 Release. Franchisee. for itself and 1ts affiliates. and for its and such affiliates” directors.
officers. shareholders. parmers. members. employees. agents, and attomeys. together with Principals,
[Transferor. and Transferee ] and further together with and for the predecessors. successors, hews, and
assigns of any and all of the foregoing (collectively. the “Releasing Parties™). hereby release, remuse,
acquit. and forever discharge HOA and 1ts officers. members. employees, agents. and attorneys. and
HOA’s affiliates and each and all of such affiliates” directors. officers. shareholders, partners. members,
employees, agents. and attorneys. and the predecessors, successors. heirs. and assigns of any and all of
them (collectively, the “Parties Released™), from and agminst any and all obhigations, debts. clamms,
demands, rights, actions, causes of action, loss, losses. damage, damages, expenses. costs, liability, and
liabilities of any nature or kind, contingent or fixed. known or unknown. at law or in equity or otherwise,
that arise out of or are related to, or that may hereafter arise out of or relate to, for any matter prior to the
Effective Date of thus Agreement: (1) the Francluse Agreement: (1) any and all other Hooters franchise
agreements between HOA and any of the Releasing Parties: (iii) any and all Hooters restaurants owned,
opened, operated. or closed by Franchisee or any of the other Releasing Parties: (1v) [other matters as
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HOA deems appropriate]; and (v) the business relationship between any or all of the Parties Released on
the one hand. and any or all of the Releasing Parties on the other hand: including. without limitation, the
Hooters francluse offering. the Hooters franchise offering documents, the offer and sale of the Hooters
franchise, and the remstration. non-registration, exemption from registration. or non-exemption from
registration of the Hooters franchise and the Hooters franchise offering.

1.1.2 [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee., Principals, Transferor. and Transferee],
for themselves and the other Releasing Parties. hereby covenant, warrant, represent, and agree that nesther
they nor any of them have assigned or transferred any of the obligations, debts, clamms, demands, nghts,
actions, causes of action, loss, losses. damage. damages expenses, costs. lability. or habilities described
1 this Section 1.1 of this Agreement to any third party.

1.1.3  If any Releasing Party raises or asserts any claim, obligation. demand. right.
action. or cause of action described m this Section 1.1 of this Agreement, or alleges any debt, loss, losses,
damage, damages. expense. cost, hability, or liabilities described 1n this Section 1.1 of tlus Agreement,
this Section 1.1 shall be a complete and conclusive defense thereto.

1.2 Estoppel.

1.2.1 [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee, Pnneipals, Transferor. and Transferee].
for themselves and the other Releasing Parties, hereby acknowledge and agree that:

1.2.1.1 Neither the Parties Released nor any of them. at any time prior to the
Effective Date of this Agreement. commutted any default of the Franchise Agreement or any other
agreement or document related to the Franchised Business. which other documents include, without
himitation, the [Uniform Franchise Offermg Circular] [Franchise Disclosure Document] that HOA
delivered to Franchisee, as prospective franchisee, which delivery was due and proper in every respect;

1.2.1.2 Neither the Parties Released nor any of them, at any tume prior to the
Effective Date of tlus Agreement, commutted any violation of any constiution. stanete. rule. regulation,
ordinance, case law, or any other law; mncluding. without hnmtation, the FTC Franchise Rule
[jurisdiction’s franchise Laws or other relevant Laws], or otherwise, ansing owt of or related to the
Franchised Business, the Hooters franchise offering, the Hooters franchuse offering documents, the offer
and sale of the Hooters franchise. and the registration. non-registration, exemption from registration, or
non-exemption from registration of the Hooters franchise and the Hooters franchise offering; and

1.2.1.3 Nesther the Parties Released, nor any of them, owes the Releasmg
Parties, or any of them, any obligation, debt, claim. demand. right. action. cause of action, loss. losses.
damage, damages, expense. cost, liability. or liabilities of any nature or kind. contingent or fixed. known
or unknowr, at law or i equity or otherwise, that anises out of or 1s related to, or that may hereafter anise
out of or relate to, any matter that 1s within the scope of the Release set forth m Section 1.1 of this
Agreement.

1.2.2 If any Releasing Party raises or asserts any obligation. claim, demand, right.
action, or cause of action described 1n Section 1.1 or this Section 1.2 of this Agreement. or alleges any
debt, loss. losses, damage, damages, expense. cost, liability, or liabilities described i Section 1.1 or this
Section 1 2 of this Agreement, this Section 1.2 shall be a complete and conclusive defense thereto.

1.3 Covenant Not to Sue. [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee, Principals, Transferor.

and Transferee], for themselves and the other Releasing Parties, hereby covenant, warrant, represent, and
agree that neither they ner any of them will: (1) make or raise any claim. counterclaim, crossclaim.
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affirmative defense, or demand; (i) commence, or cause or permit to be commenced; (11) prosecute, or
cause or permit to be prosecuted: or (1v) assist or cooperate in the commencement or prosecution of. any
suit or action at law or in equuity or otherwise, any arbitration or like proceeding, or any adnunistrative or
agency proceeding, against or related to the Parties Released, or any of them. for any matter arising out of
or related to, or that may hereafter anse out of or relate to: (a) the Release set forth m Section 1.1 of ths
Agreement; (b) any matter that is within the ambit of such Release; (c) the Estoppel set forth in
Section 1.2 of this Agreement; or (d) any matter that 1s within the ambit of such Estoppel.

1.4 Indemnification. [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee. Principals, Transferor. and
Transferee], for themselves and the other Releasing Parties. hereby covenant, warrant, represent, and
agree that they and the other Releasing Parties: (1) will mndemmnifyv the Parties Released for. and will hold
harmless the Parties Released from. any breach of Sections 1.1, 1.2, or 1.3 of this Agreement; and (11) wall
pay the amount of all losses and expenses ansing out of or related to any breach of Sections 1.1. 1.2, or
1.3 of this Agreement so that the Party Released to which such payment 15 owed actually receives such
payment by end of ten (10) days after demand therefor. Such losses and expenses shall include, without
bimitation, attornevs” fees and costs, including without limitation attorneys” fees and costs of appeal. and
further including without limitation attorneys’ fees and costs of collection. Each Party Released shall
have the right to counsel such Party Released reasonably chooses. No Party Released will be required to
seek recovery from any msurer. other third party. or otherwise, or to mitigate anv loss and expense, to
maintaim and recover fully a claim under this Section 14 Mo falure to pursue such recovery or to
mitigate a loss or expense will in any way reduce or alter the amounts anyv Party Released 1s entitled to
recover. The obligations of [Franchisee. Principals] [Franchisee, Prinetpals, Transferor, Transferee]. and
the other Releasing Parties under thus Section 1.4: (a) shall be jout and several; and (b) shall be within the
ambit of all guaranties made by [Franchisee’s Prncipals] [Franclusee’s Prncipals. Transferor
Transferor’s Principals, Transferee, Transferee’s Principals], and other guarantors, all of which shall
remarn 1 full force and effect.

2. Acknowledogments.

2.1 Authority.  [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee. Prncipals. Transferor, and
Transferee] covenant, warrant, represent, and agree that they have the authonity to bind themselves and
the other Releasing Parties to Section 1, this Section 2, Section 3, and Section 4 of this Agreement.
[Franchisee and Principals] [Franclusee. Prncipals. Transferor, and Transferee] acknowledge and agree
that HOA 1s reasonably relying on [Franclusee’s and Principals’] [Franclusee’s, Prncipals”, Transferor’s,
and Transferee’s] covenants, warranties. representations. and agreements set forth i this Section 2.1 to
HOAs detriment.

22 Full Effect. [Franchisee and Prncipals] [Franclusee, Principals. Transferor, and
Transferee], for themselves and the other Releasing Parties. hereby expressly agree that Section 1.1 of this
Agreement shall be given full force and effect according to each and all of its terms and provisions.
express and implied, including without lomtation: (1) those relating to unknown obligations, debts. clamms,
demands. rights. actions, causes of action. loss, losses, damage, damages, expenses, costs, liability, and
hiabilities. 1f any; and (11) those relating to any obligations, debts, claims, demands, nghts, actions. causes
of action, loss, losses. damage, damages. expenses. costs, liability, and habilities other than those
specified.

23 Additional or Dafferent Facts: Mistake of Fact: Assumption of Risk [Franchisee and
Principals] [Franchisee, Principals. Transferor, and Transferee] hereby acknowledge and agree that:
(1) [Franclusee, Principals] [Franchisee. Principals. Transferor. Transferee], and the other Releasing
Parties may discover facts different from or mn addition to those they now know or believe to be true with
respect to, or that there may be a mustake of fact with respect to, the obligations, debts, claims, demands.
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rights, actions, causes of action, loss, losses, damage, damages, expenses. costs. liability, and habilities of
any nature whatsoever, and the other matters. that are the subject of the Release. Estoppel. Covenant Not
to Sue. and Indemmification set forth in Section 1 of this Agreement; (i1) [Franchisee, Principals]
[Franchisee. Prncipals, Transferor, Transferee], and such other Releasing Parties hereby expressly
assume the risk of the exastence of additional facts. different facts. or nustake of fact: and (111) Section 1,
this Section 2. Section 3, and Section 4 of this Agreement shall be and remain i full force and effect
regardless of such additional facts. different facts. or mmstake of fact.

24 Noluntary Nature of Agreement. [Franclusee and Principals] [Franchisee, Principals,
Transferor. and Transferee]. for themselves and the other Releasmg Parties, hereby acknowledge and
agree that: (1) [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee, Principals, Transferor, and Transferee] have freely
and voluntarly entered mto this Agreement. mcluding without limitation the Release, Estoppel, Covenant
Not to Sue, and Indemmification set forth m Section 1 of this Agreement; (1) [Franchisee and Principals]
[Franchisee. Prmncipals, Transferor, and Transferee] have had a full and fair opportunity to consult with
their legal counsel with respect to this Agreement, includmg without linutation such Release, Estoppel,
Covenant Not to Sue, and Indenmification, and thar they have in fact done so or have knowngly,
mtelligently, and voluntanily elected not to do so; and (it1) they have read and fully understand this
Agreement.

x5 Consideration.  [Franchisee and Prncipals] [Franchisee, Principals. Transferor. and
Transferee], for themselves and the cther Releasing Parties, hereby acknowledge and agree that HOA s
forbearing the exercise of certain rights i connection with this Agreement. and 15 granting [Franchisee
and Pnneipals] [Franchisee. Prncipals. Transferor. and Transferee] certam valuable nights in connection
with this Agreement. in specific consideration of the Release, Estoppel., Covenant Not to Sue, and
Indemnification set forth m Section 1 of this Agreement, without which Release Estoppel, Covenant Not
to Sue, and Indemnification HOA would not have agreed to forbear the exercise of such rights or granted
Franchisee and Prncipals the nights related to this Agreement, which rights melude without hinitation,
[the renewal of the Franchise] [HOA s consent to the Transfer of the Interest].

2.6 Beneficiaries. The Parties Released are first-party direct beneficiaries or intended third-
party beneficianes of Section 1. this Section 2, Section 3, and Section 4 of this Agreement, are enntled to
enforce such sections, and are entitled to all the benefits of such sections.

27 Intent of the Parties: Essentital Purpose.  [Franclusee and Prncipals] [Franchisee
Prncipals, Transferor, and Transferee]. for themselves and the other Releasing Parties. hereby
acknowledge and agree that the mtent of the parties as to Section 1 of this Agreement, and that the
essential purpose of Section 1 of this Agreement, is that the Releasing Parties give the Parties Released:
(1) a full and complete release, estoppel. and covenant not to sue for all matters prior to the Effective Date
of this Agreement; and (1) a full and complete indemnification for any breach of such release, estoppel,
or covenant not to sue.

2.8 Remedies.

2.8.1 [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee, Principals, Transferor. and Transferee],
for themselves and the other Releasing Parties. hereby acknowledge and agree that: (1) in the event of any
breach of Section 1 of this Agreement, the Parties Released would be irreparably injured and without
adequate remedy at law: and (1) m the event of a breach or a threatened or attempted breach of any
provision of Section 1. [Franchisee and Pnincipals] [Franchusee, Prncipals, Transferor. and Transferee]
agree that the Parties Released will be entitled. in addition to any other remedies such Parties Released
may have at law or in equity or otherwise, to a preliminary and permanent injunction and a decree for

A
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specific performance of the provisions of Section 1 without the necessity of showing actual or threatened
damage and without being required to furmsh a bond or other securnty.

2.8.2 In addmion to the nights of the Parties Released set forth in Section 2.8.1 of this
Agreement above, [Franclusee and Principals] [Franchisee. Principals. Transferor. and Transferee] hereby
acknowledge and agree that any breach of Section 1 of this Agreement by the Releasing Parties, or any of
them, will be a defanlt of Section XIIL.C. of the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement that will permut HOA to
termunate the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement, after notice to Franchisee specifying the default, and after
the expiration of the cure period set forth 1 Section XIIL.C. and Franchisee’s fatlure to cure such default
by the end of such cure peniod.

3. Miscellaneous.
3:1 Tume Time 1s of the essence to the performance of all obligations of [Franchisee and

Principals] [Franchisee, Poncipals. Transferor. and Transferee] to be performed under this Agreement and
the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement.

iz Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by a wnitten agreement signed by
the parties.

i3 Previous Payments [Franchisee and Pnneipals] [Franchisee. Prneipals, Transferor, and
Transferee] hereby acknowledge and agree that all sums of money [Franchisee and Principals]
[Franchisee, Principals. Transferor, and Transferee]. or any of thewr affiliates paid to HOA or HOA's
affiliates are and shall remam the sole property of HOA and HOA’s affiliates. and that [Franchisee,
Principals] [Franclusee. Principals. Transferor. Transferee]. and their affiliates shall not have any nghts
thereto.

34 Watver and Delay. No watver or delay by HOA in requiring strict compliance with any
obligation of the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement or tlhus Agreement, or in the exercise of any right or
remedy provided in the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement or this Agreement or at law or m equity or
otherwise, and no custom or practice at variance with the requirements of the [Renewal] Franchise
Agreement or this Agreement, will constitute a warver or modification of any such obligation. night,
remedy, or requirement, or preclude the exercise of any such right or remedy or the night to require strict
compliance with any obligation set forth 1 the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement or this Agreement. or wall
preclude. affect. or impair enforcement of any night or remedy provided in the [Renewal] Franchise
Agreement or this Agreement or at law or 1 equity or otherwise. All remedies under the [Renewal]
Franchise Agreement, this Agreement. at law, in equity, or otherwise, afforded to HOA shall be
cumulative and not alternative. and may be exercised ssmultaneously or sequentially 1 any order.

3.5 Goverming Law. All matters arising out of or related to the [Renewal] Franchise
Agreement or this Agreement, including without limitation all matters arising out of or related to the
making, existence, construction, enforcement, and sufficiency of performance of the [Renewal] Franchise
Agreement or this Agreement, shall be deternuned exclusivelvy in accordance with. and governed
exclustvely by, the laws of the State of Georga, USA applicable to agreements made and to be entirely
performed within the State of Georga, whuch laws shall prevail m the event of any conflict of laws.

i6 Forum. Venue and Junsdiction In the event of any dispute ansing out of or related to
the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement or this Agreement. including without limitation any dispute arising
out of or related to the making of the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement or this Agreement. such dispute
shall be resolved exclusively through liigation. The exclusive forum and venue for such litigation shall
be a state or federal court in or for Cobb County, Georgia, USA having junsdiction over the subject
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matter. [Franchises and Principals] [Franchisee, Principals, Transferor, and Transferee], for themselves
and the other Releasing Parties. hereby wrrevocably accept and subnut to. generally and unconditionally.
the exclusive junisdiction of any state or federal court in or for Cobb County, Georgia having jurisdiction
over the subject matter and hereby waive, to the extent permutted by applicable law. defenses based on
jurisdiction, venue, or forum non conventens. The provisions of this Section 3.6 shall remain 1n full force
and effect after the expiration or termination of the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement.

37 Watver of Trial By Jury. HOA, for itself and the other Parties Released, and [Franchisee
and Prncipals] [Franchisee, Principals, Transferor, and Transferee]. for themselves and the other
Releasing Parties. hereby warve tnal by jury m any litigation ansing out of or related to the [Renewal]
Franchise Agreement or this Agreement.

3.8 Anomeys’ Fees. In the event of any dispute or litigation arsing out of or related to the
[Renewal] Franchise Agreement or this Agreement. including without hinutation any dispute or hitigation
arising out of or related to the making of the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement or this Agreement,
Franchisee shall pay to HOA_ on demand, HOA’s costs. includmg without linutation HOA s reasonable
attorneys” fees and costs, and further including without hmitation HOAs reasonable attorneys” fees and
costs of appeal. and further wcluding without linutation HOAs reasonable attorneys” fees and costs of
collection. so that HOA actually receives such amounts by the end of ten (10) days after demand therefor.
In the event of any default under the [Renewal] Francluse Agreement or thus Agreement. Franchisee shall
pay to HOA on demand, HOA's costs arising out of or related to such default. including wathout
limitation HOA's reasonable attorneys” fees and costs, and further meluding without himitation HOAs
reasonable attorneys” fees and costs of collection, so that HOA actually recerves such amounts by the end

of ten (10) days after demand therefor.

39 Further Assurances [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee, Principals, Transferor, and
Transferee] hereby covenant, warrant, represent, and agree that: (1) they will perform such acts and will
execute and deliver such agreements and other documents to HOA as HOA may require to effect the
wmtent of this Agreement; (11) they will not condition the performance of such acts or the execution and
delivery of such agreements and other documents; and (111) they will not delay the performance of such
acts or the execution and delivery of such agreements and other documents.

4. Construction.

41 Construe In Favor of Enforcement In the event of any liigation or like event or
occurrence arising out of or related to [Franclusee's and Principals’] [Franchusee's, Principals’,
Transferor’s, and Transferee’s]. or any other Releasing Party’s obligations set forth 1n this Agreement. or
arising out of or related to the matters set forth i this Agreement. [Franchisee and Principals]
[Franchisee. Pnncipals, Transferor, and Transferee], for themselves and the other Releasing Parties,
hereby direct any third party constnung this Agreement. including without linmtation any court, mediator,
master, or other party acting as a trier of fact or law. to construe such provisions broadly m favor of
enforcement.

42 Merger. Entire Agreement. Compliance. This Agreement, together with the [Renewal]
Franchise Agreement. 15 a complete mtegration that sets forth the entire agreement between the parties,
fully superseding any and all prior negotiations, agreements, representations. or understandings between
[Franchisee and Prncipals] [Franchisee. Principals, Transferor, and Transferee] on the one hand, and
HOA on the other hand. whether oral or written, anising out of or related to the matters set forth m ths
Agreement. [Franchisee, Principals] [Franchisee. Prncipals, Transferor, Transferee]. and HOA hereby
expressly affirm that there are no oral or wnitten agreements, side-deals, arrangements. or understandings
between [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchusee, Principals, Transferor. and Transferee] on the one hand.
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and HOA on the other hand. arising out of or related to the maters ser forth in this Agreement. except as
expressly set forth m this Agreement No course of dealing, whether occurring before or after the
Effective Date of this Agreement. shall operate to amend, ternunate, or waive any express witten
provision of this Agreement. In the event of any conflict between any provision of this Agreement and a
proviston of the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement, the provision set forth 1n this Agreement shall control.
Except as amended by this Agreement, all provisions of the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement shall remain
m full force and effect according to their terms, and the parties shall continue to be bound by the
[Renewal] Franchise Agreement as modified by this Agreement.

43 Interpretation.  The word “includmng”™ means “includimg without limiting the scope or
generality” of any word or words related thereto, and the words “and™ and “or” mean. and are used in the
melusive sense of. “and'or.” References to agreements, documents. guaranties, and hke agreements and
mstruments shall be deemed to refer as well to all schedules. exhibits. addenda. attachments, and
amendments thereto.

4.4 Obligatiens Benefit Only Franchisee.

44.1 [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee, Principals, Transferor. and Transferee].
for themselves and the other Releasing Parties, hereby: (1) acknowledge and agree that all obligations of
HOA set forth in the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement and this Agreement shall benefit only Franclusee;
(11) acknowledge and agree that no individual or other entity except Franchisee shall have any right to rely
on. enforce. benefit from, or obtain relief for breach of, any obligation of HOA set forth i the [Renewal]
Franchise Agreement or this Agreement. either directly or by subrogation; and (iii) covenant, warrant,
represent, and agree that neither Franchisee nor Transferee nor any other Releasing Party will make or
raise any claim, counterclaim, crossclaim, affirmartive defense, or demand, that alleges. asserts. or
otherwise rases any matter contrary to Clause (1) or Clause (1) of this Section 4.4.1.

442 [Franchisee and Principals] [Franchisee, Principals, Transferor. and Transferee].
for themselves and the other Releasing Parties. hereby acknowledge and agree that: (1) 1 the event of any
breach of Section 441 of this Agreement. HOA would be wreparably myured and without adequate
remedy at law: and (11) 1 the event of a breach or a threatened or attempted breach of any provision of
Section 4.4.1 of this Agreement, HOA wall be entitled. in addition to any other remedies HOA may have
at law or in equity or otherwise, to a prelinunary and permanent mnjunction and a decree for specific
performance of the provisions of Section 44.1. without the necessity of showing actual or threatened
damage and without being required to furmish a bond or other securty.

453 Partial Tnvalidity. Except as otherwise set forth m this Section 4.3, 1f any provision of
this Agreement 15 declared invalid or unenforceable for any reason. such provision shall be modified to
the nmumimum extent necessary to make 1t valid and enforceable; or if 1t cannot be so modified, then
severed, and the remainmng provisions of this Agreement shall remam 1n full force and effect. and the
parties agree that they would have signed this Agreement as so modified. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
1if any provision of Section 1. Section 2, Section 3. or this Section4 shall be declared invalid or
unenforceable such that the Release. Estoppel, Covenant Not to Sue. or Indemmification set forth in
Section 1 of this Agreement partially, substantially. or completely fails of its essential purpose. the
[renewal of the Franchise] [transfer of the Interest] shall be voidable by HOA. If HOA avoids the
[renewal of the Franchise] [transfer of the Interest]. such avoidance mav be as of the Effective Date or as
of any time thereafter, at HOA s discretion.

4.6 Effect of Recitals. The Recitals to this Agreement shall be construed as a material and

enforceable part of this Agreement for all purposes. and shall m no event be considered prefatory
language or mere surplusage.
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4.7 No Adverse Construction. All parties to this Agreement are skilled and experienced
busmess professtonals. and all have contributed to the negotiation and drafiing of this Agreement. As a
result, 11 no event may any adverse construction of this Agreement be attributed to any party as the
drafting party.

48 Survival of Obligations. All obligations of this Agreement that expressly or by their
nature require performance after the ternunation or expiration of the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement, or
that by their nature would reasonably be expected to continue in effect after termunation or expiration of
the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement, shall continue in full force and effect after and notwithstanding the
termunation or expiration of the [Renewal] Franchise Agreement, until they are satisfied in full or by thewr
nature expire.

49 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed n multiple counterparts. each of which
shall be deemed an origmal. and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

4.10  Subnussion of Release; Effectiveness. Submission of this Agreement to [Franchisee and
Principals] [Franchisee, Principals, Transferor. and Transferee] does not constitute an offer to enter mto a
contract. This Agreement shall not be binding on HOA unless and until: (1) 1t 15 duly executed by HOAs
authorized officer; and (11) such duly-executed Agreement 1s delivered to Franchisee.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF. the parties to this Agreement, intending to be legally bound by this
Agreement. have duly executed and delivered this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

[FORM ONLY: SIGNATURES OF HOA, FRANCHISEE,
PRINCTPALS, TRANSFEROR, AND TRANSFEREE. AS
APPROPRIATE, INTENTIONALLY OMITTED]
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Exhibit 21

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF CHANTICLEER HOLDINGS, INC.

Name Jurisdiction of Incorporation
Chanticleer Advisors, LLC Nevada, U.S.A.
Avenel Ventures, LLC Nevada, U.S.A.
Avenel Financial Services, LLC Nevada, USA
Chanticleer Holdings Limited Jersey

DineOut SA Ltd. England
Chanticleer Holdings Australia Pty, Ltd. Australia
Dimaflo (Pty.) Ltd. South Africa
Tundraspex (Pty.) Ltd. South Africa
Civisign (Pty.) Ltd. South Africa
Diamlogix (Pty.) Ltd. South Africa
Chanticleer and Shaw Foods (Pty.) Ltd. South Africa

Kiarabrite (Pty.) Ltd. South Africa




CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the inclusion in this Registration Statement of Chanticleer Holdings, Inc. on Form S-1 of our audit report dated April 1, 2011, which includes an emphasis
paragraph relating to an uncertainty as to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

We also consent to the reference to our Firm under the caption "Experts" in the Prospectus.
/s/ Creason & Associates, P.L.L.C.

Tulsa, Oklahoma
December 2, 2011




